

Date: 31st January, 2024

To, Department of Corporate Services, BSE Limited, Ground Floor, P.J. Towers, Dalai Street Fort, Mumbai-400001

Scrip Code: 509051 Scrip Id: INDINFO

Sub: Submission of Right Issue Documents i.e. Letter of Offer, Abridge Letter of Offer, Right Entitlement Letter, Application Form.

Ref: Earlier announcement dated 15th January, 2024 Right Issue of Indian Infotech and Software Limited

Dear Sir,

We are submitting herewith the Following Document for Right Issue as per our earlier announcement dated 15th January, 2024 as Follows:

- 1. Letter of Offer,
- 2. Abridge Letter of Offer,
- 3. Right Entitlement Letter,
- 4. Application Form

Please take the same on your record and acknowledge the receipt.

Thanking You. Yours Faithfully,

For Indian Infotech & Software Ltd.

Mushahid Ahmed Khan

Digitally signed by Mushahid Ahmed Khan Date: 2024.01.31

20:24:25 +0530' Mushahid Khan Company Secretary and Compliance Officer Mem No.: ACS-49192







INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED CIN: L70100MH1982PLC027198

Indian Infotech and Software Limited was incorporated on May 22, 1982 with the name of Indian Leasers Limited in accordance with the provision of Companies Act, 1956. Subsequently the name of our Company was changed to Indian Infotech and Software Limited and the Registrar of Companies Mumbai issued a fresh certificate of incorporation on July 20, 1998. Pursuant to the order of the Honorable Bombay High Court dated May 4, 2012 approving the Scheme of Arrangement, the Nikkietal Co. Limited and Lambodar Nirmit Limited was merged with Indian Infotech and Software Limited. Pursuant to completion of said merger, the Company has issued and allotted the equity shares to the shareholders of both the transferor companies, the securities of the company are listed on the BSE Ltd. (Stock Exchange) since April 19, 1985. For further Details of our Company, please refer to section *titled "General Information"* beginning on page 31 of this Letter of Offer.

Registered Office: Office No. 110, 1st Floor, Golden Chamber Pre Co-Op Soc. Ltd. New Link Road Andheri West Mumbai-400053, India Contact Person: Manish Kumar Badola, Managing Director, Tel. No.: 022-49601435 E-mail: indianinfotechsoftware@yahoo.com; Website: www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in

Corporate Identification Number: L70100MH1982PLC027198

PROMOTERS OF OUR COMPANY: MAHAMAYA FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS PRIVATE LIMITED, JAYANTI PRIME SOFTWARE ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED, GENEROSITY SHARE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED, DHANVARSHA ADVISORY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

FOR PRIVATE CIRCULATION TO THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED (OUR "COMPANY" OR THE "ISSUER") ONLY

RIGHT ISSUE OF UPTO **26,14,53,270** EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF ₹1.00 EACH ("EQUITY SHARES" OR "RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES) OF OUR COMPANY FOR CASH AT A PRICE OF ₹ **1.60** PER RIGHTS EQUITY SHARE INCLUDING A SHARE PREMIUM OF **0.60** PAISE PER RIGHTS EQUITY SHARE (THE "ISSUE PRICE") AGGREGATING UP TO ₹ **4,183.25** LAKH ("THE ISSUE") ON A RIGHTS BASIS TO THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR COMPANY IN THE RATIO OF THIRTEEN (13) RIGHT EQUITY SHARE FOR EVERY FIFTY (50) FULLY PAID-UP EQUITY SHARES HELD BY THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR COMPANY ON THE RECORD DATE, THAT IS **JANUARY 29, 2024** (THE "ISSUE"). FOR FURTHER DETAILS, SEE "**TERMS OF THE ISSUE**" BEGINNING ON PAGE 80 OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER.

WILFUL DEFAULTERS / FRAUDULENT BORROWERS

Neither the Company nor the Promoters or any of the Directors have been or are identified as Wilful Defaulter and / or Fraudulent Borrower by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on Wilful Defaulter(s) or Fraudulent Borrower(s) issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

GENERAL RISKS

Investment in equity and equity related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in the Issue unless they can afford to take the risk of losing such investment. Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in the Issue. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of our Company and this Issue including the risks involved. The securities being offered in the Issue have not been recommended nor approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"), nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this Letter of Offer, Specific attention of the investors is invited to "*Risk Factors*" beginning on page 18 of this Letter of Offer before making an investment in this Issue.

ISSUER'S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILITY

Our Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Letter of Offer contains all information with regard to our Company and the Issue, which is material in the context of the Issue, and that the information contained in this Letter of Offer is true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other facts, the omission of which makes this Letter of Offer as a whole or any such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading in any material respect.

LISTING

The existing Equity Shares of our Company are listed on BSE Limited ("BSE"). Our Company has received "*In-principle Approval*" from BSE for listing the Rights Equity Shares vide its letter dated December 05, 2023. Our Company will also make application to the Stock Exchange to obtain its trading approval for the Rights Entitlements as required under the SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020. For the purposes of the Issue, the Designated Stock Exchange is BSE Limited.

REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE

PURVA SHAREGISTRY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED. CIN: U67120MH1993PTC074079

Unit no. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt. J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E) Mumbai 400 011.

Telephone: +91 22 4961 4132; Facsimile: +91 22 22 3570 0224;

E-mail: <u>support@purvashare.com</u>; Website: <u>https://purvashare.com</u>; Contact person: Deepali Dhuri, Compliance Officer

Investor grievance: <u>support@purvashare.com</u>; SEBI Registration No: INRO00001112 Validity of Registration: Permanent

ISSUE SCHEDULE			
ISSUE OPENS ON	LAST DATE FOR ON MARKET RENUNCIATION*	ISSUE CLOSES ON#	
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 06, 2024	THURSDAY FEBRUARY 08, 2024	TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024	

*Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renounces on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

#Our Board will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from time to time, provided that this Issue will not remain open in excess of 30 (Thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date. Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I – GENERAL	3
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS	3
NOTICE TO INVESTORS	9
PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND USE OF MARKET DATA	11
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS	
SECTION II - SUMMARY OF THE LETTER OF OFFER	15
SECTION III – RISK FACTORS	
SECTION IV - INTRODUCTION	
THE ISSUE	
GENERAL INFORMATION	
CAPITAL STRUCTURE	
SECTION V - PARTICULARS OF THE ISSUE	
OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE	
STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS	
OUR INDUSTRY	
OUR BUSINESS	54
KEY INDUSTRY REGULATIONS AND POLICIES	
HISTORY AND CORPORATE STRUCTURE	
OUR MANAGEMENT	65
SECTION VI – FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
MARKET PRICE INFORMATION	69
SECTION VII - LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION	71
OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND DEFAULTS	71
GOVERNMENT AND OTHER APPROVALS	
OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES	74
SECTION VIII: ISSUE RELATED INFORMATION	
TERMS OF THE ISSUE	
RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES	
DECLARATION	
ANNEXURE A & B FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	109



SECTION I – GENERAL

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Letter of Offer uses the definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which you should consider when reading the information contained herein. The following list of certain capitalized terms used in this Letter of Offer is intended for the convenience of the reader/prospective Applicant only and is not exhaustive.

This Letter of Offer uses the definitions and abbreviations set forth below, which, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, or unless otherwise specified, shall have the meaning as provided below. References to any legislations, acts, regulation, rules, guidelines, circulars, notifications, policies, or clarifications shall be deemed to include all amendments, supplements or re-enactments and modifications thereto notified from time to time and any reference to a statutory provision shall include any subordinate legislation made from time to time under such provision.

The words and expressions used in this Letter of Offer, but not defined herein, shall have the same meaning (to the extent applicable) ascribed to such terms under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the Companies Act, the SCRA, the Depositories Act, and the rules and regulations made thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms used in section titled 'Industry Overview', 'Statement of Tax Benefits', 'Financial Information', 'Outstanding Litigations, Defaults, and Material Developments' and 'Terms of the Issue' on page 44, 41, 68, 71, and 80 respectively, shall have the meaning given to such terms in such sections.

Company Related Terms

Term	Description	
Indian Infotech and	Indian Infotech and Software Limited (IISL) a public limited company incorporated under the Companies	
Software Limited /	Act, 1956, having its registered office at office No. 110, 1st Floor, Golden Chamber Pre Co-Op Soc Ltd.	
Company	New Link Road Andheri West Mumbai-400053.	
We/ us/ our/IISL	Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to Indian Infotech & Software Limited.	
AoA/ Articles of Association	The Articles of Association of Indian Infotech and Software Limited, as amended from time to time;	
Audit Committee	The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Company's audit committee in accordance with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013;	
Auditors/StatutoryAuditors/PeerReviewAuditorAuditorReview	Statutory and peer review auditor of our Company, namely, M/s. ADV & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai.	
Board of Directors/ Board	Board of Directors of our Company;	
Chairman	Mr. Manish Kumar Badola, Managing Director is the Chairman of our Company	
Chief Financial Officer/ CFO	Mr. Hemant Vadilal Modi, the Chief Financial Officer of our Company.	
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer	The Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company Mr. Mushahid Ahmed Khan.	
Standalone Audited Financial Statements	The Standalone audited financial statements of our Company prepared in accordance with Ind AS for the period ended on September 30, 2023 and Financial Years ended on March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.	
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee/ CSR Committee	The committee of the Board of directors constituted as our Company's corporate social responsibility committee in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. For details of the Independent Directors, please refer to section titled 'Our Management' beginning on page 65 of this Letter of Offer.	
Directors	The director(s) on the Board of our Company, unless otherwise specified.	
Eligible Shareholder(s)	Eligible equity holder(s) of the Equity Shares of Indian Infotech & Software Ltd as on the Record Date;	
Equity Shares	Equity Share of the Company having face value of ₹ 1.00/ (Rupee One only);	
Independent Director	Independent directors on the Board and eligible to be appointed as an Independent Director under the provisions of Companies Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations. For details of the Independent Directors, please refer to section titled 'Our Management' beginning on page 65 of this Letter of Offer;	
Company's ISIN	International Securities Identification Number of our Company being INE300B01022;	
Key Management Personnel/KMP	Key management personnel of our Company in terms of Regulation 2(1) (bb) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013. For details, please refer to section titled 'Our Management' beginning on page 65 of this Letter of Offer;	



Key Management	Key management personnel of our Company in terms of Regulation 2(1) (bb) of the SEBI (ICDR)		
Personnel /KMP	Regulations and Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013. For details, please refer to section titled 'Our		
	Management' beginning on page 65 of this Letter of Offer;		
MoA/Memorandum of	The Memorandum of Association of Indian Infotech & Software Limited, as amended from time to time;		
Association			
Nomination and	The committee of the Board of directors reconstituted as our Company's Nomination and Remuneration		
Remuneration	Committee in accordance with Regulation 19 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and Section 178 of the		
Committee	Companies Act, 2013;		
	Promoter of our company are M/s. Mahamaya Financial Consultants Private Limited, M/s. Jayanti Prime		
Promoters	Software Advisory Private limited, M/s. Generosity Share Trading Private Limited, M/s. Dhanvarsha		
	Advisory Services Private Limited,		
	Persons and entities forming part of the promoter group of our Company as determined in terms of		
Promoter Group Regulation 2(1) (pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and as disclosed by our Company in the file with the BSE Limited under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations;			
			Registered Office
	Soc. Ltd. New Link Road Andheri West Mumbai-400053;		
Registrar of Companies	Registrar of Companies, Mumbai situated at 100, Everest, Marine Drive, Mumbai – 400002, Maharashtra,		
	India;		
Stakeholders' Relationship	The committee of the Board of Directors constituted as our Company's Stakeholders' Relationship		
Committee	Committee in accordance with Regulation 20 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations Section 178 of the		
	Companies Act, 2013;		
Stock Exchange/	BSE Limited.		
Designated Stock Exchange			
Designated Stock Exchange			

ISSUE RELATED TERMS

Term	Description	
Abridged Letter of Offer	Abridged Letter of Offer to be sent to the Eligible Shareholders with respect to the Issue in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and the Companies Act;	
Additional Right Shares	The Right Shares applied or allotted under this Issue in addition to the Rights Entitlement;	
Allot/ Allotment/ Allotted	Unless the context requires, the allotment of Right Shares pursuant to this Issue;	
Allotment Account	The account opened with the Banker to the Issue, into which the Application Money lying to the credit of the escrow account(s) and Application amounts by ASBA blocked in the ASBA Account, with respect to successful Investors will be transferred on the Transfer Date in accordance with Section 40 (3) of the Companies Act;	
Allotment Advice	Note, advice, or intimation of Allotment sent to each successful Applicant who has been or is to be Allotted the Right Shares pursuant to this Issue;	
Allotment Date	Date on which the Allotment is made pursuant to this Issue;	
Allottees	Person(s) who are Allotted Rights Equity Shares pursuant to the Allotment;	
Applicant(s)/ Investor(s)	Eligible Shareholder(s) and/or Renouncee(s) who make an application for the Right Shares pursuant to this Issue in terms of the Letter of Offer, including an ASBA Investor;	
Application	Application made through (i) Submission of the Application Form or plain paper Application to the Designated Branch(es) of the SCSBs or online/ electronic application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the ASBA process, to subscribe to the Equity Shares at the Issue Price;	
Application Money	Aggregate amount payable at the time of Application 100% of Issue Price.	
Application Supported by Blocked Amount/ ASBA	Application (whether physical or electronic) used by ASBA Investors to make an application authorizing the SCSB to block the Application Money in the ASBA Account maintained with such SCSB;	
ASBA Account	Account maintained with a SCSB and specified in the Application Form or plain paper application, as the case may be, for blocking the amount mentioned in the Application Form or the plain paper application, in case of Eligible Shareholders, as the case may be;	
ASBA Applicant /ASBA Investor	As per the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/13 dated January 22, 2021, all investors (including Renounces) shall make an application for an Issue only through ASBA facility;	
ASBA Bid	Bid made by an ASBA Bidder including all revisions and modifications thereto as permitted under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations;	



	Collectively, SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated
ASBA Circulars	December 30, 2009, SEBI circular bearing reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29,
	2011, SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22,
	2020, SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/66 dated May 19,
	2022 and any other circular issued by SEBI in this regard and any subsequent circulars or notifications
	issued by SEBI in this regard
Bankers to the Issue/ Refund Bank	Collectively, the Escrow Collection Bank and the Refund Bank to the Issue, in this case being Axis Bank Limited.
Bankers to the Issue	Agreement dated May 04, 2023 entered into by and amongst our Company, the Registrar to the Issue,
Agreement	and the Bankers to the Issue for collection of the Application Money from Investors making an
	application, transfer of funds to the Allotment Account from the Escrow Account and SCSBs, release of
	funds from Allotment Account to our Company and other persons and where applicable, refunds of the
	amounts collected from Investors and providing such other facilities and services as specified in the
	Agreement.
Basis of Allotment	The basis on which the Right Shares will be Allotted to successful Applicants in the Issue, and which
~ #/>	is described in the section titled ' <i>Terms of the Issue</i> ' beginning on page 80 of this Letter of Offer;
Call(s)	100% payment will be received on application and there will be no further calls for the Call Monies;
Controlling	Such branches of the SCSBs which coordinate with the Registrar to the Issue and the Stock Exchange,
Branches	a list of which is available on
/Controlling Branches of the	http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34and/or such
SCSBs	other website(s) as may be prescribed by the SEBI from time to time.
Consolidated Certificate	The certificate that would be issued for Rights Equity Shares Allotted to each folio in case of Eligible
Dama ana hia Dataila	Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form.
Demographic Details	Details of Investors including the Investor's address, name of the Investor's father/ husband, investor status, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, occupation and bank account details, where applicable;
Designated SCSB Branches	Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Forms submitted by ASBA Bidders, a list
Designated SCSD Dratenes	of which is available on the website of SEBI at
	https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intm_Id=35, updated
	from time to time, or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time;
Depository(ies)	NSDL and CDSL or any other depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange
	Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 as amended from time to time read
	with the Depositories Act, 1996;
Draft Letter of Offer/ DLoF	The Draft Letter of Offer dated August 22, 2023, filed with BSE Limited, in accordance with the
	SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, for their observations and In- Principle approval;
Escrow Collection Bank	Banks which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as bankers to an issue and with whom
	Escrow Account(s) will be opened, in this case being Axis Bank Limited;
Eligible Equity	Existing Equity Shareholders as on the Record Date i.e. Monday, January 29, 2024. Please note that the
Shareholders	investors eligible to participate in the Issue exclude certain overseas shareholders;
Issue/ Rights Issue	Rights Issue of up to 26,14,53,270 Equity Shares of our Company of face value Rupee ₹ 1.00/- each for
	cash at a price of ₹ 1.60/- per Right Shares on a rights basis to the Eligible Shareholders of our Company
	in the ratio of 13 (Thirteen) Right Shares for every 50 (Fifty) Equity Shares held by the Eligible
Issue Opening Date	Shareholders of our Company on the Record Date i.e. Monday, January 29, 2024. Tuesday, February 06, 2024.
Issue Closing Date	Tuesday, February 13, 2024.
Issue Period	The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, inclusive of both days, during
15500 1 01100	which Applicants/ Investors can submit their applications, in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR)
	Regulations;
Issue Price	₹ 1.60/- per Rights Equity Share.
Issue Proceeds	The proceeds of the Issue that are available to our Company;
Issue Size	Amount aggregating up to ₹ 4,183.25 Lakhs
Letter of Offer/ LoF	The final letter of offer to be filed with the BSE Limited after incorporating the observations received
	from the BSE Limited on the Letter of Offer;
Multiple Application Forms	Multiple application forms submitted by an Eligible Equity Shareholder/Renouncee in respect of the
	Rights Entitlement available in their demat account. However supplementary applications in relation to
	further Equity Shares with/without using additional Rights Entitlements will not be treated as multiple
	application;
Net Proceeds	Issue Proceeds less the Issue related expenses. For further details, please refer to the section titled
	'Objects of the Issue' beginning on page 37 of this Letter of Offer;



Non-	Investors other than ASBA Investors who apply in the Issue otherwise than through the ASBA process		
ASBA Investor/ Non-			
ASBA Applicant	their Rights Entitlement in part or full and Renounces;		
Non-Institutional Investors/ NIIs	An Investor other than a Retail Individual Investor or Qualified Institutional Buyer as defined under Regulation 2(1)(jj) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations;		
Offer Document	The Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer including any notices, corrigendum		
	thereto;		
Off Market	The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by transferring them through off		
Renunciation	market transfer through a depository participant in accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and		
	the circulars issued by the Depositories, from time to time, and other applicable laws;		
On Market Renunciation	The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by trading them over the secondary		
	market platform of the Stock Exchange through a registered stock broker in accordance with the SEBI		
	Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars issued by the Stock Exchange, from time to time, and other		
Payment Schedule	applicable laws, on or before Thursday 08th February, 2024. Payment schedule under which 100% (Hundred percent) of the Issue Price is payable on Application.		
•			
QIBs or Qualified Institutional Buyers	Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations;		
Record Date	Designated date for the purpose of determining the Equity Shareholders eligible to apply for Right Shares, being Monday, January 29, 2024.		
Refund through electronic	Refunds through NECS, Direct Credit, RTGS, NEFT, or ASBA process, as applicable;		
transfer of Funds			
Registrar to the Issue	Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited		
Registrar Agreement	Agreement dated January 13, 2023, entered between our Company and the Registrar in relation to the		
D	responsibilities and obligations of the Registrar to the Issue pertaining to this Issue;		
Renounce	Any persons who have acquired Rights Entitlements from the Equity Shareholders through renunciation.		
Renunciation Period	The period during which the Investors can renounce or transfer their Rights Entitlements which shall		
	commence from the Issue Opening Date i.e. Tuesday, February 06, 2024. Such period shall close on		
	Thursday, February 08, 2024 in case of On Market Renunciation. Eligible Shareholders are requested		
	to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights		
	Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renounce on or prior to the Issue Closing Date i.e. Tuesday, February 13, 2024;		
Retail Individual	An individual Investor (including an HUF applying through karta) who has applied for Rights Equity		
Investors/ RIIs	Shares and whose Application Money is not more than ₹2,00,000.00/- (Rupees Two Lakhs Only) in the		
	Issue as defined under Regulation 2(1)(vv) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations;		
Rights Entitlement (s)/ RES	The number of Right Shares that an Investor is entitled to in proportion to the number of Equity Shares		
	held by the Investor on the Record Date, in this case being 13 (Thirteen) Equity Shares for every 50		
	(Fifty) Equity Shares held by an Eligible Shareholder; The Rights Entitlements with a separate ISIN		
	'INE300B20014' will be credited to your demat account before the date of opening of the Issue, against		
	the Equity Shares held by the Equity Shareholders as on the Record Date, pursuant to the provisions of		
	the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the Rights Entitlements shall be		
	credited in dematerialized form in respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders before		
Rights Entitlement Letter	the Issue Opening Date; Letter including details of Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Shareholders;		
Right Shares	Equity Shares of our Company to be Allotted pursuant to this Issue;		
Transfer Date	The date on which the amount held in the escrow account(s) and the amount blocked in the ASBA		
	Account will be transferred to the Allotment Account, upon finalization of the Basis of Allotment, in		
	consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange;		
Willful Defaulter	A Company or person, as the case may be, categorized as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial		
	institution or consortium thereof, in terms of Regulation 2(1) (lll) of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and in		
	accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the RBI, including any company whose		
	director or promoter is categorized as such;		
Working Day(s)	All days other than second and fourth Saturday of the month, Sunday or a public holiday, on which		
	commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business; provided however, with reference to (a)		
	announcement of Price Band; and (b) Bid/Issue Period, Term Description the term Working Day shall		
	mean all days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, on which commercial banks in		
	Mumbai are open for business; and (c) the time period between the Bid/Issue Closing Date and the listing of the Equity Shares on the Stagle Euchange (Working Day' shall mean all trading days of the		
	listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange. 'Working Day' shall mean all trading days of the Stock Exchange, excluding Sundays and bank holidays, as per the circulars issued by SEBI.		
	Stock Exchange, excluding Sundays and bank nondays, as per the cheulars issued by SEDI.		



ABBREVIATIONS

Term	Description		
ADR	American Depository Receipt;		
AGM	Annual General Meeting;		
AIF	Alternative Investment Fund as defined and registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board		
	of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012;		
AS	Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India;		
CAF	Common Application Form;		
CDSL	Central Depository Services (India) Limited;		
CFO	Chief Financial Officer;		
CIN	Corporate Identification Number;		
CIT	Commissioner of Income Tax;		
CLRA	Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970;		
Companies Act	Companies Act, 2013 along with rules made thereunder;		
Companies Act, 1956	Companies Act, 1956, and the rules thereunder (without reference to the provisionsthereof that have ceased to have effect upon the notification of the Notified Sections);		
CSR	Corporate Social Responsibility;		
Depository	A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India(Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 2018;		
Depositories Act	The Depositories Act, 1996 and amendments thereto;		
DIN	Director Identification Number;		
DP	Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act;		
DP-ID	Depository Participant's Identification;		
DR	Depository Receipts;		
EBITDA	Profit/(loss) after tax for the year adjusted for income tax expense, finance costs, depreciation, and		
	amortization expense, as presented in the statement of profit and loss;		
EGM	Extraordinary General Meeting;		
EEA	European Economic Area;		
EPS	Earning per Equity Share;		
FDI	Foreign Direct Investment;		
FEMA	Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 read with rules and regulations madethereunder;		
FEMA Rules	Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2020;		
FII(s)	Foreign Institutional Investors registered with SEBI under applicable laws;		
FIPB	Foreign Investment Promotion Board;		
FPIs	Foreign Portfolio Investors;		
Fugitive Economic Offender	An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of theFugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018;		
FVCI	Foreign Venture Capital Investors (as defined under the Securities and Exchange Boardof India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulations, 2000) registered with SEBI;		
FY	Period of 12 months ended March 31 of that particular year, unless otherwise stated;		
GAAP	Generally Accepted Accounting Principles;		
GDP	Gross Domestic Product;		
GDR	Global Depository Receipt;		
GNPA	Gross Net Performing Assets;		
GoI / Government	The Government of India;		
GST	Goods and Services Tax;		
HUF	Hindu Undivided Family;		
Ind AS	Indian Accounting Standards;		
ICAI	The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India;		
ICSI	The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;		
IFRS	International Financial Reporting Standards;		
Indian GAAP/ I-GAAP	Generally Accepted Accounting Principles In India;		
Income Tax Act/ IT Act	The Income Tax Act, 1961 and amendments thereto;		
Insider Trading Regulations	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;		
Insolvency Code	Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, as amended;		
INR / ₹ / Rs./ Indian	Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of India;		



Rupees		
IT	Information Technology;	
MCA	The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, GOI;	
Mn / mn	Million;	
Mutual Funds	Mutual funds registered with the SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds	
	Regulations, 1996;	
N.A. or NA	Not Applicable;	
NAV	Net Asset Value;	
NEFT	National Electronic Fund Transfer;	
Notified Sections	The sections of the Companies Act, 2013 that have been notified by the MCA and are currently in effect;	
NR/ Non- Resident	A person resident outside India, as defined under the FEMA and includes an NRI, FPIs registered with SEBI and FVCIs registered with SEBI;	
NRE	Account Non-resident external account;	
NRI	Non-resident Indian;	
NSDL	National Securities Depository Limited;	
NSE	National Stock Exchange of India Limited;	
OCB	Overseas Corporate Body;	
p.a.	Per annum;	
P/E Ratio	Price/Earnings Ratio;	
PAN	Permanent account number;	
PAT	Profit after Tax;	
RBI	Reserve Bank of India;	
RBI Act	Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;	
RoNW	Return on Net Worth;	
SCORES	SEBI Complaints Redress System;	
SCRA	Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956;	
SCRR	Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957;	
SEBI	Securities and Exchange Board of India;	
SEBI Act	Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;	
SEBI AIF Regulations	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012;	
SEBI FPI Regulations	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2020;	
SEBI (LODR)	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,	
Regulations	2015, as amended from time to time;	
SEBI (ICDR)	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018	
Regulations	and amendments thereto;	
SEBI (SAST)	Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011	
Regulations	and amendments thereto;	
Securities Act	United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended;	
STT	Securities transaction tax;	
Trademark Act	Trademarks Act, 1999 and the rules thereunder, including subsequent amendments thereto;	
VCE	Venture capital fund as defined and registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1006 or the SEBI AIE Regulations, as the assa may be	
VCF	(Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996 or the SEBI AIF Regulations, as the case may be;	
w.e.f.	With effect from;	



NOTICE TO INVESTORS

The distribution of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter and the issue of Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India may be restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application Form may come are required to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions.

Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will dispatch the Letter of Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have a registered address in India or who have provided an Indian address to our Company. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address to our Company, the Issue Materials will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Issue Material will be physically dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them. Those overseas Eligible Equity Shareholders who do not communicate with the Registrar to the Issue in the manner provided in the chapter titled "Terms of the Issue" and on the website of the Registrar to the Issue at www.purvashare.com to update our records with their Indian address or the address of their duly authorized representative in India, prior to the date on which we propose to dispatch the Letter of Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter, shall not be sent the Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter.

Investors can also access the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form from the websites of our Company, the Registrar and the Stock Exchange.

Our Company and the Registrar will not be liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue Materials, including the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form, in the event the Issue Materials have been sent on the registered email addresses of such Eligible Equity Shareholders.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer or any offering materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue may not be distributed, in whole or in part, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer and, in those circumstances, the Letter of Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer must be treated as sent for information purposes only and should not be acted upon for subscription to the Rights Equity Shares and should not be copied or redistributed. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application. If the Letter of Offer or the Abridged Letter of Offer or Application, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements referred to in the Letter of Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer. Envelopes containing an Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be dispatched from the jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer and all the person subscribing for the Equity Shares in the Issue must provide an Indian address.

Any person who makes an application to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares offered in the Issue will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that such person is Authorised to acquire the Rights Entitlements or the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in his jurisdiction.

Neither the delivery of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in our Company's affairs from the date hereof or the date of such information or that the information contained is correct as at any time subsequent to the date of the Letter of Offer and the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Abridged Letter or the date of such information.

The contents of the Letter of Offer should not be construed as legal, tax or investment advice. Prospective investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result of the offer Rights of Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements. Accordingly, each investor should consult its own counsel, business advisor and tax advisor as to the legal, business, tax and related matters concerning the offer of Equity Shares. In addition, our Company is not making any representation to any offeree or purchaser of the Equity Shares regarding the legality of an investment in the Equity Shares by such offeree or purchaser under any applicable laws or regulations.

This Document is solely for the use of the person who received it from our Company or from the Registrar. This Document is not to be reproduced or distributed to any other person.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES



The Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act or the securities laws of any state of the United States and may not be offered or sold in the United States of America or the territories or possessions thereof ("United States"), except in a transaction not subject to, or exempt from, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. The offering to which the Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy any of the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement. There is no intention to register any portion of the Issue or any of the securities described herein in the United States or to conduct a public offering of securities in the United States. Accordingly, the Letter of Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer and the enclosed Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be forwarded to or transmitted in or into the United States at any time. In addition, until the expiry of 40 days after the commencement of the Issue, an offer or sale of Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares by a dealer (whether or not it is participating in the Issue) may violate the registration requirements of the Securities Act.

Neither our Company nor any person acting on our behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on our behalf has reason to believe is in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise dispatched from the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer, and all persons subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares Issue and wishing to hold such Equity Shares in registered form must provide an address for registration of these Equity Shares in India. Our Company is making the Issue on a rights basis to Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Letter of Offer / Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter will be dispatched only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have an Indian address.

Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that,

- (i) it is not and that at the time of subscribing for such Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States, and
- (ii) it is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Rights Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid which:

(i) does not include the certification set out in the Application Form to the effect that the subscriber is authorised to acquire the Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations;

- (ii) appears to us or our agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States;
- (iii) where a registered Indian address is not provided; or

(iv) where our Company believes that Application Form is incomplete or acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; and

(v) our Company shall not be bound to allot or issue any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

Rights Entitlements may not be transferred or sold to any person in the United States.



PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND USE OF MARKET DATA

CERTAIN CONVENTIONS

In this Letter of Offer, unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, all references to the/our 'Company', 'we', 'our', 'us' or similar terms are to Indian Infotech & Software Limited or, as the context requires, and references to 'you' are to the Equity Shareholders and/ or prospective Investors in the Equity Shares.

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references in this Letter of Offer to the 'US' or 'U.S.' or the 'United States' are to the United States of America and its territories and possessions.

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Letter of Offer is in Indian Standard Time. Unless indicated otherwise, all references to a year in this Letter of Offer are to a calendar year.

A reference to the singular also refers to the plural and one gender also refers to any other gender, wherever applicable.

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Letter of Offer are to the page numbers of this Letter of Offer.

FINANCIAL DATA

Unless stated otherwise or unless the context otherwise require, the financial information and data in this Letter of Offer, with respect to our Company, is derived from our Un-Audited Financial Statements for the period ended on September 30, 2023 and Audited financial year ended on March 31, 2023. Which have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS, and the Companies Act, 2013. For further details, please refer to the section titled *'Financial Information'* beginning on page 68 of this Letter of Offer. The financial year of our Company commences on April 01 and ends on March 31.

In this Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding-off, and unless otherwise specified, all financial numbers in parenthesis represent negative figures.

The IISL has adopted the Ind AS, which are converged with the IFRS and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Ind AS Rules. The Financial Statements of our Company for the Financial Years ended March 2022 and March 2023 have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS read with the Ind AS Rules and other the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Our Company publishes its financial statements in Indian Rupees.

There are significant differences between Ind AS, US GAAP and IFRS. We have not provided a reconciliation of the financial information to IFRS or US GAAP. Our Company has not attempted to also explain those differences or quantify their impact on the financial data included in this Letter of Offer, and you are urged to consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data. Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information included in this Letter of Offer will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader's level of familiarity with Indian accounting policies and practices, Ind AS, the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with these accounting principles and regulations on our financial disclosures presented in this Letter of Offer should accordingly be limited. For further information, see *"Financial Statements"* on page 68 of this Letter of Offer.

Certain figures contained in this Letter of Offer, including financial information, have been subject to rounding off adjustments. All figures in decimals (including percentages) have been rounded off to one or two decimals. However, where any figures that may have been sourced from third-party industry sources are rounded off to other than two decimal points in their respective sources, such figures appear in this Letter of Offer rounded-off to such number of decimal points as provided in such respective sources. In this Letter of Offer,

(i) the sum or percentage change of certain numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure given; and (ii) the sum of the numbers in a column or row in certain tables may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column or row. Any such discrepancies are due to rounding off.

CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION

- All references to 'INR', '₹', 'Indian Rupees', 'Rs.' and 'Rupees' are to the legal currency of India.
- Any reference to 'US\$', 'USD', '\$' and 'U.S. dollars' are to the legal currency of the United States of America.

Unless stated otherwise, throughout this Letter of Offer, all figures have been expressed in Rupees in Lakh.



INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA

Unless stated otherwise, industry and market data used throughout this Letter of Offer has been derived from publicly available sources. Industry publications generally state that the information contained in those publications has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but that their accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed, and their reliability cannot be assured. Although, we believe that the industry and market data used in this Letter of Offer is reliable, neither we have prepared or verified it independently. The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Letter of Offer is meaningful depends on the reader's familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data.

Such data involves risks, uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed in the Section titled *"Risk Factors"* beginning on page 18 of this Letter of Offer. Accordingly, investment decisions should not be based on such information.



FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Letter of Offer contains certain "forward-looking statements". Forward looking statements appear throughout this Letter of Offer, including, without limitation, under the chapters titled "Risk Factors", "Our Business" and "Industry Overview". Forward-looking statements include statements concerning our Company's plans, objectives, goals, strategies, future events, future revenues or financial performance, capital expenditures, financing needs, plans or intentions relating to acquisitions, our Company's competitive strengths and weaknesses, our Company's business strategy and the trends our Company anticipates in the industries and the political and legal environment, and geographical locations, in which our Company operates, and other information that is not historical information. These forward-looking statements generally can be identified by words or phrases such as "aim", "anticipate", "believe", "continue", "can", "could", "expect", "will pursue", "intend", "likely", "may", "objective", "plan", "potential", "project", "pursue", "shall", "seek to", "will", "will continue", "will pursue", "forecast", "target", or other words or phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe the strategies, objectives, plans or goals of our Company are also forward-looking statements. However, these are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements.

All statements regarding our Company's expected financial conditions, results of operations, business plans and prospects are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include statements as to our Company's business strategy, planned projects, revenue and profitability (including, without limitation, any financial or operating projections or forecasts), new business and other matters discussed in this Letter of Offer that are not historical facts. These forward-looking statements contained in this Letter of Offer (whether made by our Company or any third party), are predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors that may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of our Company to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements or other projections.

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements due to risks or uncertainties associated with our expectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to the industry in which our Company operates and our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully implement our strategy, our growth and expansion, the competition in our industry and markets, technological changes, our exposure to market risks, general economic and political conditions in India and globally which have an impact on our business activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the performance of the financial markets in India and globally, changes in laws, regulations and taxes, incidence of natural calamities and/or acts of violence. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our Company's expectations include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Changes in laws and regulations relating to the Financial Industry and Banking Industry in India.
- Increased competition in Financial Services Industry;
- Our ability to successfully implement our growth strategy and expansion plans;
- Our ability to meet our further capital expenditure requirements;
- Fluctuations in operating costs;
- Our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel;
- Changes in political and social conditions in India, the monetary and interest rate policies of India and other countries;
- General economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local, regional, national and international economies;
- Our ability to manage risks that arise from above factors;
- Changes in government policies and regulatory actions that apply to or affect our business;
- Inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, equity prices or other rates or prices
- The performance of the financial markets in India and globally;
- The occurrence of natural disasters or calamities;
- Our inability to maintain or enhance our brand recognition;



- Inability to adequately protect our trademarks; and
- Failure to successfully upgrade our products and service portfolio, from time to time

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from our estimates and expectations, see "*Risk Factors*", and "*Our Business*" beginning on pages 18 and 54 respectively, of this Letter of Offer. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated.

We cannot assure investors that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements will prove to be correct. Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements and not to regard such statements as a guarantee of future performance.

Forward-looking statements reflect the current views of our Company as of the date of this Letter of Offer and are not a guarantee of future performance. These statements are based on the management's beliefs and assumptions, which in turn are based on currently available information. Although we believe the assumptions upon which these forward-looking statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and the forward-looking statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. Neither our Company, our Directors, our Promoters, the Syndicate Member(s) nor any of their respective affiliates or advisors have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company will ensure that investors are informed of material developments from the date of this Letter of Offer until the time of receipt of the listing and trading permissions from the Stock Exchanges.



SECTION II – SUMMARY OF THE LETTER OF OFFER

The following is a general summary of certain disclosures included in this Letter of Offer and is neither exhaustive, nor does it purport to contain a summary of all the disclosures in this Letter of Offer or all details relevant to prospective Investors. This summary should be read in conjunction with and is qualified by the more detailed information appearing in this Letter of Offer, including the sections titled '*Risk Factors*', '*Objects of the Issue*', '*Business Overview*' and '*Outstanding Litigations, Defaults and Material Developments*' beginning on pages 18, 37, 54, and 71 of this Letter of Offer, respectively.

SUMMARY OF BUSINESS

We are a non-banking finance company ("NBFC") incorporated in the year 1982 registered with the Reserve Bank of India bearing registration number B-13.0022 to carry on NBFC business activities under Section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. We are a Non-systemically important non-deposit taking company with over two decades of lending experience in rural and semi-urban geographies in India. We are primarily engaged in micro centric lending solutions to look after the needs and aspirations of customers. Our portfolio includes Vehicle Finance and Business Finance Products to small business owners. We have a long history of serving all types of markets with high growth potential and have maintained a track record of financial performance and operational efficiency through consistently high rates of customer acquisition and retention and low cost expansion into underpenetrated areas. Therefore, we strategically focus on clients in the rural and semiurban sector.

Our Key Borrowers

- 1. Individuals
- 2. Small business owners which includes all corporate entity

Business Finance to small business owners including SME and MSME Our lending business to small business owners including SME and MSME lending business, primarily involves us extending secured loans and unsecured loans for business purposes to small and medium size enterprises, including Companies, LLP, and businessmen, traders, manufacturers and self-employed professionals. The property securing these loans are typically completed and largely self-occupied residential and commercial property. We believe that our in-depth product knowledge, relevant financial services domain knowledge, ability to structure loans to suit our customers' financial needs and our short turnaround-time for processing loan applications have positioned us as a preferred credit provider and allows us to benefit from the growing SME and MSME segment in India.

For further details, please refer to the chapter titled 'Our Business' beginning on page 54 of this Letter of Offer.

PRIMARY INDUSTRY OF OUR COMPANY

India has a diversified financial sector undergoing rapid expansion, both in terms of strong growth of existing financial services firms and new entities entering the market. The sector comprises commercial banks, insurance companies, non-banking financial companies, cooperatives, pension funds, mutual funds and other smaller financial entities. The banking regulator has allowed new entities such as payment banks to be created recently, thereby adding to the type of entities operating in the sector. However, the financial sector in India is predominantly a banking sector with commercial banks accounting for more than 64% of the total assets held by the financial system.

The Government of India has introduced several reforms to liberalise, regulate and enhance this industry. The Government and Reserve Bank of India (RBI) have taken various measures to facilitate easy access to finance for Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs). These measures include launching Credit Guarantee Fund Scheme for MSMEs, issuing guidelines to banks regarding collateral requirements and setting up a Micro Units Development and Refinance Agency (MUDRA). With a combined push by Government and private sector, India is undoubtedly one of the world's most vibrant capital markets.

OBJECTS OF ISSUE

The details of Issue Proceeds are set forth in the following table:

Particulars	Amount in Rupees (in Lakh)
Working Capital Requirement*	3,500.00
General Corporate Purposes**	653.25
Net Proceeds from the Issue	4,153.25

* Assuming full subscription and Allotment Money with respect to the Rights Equity Shares.

** The amount to be utilized for general corporate purposes will not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds.

For further details, please refer to the chapter titled 'Objects of the Issue' beginning on page 37 of this Letter of Offer.

NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY

PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY

Our company is promoted by Mahamaya Financial Consultants Private Limited, Jayanti Prime Software Advisory Private limited, Generosity Share Trading Private Limited, Dhanvarsha Advisory Services Private Limited.

INTENTION AND EXTENT OF PARTICIPATION BY THE PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP

Our Promoter and Promoter Group has, vide letter dated May 30, 2023 (the "Subscription Letter") informed us regarding their participation in the Right Issue.

Our Promoter and Promoter Group expressed their intention:

(i) to subscribe and participate in the Issue upto 31,25,000 Equity Shares for an amount of upto ₹ 50.00 Lakhs. Our Promoter and Promoter Group will not be able to subscribe to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements in the Issue.

(ii) that they may renounce the Rights Entitlements in favour of or amongst Promoter Group or Third Parties

In case for any such subscription for Right Shares by the Promoters of our Company, if allotted, may result in an increase in their shareholding percentage in the Company. The allotment of Right Shares of the Company subscribed by the Promoter and other members of the Promoter Group in this Issue shall be eligible for exemption from open offer requirements in terms of Regulation 10(4)(a) and 10(4)(b) of the SEBI (SAST) Regulations. This Issue shall not result in a change of control of the management of our Company in accordance with the provisions of SEBI (SAST) Regulations. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements under applicable law, pursuant to this Issue.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table sets forth the summary of the financial information derived from the Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on March 31, 2023, along with Standalone Audited Financial Statements for the financial years ending March 31, 2022.

			(₹ in Lakh)
Particulars	For the period ended on	For the year ended	For the year ended March
	September 30, 2023	March 2023	2022
Equity Share Capital	10,055.89	10,055.89	10,055.89
Net Worth	23,702.50	22,981.33	22,923.84
Total Income	1,095.28	4,706.13	5,539.23
Profit / (loss) after tax	721.17	60.59	31.72
Basic EPS	0.07	0.00	0.00
Diluted EPS	0.07	0.00	0.00
Net asset value per Equity Share	2.36	2.29	2.28
Total borrowings	30.00	30.00	30.00

For further details, please refer to section titled 'Financial Statements' beginning on page 68 of this Letter of Offer.

AUDITOR QUALIFICATIONS

For further details on auditor qualifications, please refer to section titled 'Financial Statements' beginning on page 69 of this Letter of Offer.

OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

Nature of cases	Number of	Amount involved
	cases	
Litigations involving our Company		
Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities;	Nil	Nil
Litigation involving Tax Liabilities;		
For F.Y. 2015-16		
Tax Amount 2,13,48,900 & Penalty Rs. 1,13,04,670 Total Rs. 3,26,53,570		
The same is under protest and the company has filed appeal with commissioner	2	3,27,60,460
For F.Y. 2017-18		
Tax Amount Rs. 1,06,890		
This order passed by CPC under Section 143(3) which is also under protest		



Proceedings involving issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability on the part of	Nil	Nil
our Company;		
Proceedings involving Material Violations of Statutory Regulations by our Company;	Nil	Nil
Matters involving economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against	Nil	Nil
our Company;		
Other proceedings involving our Company which involve an amount exceeding the Materiality		
Threshold or are otherwise material in terms of the Materiality Policy, and other pending matters		
which, if they result in an adverse outcome would materially and adversely affect the operations	Nil	Nil
or the financial position of our Company;		
Litigation involving our Directors, Promoters and Promoter Group;	Nil	Nil
Litigation involving our Group Companies;	Nil	Nil

For further details, please refer to section titled 'Outstanding Litigations, Defaults and Material Developments' beginning on Page 71 of this Letter of Offer.

RISK FACTORS

For details of the risks associated with our Company, please see the section titled "Risk Factors" beginning on page 18

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

For details of contingent liabilities for the FY 2022-2023, please see the section titled "Financial Information" beginning on page 68

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For details of related party transactions for the FY 2022-2023, please see the section titled "Financial Information" beginning on page 68

ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES FOR CONSIDERATION OTHER THAN CASH IN LAST ONE YEAR

Other than as disclosed in "*Capital Structure*" on page 34 of this Prospectus, no Equity Shares have been issued by our Company for consideration other than cash preceding the date of this Letter of Offer.

SPLIT/ CONSOLIDATION OF EQUITY SHARES IN THE LAST ONE YEAR

Our Company has not undertaken a split or consolidation of the Equity Shares in the one year preceding the date of this Letter of Offer.

EXEMPTION FROM COMPLYING WITH ANY PROVISIONS OF SECURITIES LAWS, IF ANY, GRANTED BY SEBI

Our Company has not applied for or received any exemption from the SEBI from complying with any provisions of securities laws, as on the date of this Letter of Offer.



SECTION III - RISK FACTORS

An investment in our Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider each of the following risk factors and all other information set forth in this Letter of Offer, including in 'Business Overview', 'Industry Overview', and 'Financial Statements' beginning on pages 54, 44, and 68 respectively in this Letter of Offer, before making an investment in our Equity Shares.

The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only risks that we currently face; additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial may also adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows. If any or some combination of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently known or believed to be adverse, occur, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could suffer, the trading price and the value of your investment in, our Equity Shares could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment. To the extent the COVID-19 pandemic has adversely affected and may affect our business and financial results, it may also have the effect of increasing many of the other risks described in this section, such as those relating to non-payment or default by borrowers. In making an investment decision with respect to this Issue, you must rely on your own examination of our Company and the terms of this Issue, including the merits and risks involved. You should consult your tax, financial, and legal advisors about the consequences of an investment in our Equity Shares and its impact on you.

This Letter of Offer also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our results could differ materially from such forward-looking statements because of certain factors, including the considerations described below and elsewhere in this Letter of Offer.

Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial or other implications of any of the risks described in this section. Unless the context otherwise requires, in this section, reference to 'we', 'us', 'our' refers to our Company.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

1. There are outstanding legal proceedings involving our Company, Promoters and Directors Any adverse decision in such proceeding may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We are involved in certain legal proceedings which are pending at different levels of adjudication before various courts, tribunals, enquiry officers, and appellate authorities. We cannot provide assurance that these legal proceedings will be decided in our favour. Any adverse decisions in any of the proceedings may have a significant adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. A summary of the pending civil and other proceedings involving Our Company is provided below:

A classification of legal proceedings is mentioned below:

Nature of cases	Number of cases	Amount involved
Litigations involving our Company		
Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities;	Nil	Nil
Litigation involving Tax Liabilities;		
1. For F.Y. 2015-16		
Tax Amount 2,13,48,900 & Penalty Rs. 1,13,04,670 Total Rs. 3,26,53,570		
The same is under protest and the company has filed appeal with commissioner	2	3,27,60,460
2. For F.Y. 2017-18		
Tax Amount Rs. 1,06,890		
This order passed by CPC under Section 143(3) which is also under protest		
Proceedings involving issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability on the part of our	Nil	Nil
Company;		
Proceedings involving Material Violations of Statutory Regulations by ourCompany;	Nil	Nil
Matters involving economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our	Nil	Nil
Company;		
Other proceedings involving our Company which involve an amount exceeding the Materiality		
Threshold or are otherwise material in terms of the Materiality Policy, and other pending matters		
which, if they result in an adverse outcome would materially and adversely affect the operations	Nil	Nil
or the financial position of our Company;		
Litigation involving our Directors, Promoters and Promoter Group;	Nil	Nil
Litigation involving our Group Companies;	Nil	Nil



2. The novel coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic outbreak and steps taken to control the same have significantly impacted our business, results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows and further impact will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain.

The rapid and diffused spread of COVID-19 and global health concerns relating to this outbreak have had a severe negative impact on all businesses. The COVID-19 pandemic could continue to have an impact that may worsen for an unknown period. Currently, there is substantial medical uncertainty regarding COVID-19 and this pandemic may continue to cause unprecedented economic disruption in India and in the rest of the world. The scope, duration, and frequency of such measures and the adverse effects of COVID-19 remain uncertain and could be severe. In case due to any consequent wave of Coronavirus, if long-term lockdown is imposed in the country or the state in which we perform of business, we may face losses and our business operations could be severely impacted.

3. The financing industry is becoming increasingly competitive, and our Company's growth and profitability will interalia depend on its ability to compete effectively.

Our Company faces increasing competition from public and private sector Indian commercial banks, and from other financial institutions that provide financial products or services. Some of our Company's competitors have greater resources than our Company does. The competition our Company faces from banks is increasing as more banks are targeting products and services similar to ours. Competition in our industry depends on, among other things, the ongoing evolution of government policies relating to the industry, the entry of new participants in the industry and theextent to which there is consolidation among banks and financial institutions in India.

4. We provide unsecured loans to our borrowers. If our customers default in their repayment obligations, our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows may be adversely affected.

Our Company mainly provides unsecured loans i.e., loans without any security. Hence, we run the risk of recovery by defaulters. Further, any deterioration in the quality of our borrowers in terms of their financial worth may also expose us to difficulties in timely recovery of interest and principal amount from such borrowers. In the event of such deterioration in our Company's asset portfolio, there could be an adverse impact on our business and our future financial performance. Further, any default in repayment by our borrowers, will result in losses to our Company. While we have been very selective and conservative in our lending policies and are generally satisfying ourselves with credit worthiness and repayment capacities of our borrowers, there can be no assurance that we will be able to timely recover the interest and / or principal of loans advanced by us.

Our management of credit risk involves having appropriate credit policies, underwriting standards, approval processes, loan portfolio monitoring, collection and remedial management, provisioning policies and an overall architecture for managing credit risk. However, even if our credit monitoring and risk management policies and procedures are adequate and appropriately implemented, we may not be able to anticipate future economic or financial developments or downturns, which could lead to an increase in our NPAs. If our NPAs increase or the credit quality of our borrowers deteriorates, it could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

5. We operate in a highly competitive industry.

Given the diversity of our businesses, and the products and services offered by us, we face competition from the full spectrum of public sector banks, private sector banks (including foreign banks), financial institutions, captive finance partners of players in many industries, small finance banks and other NBFCs. Many of our competitors may have greater resources than we do, may be larger in terms of business volume and may have significantly lower cost of funds compared to us. They may also have greater geographic reach, long-standing partnerships and may offer their customers other forms of financing that we may not be able to provide. Competition in Industry Overview depends on, amongst others, the ongoing development of government and regulatory policies, the entry of new participants and the extent to which there is merging among banks and financial institutions in India. In relation to the advisory and investment banking services we offer, we also face competition from banks, boutique investment bankers and consulting organizations. Possibly, these service providers could compete with us for business as well as gaining of funds at competitive rates. We cannot assure you that we will be able to react effectively to these or other market developments or compete effectively with new and present players in our progressively competitive industry and our inability to compete effectively may adversely affect our business.

6. Our business is vulnerable to interest rate risk and volatility in interest rates which could adversely affect our income from our operations and adversely affect our financial performance and profitability.

Our business is dependent on interest income from the loans disbursed. Accordingly, we are affected by volatility in interest rates in our lending operations. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond our control, including the monetary policies of the RBI, deregulation of the financial sector in India, domestic and international economic and political conditions, and other factors. Due to these factors, interest rates in India have historically experienced a relatively high degree of volatility.

7. Our Company has reported negative cash flow in the past. Any negative cash flows in the future would adversely affect our cash



flow requirements, which may adversely affect our ability to operate our business and implement our growth plans, thereby affecting our financial condition.

Our Company has experienced negative net cash flow from investing and operating activities in the recent past, the details of which are provided below:

Our Company has reported negative cash flow in the past. Any negative cash flows in the future would adversely affect our cash flow requirements, which may adversely affect our ability to operate our business and implement our growth plans, thereby affecting our financial condition.

Our Company has experienced negative net cash flow from investing and operating activities in the recent past, the details of which are provided below:

Particulars	For the period ended on September 30, 2023	For the year ended March 2023	For the year ended March 2022
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities	97.25	736.71	1,137.32
Net cash generated from/(used in) Investing activities	0.00	-977.13	-981.30
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities	0.00	-977.13	0.00

For further details, please refer to the section titled 'Financial Information' beginning on page 68 of this LOF.

8. The Statutory Auditor of the Company has issued a qualification remark addressing the concern that, the Company does not have an appropriate internal control system.

As per the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2022, the Statutory Auditor of the Company has issued a qualification remark on the internal control system of the Company; as per the observations drawn by the Statutory Auditor, it has been observed that:

The Company does not have an appropriate internal control system for granting of loans. Further, the demand and other loans given are governed by the Board policies.

a) No appraisal, renewal, policies, procedure, committee, or documents have been prescribed and executed.

b) The Company's internal control system is not commensurate to the size and scale of operation over purchase and sale of shares and inventory and for expenses incurred.

9. Any disruption in our sources of funding or increase in costs of funding could adversely affect our liquidity and financial condition.

The liquidity and profitability of our business majorly depend on our timely access to, and the costs associated with, raising funds. Our business thus depends and will continue to depend on our ability to access a variety of funding sources. Further, our ability to compete effectively will depend, in part, on our ability to maintain or increase our margins. Our margins are affected in part by our ability to continue secure low-cost funding at rates lower than the interest rates at which we lend to our customers. Our ability to raise funds on acceptable terms and at competitive rates depends on various factors including our current and future results of operations and financial condition, global and local macroeconomic conditions and the effect of events such as a pandemic, our risk management policies, the shareholding of Promoters in our Company, our credit ratings, our brand equity, the regulatory environment and policy initiatives in India and developments in the international markets affecting the Indian economy. If we are unable to access funds at an effective cost that is comparable to or lower than that of our competitors, our net interest margins, income, and market share may be adversely affected.

Certain regulatory developments including the restrictions imposed on NBFCs by the RBI through a Master Circular – Bank Finance to Non-Banking Financial Companies dated July 1, 2015 (the "Master Circular") may restrict our ability to obtain bank financing for specific activities. Pursuant to the Master Circular, the RBI has imposed certain restrictions on banks providing financing to NBFCs. Under this Master Circular, certain activities by NBFCs are ineligible for financing by banks, including certain types of discounting and rediscounting of bills, current and long term investments in shares, debentures, loans and advances by NBFCs to their subsidiaries and group companies, lending by NBFCs to individuals for subscribing to public offerings and purchasing shares from the secondary market, unsecured loans, inter corporate deposits provided by NBFCs, and subscription to shares or debentures by NBFCs. In addition, the Master Circular prohibits:

• banks from granting bridge loans of any nature, provide interim finance against capital or debenture issues or in the form of loans of a temporary nature pending the raising of long-term funds from the market by way of capital, deposits, or other means to any category of NBFCs;



• banks from accepting shares and debentures as collateral for secured loans granted to NBFCs; and

• banks from executing guarantees covering inter-Company deposits or loans that guarantee refund of deposits or loans accepted by NBFCs. The Master Circular also requires that guarantees not be issued by banks for the purpose of indirectly enabling the placement of deposits with NBFCs.

Changes in economic, regulatory and financial conditions or any lack of liquidity in the market could adversely affect our ability to access funds at competitive rates, or at all, which could adversely affect our liquidity and financial condition.

10. As an NBFC, we must adhere to several regulatory norms prescribed by RBI from time to time. Further, as the Equity Shares of our Company are listed on BSE Limited, our Company is subject to certain obligations and reporting requirements under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and comply with other SEBI regulations. Any non- compliances/delay in complying with such obligations and reporting requirements may render us liable to prosecution and/or penalties.

NBFCs in India are subject to strict regulation and supervision by the RBI. We require certain approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions for operating our business. Such approvals, licenses, registrations, and permissions must be maintained / renewed over time, and we may have to comply with certain conditions in relation to these approvals. Moreover, the applicable requirements may change, and we may not be aware of or may comply with all requirements all of the time. We are required to obtain and maintain a certificate of registration for carrying on business as an NBFC. If we fail to obtain or retain any of these approvals or licenses, or renewals thereof, in a timely manner, or at all, our business may be adversely affected. RBI has the authority to change these norms/ criteria as and when required. Inability to meet the prescribed norms/ criteria, can adversely affect the operations and profitability of our Company.

Further, as the Equity Shares of our Company are listed on BSE Limited, therefore we are subject to the obligations and reporting requirements prescribed under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, to the extent applicable, and must adhere to and comply with other applicable Regulations framed by SEBI. Our Company endeavors to comply with all such obligations and reporting requirements, any non-compliance which might have been committed by us, may result into BSE Limited and/or SEBI imposing penalties, issuing warnings and show cause notices against us and/or taking actions as provided under the SEBI Act and the rules and regulations made there under and applicable SEBI Circulars. Any such adverse regulatory action or development could affect our business reputation, divert management attention, and result in a material adverse effect on our business prospects and financial performance and on the trading price of the Equity Shares.

11. Our success depends upon our management team and skilled personnel and our ability to attract and retain such persons.

Our future performance will be affected by the continued service of our management team and skilled personnel. We face a continuing challenge to recruit and retain enough suitably skilled personnel, particularly as we continue to grow. There is significant competition for management and other skilled personnel in the various segments of the financial services industry in which we operate, and it may be difficult to attract and retain the personnel we need in the future. The loss of key personnel may have a material and adverse effect on our business, future financial performance, results of operations and ability to grow in line with our strategy and future plans.

12. We could be harmed by employee misconduct or errors that are difficult to detect and any such incidences could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and reputation.

Employee misconduct or errors could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory sanctions and cause serious harm to our reputation. There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect or deter such misconduct. Moreover, the precautions we take to prevent and detect such activity may not be effective in all cases. Our employees and agents may also commit errors that could subject us to claims and proceedings for alleged negligence, as well as regulatory actions on account of which our business, financial condition, results of operations, and goodwill could be adversely affected.

13. Our Company does not have insurance policies to cover all risks, specifically risks of NPA etc. In the event of the occurrence of such events, it will not be protecting us against possible risk of loss.

Our Company does not have obtained insurance coverage in respect of certain risks. As insurance significant insurance policies consist of, among others, standard fire and special perils, fidelity guarantee, plate glass insurance, etc. While we believe that we do not maintain insurance coverage in adequate amounts consistent with size of our business.

14. Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon our future earnings, financial condition, cash flows, working capital requirements, capital expenditure and restrictive covenants in our financing arrangements.

Our Company may retain all our future earnings, if any, for use in the operations, and expansion of our business. As a result, we may not declare dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination as to the declaration and payment of dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on factors that our Board of Directors deem relevant, including among others, our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, business prospects and any other financing arrangements. Accordingly, realization of a gain on shareholder's investments may largely depend upon the appreciation of the price of our Equity Shares. There can be no assurance



that our Equity Shares will appreciate.

15. We require number of approvals, NOCs, licenses in ordinary course of our Business.

We need to apply for renewal of approvals which expire, from time to time, as and when required in the ordinary course of our business. Any failure to renew the approvals that will expire, or to failure/delay to apply for and obtain the required approvals, licenses, registrations or permits, or any suspension or revocation of any of the approvals, licenses, registrations and permits that have been or may be issued to us, could result in delaying the operations of our business, which may adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

16. We cannot assure you that the approvals, licenses, registrations and permits issued to us would not be suspended or revoked in the event of non-compliance or alleged non-compliance with any terms or conditions thereof, or pursuant to any regulatory action.

Our failure to comply with existing or increased regulations, or the introduction of changes to existing regulations, could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

17. The deployment of funds is entirely at our discretion and as per the details mentioned in the chapter titled "Objects of the Issue".

As the Issue size is not more than Rs. 10,000.00 Lakhs, under Regulation 82 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations it is not required that a monitoring agency be appointed by our Company, for overseeing the deployment and utilization of funds raised through this Issue. Therefore, the deployment of the funds towards the Objects of this Issue is entirely at the discretion of our Board of Directors and is not subject to monitoring by external independent agency. Our Board of Directors along with the Audit Committee will monitor the utilization of Issue proceeds and shall have the flexibility in applying the proceeds of this Issue. However, the management of our Company shall not have the power to alter the objects of this Issue except with the approval of the shareholders of the Company given by way of a special resolution in a general meeting, in the manner specified in Section 27 of the Companies Act. Additionally, the dissenting shareholders being those shareholders who have not agreed to the proposal to vary the objects of this Issue, our Promoters shall provide them with an opportunity to exit at such price, and in such manner and conditions as may be specified by the SEBI, in respect to the same. For further details, please refer to the section titled **'Objects of the Issue'** on page 37 of this Letter of Offer.

18. We do not possess certain premises used by us. Distraction of our rights as licensee/lessee or termination of the agreements with our licensors/lessors would unfavorably impact our business operations and, so, our business.

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, our Registered Office, have been taken on lease by our Company from third parties on leave and license agreement basis. There is no assurance that our Company will be able to renew the lease agreements or deeds entered into with third parties in a timely manner or at all. Further, there is no assurance that we will not face any disruption of our rights as a lessee/ licensee and that such leave and license and lease agreements will not be terminated prematurely by the licensor/lessor except the completion of Lock-in Period. Any such non-renewal or early termination or any disruption of our rights as lessee / licensee might adversely affect our business operations.

19. Any regulatory actions and penalties for future non-compliance may adversely affect our business or reputation, or both.

As a Listed Company, we have to comply with numerous regulatory filings, maintenance of record etc. under the Companies Act, 2013, Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 ("Listing Regulation"), Securities Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) Regulation, 2011 and our company is also a NBFC registered under RBI NBFC Regulations and the company is abide to comply the compliances and guidelines of RBI (NBFC) Compliances and other laws and regulation as applicable.

Any non -compliance of the applicable laws they may impose the penalty on the Company. Such penalty may impact the results of operations and financial condition of the Company.

20. Internal or external fraud, dishonesty, or misconduct by our personnel could have a negative impact on our reputation and financial results.

Misconduct by our employees could bind us to transactions that exceed authorised limits or present unacceptable risks, and our employees could conceal unauthorized or unlawful activities from us. Employee misconduct could also involve front running in securities markets or the improper use or disclosure of confidential information or non-compliance with insider trading rules, which could result in regulatory sanctions and serious reputational or financial harm. It is not always possible to deter fraud or misconduct by employees, and the precautions we have taken and the systems we have put in place to prevent and deter such activities may not be effective in all cases. Any instances of fraud or misconduct could adversely affect our reputation, business, results of operations and financial condition.

21. We have not commissioned an industry report for the disclosures made in the section titled 'Industry Overview' and made disclosures based on the data available on the internet and such third-party data has not been independently verified by us.



We have neither commissioned an industry report, nor sought consent from the quoted website source for the disclosures which need to be made in the section titled '*Industry Overview*' beginning on page 44 of this Letter of Offer. We have made disclosures in the said section based on the relevant industry related data available online for which relevant consents have not been obtained. We have not independently verified such third-party data. We cannot assure you that any assumptions made are correct or will not change and, accordingly, our position in the market may differ from that presented in this Letter of Offer. Further, the industry data mentioned in this Letter of Offer or sources from which the data has been collected are not recommendations to invest in our Company. Accordingly, investors should read the industry related disclosure in this Letter of Offer in this context.

ISSUE SPECIFIC FACTORS

22. Our Company will not distribute the Offer Documents to certain overseas shareholders who have not provided an address in India for service of documents.

Our Company will dispatch the Offer Documents to such shareholders who have provided an address in India for the service of documents or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Right Shares permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in this regard. The Offer Documents will not be distributed to addresses outside India on account of restrictions that apply to the circulation of such materials in various overseas jurisdictions. However, the Companies Act requires companies to serve documents at any address, which may be provided by the members as well as through e-mail. Presently, there is a lack of clarity under the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules thereunder, with respect to the distribution of Issue Materials in overseas jurisdictions where such distribution may be prohibited under applicable laws of such jurisdictions. While we have requested all the shareholders to provide an address in India for the purposes of distribution of Issue Materials, we cannot assure you that the regulator or authorities would not adopt a different view with respect to compliance with the Companies Act and may subject us to fines or penalties.

23. SEBI has recently, by way of circulars dated January 22, 2021, May 6, 2021, and January 19, 2022, streamlined the process of rights issues. You should follow the instructions carefully, as stated in such SEBI circulars, and in this Letter of Offer.

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders has recently been introduced by the SEBI. Accordingly, the process for such Rights Entitlements has been recently devised by capital market intermediaries. Eligible Equity Shareholders are encouraged to exercise caution, carefully follow the requirements as stated in the SEBI circulars dated January 22, 2021, May 6, 2021, and January 19, 2022, and ensure completion of all necessary steps in relation to providing/updating their demat account details in a timely manner. For further details, please refer to the section titled 'Terms of the Issue' beginning on page 80 of this Letter of Offer.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialized form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company, for the Eligible Equity Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares held in the account of IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (d) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company or Registrar; or (e) credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (f) the ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court proceedings.

24. Failure to exercise or sell the Rights Entitlements will cause the Rights Entitlements to lapse without compensation and result in a dilution of shareholding.

The Rights Entitlements that are not exercised prior to the end of the Issue Closing Date will expire and become null and void, and Eligible Shareholders will not receive any consideration for them. The proportionate ownership and voting interest in our Company of Eligible Shareholders who fail (or are not able) to exercise their Rights Entitlements will be diluted. Even if you elect to sell your unexercised Rights Entitlements, the consideration you receive for them may not be sufficient to fully compensate you for dilution of your percentage ownership of the equity share capital of our Company that may be caused because of the Issue. Renouncees may not be able to apply in case of failure in completion of renunciation through off-market transfer in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees prior to the Issue Closing Date. Further, in case, the Rights Entitlements do not get credited in time, in case of On Market Renunciation, such Renouncee will not be able to apply in this Issue with respect to such Rights Entitlements.

25. SEBI has recently, by way of Rights Issue Circulars streamlined the process of rights issues. You should follow the instructions carefully, as stated in such SEBI circulars and in this Letter of Offer.

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Shareholders has recently been introduced by the SEBI. Accordingly, the process for such Rights Entitlements has been recently devised by capital market intermediaries. Eligible Shareholders are encouraged to exercise caution, carefully follow the requirements as stated in the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and ensure completion of all necessary steps in relation to providing/updating their demat account details in a timely manner. For details, see '*Terms of the Issue*' on page



80 of this Letter of Offer.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Right Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialized form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company, for the Eligible Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to:

- Equity Shares held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations; or
- Equity Shares held in the account of IEPF authority; or

• The demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or suspended for debit or credit or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or

• Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in the physical form on the Record Date the details of demat accounts are not provided by Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company or Registrar; or

- Credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or
- The ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court proceedings.

26. Any future issuance of Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity-linked securities by our Company may dilute your shareholding and any sale of Equity Shares by our Promoter or members of our Promoter Group may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares by our Company may dilute your shareholding in our Company; adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares and our ability to raise capital through an issue of our securities. In addition, any perception by investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that we will not issue additional Equity Shares. The disposal of Equity Shares by any of our Promoter and Promoter Group, or the perception that such sales may occur may significantly affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that our Promoter Group will not dispose of, pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the future.

27. Investors shall not have the option to receive Right Shares in physical form.

In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 77A of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations read with SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlement and Allotment of Right Shares shall be made in dematerialised form only. Investors will not have the option of getting the allotment of Equity Shares in physical form;

28. The entitlement of Right Shares to be allotted to investors applying for Allotment in physical form, will be kept in abeyance.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders shall be credited in a suspense escrow demat account opened by our Company during the Issue Period. The Physical Shareholders are requested to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. The Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders who do not furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall lapse.

29. The Rights Entitlement of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form ('Physical Shareholder') may lapse in case they fail to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar.

The concept of crediting Rights Entitlements into the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders has been recently introduced by the SEBI. Accordingly, the process for such Rights Entitlements has been recently devised by capital market intermediaries. Eligible Equity Shareholders are encouraged to exercise caution, carefully follow the requirements as stated in the SEBI circulars dated January 22, 2021 and May 6, 2021, read with SEBI circulars bearing reference numbers SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/136 dated July 24, 2021', 'SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2022/13 dated January 19, 2022', 'SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/552 dated April 22, 2022', and 'SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/633 dated October 01, 2022', and ensure completion of all the necessary steps in relation to providing/updating their demat account details in a timely manner. For further details, please refer to the section titled 'Terms of the Issue' on page 80 of this Letter of Offer. In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue



Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only.

30. You may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Right Shares and Rights Entitlement.

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity shares of an Indian Company are generally taxable in India. Accordingly, you may be subject to payment of long-term capital gains tax in India, in addition to payment of STT, on the sale of any Equity Shares held for more than 12 months. STT will be levied on and collected by a domestic stock exchange on which the Equity Shares are sold. Further, any gain realized on the sale of listed equity shares held for a period of 12 (Twelve) months or less will be subject to short-term capital gains tax in India. Capital gains arising from the sale of the Equity Shares may be partially or completely exempt from taxation in India in cases where such exemption is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller is a resident. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India's ability to impose tax on capital gains. As a result, residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction on gains made upon the sale of the Equity Shares;

Further, the Finance Act, 2020, which has been notified with effect from April 01, 2020, stipulates the sale, transfer and issue of securities through exchanges, depositories or otherwise to be charged with stamp duty. The Finance Act has also clarified that, in the absence of a specific provision under an agreement, the liability to pay stamp duty in case of sale of securities through stock exchanges will be on the buyer, while in other cases of transfer for consideration through a depository, and the onus will be on the transferor. The stamp duty for transfer of securities other than debentures, on a delivery basis is specified at 0.015% and on a non-delivery basis is specified at 0.003% of the consideration amount. These amendments have been notified on December 10, 2020, and have come into effect from July 01, 2021.

The Finance Act, 2021 has also provided several amendments to the direct and indirect tax regime, including, without limitation, a simplified alternate direct tax regime and that dividend distribution tax will not be payable in respect of dividends declared, distributed or paid by a domestic company after March 31, 2021, and accordingly, such dividends would not be exempt in the hands of the shareholders, both resident as well as non-resident.

31. You may not receive the Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue until 15 (Fifteen) days after the date on which this Issue closes, which will subject you to market risk.

The Equity Shares that you subscribe in the Issue may not be credited to your demat account with the depository participants until approximately 15 (Fifteen) days from the Issue Closing Date. You can start trading such Equity Shares only after receipt of the listing and trading approval in respect thereof. There can be no assurance that the Equity Shares allocated to you will be credited to your demat account, or that trading in the Equity Shares will commence within the specified time period, subjecting you to market risk for such period.

32. Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under Indian law and could thereby suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, any Company incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shares pre-emptive rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of shares to maintain their existing ownership percentages prior to the issuance of any new equity shares, unless the pre-emptive rights have been waived by the adoption of a special resolution by holders of three-fourths of the shares voted on such resolution, unless our Company has obtained government approval to issue without such rights. However, if the law of the jurisdiction that you are in does not permit the exercise of such pre-emptive rights without us filing an offering document or registration statement with the applicable authority in such jurisdiction, you will be unable to exercise such pre-emptive rights unless we make such a filing. We may elect not to file a registration statement in relation to pre-emptive rights otherwise available by Indian law to you. To the extent that you are unable to exercise pre-emptive rights granted in respect of the Equity Shares, your proportional interests in us would be reduced.

33. There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed in a timely manner or at all which may adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.

In accordance with applicable laws and regulations and the requirements of the BSE Limited, in principle and final approvals for listing and trading of the Right Shares issued pursuant to this Issue will not be applied for or granted until after the Right Shares have been issued and allotted. Approval for listing and trading will require all the relevant documents authorising the issuance of Right Shares to be submitted. Accordingly, there could be a delay in listing the Right Shares on the NSE. If there is a delay in obtaining such approvals, we may not be able to credit the Right Shares allotted to the Investors to their depository participant accounts or assure ownership of such Right Shares by the Investors in any manner promptly after the Issue Closing Date. In any such event, the ownership of the Investors over Right Shares allotted to them and their ability to dispose of any such Equity Shares may be restricted. For further information on issue procedure, please refer to the section titled '*Terms of the Issue*' beginning on page 80 of this Letter of Offer.

34. Fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies may adversely affect the value of our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

On listing, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Rupees on the Stock Exchanges. Any dividends in respect of our Equity Shares will also be



paid in Rupees and subsequently converted into the relevant foreign currency for repatriation, if required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during the time that it takes to undertake such conversion may reduce the net dividend to foreign investors. In addition, any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during a delay in repatriating outside India the proceeds from a sale of Equity Shares, for example, because of a delay in regulatory approvals that may be required for the sale of Equity Shares may reduce the proceeds received by equity shareholders. For example, the exchange rate between the Rupee and the U.S. dollar has fluctuated substantially in recent years and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future, which may adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares and returns on our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

35. Applicants to this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after the Issue Closing Date.

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Applicants in this Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after the Issue Closing Date. The Allotment in this Issue and the credit of such Equity Shares to the Applicant's demat account with its depository participant shall be completed within such period as prescribed under the applicable laws. There is no assurance, however, that material adverse changes in the international or national monetary, financial, political or economic conditions or other events in the nature of force majeure, material adverse changes in our business, results of operation or financial condition, or other events affecting the Applicant's decision to invest in the Issue Shares, would not arise between the Issue Closing Date and the date of Allotment in this Issue. Occurrence of any such events after the Issue Closing Date could also impact the market price of our Equity Shares. The Applicants shall not have the right to withdraw their Applications in the event of any such occurrence. We cannot assure you that the market price of the Equity Shares will not decline below the Issue Price. To the extent the market price for the Equity Shares declines below the Issue Price after the Issue Closing Date, the shareholder will be required to purchase Issue Shares at a price that will be higher than the actual market price of the Equity Shares at that time. Should that occur, the shareholder will suffer an immediate unrealized loss as a result. We may complete the Allotment even if such events may limit the Applicants' ability to sell our Equity Shares after this Issue or cause the trading price of our Equity Shares to decline.

36. Rights of shareholders under Indian laws may be more limited than under the laws of other jurisdictions.

Indian legal principles related to corporate procedures, directors' fiduciary duties and liabilities, and shareholders' rights may differ from those that would apply to a Company in another jurisdiction. Shareholders' rights including in relation to class actions, under Indian law may not be as extensive as shareholders' rights under the laws of other countries or jurisdictions. Investors may have more difficulty in asserting their rights as shareholder in an Indian Company than as shareholder of a corporation in another jurisdiction.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

37. Global economic, political, and social conditions may harm our ability to do business, increase our costs and negatively affect our stock price.

Global economic and political factors that are beyond our control, influence forecasts and directly affect performance. These factors include interest rates, rates of economic growth, fiscal and monetary policies of governments, inflation, deflation, foreign exchange fluctuations, consumer credit availability, consumer debt levels, unemployment trends, terrorist threats and activities, worldwide military and domestic disturbances and conflicts, and other matters that influence consumer confidence, spending and tourism. Increasing volatility in financial markets may cause these factors to change with a greater degree of frequency and magnitude;

38. Any downgrading of India's debt rating by an international rating agency could have a negative impact on our business.

Any adverse revision to India's credit rating for domestic and international debt by international rating agencies may adversely impact our ability to raise additional financing and the interest rates and other commercial terms at which such additional financing is available. This could have an adverse effect on our financial performance and our ability to obtain financing to fund our growth on favorable terms or at all.

39. The occurrence of natural calamities or man-made disasters could have a negative effect on the Indian economy and cause our business to suffer.

India has experienced natural calamities such as earthquakes, tsunami, floods, drought, fires, explosions, tornadoes, pandemic disease and man-made disasters including acts of terrorism and military actions in the past few years. The extent and severity of these natural and man-made disasters determines their effect on the Indian economy. The erratic progress of a monsoon would also adversely affect sowing operations for certain crops. Further prolonged spells of below normal rainfall or other natural calamities in the future could have a negative effect on the Indian economy, adversely affecting our business and the price of our Equity Shares.

40. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business and operations is uncertain and cannot be predicted.

The impact of the pandemic on our business, operations and future financial performance includes, but are not limited to:



• Operations and business continuity: Pursuant to the lockdown, we temporarily closed our office. With the easing of the lockdown, we have gradually resumed business operations, following hygiene checks and sanitization. However, a surge in the number of COVID-19 cases in the future could result in a complete or partial closure of, or other operational issues at our offices resulting from government action.

• Collections: The lockdown resulted in an inability to physically collect from the retail customers on-field due to several restricted activities. Further, our collections were affected owing to the restrictions on gathering of more than certain number of people specifically in relation to micro loans where collections are undertaken through a meeting. Since the gradual relaxations in the lockdown, we have recommenced our collection efforts and increased our workforce dedicated to collection efforts. However, such efforts could be adversely affected in case there is a surge in COVID-19 cases.

• Net interest income and Fee income: With the slowdown in disbursement and maintenance of additional liquidity, there was a substantial drop in fee income and net interest income in the first quarter of Financial Year 2022. The fees earned by way of processing fees, cross-selling could be further impacted due to slower economic activity on account of the pandemic.

• Non-payment or defaults by customers: Due to economic slowdown caused by the COVID-19, there could be delays and defaults associated with repayment of advance from customers which may adversely affect our cash flows.

• Security: There was an increased vulnerability to cyber-security threats and potential breaches, including phishing attacks, malware, and impersonation tactics, resulting from the increase in numbers of individuals working from home.

• Productivity: Inherent productivity, connectivity, and oversight challenges due to an increase in number of individuals working from home may affect our business and results of operations.

• The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business will depend on a range of factors which we are not able to accurately predict, including the duration, severity and scope of the pandemic, the geographies impacted, the impact of the pandemic on economic activity in India, and the nature and severity of measures adopted by governments. Other factors include but are not limited to significant volatility in financial markets and measures adopted by governments and central banks.

41. A slowdown in economic growth in India could cause our business to suffer.

We are incorporated in India, and all our assets and employees are located in India. As a result, we are highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and our results of operations are significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. A slowdown in the Indian economy could adversely affect our business, including our ability to grow our assets, the quality of our assets, and our ability to implement our strategy.

Factors that may adversely affect the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations, may include:

- Any increase in Indian interest rates or inflation.
- Any scarcity of credit or other financing in India.
- Prevailing income conditions among Indian consumers and Indian corporations. Changes in India's tax, trade, fiscal or monetary

policies.

- Political instability, terrorism, or military conflict in India or in countries in the region or globally, including in
- India's various neighboring countries.
- Prevailing regional or global economic conditions; and
- Other significant regulatory or economic developments in or affecting India.

Any slowdown in the Indian economy or in the growth of the sectors we participate in or future volatility in global commodity prices could adversely affect our borrowers and contractual counterparties. This in turn could adversely affect our business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares.

NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY

42. Financial instability in both Indian and international financial markets could adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

The Indian financial market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries, particularly in emerging market in Asian countries. Financial turmoil in Asia, Europe, the United States and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy. Although economic conditions are different in each country, investors' reactions to developments in one country can have an adverse effect on the securities of companies in other countries. A loss in investor confidence in the financial systems of other emerging markets may cause increased volatility in the Indian economy in general. Any global financial instability, including further deterioration of credit conditions in the U.S. market, could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial disruptions may occur again and could harm our results of operations and financial condition.

The Indian economy is also influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries. This includes, but is not limited to, the conditions in the United States, Europe, and certain economies in Asia. Financial turmoil in Asia and elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy. Any worldwide financial instability may cause increased volatility in the Indian financial markets and directly or indirectly, adversely affect the Indian economy and financial sector and its business.

Although economic conditions vary across markets, loss of investor confidence in one emerging economy may cause increased volatility across other economies, including India. Financial instability in other parts of the world could have a global influence and thereby impact the Indian economy. Financial disruptions in the future could adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition, and results of operations. The global credit and equity markets have experienced substantial dislocations, liquidity disruptions and market corrections.

There are concerns that a tightening of monetary policy in emerging markets and some developed markets will lead to a moderation in global growth. In response to such developments, legislators and financial regulators in the United States and other jurisdictions, including India, have implemented a number of policy measures designed to add stability to the financial markets. However, the overall long-term impact of these and other legislative and regulatory efforts on the global financial markets is uncertain, and they may not have had the intended stabilizing effects. Any significant financial disruption in the future could have an adverse effect on our cost of funding, loan portfolio, business, future financial performance and the trading price of the Equity Shares.

43. Inflation in India could have an adverse effect on our profitability and if significant, on our financial condition.

Inflation rates in India have been volatile in recent years, and such volatility may continue in the future. India has experienced high inflation in the recent past. Increased inflation can contribute to an increase in interest rates and increased costs to our business, including increased costs of salaries, and other expenses relevant to our business.

High fluctuations in inflation rates may make it more difficult for us to accurately estimate or control our costs. Any increase in inflation in India can increase our expenses, which we may not be able to pass on to our customers, whether entirely or in part, and the same may adversely affect our business and financial condition. In particular, we might not be able to reduce our costs or increase our rates to pass the increase in costs on to our customers. In such case, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected.

Further, the GoI has previously initiated economic measures to combat high inflation rates, and it is unclear whether these measures will remain in effect. There can be no assurance that Indian inflation levels will not worsen in the future.

44. Foreign investors are subject to foreign investment restrictions under Indian law that limits our ability to attract foreign investors, which may adversely impact the market price of the Equity Shares.

As an Indian Company, we are subject to exchange controls that regulate borrowing in foreign currencies, including those specified under FEMA. Such regulatory restrictions limit our financing sources for our projects under development and hence could constrain our ability to obtain financing on competitive terms and refinance existing indebtedness. In addition, we cannot assure you that the required approvals will be granted to us without onerous conditions, or at all. Limitations on foreign debt may adversely affect our business growth, results of operations and financial condition.

Further, under the foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfers of shares between non-residents and residents are freely permitted (subject to certain exceptions) if they comply with the pricing guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of shares, which are sought to be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting requirements or fall under any of the exceptions referred to above, then the prior approval of the RBI will be required. Additionally, shareholders who seek to convert the Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into foreign currency and repatriate that foreign currency from India will require a no objection/ tax clearance certificate from the income tax authority. There can be no assurance that any approval required from the RBI, or any other government agency can be obtained on any particular terms or at all.

45. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of tax laws, may adversely affect our business, prospects, and results of operations.



The regulatory and policy environment in which we operate is evolving and subject to change. Such changes may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects, to the extent that we are unable to suitably respond to and comply with any such changes in applicable law and policy. For example, the Government of India implemented a comprehensive national goods and services tax (hereinafter referred to as 'GST') regime with effect from July 1, 2017, that combined multiple taxes and levies by the Central and State Governments into a unified tax structure.

46. Our business and financial performance could be adversely affected by any unexpected or onerous requirements or regulations resulting from the introduction of GST or any changes in laws or interpretation of existing laws, or the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations relating to GST, as it is implemented. The Government has enacted the GAAR which have come into effect from April 1, 2017.

The Government of India has announced the union budget for Fiscal 2022 and the Ministry of Finance has notified the Finance Act, 2021 (hereinafter referred to as 'Finance Act') on March 27, 2021, pursuant to assent received from the President, and the Finance Act will come into operation with effect from July 1, 2021 There is no certainty on the impact that the Finance Act may have on our business and operations or on the industry in which we operate. We cannot predict whether any amendments made pursuant to the Finance Act would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Unfavourable changes in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new, laws, rules and regulations including foreign investment and stamp duty laws governing our business and operations could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws and may require us to apply for additional approvals. For instance, the Supreme Court of India has, in a decision clarified the components of basic wages, which need to be considered by companies while making provident fund payments. Our Company has not made relevant provisions for the same, as on date. Any such decisions in future or any further changes in interpretation of laws may have an impact on our results of operations. Further, a draft of the Personal Data Protection Bill, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as 'Bill') has been introduced before the Lok Sabha on December 11, 2020, which is currently being referred to a joint parliamentary committee by the Parliament. We may incur increased costs and other burdens relating to compliance with such new requirements, which may also require significant management time and other resources, and any failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects.

Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation, or implementation of any amendment to, or change in, governing law, regulation, or policy, including by reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administrative or judicial precedent may be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may impact the viability of our current businesses or restrict our ability to grow our businesses in the future.

47. We are subject to regulatory, economic, social, and political uncertainties and other factors beyond our control.

We are incorporated in India, and we conduct our corporate affairs and our business in India. Consequently, our business, operations, financial performance will be affected by interest rates, government policies, taxation, social and ethnic instability, and other political and economic developments affecting India.



SECTION IV – INTRODUCTION

THE ISSUE

This Issue has been authorised by way of a resolution passed by our Board of Directors on August 22, 2023 in pursuance of Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Resolution of the Board of Directors dated January 15, 2024 approving and adopting the Letter of Offer;

The following is a summary of the Issue, which should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, more detailed information in *'Terms of the Issue'* on PAGE 80 of this Letter of Offer.

Particulars	Details of Equity Shares
Equity Shares outstanding prior to	100,55,89,500 Equity Shares
the Issue	
Right Shares proposed to be Issued in	Upto 26,14,53,270
this Issue	
Rights Entitlement Ratio	13 (Thirteen) Equity Shares for every 50 (Fifty) Equity Shares held on the Record Date being Monday, January 29, 2024.
Face Value per Equity Share	₹ 1.00/-
Issue Price per Equity Share	₹ 1.60/-per Rights Equity Shares
Issue Size	Upto 26,14,53,270 Equity Shares of face value of \gtrless 1.00 each for cash at a price of \gtrless \gtrless 1.60/- (Including a premium of \gtrless 0.60/-) per Rights Equity Share not exceeding an amount upto \gtrless 4,183.25 Lakh.
Money payable at the time of	On Application, Investors will have to pay ₹ 1.60/- (One Rupee and Sixty paise Only) per
Application	Rights Equity Share which constitutes 100% (Hundred percent) of the Issue Price.
Equity Shares outstanding after the	1,26,70,42,770 Equity Shares
Issue (assuming full subscription for	
and allotment of the Rights Entitlement)	
Fractional Entitlement	For Equity Shares being offered on a rights basis under the Issue, if the shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is less than 50 (Fifty) Equity Shares or is not in multiples of 50 (Fifty), the fractional entitlement of such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be ignored for computation of the Rights Entitlement. However, Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored earlier will be given preference in the Allotment of one additional Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlement, if any;
Voting Rights and Dividend	The Right Shares issued pursuant to this Issue shall rank pari-pasu in all respects with the Equity Shares of our Company.
Terms of the Issue	Please refer to the section titled ' <i>Terms of the Issue</i> ' beginning on PAGE 80 of this Letter of Offer;
Use of Issue Proceeds	Please refer to the section titled 'Objects of the Issue' beginning on page 37 of this Letter of Offer;
Security Code/ Scrip Details	ISIN: INE300B01022; BSE Scrip Code: 509051; BSE Scrip ID: INDINFO; ISIN for Rights Entitlements: INE300B20014

ISSUE SCHEDULE

The subscription will open upon the commencement of the banking hours and will close upon the close of banking hours on the dates mentioned below:

Event	Indicative Date
Issue Opening Date	Tuesday, February 06, 2024
Last Date for On Market Renunciation of Rights	Thursday, February 08, 2024
Issue Closing Date*	Tuesday, February 13, 2024

*The Board of Directors thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from time to time, provided that the Issue will not remain open in excess of 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date.



GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated on May 22, 1982, as a public limited company, in the name and style 'Indian Leasers Limited' under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, with the Registrar of Companies, Bombay, Maharashtra, India. Subsequently, the name of our Company was changed to from 'Indian Leasers Limited' to 'Indian Infotech & Software Ltd' on July 20, 1998 and a Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon the change of name was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. Pursuant to the order of the Honorable Bombay High Court dated May 4, 2012 approving the Scheme of Arrangement, the Nikkietal Co. Limited and Lambodar Nirmit Limited was merged with Indian Infotech and Software Limited. Pursuant to completion of said merger, the Company has issued and allotted the equity shares to the shareholders of both the transferor companies, the securities of the company are listed on the BSE Ltd. (Stock Exchange) since April 19th, 1985.Our Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) having Certificate of Registration under Section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 vide COR no. B-13.00221 granted by Reserve Bank of India to carry on the business of non-banking financial institution without accepting public deposits.

REGISTERED OFFICE OF OUR COMPANY

Company	INDIAN INFOTECH & SOFTWARE LIMITED	
Registered Office Address	Office No. 110, 1st Floor, Golden Chamber Pre Co-Op Soc Limited New link Road Andheri	
	West Mumbai – 400053, Maharashtra India.	
Contact Number	022-49601435	
Email-ID	indianinfotechsoftware@yahoo.com	
Website	www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in	
Corporate Identification Number	L70100MH1982PLC027198	
Registration Number	027198	
RBI Registration Number	B-13.00221	
BSE Scrip ID	INDINFO	
BSE Scrip Code	509051	
ISIN	INE300B01022	

ADDRESS OF THE REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES

The Registrar of Companies, Mumbai Address: 100, Everest, Marine Drive, Mumbai - 400002, Maharashtra, India

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name of Director	Designation	DIN	Address
Mr. Manish Badola	Managing Director	05016172	A/201, Singhad CHS, Shivaji Nagar Nilemore, Nallasopara West, Nale Palghar, - 401203
Mr. Vinay Kumar K Yadav	Non-Executive Independent Director	09630182	C-09 – Narmada Nagar, Building B Chs Ltd,Cabin Cross Road Near Narmada Nagar, Bhayandar East - 401105
Mr. Hari Singh Rao	Non-Executive – Independent Director	05132581	1506- Boulevard 01, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg Ghatkopar West, Opp R-City Mall Mumbai -400086.
Mr. Hemant Vadilal Modi	Executive Director	09630204	D-804 Ratnadeep Towers, Nr. Arjun Tower, B/H C.P Nagar, Ghatlodia Ahmedabad- Gujarat-380061
Mr. Sandeep Kumar Sahu	Non-Executive – Independent Director	06396817	Jablapur Road Behind Petrol pump lugharwara Lugharwada seoni, Madhya Pradesh,48066.
Ms. Aksha Bihani	Non-Executive - Independent Director	08102933	32A Brindaban Basak Street, Hathkhola, Kolkata West Bengal, India-700005.

For further details of our Board of Directors, please refer to the section titled 'Our Management' beginning on page 65 of this Letter of Offer.



INTRMEDIARIES

COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER	CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Mr. Mushahid Ahmed Khan	Mr. Hemant Vadial Modi
Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer	Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
ICSI Membership No. A49192	Address: D-804 Ratnadeep towers, Nr. Arjun tower, b/h C.P
Address: 46/1, Sadar Bazar, Indore,	Nagar, Ghatlodia Ahmedabad- Gujarat – 380061
Madhya Pradesh MP 452006	Email Id: indianinfotechsoftware@yahoo.com
Email Id: indianinfotechsoftware@yahoo.com	Tel. No. 022- 49601435
Tel. No. 022- 49601435	
STATUTORY AUDITORS	SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
M/s. Adv and Associates (FRN: 128045W)	M/s Brajesh Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants	Company Secretary in Practice
Address: B-Wing, 601-605, Raylon Arcade, RK Mandir Road,	Address: I-74, LIG COLONY, INDORE
Kondivita, Andheri (E), Mumbai 400059	(M.P.)-452007
Email Id: advassociates@gmail.com	Email Id: brajesh.cs19@gmail.com
Tel. No: +91 9167664141	Tel. No: 917566666512
REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE TO THE ISSUE	REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd.	LINK INTIME INDIA PVT. LTD.
Address: Unit no. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt.	Address: C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg,
J.R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E), Mumbai 400 011.	Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083
Telephone: +91 22 49614132; +91 22 497000138;	Phone: +91 22 4918 6000
+91 22 31998810; + 91-22-2301 2518 /6761;	Tel. no. 022 – 4918 6060
E-mail: support@purvashare.com;	Email: mumbai@linkintime.co.in
Website: https://purvashare.com;	Website: www.linkintime.co.in
Contact person: Deepali Dhuri (Compliance Officer)	SEBI Registration No: INR000004058
Investor grievance: support@purvashare.com;	Validity of Registration: Permanent
SEBI Registration No: INRO00001112;	
Validity of Registration: Permanent	
BANKER TO OUR COMPANY	BANKER TO THE ISSUE
YES BANK	AXIS Bank
Branch: 0210 SEEPZ, Andheri, Ahura Centre, Shop No. 19 and 20,	Branch: FORTUNE-2000, GF, G Block BKC, Bandra Kurla
Ground Floor, Mahakli Caves Road, Landmark Next to HDFC Bank Andheri East, 400093.	Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400051

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue or post-Issue related matters. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSB (in case of ASBA process), giving full details such as name, address of the applicant, contact number(s), e-mail address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or demat account, number of Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked (in case of ASBA process), ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSB where the Application Forms, or the plain paper application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement slip (in case of ASBA process).

For details on the ASBA process, see "Terms of the Issue" beginning on page 80 of this Letter of Offer.

SELF-CERTIFIED SYNDICATE BANKS

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as the SCSBs for the ASBA process is provided on the website of SEBI at https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes as updated from time to time, or at such other website as may be prescribed from time to time. Further, for a list of branches of the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBs to receive the ASBA Forms from the Designated Intermediaries and updated from time to time, please refer to the above-mentioned link or any such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company has not appointed any merchant banker to the Issue (except for the purpose of obtaining pricing certificate, as may be required) and hence there is no inter-se allocation of responsibilities.

CREDIT RATING



This being a Rights Issue of Equity Shares, there is no requirement of credit rating.

DEBENTURE TRUSTEES

Since this is not a Debenture issue, appointment of debenture trustees is not required.

MONITORING AGENCY

Since the size of the Issue is less than Rs. 10,000 Lakh, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency in relation to this Issue.

APPRAISING AGENCY

None of the purposes for which the Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilized have been appraised by any bank or financial institution.

UNDERWRITING

This Issue is not underwritten and our Company has not entered into any underwriting arrangement.

EXPERTS

Except for the reports of the Auditor of our Company on the Audited Financial Information and Statement of Tax Benefits, included in the Letter of Offer/ Letter of Offer, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions.

MINIMUM SUBSCRIPTION

As per Regulation 86 of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the clause of minimum subscription will be applicable to the Company. If the Company does not receive the minimum subscription of 90% of the Issue Size, or the subscription level falls below 90% of the Issue Size, after the Issue Closing Date on account of withdrawal of applications, the Company shall refund the entire subscription amount received within 4 (Four) days from the Issue Closing Date. If there is delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed by applicable laws, the Company will pay interest for the delayed period at the rate of 15% p.a. as prescribed under SEBI ICDR Regulations.

FILING

The Letter of Offer shall not be filed with SEBI, nor will SEBI issue any observation on the Letter of Offer as the size of issue is less than Rs. 5,000.00 (Five Thousand Lakh). The Letter of Offer has been filed with BSE Limited for obtaining in-principle approval. However, a copy of the Letter of Offer shall be filed with the SEBI for the purpose of their information and dissemination on its website to the e-mail address: cfddil@sebi.gov.in.

ISSUE SCHEDULE

Issue Opening Date	Tuesday, February 06, 2024
Last date for On Market Renunciation of Rights*	Thursday, February 08, 2024
Issue Closing Date	Tuesday, 13th February 2024
Finalisation of Basis of Allotment(on or About)	Thursday, 15 February, 2024
Date of Allotment (on or About)	Thursday, 15 February, 2024
Date of credit of Shares(on or About)	Monday, 19 February, 2024
Date of listing(on or About)	Monday, 26 February, 2024

*Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

The Board of Directors will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from time to time, provided the Issue will not be kept open in excess of 30 days from the Issue Opening Date. For further details, please see the chapter titled "*Terms of the Issue*" beginning on page 80.



CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The capital structure of our Company and related information as on date of this Letter of Offer, prior to and after the proposed Issue, is set forth below:

Particulars	Amount (in Lakhs)	
	Aggregate Nominal Value	Aggregate Value at Issue Price
Authorized Equity Share capital		
1,27,00,000 Equity Shares	₹ 12,700.00	NA
Issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share capital before this Issue		
100,55,89,500 Equity Shares	₹ 10,055.89	NA
Present Issue in terms of this Letter of Offer ^{(a) (b)}		
26,14,53,270 Issue of Equity Shares, each at a premium of ₹0.60/- per Equity		
Share, at an Issue Price of ₹1.60/- per Equity Share.	₹ 26,145.32	₹4,183.25
Issued Equity Share capital after the Issue		
1,26,70,42,770 Equity Shares	₹ 126,704.27	
		1
Securities premium account		
Before the Issue	₹14,693.91	
After the Issue ^(c)	₹16,262.63	

a) The present Issue has been authorized by our Board of Directors pursuant to the resolution passed in their meeting conducted on August 22, 2023, pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act;

- *b) Resolution of the Board of Directors dated January 15, 2023 approving and adopting the Letter of Offer;*
- *c)* Assuming full subscription to the Right Entitlements and for Allotment of Right Shares;

NOTES TO THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

- The Equity Shares of our Company are fully paid-up and there are no partly paid-up Equity Shares as on the date of this Letter of Offer;
- At any given time, there shall be only one denomination of the Equity Shares. Our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms as may be specified by SEBI from time to time;
- As on the date of this Letter of Offer, our Company has not issued any special voting Right Shares and there are no outstanding Equity Shares having special voting rights. The ex-rights price arrived in accordance with the formula prescribed Regulation 10 (4) (b) of the SEBI (SAST) Regulations, in connection with the Issue is ₹1.60.
- Details of outstanding warrants, outstanding instruments with an option to convert or securities which are convertible at a later date into Equity Shares.
- As on the date of this Letter of Offer, our Company does not have any outstanding warrants, outstanding instruments with an option to convert or securities which are convertible later into Equity Shares.

Details of stock option scheme of our Company

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, our Company does not have a stock option scheme.

1. Details of Equity Shares held by the promoter and promoter group including the details of lock-in, pledge of and encumbrance on such Equity Shares

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, none of the Equity Shares held by the members of the Promoter and Promoter Group of the Company are locked-in, pledged and encumbered.

2. Details of Equity Shares acquired by the promoter and promoter group in the last one year prior to the filing of this Letter of Offer

No Equity Shares have been acquired by our Promoter or members of the Promoter Group in the last one year immediately preceding the date of this Letter of Offer.



INTENTION AND PARTICIPATION BY THE PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP

Our Promoter and Promoter Group has, vide letter dated May 30, 2023 (the "Subscription Letter") informed us regarding their participation in the Right Issue.

Our Promoter and Promoter Group expressed their intention:

(i) to subscribe and participate in the Issue upto 31,25,000 Equity Shares for an amount of upto ₹ 50.00 Lakhs. Our Promoter and Promoter Group will not be able to subscribe to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements in the Issue.

(ii) that they may renounce the Rights Entitlements in favour of or amongst Promoter Group or Third Parties

In case for any such subscription for Right Shares by the Promoters of our Company, if allotted, may result in an increase in their shareholding percentage in the Company. The allotment of Right Shares of the Company subscribed by the Promoter and other members of the Promoter Group in this Issue shall be eligible for exemption from open offer requirements in terms of Regulation 10(4)(a) and 10(4)(b) of the SEBI (SAST) Regulations. This Issue shall not result in a change of control of the management of our Company in accordance with the provisions of SEBI (SAST) Regulations. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and will continue to comply with the minimum public shareholding requirements under applicable law, pursuant to this Issue.

Further, such subscriptions of Equity Shares, may result in an increase in their percentage shareholding above its current percentage shareholding. Any acquisition of additional Equity Shares shall not result in change of control of the management of the Company in accordance with provisions of the SEBI (SAST) Regulations and shall be exempted subject to fulfillment of the conditions of Regulation 10 of the SEBI (SAST) Regulations. The Promoters acknowledge and undertake that their investment would be restricted to ensure that the public shareholding in the Company after this Issue shall be as per the permissible limit/level as specified in the listing conditions or Regulation 38 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

In accordance with Regulation 86 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, if our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of at least 90% of the Issue of the Equity Shares being offered under this Issue, on an aggregate basis, our Company shall refund the entire subscription amount received within 4 (four) days from the Issue Closing Date in accordance with the SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021. If there is a delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed by applicable laws, our Company will pay interest for the delayed period at rates as prescribed under the applicable laws.

No person connected with this Issue shall offer any incentive, whether direct or indirect, in any manner, whether in cash or kind or services or otherwise to any Investor for making an application in this Issue, except for fees or commission for services rendered in relation to the Issue.

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE COMPANY

Shareholding pattern of our Company as prescribed under Regulation 31 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and last submitted to the stock at the end of quarter ended June 31, 2023 to stock exchanges is available on below link:

https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/indian-infotech--software-ltd/indinfo/509051/shareholding-pattern/

The statement showing holding of Equity Shares of persons belonging to the category "Promoter and Promoter Group" including the details of lock-in, pledge of and encumbrance thereon, for the period ended March 31, 2023 can be accessed on the website of the BSE at:

https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/indian-infotech--software-ltd/indinfo/509051/gtrid/117.00/shareholding-pattern/Mar-2023/

The statement showing specified securities acquired by the promoter and promoter group in the last one year immediately preceding the date of filing of the letter of offer with the designated stock exchange:

There is no acquisition by any person belonging to "Promoter & Promoter Group" of the Company.

The statement showing shareholders holding more than 1% of the total number of Equity Shares for the period ended March 31, 2023 is as follows:

https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPublicShareholder.aspx?scripcd=509051&qtrid=118.00&QtrName=June%202023

For Public Category



NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY <u>https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpPublicShareholder.aspx?scripcd=509051&qtrid=118.00&QtrName=June%202023</u>

EX-RIGHTS PRICE PER EQUITY SHARE

The ex-rights price per Equity Share as per Regulation 10(4)(b)(ii) of the SEBI Takeover Regulations is \gtrless 2.06. The ex-rights price per Equity Share has been calculated assuming full subscription to the Issue.



SECTION V – PARTICULARS OF THE ISSUE

OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

The Issue includes a fresh Issue of upto 26,14,53,270 Equity Shares of our Company at an Issue Price of ₹1.60 per Equity Share.

Fresh Issue

The details of the proceeds of the Fresh Issue are summarized below:

	(₹ in Lakhs)
Particulars	Amount
Gross Proceeds from the Fresh Issue^	4,183.25
Less: Estimated Issue related expenses^^	30.00
Net Proceeds of the Fresh Issue	4,153.25

^ assuming full subscription in the Issue and subject to finalization of the Basis of Allotment and to be adjusted per the Rights Entitlement ratio.

[^] To be finalized upon determination of the Issue Price and updated in the Letter of Offer, see "Estimated Issue Related Expenses" on page 37.

Requirement of Funds

Our Company intends to utilize the Net Fresh Issue Proceeds for the following Objects ("Objects of the Issue"):

- a. To meet the Working Capital Requirements of the company.
- b. General Corporate Purposes

(Collectively referred as the "Objects")

The main object clause and the ancillary object clause of the Memorandum of Association of our Company enable us to undertake our existing activities and the activities for which we are raising funds through the Issue. The existing activities of our Company are within the object clause of our Memorandum. The Fund requirement and deployment is based on internal management estimates and has not been appraised by any bank and financial institution.

Schedule of Implementation, Requirement of Funds and Utilization of Net Proceeds

The Net Fresh Issue Proceeds are proposed to be utilized and are currently expected to be deployed in the manner set out in the following table:

			(₹ in lakhs)
Sr. No.	Particulars	Amount to be funded from Net Proceeds	Estimated deployment of Net Proceeds by the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024
1	Working Capital Requirements	3,500.00	3,500.00
2	General Corporate Purposes*	653.25	653.25
	Total	4,153.25	4,153.25

* Amount utilized for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the gross proceeds of the issue.

The fund requirements, the deployment of funds and the intended use of the Net Proceeds as described herein are based on our current business plan, management estimates, and other commercial and technical factors. However, such fund requirements and deployment of funds have not been appraised by any bank, or financial institution. We may have to revise our funding requirements and deployment on account of a variety of factors such as our financial and market condition, business and strategy, competition, negotiation with vendors, variation in cost estimates on account of factors, and other external factors such as changes in the business environment and interest or exchange rate fluctuations, which may not be within the control of our management. This may entail rescheduling or revising the planned expenditure and funding requirements, including the expenditure for a particular purpose at the discretion of our management, subject to compliance with applicable laws.

In the event that the estimated utilization of the Net Proceeds in a scheduled financial year is not completely met, due to the reasons stated above, the same shall be utilised in the next financial year, as may be determined by our Company, in accordance with applicable laws.

Subject to applicable laws, in the event of any increase in the actual utilization of funds earmarked for the purposes set forth above, such



additional funds for a particular activity will be met by way of means available to us, including from internal accruals and any additional equity and/or debt arrangements. Further, if the actual utilisation towards any of the Objects is lower than the proposed deployment such balance will be used towards general corporate purposes to the extent that the total amount to be utilised towards general corporate purposes will not exceed 25% of the Net Proceeds in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Means of Finance:

Since the entire fund requirement will be met from the Net Proceeds hence, no amount is proposed to be raised through any other means of finance. Accordingly, we confirm that there are no requirements to make firm arrangements of finance under Regulation 62(1) (c) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations through verifiable means towards 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised from the Issue. In case of a shortfall in the Net Proceeds or any increase in the actual utilisation of funds earmarked for the Objects, our Company may explore a range of options including utilizing our internal accruals.

Details of the Object of the Issue

1) To Meet Working Capital Requirements

Our business is working capital intensive. We finance our working capital requirement from our internal accruals. Considering the existing and future growth, the working capital needs of our Company, as assessed based on the internal workings of our Company is expected to reach ₹26,513.61 Lakhs for FY 2023-2024. We intend to meet our working capital requirements to the extent of ₹3,500.00 Lakhs from the Net Proceeds of this Issue and the balance will be met from internal accruals at an appropriate time as per the requirement.

Basis of estimation of working capital

The details of our Company's composition of working capital as at March 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 based on the Audited Financial Statements and working capital estimates for March 31, 2024 and the source of funding of the same are as set out in the table below:

				(₹ in lakhs)
Particulars	March 31, 2021	March 31, 2022	March 31, 2023	March 31, 2024
	Audited	Audited	Audited	Estimated
Current Assets				
Inventories	1,017.81	1,017.81	24.11	24.11
Cash and Cash Equivalents	88.91	244.92	4.51	100.00
Short Term Loans & Advances	21,754.64	21,494.91	22,740.66	25,975.00
Other Current Assets	121.45	266.20	325.55	525.00
Total (I)	22,982.81	23,023.85	23,094.82	26,624.11
Current Liabilities				
Trade Payables	4.95	0.51	2.49	2.00
Other Current Liabilities	2.00	4.61	6.67	8.50
Short Term Provisions	54.39	64.88	74.34	100.00
Total (II)	61.34	70.00	83.50	110.50
Net Working Capital (I) – (II)	22,921.47	22,953.85	23,011.32	26,513.61
Funding Pattern:				
Short-Term Borrowings from Banks	30.00	30.00	30.00	30.00
Internal Accruals	22,891.47	22,923.85	22,981.32	22,983.61
Part of the IPO Proceeds				3,500.00

Assumptions for working capital requirement.

Assumptions for Holding Levels

(In days)						
Particulars Holding level as on		Holding level as on	Holding level as on	Holding level as on		
	March 31, 2021	March 31, 2022	March 31, 2023	March 31, 2024		
	(Actual)	(Actual)	(Actual)	(Estimated)		
Current Assets						
Inventories	NA	NA	NA	NA		
Trade Receivables	NA	NA	NA	NA		



Current Liabilities				NON DANKING FINANLE LOMFANT
Trade Payables	NA	NA	NA	NA

Justification for Holding Period Levels

Particulars	Detail		
Inventories Our inventories consist of Equity shares. They are mostly held throughout the year and do not have any holdi			
	period as such.		
Trade ReceivablesOur Company does not have any trade receivables.			
Trade Payables Trade Payables includes outstanding payments towards dues of staff and other vendors for mo			
	provision for auditor's remuneration which are generally payable from 30 to 120 days.		

2) General Corporate Purposes

The Net Proceeds will be first utilized towards the Objects as mentioned as mentioned above. The balance Net Fresh Issue Proceeds of 3653.25 Lakhs is proposed to be utilized for general corporate purposes, subject to such utilization not exceeding 25% of the Net Proceeds, in compliance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. Our Company intends to deploy the balance Net Proceeds, if any, for general corporate purposes, subject to above mentioned limit, as may be approved by our management, including but not restricted to, the following:

(i) Strategic initiatives

(ii) Brand building and strengthening of marketing activities; and

(iii) On-going general corporate exigencies or any other purposes as approved by the Board subject to compliance with the necessary regulatory provisions.

The quantum of utilization of funds towards each of the above purposes will be determined by our Board of Directors based on the permissible amount available under the head "General Corporate Purposes" and the business requirements of our Company, from time to time. We, in accordance with the policies of our Board, will have flexibility in utilizing the Net Proceeds for general corporate purposes, as mentioned above.

Proposed Year wise Deployment of Funds / Schedule of Implementation

The entire Net Fresh Issue Proceeds are proposed to be deployed in the Financial Year 2023-24.

Public Issue Expense

The estimated Issue related expenses include fees to various advisors, advertisement expenses, printing and distribution expenses, Registrar fees and Depository Expenses. The total expenses for this Issue are estimated to be approximately ₹ 30.00 Lakhs. All the Issue related expenses shall be met out of the proceeds of the Issue and the break-up of the same is as follows:

Particulars	Expenses (₹ In Lakh)	% of Total Offer Expenses	% of Total Offer size
Fees to Banker to the Issue, Registrar to the Issue, Legal Advisor, Auditor's Fees including out of pockets expenses, etc.	3.50	11.67%	0.00%



Total*#	30.00	100.00%	0.00%
Regulatory Fees, filing fees, listing fees and other miscellaneous expenses.	24.25	80.83%	0.00%
Fees related to advertising, printing, distribution, marketing & stationery expenses	2.25	7.50%	0.00%

*Amount will be finalised at the time of filing of Letter of Offer and determination of Issue Price and other details. Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment- In case of any difference between the Estimated Issue Related Expenses and Actual Expenses incurred, the shortfall or excess shall be adjusted with amount allocated towards General Corporate Purposes. #Amount are Excluding taxes.

Appraisal by Appraising Fund

None of the Objects have been appraised by any bank or financial institution or any other independent third-party organization. The funding requirements of our Company and the deployment of the proceeds of the Issue are currently based on management estimates. The funding requirements of our Company are dependent on a number of factors which may not be in the control of our management, including variations in interest rate structures, changes in our financial condition and current commercial conditions and are subject to change in light of changes in external circumstances or in our financial condition, business or strategy.

Shortfall of Funds

Any shortfall in meeting the fund requirements will be met by way of internal accruals and /or unsecured Loans.

Bridge Financing Facilities

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, we have not raised any bridge loans, which are proposed to be repaid from the Net Proceeds. However, we may draw down such amounts, as may be required, from an overdraft arrangement/ cash credit facility with our lenders, to finance additional working capital needs until the completion of the Issue.

Monitoring Utilization of Funds

As the size of the Fresh Issue does not exceed $\gtrless10,000$ Lakhs, in terms of Regulation 262 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency for the purposes of this Issue. Our Board and Audit Committee shall monitor the utilization of the Net Proceeds.

As per the requirements of Regulations 18(3) read with Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, we will disclose to the Audit Committee the uses / application of funds on a quarterly basis as part of our quarterly declaration of results. Further, on an annual basis, we shall prepare a statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in this Letter of Offer and place it before the Audit Committee. The said disclosure shall be made till such time that the Gross Proceeds raised through the Issue have been fully spent. The statement shall be certified by our Statutory Auditor.

Further, in terms of Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, we will furnish to the Stock Exchanges on a quarterly basis, a statement indicating material deviations, if any, in the use of proceeds from the objects stated in this Letter of Offer. Further, this information shall be furnished to the Stock Exchanges along with the interim or annual financial results submitted under Regulations 33 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and be published in the newspapers simultaneously with the interim or annual financial results, after placing it before the Audit Committee in terms of Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Interim Use of Proceeds

Pending utilization of the Issue proceeds of the Issue for the purposes described above, our Company will deposit the Net Proceeds with scheduled commercial banks included in schedule II of the RBI Act.

Our Company confirms that it shall not use the Net Proceeds for buying, trading or otherwise dealing in shares of any listed Company or for any investment in the equity markets or investing in any real estate product or real estate linked products.

Other Confirmations

There are no material existing or anticipated transactions with our Promoters, our Directors, our Company's Key Managerial Personnel in relation to the utilization of the Net Proceeds. No part of the Net Proceeds will be paid by us as consideration to our Promoters, our Directors or Key Managerial Personnel except in the normal course of business and in compliance with the applicable laws.



STATEMENT OF SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS

To, **The Board of Directors INDIAN INFOTECH & SOFTWARE LIMITED** OFFICE NO. 110, 1st Floor, Golden Chamber Pre Co-Op Soc. Ltd. New Link Road Andheri West Mumbai-400053 Maharashtra India.

Dear Sir,

<u>SUB: STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS ("THE STATEMENT") AVAILABLE TO INDIAN INFOTECH</u> <u>& SOFTWARE LIMITED ("THE COMPANY")</u>

The information provided below sets out the Possible Special Direct Tax & Indirect Tax benefits available to the Company, and its Shareholders in a summary manner only and is not a complete analysis or listing of all potential tax consequences of the subscription, ownership and disposal of Equity Shares, under the current tax laws presently in force in India. Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company and its Shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant tax laws. Hence, the ability of the Company, and the Shareholders of the Company to derive the direct and indirect tax benefits is dependent upon their fulfilling such conditions, which is based on business imperatives the Company may face in the future and accordingly, the Company, and the Shareholders of the Company or the Shareholders of the Company to exercise the option by fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the Tax Laws.

The following overview is not exhaustive or comprehensive and is not intended to be a substitute for professional advice. Investors are advised to consult their own Tax Consultant with respect to the tax implications of an investment in the shares particularly in view of the fact that certain recently enacted legislation may not have a direct legal precedent or may have a different interpretation on the benefits, which an investor can avail.

The tax benefits stated below are as per the Income Tax Act, 1961 ("IT Act") as amended from time to time and applicable for financial year 2023-24 relevant to assessment year 2024-25(AY 2024-25) and Indirect Tax Laws as amended from time to time and applicable for financial year 2023-24-

I. Under the IT Act

1. Special Tax Benefits available to the Company under the Act

• Lower Corporate Tax rate under Section 115BAA

A new Section 115BAA has been inserted by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019 ("the Amendment Act, 2019") granting an option to domestic companies to compute corporate tax at a reduced rate of 25.17% (22% plus surcharge of 10% and cess of 4%) from the Financial Year 2019-20, provided such companies do not avail specified exemptions/incentives (e.g. deduction under Section 10AA, 32(1) (iia), 33ABA, 35(2AB), 80-IA etc.)

The Amendment Act, 2019 also provides that domestic companies availing such option will not be required to pay Minimum Alternate Tax ("MAT") under Section 115JB. The CBDT has further issued Circular 29/2019 dated October 02, 2019 clarifying that since the MAT provisions under Section 115JB itself would not apply where a domestic company exercises option of lower tax rate under Section 115BAA, MAT credit would not be available. Corresponding amendment has been inserted under Section 115JAA dealing with MAT credit.

The Company has exercised the above option.

2. Special Tax Benefits available to Shareholders

There are no Special Tax Benefits available to the Shareholders (other than Resident Corporate Shareholder) of the Company.

With respect to a Resident Corporate Shareholder, a new section 80M is inserted in the Finance Act, 2020, to remove the cascading effect of taxes on inter-corporate dividends during financial year 2020-21 and thereafter. The section provides that where the gross total income of a domestic company in any previous year includes any income by way of dividends from any other Domestic Company or a Foreign Company or a Business Trust, there shall, in accordance with and subject to the provisions of this section, be allowed in computing the total



income of such domestic company, a deduction of an amount equal to so much of the amount of income by way of dividends received from such other Domestic Company or Foreign Company or Business Trust as does not exceed the amount of dividend distributed by it on or before the due date. The "due date" means the date one month prior to the date for furnishing the return of income under sub-section (1) of section 139.

NOTES:

The above statement of Possible Special Tax Benefits sets out the provisions of Tax Laws in a summary manner only and is not a complete analysis or listing of all potential tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposal of shares.

The above statement covers only certain Special Tax Benefits under the Act, read with the relevant rules, circulars and notifications and does not cover any benefit under any other law in force in India. This statement also does not discuss any tax consequences, in the country outside India, of an investment in the shares of an Indian company.

The above statement of Possible Special Tax Benefits is as per the current Direct Tax Laws relevant for the assessment year 2024-25. Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its Shareholders fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant provisions of the Tax Laws.

In respect of non-residents, the tax rates and consequent taxation mentioned above will be further subject to any benefits available under the relevant Double Taxation Avoidance Agreement, if any, entered into between India and the country in which the non-resident has fiscal domicile.

As the Company has opted for concessional corporate income tax rate as prescribed under section 115BAA of the Act, it will not be allowed to claim any of the following deductions:

• Deduction under the provisions of section 10AA (deduction for units in Special Economic Zone)

• Deduction under clause (iia) of sub-section (1) of section 32 (Additional Depreciation)

• Deduction under section 32AD or section 33AB or section 33ABA (Investment allowance in backward areas, Investment deposit account, Site restoration fund)

• Deduction under sub-clause (ii) or sub-clause (iii) or sub-clause (iii) of sub-section or subsection (2AA) or sub-section (2AB) of section 35 (Expenditure on scientific research)

- Deduction under section 35AD or section 35CCC (Deduction for specified business, agricultural extension project)
- Deduction under section 35CCD (Expenditure on skill development)
- Deduction under any provisions of Chapter VI-A other than the provisions of section 80JJAA or section 80M;

• No set off of any loss carried forward or depreciation from any earlier assessment year, if such loss or depreciation is attributable to any of the deductions referred above

• No set off of any loss or allowance for unabsorbed depreciation deemed so under section 72A, if such loss or depreciation is attributable to any of the deductions referred above

• This statement is intended only to provide general information to the investors and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual nature of tax 54 consequences, each investor is advised to consult his or her tax advisor with respect to specific tax consequences of his/her investment in the shares of the Company.

II. Under the Indirect Tax Laws

3. Special Indirect Tax Benefits available to the Company

The Company is not entitled to any special tax benefits under indirect tax laws

4. Special Tax Benefits available to Shareholders

The Shareholders of the Company are not entitled to any Special Tax Benefits under indirect tax laws

NOTES:

1. All the above benefits are as per the current tax laws and will be available only to the sole / first name holder where the shares are

held by joint holders.

2. The above statement covers only certain relevant direct tax law benefits and does not cover any indirect tax law benefits or benefit under any other law.



3. The above statement of possible special tax benefits is as per the current direct tax laws relevant for the F.Y.2023-24 relevant to A.Y. 2024-25.

4. No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur with the views expressed herein. Our views are based on the existing provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from time to time. We do not assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. We do not assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. We do not assume responsibility to update the views consequent to such changes. We shall not be liable to any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment except to the extent of fees relating to this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have resulted primarily from bad faith or intentional misconduct. We will not be liable to any other person in respect of this statement.

YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE INDIAN TAXIMPLICATIONS AND CONSEQUENCES OF PURCHASING, OWNING AND DISPOSING OF EQUITY SHARES IN YOUR PARTICULAR <u>SITUATION.</u>

We hereby give our consent to include our above referred opinion regarding the tax benefits available to the Company and to its shareholders in the offer document.

This Certificate is issued on Special request of **M/s Indian Infotech and Software Limited** for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid Regulations. This certificate is issued solely for the purposes of complying with the aforesaid Regulations and may not be suitable for any other purpose

We have no responsibility to update this certificate for the events & circumstances occurring after the date of this certificate.

For ADV & Associates

Chartered Accountants FRN: 128045W

Sd-Prakash Mandhaniya, Partner Membership No. 421679

Date: 21.08.2023 Place: Mumbai UDIN: 23421679BGYARF1743



OUR INDUSTRY

The information in this section has been extracted from various websites and publicly available documents from various industry sources. The data may have been re-classified by us for the purpose of presentation. Neither we nor any other person connected with the issue has independently verified the information provided in this section. Industry sources and publications, referred to in this section, generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable but their accuracy, completeness and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured, and, accordingly, investment decisions should not be based on such information.

GLOBAL ECONOMY AT LARGE

A Rocky Recovery

The global economy is yet again at a highly uncertain moment, with the cumulative effects of the past three years of adverse shocks-most notably, the COVID-19 pandemic and Russia's invasion of Ukraine-manifesting in unforeseen ways. Spurred by pent-up demand, lingering supply disruptions, and commodity price spikes, inflation reached multidecade highs last year in many economies, leading central banks to tighten aggressively to bring it back toward their targets and keep inflation expectations anchored. Although telegraphed by central banks, the rapid rise in interest rates and anticipated slowing of economic activity to put inflation on a downward path have, together with supervisory and regulatory gaps and the materialization of bank-specific risks, contributed to stresses in parts of the financial system, raising financial stability concerns. Banks' generally strong liquidity and capital positions suggested that they would be able to absorb the effects of monetary policy tightening and adapt smoothly. However, some financial institutions with business models that relied heavily on a continuation of the extremely low nominal interest rates of the past years have come under acute stress, as they have proved either unprepared or unable to adjust to the fast pace of rate rises. The unexpected failures of two specialized regional banks in the United States in mid-March 2023 and the collapse of confidence in Credit Suisse-a globally significant bank-have roiled financial markets, with bank depositors and investors reevaluating the safety of their holdings and shifting away from institutions and investments perceived as vulnerable. The loss of confidence in Credit Suisse resulted in a brokered takeover. Broad equity indices across major markets have fallen below their levels prior to the turmoil, but bank equities have come under extreme pressure (Figure 1.1). Despite strong policy actions to support the banking sector and reassure markets, some depositors and investors have become highly sensitive to any news, as they struggle to discern the breadth of vulnerabilities across banks and nonbank financial institutions and their implications for the likely near-term path of the economy. Financial conditions have tightened, which is likely to entail lower lending and activity if they persist (see also Chapter 1 of the April 2023 Global Financial Stability Report). Prior to recent financial sector ructions, activity in the world economy had shown nascent signs of stabilizing in early 2023 after the adverse shocks of last year (Figure 1.2, panels 1 and 2). Russia's invasion of Ukraine and the ongoing war caused severe commodity and energy price shocks and trade disruptions, provoking the beginning of a significant reorientation and adjustment across many economies. More contagious COVID-19 strains emerged and spread widely. Outbreaks particularly affected activity in economies in which populations had lower levels of immunity and in which strict lockdowns were implemented, such as in China. Although these developments imperiled the recovery, activity in many economies turned out better than expected in the second half of 2022, typically reflecting stronger-thananticipated domestic conditions. Labor markets in advanced economies-most notably, the United States-have stayed very strong, with unemployment rates historically low. Even so, confidence remains depressed across all regions compared with where it was at the beginning of 2022, before Russia invaded Ukraine and the resurgence of COVID-19 in the second quarter. With the recent increase in financial market volatility and multiple indicators pointing in different directions, the fog around the world economic outlook has thickened. Uncertainty is high, and the balance of risks has shifted firmly to the downside so long as the financial sector remains unsettled. The major forces that affected the world in 2022—central banks' tight monetary stances to allay inflation, limited fiscal buffers to absorb shocks amid historically high debt levels, commodity price spikes and geoeconomic fragmentation with Russia's war in Ukraine, and China's economic reopeningseem likely to continue into 2023. But these forces are now overlaid by and interacting with new financial stability concerns. A hard landingparticularly for advanced economies-has become a much larger risk. Policymakers may face difficult trade-offs to bring sticky inflation down and maintain growth while also preserving financial stability.

Challenging Outlook

A return of the world economy to the pace of economic growth that prevailed before the bevy of shocks in 2022 and the recent financial sector turmoil is increasingly elusive. More than a year after Russia's invasion of Ukraine and the outbreak of more contagious COVID-19 variants, many economies are still absorbing the shocks. The recent tightening in global financial conditions is also hampering the recovery. As a result, many economies are likely to experience slower growth in incomes in 2023, amid rising joblessness. Moreover, even with central banks having driven up interest rates to reduce inflation, the road back to price stability could be long. Over the medium term, the prospects for growth now seem dimmer than in decades. This section first describes the baseline projections for the global economy and the assumptions on which they are predicated. The baseline scenario assumes that the recent financial sector turmoil is contained and does not generate material disruptions to global economic activity with widespread recession.

Fuel and nonfuel commodity prices are generally expected to decline in 2023, amid slowing global demand. Crude oil prices are projected to fall by about 24 percent in 2023 and a further 5.8 percent in 2024, while nonfuel commodity prices are expected to remain broadly unchanged. The forecasts are also based on the assumption that global interest rates will stay elevated for longer than expected at the time the October



2022 WEO was published, as central banks remain focused on returning inflation to targets while deploying tools to maintain financial stability as needed. Governments are on average expected to gradually withdraw fiscal policy support, including, as commodity prices decline, by scaling back packages designed to shield households and firms from the effects of the fuel and energy price spikes in 2022.

At the same time, in consideration of the elevated risks and uncertainties stemming from the recent global financial market turmoil, this section also places strong emphasis on a plausible alternative scenario that illustrates the impact of downside risks materializing.

(Source : <u>https ://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/Issues/2023/04/11/world-economic-outlook-april-2023</u>)

INDIAN INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

INTRODUCTION

Strong economic growth in the first quarter of FY 2022-23 helped India overcome the UK to become the fifth-largest economy after it recovered from repeated waves of COVID-19 pandemic shock. Real GDP in the first quarter of 2022–23 is currently about 4% higher than its corresponding 2019-20, indicating a strong start for India's recovery from the pandemic. Given the release of pent-up demand and the widespread vaccination coverage, the contact-intensive services sector will probably be the main driver of development in 2022–2023. Rising employment and substantially increasing private consumption, supported by rising consumer sentiment, will support GDP growth in the coming months. Future capital spending of the government in the economy is expected to be supported by factors such as tax buoyancy, the streamlined tax system with low rates, a thorough assessment and rationalisation of the tariff structure, and the digitization of tax filing. In the medium run, increased capital spending on infrastructure and asset-building projects is set to increase growth multipliers, and with the revival in monsoon and the Kharif sowing, agriculture is also picking up momentum. The contact-based services sector has largely demonstrated promise to boost growth by unleashing the pent-up demand over the period of April-September 2022. The sector's success is being captured by a number of HFIs (High-Frequency Indicators) that are performing well, indicating the beginnings of a comeback. India has emerged as the fastest-growing major economy in the world and is expected to be one of the top three economic powers in the world over the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and strong partnerships.

MARKET SIZE

India's nominal gross domestic product (GDP) at current prices is estimated to be at Rs. 232.15 trillion (US\$ 3.12 trillion) in FY22. With more than 100 unicorns valued at US\$ 332.7 billion, India has the third-largest unicorn base in the world. The government is also focusing on renewable sources to generate energy and is planning to achieve 40% of its energy from non-fossil sources by 2030. According to the McKinsey Global Institute, India needs to boost its rate of employment growth and create 90 million non-farm jobs between 2023 and 2030 in order to increase productivity and economic growth. The net employment rate needs to grow by 1.5% per annum from 2023 to 2030 to achieve 8-8.5% GDP growth between 2023 and 2030. India's current account deficit (CAD), primarily driven by an increase in the trade deficit, stood at 2.1% of GDP in the first quarter of FY 2022-23. Exports fared remarkably well during the pandemic and aided recovery when all other growth engines were losing steam in terms of their contribution to GDP. Going forward, the contribution of merchandise exports may waver as several of India's trade partners witness an economic slowdown. According to Mr. Piyush Goyal, Minister of Commerce and Industry, Consumer Affairs, Food and Public Distribution and Textiles, Indian exports are expected to reach US\$ 1 trillion by 2030.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

India is primarily a domestic demand-driven economy, with consumption and investments contributing to 70% of the economic activity. With an improvement in the economic scenario and the Indian economy recovering from the Covid-19 pandemic shock, several investments and developments have been made across various sectors of the economy. According to World Bank, India must continue to prioritise lowering inequality while also putting growth-oriented policies into place to boost the economy. In view of this, there have been some developments that have taken place in the recent past. Some of them are mentioned below.

- As of September 21, 2022, India's foreign exchange reserves stood at US\$ 524,520 million.
- The private equity-venture capital (PE-VC) sector investments stood at US\$ 2 billion in September 2022.
- Merchandise exports in September 2022 stood at US\$ 32.62 billion.
- PMI Services remained comfortably in the expansionary zone at 56.7 during April-September 2022
- In September 2022, the gross Goods and Services Tax (GST) revenue collection stood at Rs. 147,686 crore (US\$ 17.92 billion).
- Between April 2000-June 2022, cumulative FDI equity inflows to India stood at US\$ 604,996 million.



• In August 2022, the overall IIP (Index of Industrial Production) stood at 131.3. The Indices of Industrial Production for the mining, manufacturing and electricity sectors stood at 99.6, 131.0 and 191.3, respectively, in August 2022.

• According to data released by the Ministry of Statistics & Programme Implementation (MoSPI), India's Consumer Price Index (CPI) based retail inflation reached 7.41% in September 2022.

• In FY 2022-23, (until October 28, 2022), Foreign Portfolio Investment (FPI) outflows stood at Rs. 58,762 crore (US\$ 7.13 billion).

• The wheat procurement in Rabi 2021-22 and the anticipated paddy purchase in Kharif 2021-22 would include 1208 lakh (120.8 million) metric tonnes of wheat and paddy from 163 lakh (16.7 million) farmers, as well as a direct payment of MSP value of Rs. 2.37 lakh crore (US\$ 31.74 billion) to their accounts.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

Over the years, the Indian government has introduced many initiatives to strengthen the nation's economy. The Indian government has been effective in developing policies and programmes that are not only beneficial for citizens to improve their financial stability but also for the overall growth of the economy. Over recent decades, India's rapid economic growth has led to a substantial increase in its demand for exports. Besides this, a number of the government's flagship programmes, including Make in India, Start-up India, Digital India, the Smart City Mission, and the Atal Mission for Rejuvenation and Urban Transformation, are aimed at creating immense opportunities in India. In this regard, some of the initiatives taken by the government to improve the economic condition of the country are mentioned below:

• Home & Cooperation Minister Mr. Amit Shah, laid the foundation stone and performed Bhoomi Pujan of Shri Tanot Mandir Complex Project under Border Tourism Development Programme in Jaisalmer in September 2022.

• In August 2022, Mr. Narendra Singh Tomar, Minister of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare inaugurated four new facilities at the Central Arid Zone Research Institute (CAZRI), which has been rendering excellent services for more than 60 years under the Indian Council of Agricultural Research (ICAR).

• In August 2022, a Special Food Processing Fund of Rs. 2,000 crore (US\$ 242.72 million) was set up with National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development (NABARD) to provide affordable credit for investments in setting up Mega Food Parks (MFP) as well as processing units in the MFPs.

• In July 2022, Deendayal Port Authority (DPA) announced plans to develop two Mega Cargo Handling Terminals on a Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT) basis under Public-Private Partnership (PPP) Mode at an estimated cost of Rs. 5,963 crore (US\$ 747.64 million).

• In July 2022, the Union Cabinet chaired by the Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi, approved the signing of the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) between India & Maldives. This MoU will provide a platform to tap the benefits of information technology for court digitization and can be a potential growth area for the IT companies and start-ups in both the countries.

• India and Namibia entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) on wildlife conservation and sustainable biodiversity utilization on July 20, 2022, for establishing the cheetah into the historical range in India.

• In July 2022, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) approved international trade settlements in Indian rupees (INR) in order to promote the growth of global trade with emphasis on exports from India and to support the increasing interest of the global trading community.

• In June 2022, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi inaugurated and laid the foundation stone of development projects worth Rs. 21,000 crore (US\$ 2.63 billion) at Gujarat Gaurav Abhiyan at Vadodara.

• Mr. Rajnath Singh, Minister of Defence, launched 75 newly-developed Artificial Intelligence (AI) products/technologies during the first-ever 'AI in Defence' (AIDef) symposium and exhibition organized by the Ministry of Defence in New Delhi on 11 July 2022.

• In June 2022:

• Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi, laid the foundation stone of 1,406 projects worth more than Rs. 80,000 crore (US\$ 10.01 billion) at the groundbreaking ceremony of the UP Investors Summit in Lucknow.

• The Projects encompass diverse sectors like Agriculture and Allied industries, IT and Electronics, MSME, Manufacturing, Renewable Energy, Pharma, Tourism, Defence & Aerospace, Handloom & Textiles.

• The Indian Institute of Spices Research (IISR) under the Indian Council for Agricultural Research (ICAR) inked a Memorandum of



NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY

Understanding (MoU) with Lysterra LLC, a Russia-based company for the commercialization of biocapsule, an encapsulation technology for bio-fertilization on 30 June, 2022.

• As of April 2022, India signed 13 Free Trade Agreements (FTAs) with its trading partners including major trade agreements like the India-UAE Comprehensive Partnership Agreement (CEPA) and the India-Australia Economic Cooperation and Trade Agreement (IndAus ECTA).

• The Union Budget of 2022-23 was presented on February 1, 2022, by the Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs, Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman. The budget had four priorities PM GatiShakti, Inclusive Development, Productivity Enhancement and Investment, and Financing of Investments. In the Union Budget 2022-23, effective capital expenditure is expected to increase by 27% at Rs. 10.68 lakh crore (US\$ 142.93 billion) to boost the economy. This will be 4.1% of the total Gross Domestic Production (GDP).

• Under PM GatiShakti Master Plan, the National Highway Network will develop 25,000 km of new highways network, which will be worth Rs. 20,000 crore (US\$ 2.67 billion). In 2022-23. Increased government expenditure is expected to attract private investments, with a production-linked incentive scheme providing excellent opportunities. Consistently proactive, graded, and measured policy support is anticipated to boost the Indian economy.

• In February 2022, Minister for Finance and Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman said that productivity linked incentive (PLI) schemes would be extended to 14 sectors to achieve the mission of AtmaNirbhar Bharat and create 60 lakh jobs with an additional production capacity of Rs. 30 lakh crore (US\$ 401.49 billion) in the next five years.

• In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the government announced funding for the production linked incentive (PLI) scheme for domestic solar cells and module manufacturing of Rs. 24,000 crore (US\$ 3.21 billion).

• In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the government announced a production linked incentive (PLI) scheme for Bulk Drugs which was an investment of Rs. 2500 crore (US\$ 334.60 million).

• In the Union Budget of 2022, Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman announced that a scheme for design-led manufacturing in 5G would be launched as part of the PLI scheme.

• In September 2021, Union Cabinet approved major reforms in the telecom sector, which are expected to boost employment, growth, competition, and consumer interests. Key reforms include rationalization of adjusted gross revenue, rationalization of bank guarantees (BGs), and encouragement of spectrum sharing.

• In the Union Budget of 2022-23, the government has allocated Rs. 44,720 crore (US\$ 5.98 billion) to Bharat Sanchar Nigam Limited (BSNL) for capital investments in the 4G spectrum.

• Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman allocated Rs. 650 crore (US\$ 86.69 million) for the Deep Ocean mission that seeks to explore vast marine living and non-living resources. Department of Space (DoS) has got Rs. 13,700 crore (US\$ 1.83 billion) in 2022-23 for several key space missions like Gaganyaan, Chandrayaan-3, and Aditya L-1 (sun).

• In May 2021, the government approved the production linked incentive (PLI) scheme for manufacturing advanced chemistry cell (ACC) batteries at an estimated outlay of Rs. 18,100 crore (US\$ 2.44 billion); this move is expected to attract domestic and foreign investments worth Rs. 45,000 crore (US\$ 6.07 billion).

• Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs Ms Nirmala Sitharaman announced in the Union Budget of 2022-23 that the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) would issue Digital Rupee using blockchain and other technologies.

• In the Union Budget of 2022-23, Railway got an investment of Rs. 2.38 lakh crore (US\$ 31.88 billion) and over 400 new high-speed trains were announced. The concept of "One Station, One Product" was also introduced.

• To boost competitiveness, Budget 2022-23 has announced reforming the 16-year-old Special Economic Zone (SEZ) act.

• In June 2021, the RBI (Reserve Bank of India) announced that the investment limit for FPI (foreign portfolio investors) in the State Development Loans (SDLs) and government securities (G-secs) would persist unaffected at 2% and 6%, respectively, in FY22.

• In November 2020, the Government of India announced Rs. 2.65 lakh crore (US\$ 36 billion) stimulus package to generate job opportunities and provide liquidity support to various sectors such as tourism, aviation, construction, and housing. Also, India's cabinet approved the production-linked incentives (PLI) scheme to provide ~Rs. 2 trillion (US\$ 27 billion) over five years to create jobs and boost production in the country.



• Numerous foreign companies are setting up their facilities in India on account of various Government initiatives like Make in India and Digital India. Prime Minister of India Mr. Narendra Modi launched the Make in India initiative with an aim to boost the country's manufacturing sector and increase the purchasing power of an average Indian consumer, which would further drive demand and spur development, thus benefiting investors. The Government of India, under its Make in India initiative, is trying to boost the contribution made by the manufacturing sector with an aim to take it to 25% of the GDP from the current 17%. Besides, the government has also come up with the Digital India initiative, which focuses on three core components: the creation of digital infrastructure, delivering services digitally, and increasing digital literacy.

• On January 29, 2022, the National Asset Reconstruction Company Ltd (NARCL) will acquire bad loans worth up to Rs. 50,000 crore (US\$ 6.69 billion) about 15 accounts by March 31, 2022. India Debt Resolution Co. Ltd (IDRCL) will control the resolution process. This will clean up India's financial system and help fuel liquidity and boost the Indian economy.

• National Bank for Financing Infrastructure and Development (NaBFID) is a bank that will provide non-recourse infrastructure financing and is expected to support projects from the first quarter of FY2022-23; it is expected to raise Rs. 4 lakh crore (US\$ 53.58 billion) in the next three years.

• By November 1, 2021, India and the United Kingdom hope to begin negotiations on a free trade agreement. The proposed FTA between these two countries is likely to unlock business opportunities and generate jobs. Both sides have renewed their commitment to boost trade in a manner that benefits all.

• In August 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi announced an initiative to start a national mission to reach the US\$ 400 billion merchandise export target by FY22.

• In August 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched a digital payment solution, e-RUPI, a contactless and cashless instrument for digital payments.

• In April 2021, Dr. Ahmed Abdul Rahman AlBanna, Ambassador of the UAE to India and Founding Patron of IFIICC, stated that trilateral trade between India, the UAE and Israel is expected to reach US\$ 110 billion by 2030.

• India is expected to attract investment of around US\$ 100 billion in developing the oil and gas infrastructure during 2019-23.

• The Government of India is expected to increase public health spending to 2.5% of the GDP by 2025.

ROAD AHEAD

In the second quarter of FY 2022-23, the growth momentum of the first quarter was sustained, and high-frequency indicators (HFIs) performed well in July and August of 2022. India's comparatively strong position in the external sector reflects the country's generally positive outlook for economic growth and rising employment rates. India ranked fifth in foreign direct investment inflows among the developed and developing nations listed for the first quarter of 2022. India's economic story during the first half of the current financial year highlighted the unwavering support the government gave to its capital expenditure, which, in FY 2022–23 (until August 2022), stood 46.8% higher than the same period last year. The ratio of revenue expenditure to capital outlay decreased from 6.4 in the previous year to 4.5 in the current year,

signaling a clear change in favour of higher-quality spending. Stronger revenue generation as a result of improved tax compliance, increased profitability of the company, and increasing economic activity also contributed to rising capital spending levels. Despite the continued global slowdown, India's exports climbed at the second highest rate this quarter. With a reduction in port congestion, supply networks are being restored. The CPI-C and WPI inflation reduction from April 2022 already reflects the impact. In August 2022, CPI-C inflation was 7.0%, down from 7.8% in April 2022. Similarly, WPI inflation has decreased from 15.4% in April 2022 to 12.4% in August 2022. With a proactive set of administrative actions by the government, flexible monetary policy, and a softening of global commodity prices and supply-chain bottlenecks, inflationary pressures in India look to be on the decline overall.

(Source : https://www.ibef.org/download/economic_survey_2022-23.pdf)

INDIAN BANKING INDUSTRY

INTRODUCTION

As per the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), India's banking sector is sufficiently capitalised and well-regulated. The financial and economic conditions in the country are far superior to any other country in the world. Credit, market and liquidity risk studies suggest that Indian banks are generally resilient and have withstood the global downturn well.

The Indian banking industry has recently witnessed the rollout of innovative banking models like payments and small finance banks. In recent



years India has also focused on increasing its banking sector reach, through various schemes like the Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana and Post payment banks. Schemes like these coupled with major banking sector reforms like digital payments, neo-banking, a rise of Indian NBFCs and fintech have significantly enhanced India's financial inclusion and helped fuel the credit cycle in the country.

Indian Fintech industry is estimated to be at US\$ 150 billion by 2025. India has the 3rd largest FinTech ecosystem globally. India is one of the fastest-growing Fintech markets in the world. There are currently more than 2,000 DPIIT-recognized Financial Technology (FinTech) businesses in India, and this number is rapidly increasing.

The digital payments system in India has evolved the most among 25 countries with India's Immediate Payment Service (IMPS) being the only system at level five in the Faster Payments Innovation Index (FPII).* India's Unified Payments Interface (UPI) has also revolutionized real-time payments and strived to increase its global reach in recent years.

MARKET SIZE

The Indian banking system consists of 12 public sector banks, 22 private sector banks, 46 foreign banks, 56 regional rural banks, 1485 urban cooperative banks and 96,000 rural cooperative banks in addition to cooperative credit institutions. As of March 2023, the total number of ATMs in India reached 14,74,548. Moreover, there are 1,21,894 on-site ATMs and Cash Recycling Machines (CRMs) and 96,243 off-site ATMs and CRMs. Bank assets across sectors increased significantly since 2020. In 2022-23, total assets in the public and private banking sectors were US\$ 1,553.57 billion and US\$ 901.3 billion, respectively. In 2022-23, assets of public sector banks accounted for 59.24% of the total banking assets (including public, private sector and foreign banks). According to RBI's Scheduled Banks' Statement, deposits of all scheduled banks collectively surged by a whopping Rs.1.98 lakh crore (US\$ 24.32 billion) as on May 5, 2023, at a growth rate of 10.2%. According to the BCG Banking Sector Roundup Report of 9M FY23, credit growth is expected to hit 18.1% in 2022-23 which will be a double-digit growth in eight years. As of November 4, 2022 bank credit stood at Rs. 129.26 lakh crore (US\$ 1,585.09 billion). Non-food bank credit registered a growth of 17.6% in November 2022 as compared with 7.1% a year ago on the back of robust credit demand from the segments such as services, industry, personal, and agriculture and allied activities, according to RBI's statement on Sectoral Deployment of Bank Credit.

INVESTMENTS/DEVELOPMENTS

Key investments and developments in India's banking industry include:

• M&A activity with an India angle hit a record US\$ 171 billion in 2022.

• In April 2022, IDFC to sell Mutual Fund Business to Bandhan-Financial Holdings led Consortium for US\$ 550.23 million (Rs. 4,500 crore).

- In March 2022, aggressive Axis Bank acquired Citi's India consumer business for US\$ 1.6 billion.
- In December 2022, HDFC Bank to buy 7.75% stake in fintech start-up Mintoak.

• As per report by Refinitiv, Domestic M&A activity saw record levels of activity in 2022 at US\$ 119.2 billion, up 156.3% from 2021. Companies like HDFC Bank, HDFC, Ambuja Cements, ACC, Adani Group Biocon, Mindtree, L&T Infotech, AM/NS, Essar Ports were involved in M&A deals in 2022

• On June, 2022, the number of bank accounts—opened under the government's flagship financial inclusion drive 'Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana (PMJDY)'—reached 45.60 crore and deposits in the Jan Dhan bank accounts totaled Rs. 1.68 trillion (US\$ 21.56 billion).

• In April 2022, India's largest private bank HDFC Bank announced a transformational merger with HDFC Limited.

• On November 09, 2021, RBI announced the launch of its first global hackathon 'HARBINGER 2021 – Innovation for Transformation' with the theme 'Smarter Digital Payments'.

• In November 2021, Kotak Mahindra Bank announced that it has completed the acquisition of a 9.98% stake in KFin Technologies for Rs. 310 crore (US\$ 41.62 million).

• In October 2021, Indian Bank announced that it has acquired a 13.27% stake in the proposed National Asset Reconstruction Company Ltd. (NARCL).

• In July 2021, Google Pay for Business has enabled small merchants to access credit through tie-up with the digital lending platform for MSMEs—FlexiLoans.



• In February 2021, Axis Bank acquired a 9.9% share in the Max Bupa Health Insurance Company for Rs. 90.8 crore (US\$ 12.32 million).

• In December 2020, in response to the RBI's cautionary message, the Digital Lenders' Association issued a revised code of conduct for digital lending.

• On November 6, 2020, WhatsApp started UPI payments service in India on receiving the National Payments Corporation of India (NPCI) approval to 'Go Live' on UPI in a graded manner.

• In October 2020, HDFC Bank and Apollo Hospitals partnered to launch the 'HealthyLife Programme', a holistic healthcare solution that makes healthy living accessible and affordable on Apollo's digital platform.

- In 2019, banking and financial services witnessed 32 M&A (merger and acquisition) activities worth US\$ 1.72 billion.
- In April 2020, Axis Bank acquired additional 29% stake in Max Life Insurance.
- In March 2020, State Bank of India (SBI), India's largest lender, raised US\$ 100 million in green bonds through private placement.

• In February 2020, the Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs gave its approval for continuation of the process of recapitalization of Regional Rural Banks (RRBs) by providing minimum regulatory capital to RRBs for another year beyond 2019-20 - till 2020-21 to those RRBs which are unable to maintain minimum Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) of 9% as per the regulatory norms prescribed by RBI.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

• In October 2022, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi inaugurated 75 Digital Banking Units (DBUs) across 75 districts in India.

• In Union Budget 2023, a national financial information registry would be constructed to serve as the central repository for financial and ancillary data.

• In Union Budget 2023, the KYC process will be streamlined by using a 'risk-based' strategy rather than a 'one size fits all' approach.

• Number of Jan Dhan Yojana Bank accounts are over 486 million. Jan Dhan Deposits grew by 20% YoY. There are deposits of over ~US\$ 24.2 billion in beneficiary accounts.

• National Asset reconstruction company (NARCL) will take over, 15 non-performing loans (NPLs) worth Rs. 50,000 crore (US\$ 6.70 billion) from the banks.

• National payments corporation India (NPCI) has plans to launch UPI lite which will provide offline UPI services for digital payments. Payments of up to Rs. 200 (US\$ 2.67) can be made using this.

• In the Union budget of 2022-23 India has announced plans for a central bank digital currency (CBDC) which will be possibly known as Digital Rupee.

• National Asset reconstruction company (NARCL) will take over, 15 Non-performing loans (NPLs) worth Rs. 50,000 crore (US\$ 6.70 billion) from the banks.

• In November 2021, RBI launched the 'RBI Retail Direct Scheme' for retail investors to increase retail participation in government securities.

• The RBI introduced new auto debit rules with a mandatory additional factor of authentication (AFA), effective from October 01, 2021, to improve the safety and security of card transactions, as part of its risk mitigation measures.

• In September 2021, Central Banks of India and Singapore announced to link their digital payment systems by July 2022 to initiate instant and low-cost fund transfers.

• In August 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched e-RUPI, a person and purpose-specific digital payment solution. e-RUPI is a QR code or SMS string-based e-voucher that is sent to the beneficiary's cell phone. Users of this one-time payment mechanism will be able to redeem the voucher at the service provider without the usage of a card, digital payments app, or internet banking access.

• As per Union Budget 2021-22, the government will disinvest IDBI Bank and privatise two public sector banks.



- Government smoothly carried out consolidation, reducing the number of Public Sector Banks by eight.
- In May 2022, Unified Payments Interface (UPI) recorded 5.95 billion transactions worth Rs. 10.41 trillion (US\$ 133.46 billion).
- According to the RBI, India's foreign exchange reserves reached US\$ 630.19 billion as of February 18, 2022.

• The number of transactions through immediate payment service (IMPS) reached 430.67 million and amounted to Rs. 3.70 trillion (US\$ 49.75 billion) in October 2021.

• The RBI has launched a pilot to digitalize KCC lending in a bid for efficiency, higher cost savings, and reduction of TAT. This is expected to transform the flow of credit in the rural economy.

• The RBI has launched a pilot to digitalize KCC lending in a bid for efficiency, higher cost savings, and reduction of TAT. This is expected to transform the flow of credit in the rural economy

• As per the Union Budget 2023-24, the RBI has launched a pilot to digitalize Kisan Credit Card (KCC) lending in a bid for efficiency, higher cost savings, and reduction of TAT. This is expected to transform the flow of credit in the rural economy.

• As per the Union Budget 2023-24, digital banking, digital payments and fintech innovations have grown at a rapid pace in the country. Taking forward this agenda, and to mark 75 years of our independence, it is proposed to set up 75 Digital Banking Units in 75 districts of the country by Scheduled Commercial Banks.

• Additionally, the government proposed to introduce a digital rupee or a Central Bank Digital Currency (CBDC) which would be issued by the RBI using block chain and other technologies.

• The government also proposed to bring all the 150,000 post offices under the digital banking core business to enable financial inclusion.

• As per the economic survey 2022-23, the permission by RBI to lending institutions to grant a total moratorium of 6 (3+3) months in case of payment failure due between 1st March 2020 to 31st August 2020, infusion of US\$ 9.1 billion (Rs. 75,000 crore) for Non-Banking Financial Corporations (NBFCs), Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) and Micro Finance Institutions (MFIs), among others, have also contributed to the revival of the real estate sector. The permission by RBI to lending institutions to grant a total moratorium of 6 (3+3) months in case of payment failure due between 1st March 2020 to 31st August 2020, infusion of US\$ 9.1 billion (Rs. 75,000 crore) for Non-Banking Financial Corporations (NBFCs), Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) and Micro Finance Institutions (MFIs), among others, have also contributed to the revival of the real estate sector.

• According to the Economic Survey 2022-23, Over the last few years, the number of neo banking platforms and global investments in the neo-banking segment has also risen consistently. Neo-banks operate under mainstream finance's umbrella but empower specific services long associated with traditional institutions such as banks, payment providers, etc.

ROAD AHEAD

• Enhanced spending on infrastructure, speedy implementation of projects and continuation of reforms are expected to provide further impetus to growth in the banking sector. All these factors suggest that India's banking sector is poised for robust growth as rapidly growing businesses will turn to banks for their credit needs. The advancement in technology has brought mobile and internet banking services to the fore. The banking sector is laying greater emphasis on providing improved services to their clients and upgrading their technology infrastructure to enhance customer's overall experience as well as give banks a competitive edge.

• In recent years India has experienced a rise in fintech and microfinancing. India's digital lending stood at US\$ 75 billion in FY18 and is estimated to reach US\$ 1 trillion by FY23 driven by the five-fold increase in digital disbursements. The Indian fintech market has attracted US\$ 29 billion in funding over 2,084 deals so far (January 2017-July 2022), accounting for 14% of global funding and ranking second in terms of deal volume. By 2025, India's fintech market is expected to reach Rs. 6.2 trillion (US\$ 83.48 billion).

INDIAN FINANCIAL SERVICES INDUSTRY

INTRODUCTION

India has a diversified financial sector undergoing rapid expansion, both in terms of strong growth of existing financial services firms and new entities entering the market. The sector comprises commercial banks, insurance companies, non-banking financial companies, cooperatives, pension funds, mutual funds and other smaller financial entities. The banking regulator has allowed new entities such as payment



banks to be created recently, thereby adding to the type of entities operating in the sector. However, the financial sector in India is predominantly a banking sector with commercial banks accounting for more than 64% of the total assets held by the financial system.

The Government of India has introduced several reforms to liberalise, regulate and enhance this industry. The Government and Reserve Bank of India (RBI) have taken various measures to facilitate easy access to finance for Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs). These measures include launching Credit Guarantee Fund Scheme for MSMEs, issuing guidelines to banks regarding collateral requirements and setting up a Micro Units Development and Refinance Agency (MUDRA). With a combined push by Government and private sector, India is undoubtedly one of the world's most vibrant capital markets.

MARKET SIZE

As of January 2023, AUM managed by the mutual funds industry stood at Rs. 39.62 trillion (US\$ 478.08 billion). Inflow in India's mutual fund schemes via systematic investment plan (SIP) stood at Rs. 1.5 lakh crore (US\$ 18.09 billion). Equity mutual funds registered a net inflow of Rs. 22.16 trillion (US\$ 294.15 billion) by end of December 2021. The net inflows were US\$ 888 million (Rs 7,303.39 crore) in December as compared to a 21-month low of US\$ 274.8 million (Rs 2,258.35 crore) in November 2022.

Another crucial component of India's financial industry is the insurance industry. The insurance industry has been expanding at a fast pace. The total first-year premium of life insurance companies reached US\$ 32.04 billion in FY23. In FY23 (until December 2022) non-life insurance sector premiums reached at Rs. 1.87 lakh crore (US\$ 22.5 billion). Furthermore, India's leading bourse, Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), will set up a joint venture with Ebix Inc to build a robust insurance distribution network in the country through a new distribution exchange platform. In FY23, US\$ 7.17 billion was raised across 40 initial public offerings (IPOs). The number of companies listed on the NSE increased from 135 in 1995 to 2,113 by FY23 (till December 2022).

According to the statistics by the Futures Industry Association (FIA), a derivatives trade association, the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) emerged as the world's largest derivatives exchange in 2020 in terms number of contracts traded. NSE was ranked 4th worldwide in cash equities by number of trades as per the statistics maintained by the World Federation of Exchanges (WFE) for CY2020.

INVESTMENTS/DEVELOPMENTS

The Financial Services Industry has seen major achievements in the recent past:

• In November 2022, Unified Payments Interface (UPI) recorded 7.30 billion transactions worth Rs. 12.11 trillion (US\$ 148.63 billion).

• The number of transactions through immediate payment service (IMPS) reached 482.46 million (by volume) and amounted to Rs. 4.66 trillion (US\$ 57.05 billion) in October 2022.

- India's's PE/VC investments were at US\$ 77 billion in 2021, which was 62% higher than 2020.
- In 2021, Prosus acquired Indian payments gaint BillDesk for US\$ 4.7 billion.

• In September 2021, eight Indian banks announced that they are rolling out—or about to roll out—a system called 'Account Aggregator' to enable consumers to consolidate all their financial data in one place.

• In September 2021, Piramal Group concluded a payment of Rs. 34,250 crores (US\$ 4.7 billion) to acquire Dewan Housing Finance Corporation (DHFL).

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

Some of the major Government Initiatives are

In September 2021, the international branch of the National Payments Corporation of India (NPCI), NPCI International Payments (NIPL), has teamed with Liquid Group, a cross-border digital payments provider, to enable QR-based UPI payments to be accepted in 10 countries in north and southeast Asia.

• On September 30, 2021, the Reserve Bank of India communicated that the applicable average base rate to be charged by non-banking financial company - micro finance institutions (NBFC-MFIs) to their borrowers for the quarter beginning October 1, 2021, will be 7.95%.

• On September 30, 2021, the IFSC Authority constituted an expert committee to recommend approach towards development of sustainable finance hub and provide road map for the same.

• In August 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched e-RUPI, a person and purpose-specific digital payment



solution. e-RUPI is a QR code or SMS string-based e-voucher that is sent to the beneficiary's cell phone. Users of this one-time payment mechanism will be able to redeem the voucher at the service provider without the usage of a card, digital payments app, or internet banking access.

ROAD AHEAD

India's financial services industry has experienced huge growth in the past few years. This momentum is expected to continue. India's private wealth management Industry shows huge potential. India is expected to have 6.11 lakh HNWIs by 2025. This will indeed lead India to be the fourth largest private wealth market globally by 2028. India's insurance market is also expected to reach US\$ 250 billion by 2025. This will further offer India an opportunity of US\$ 78 billion of additional life insurance premiums from 2020-30.

India is today one of the most vibrant global economies on the back of robust banking and insurance sectors. The relaxation of foreign investment rules has received a positive response from the insurance sector, with many companies announcing plans to increase their stakes in joint ventures with Indian companies. Over the coming quarters, there could be a series of joint venture deals between global insurance giants and local players.

The Association of Mutual Funds in India (AMFI) is targeting a nearly five-fold growth in AUM to Rs. 95 lakh crore (US\$ 1.47 trillion) and more than three times growth in investor accounts to 130 million by 2025.

India's Fintech space is expected to further fuel this growth in various segments. India's mobile wallet industry is estimated to grow at a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 150% to reach US\$ 4.4 billion by 2022, while mobile wallet transactions will touch Rs. 32 trillion (USD\$ 492.6 billion) during the same period. According to Goldman Sachs, investors have been pouring money into India's stock market, which is likely to reach >US\$ 5 trillion, surpassing the UK, and become the fifth-largest stock market worldwide by 2024. *Source : <u>https://www.ibef.org/industry/financial-services-india</u>)*



OUR BUSINESS

We are a non-banking finance company ("NBFC") incorporated in the year 1982 registered with the Reserve Bank of India bearing registration number B-13.0022 to carry on NBFC business activities under Section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. We are a Non-systemically important non-deposit taking company with over two decades of lending experience in rural and semi-urban geographies in India. We are primarily engaged in micro centric lending solutions to look after the needs and aspirations of customers. Our portfolio includes Vehicle Finance and Business Finance Products to small business owners. We have a long history of serving all types of markets with high growth potential and have maintained a track record of financial performance and operational efficiency through consistently high rates of customer acquisition and retention and low cost expansion into underpenetrated areas. Therefore, we strategically focus on clients in the rural and semiurban sector.

Our Key Borrowers

- 1. Individuals
- 2. Small business owners which includes all corporate entity

Business Finance to small business owners including SME and MSME Our lending business to small business owners including SME and MSME lending business, primarily involves us extending secured loans and unsecured loans for business purposes to small and medium size enterprises, including Companies, LLP, and businessmen, traders, manufacturers and self-employed professionals. The property securing these loans are typically completed and largely self-occupied residential and commercial property. We believe that our in-depth product knowledge, relevant financial services domain knowledge, ability to structure loans to suit our customers' financial needs and our short turn-around-time for processing loan applications have positioned us as a preferred credit provider and allows us to benefit from the growing SME and MSME segment in India.

We carry out our operations in the format of "hub & spoke" business model. We conduct our retail operations through our registered office located at Mumbai. In small business finance and vehicle finance businesses, our branches digital presence/ act as the primary point of sale and assist with the origination of loans, various collection processes and enhancing customer service, while our central support office provides support functions, such as loan processing and credit monitoring. We maintain clear segregation between our sourcing and credit approval teams so as to ensure independence and effectively manage operational risks. Our enterprise-wide loan management system integrates all activities and functions within our organization under a single technology and data platform, bringing efficiencies to our back-end processes and enabling us to focus our resources on delivering quality services to our customers. We maintain long-term relationships with our lenders and our lenders included, amongst others. Our distribution network included personnel in our in-house sales team. We have and expect to continue to benefit from professional expertise of our Promoters.

Our Company is promoted by Mahamaya Financial Consultants Private Limited, Jayanti Prime Software Advisory Private limited, Generosity Share Trading Private Limited, Dhanvarsha Advisory Services Private Limited.

As a Non-Banking Financial Company, we are involved in providing financial services with focus in corporate and non-corporate sectorand retail customers.

OUR BUSINESS OPERATIONS

Our Company started its commercial operations in 1982. Since then, the company started expanding and changed its line of business several times as elaborated in above paras. The below table captures the financial information of the Company.

			(₹ in Lakh)
Particulars	For the period ended on September 30, 2023	For the year ended March 2023	For the year ended March 2022
Equity Share Capital	10,055.89	10,055.89	10,055.89
Net Worth	23,702.50	22,981.33	22,923.84
Total Income	1,095.28	4,706.13	5,539.23
Profit / (loss) after tax	721.17	60.59	31.72
Basic EPS	0.07	0.00	0.00
Diluted EPS	0.07	0.00	0.00
Net asset value per Equity Share	2.36	2.29	2.28
Total borrowings	30.00	30.00	30.00

OUR FINANCIAL PRODUCTS



The various financial products that we offer are as follows:

1. Short term financing

Our Company provides short term loans for a tenure ranging between 1 month to 12 months.

2. Long term Loans

Our Company provides loans to corporate and non-corporate for a tenure ranging between 12 to 84 months.

3. Investment in shares and securities

Our Company invests in shares and securities of various companies from time to time.

COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

Experienced Promote and Management Team

Company is managed by a team of competent personnel having knowledge of core aspects of our Business. Our promoters with his knowledge and experience as well as assisted by our Key Managerial Persons who have helped us to have long term relations with our customers. Further, they have also facilitated us to entrench with new customers. We believe that our experience, knowledge and human resources will enable us to drive the business in a successful and profitable manner. Our Company is managed by a team of industry specialists in markets. The team comprises of personnel having technical, operational, and business development experience in the industry. We believe our Promoters and Management's overall experience and vision will enable us to manage and grow our business in the existing markets and to enter new geographies with our competitive advantage.

Long term relationship with the clients

Long term client relationships provide the foundation for our business. Our dedicated focus on client coverage and our ability to provide timely solutions and faster resolution of customer complaints, if any, has helped us to establish long-term relationships with High net worth clients thereby leading to long term sustainable and scalable business operations. This key strength has helped us to receive repeat business from our clients and provide us with an advantage in attracting better brokerage fees and commissions.

Timely Service

We believe in providing quality and timely service to our clients. We have a set of standards for ourselves when it comes to timeliness and quality of service we provide to our clients. We believe that our timely service has earned us goodwill from our customers which has helped us to add new customers to our existing customer base. Our company focuses on maintaining the level of consistently in our service, thereby building customer loyalty.

Focus on a disciplined business philosophy with internal controls and risk management

Our Company is focused on providing short term and medium term loans. Our Company does not give industry specific loans but gives weightage to the borrowers' repayment capacity. Our Company believes that it has necessary internalcontrols and risk management systems to assess and monitor risks.

OUR BUSSINESS STRATEGIES

Leveraging our market skills and relationship.

The business of our Company is customer oriented and always strives to maintain good relationship with the marketers. Leveraging our market skills and relationships is a continuous process in our organization and the skills that we impart in our people give importance to customers. We aim to do this by leveraging our competency in business as well as marketing skills and our industry relationships. Our Company provides effective follow-ups with customers which ensure that the customers are satisfied with the service and do not have any complaint. We have steadily grown our business in recent years. We intend to continue to leverage our experience and relationships with our customers to expand and diversify.

Augment our fund based capacities for our activities

We are RBI registered NBFC with a focus on lending. Our business is characterised by high capital requirements to be able to provide loans to our customers. We generally source our capital for our business, by availing loans and credit facilities from banks in India. We intend to raise funds from the Fresh Issue Proceeds of this Offer and augment our fund based capital requirements. Funding our augmentation of capital



requirement from the proceeds of the Fresh Issue will also enable us to save a considerable interest cost due to lower borrowings.

Focus on customer services by efficient use of technology

We believe that customer service initiatives coupled with the effective use of technology can help us enhance our recognition and business operations. We intend to continue investing in technology to improve our operational efficiencies, functionality, reduce errors and improve our productivity. We also believe in deploying strong technologysystems that will enable us to respond to market opportunities and challenges swiftly, improve the quality of services our customers, and improve our risk management capabilities. We intend to remain committed to technological innovation to ensure our ability to respond to our increasingly sophisticated and competitive market and to mitigate the risks we face as a NBFC.

Focus on Risk Management

The global financial crisis has highlighted the need to manage risks regarding financial instruments such as derivatives, currency futures etc. Our Company is dealing in financial services and hence risk management is of utmost importance. We intend to focus on deploying more resources in terms of technology, people and processes to manage our risk management function. We intend to monitor and control our risk exposure through financial, credit, operational, compliance and legal reporting systems based on mandatory regulatory requirements and as per our business needs. We plan to further strengthen our risk management procedures for evaluating and managing the market, credit and other risks to which we are exposed, as well as protecting our reputation in the market.

Attract and retain talented employee

Employees are essential for the success of every organization. As part of our business strategy, we are focused on attracting and retaining high quality talent as we continue to expand our service offering. We have recruited and retained talented employees from a variety of backgrounds. We expect to continue to attract talented employees through our retention initiatives. We intend to invest adequate time and resources for training our employees, which we believe would foster mutual trust, improve the quality of our services and place further emphasis on continued

Customer Satisfaction

The business of our Company is customer oriented and always strives to maintain good relationship with the corporate customers. Our Company's marketing team approaches existing corporate customers for their feedback and based on their feedback, any changes in the products, if required, are carried out. Our Company provides quality products and effective follow-ups with customers who ensure that the customers are satisfied with the product and do not have any complaint.

EXPORT AND EXPORT OBLIGATIONS

our Company does not have any export and export obligation.

CAPACITY AND CAPACITY UTILIZATION

Capacity and capacity utilization is not applicable to our Company, since, our business is not in the nature of a manufacturing concern with specified installed capacity.

HUMAN RESOURCE

Human resource is the key element for our Company's growth strategy and handling the day-to-day activities within the organization. We focus on attracting and retaining the best possible talent. Our team is a blend of experienced, professional with expertise in capital markets. Our Company does not have any Employee Unions.

As on September 30, 2023, we employed 15 personnel (full time employees) who look after the day-to-day business operations, administrative, secretarial, legal and accounting functions in accordance with their respective designated duties.

The Managing Director of the Company himself does the marketing work, he believes in bringing the customers to the company by himself, this is because he gives importance to the customer's preference and make sure that the customer associated with the company are satisfied by the services of the company. And all the employees who are employed in their respective departments also work with integrity to make sure the operation the company are fulfilled and the targets the company has set are achieved.

COMPETITION

In particular, we compete with other NBFC and Banks, both in India and abroad; and other. In recent years, large international banks have also entered these markets. Our client mix consists of both small and medium size businesses, which are based upon a local or regional



relationship with our presence in each market, and large national/multinational client relationships.

We compete on the basis of a number of factors, including execution, depth of product and service offerings, innovation, reputation and price. In addition, it is possible that certain large financial services groups may decide to begin offering services that we currently provide and new players might enter the market, thereby further intensifying the competition. Our growth will largely depend on our ability to respond in an effective and timely manner to these competitive pressures.

TRADEMARK

Our company does not have any trademark.

INSURANCE DETAILS:

Our company has not taken any Insurance policy.



KEY INDUSTRY REGULATIONS AND POLICIES

The following description is a summary of the relevant regulations and policies as prescribed by the Government of India and other regulatory bodies that are applicable to our business. The information detailed in this chapter has been obtained from various legislations, including rules and regulations promulgated by the regulatory bodies that are available in the public domain. The regulations and policies set out below may not be exhaustive and are only intended to provide general information to the investors and are neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional legal advice. The Company may be required to obtain licenses and approvals depending upon the prevailing laws and regulations as applicable. For details of such approvals, please see the section titled **'Government and Other Approvals'** beginning on page no 73 of this Letter of Offer.

The business of our Company requires, at various stages, the sanction of the concerned authorities under the relevant Central, State legislation and local bye-laws. The following is an overview of the important laws, regulations and policies which are relevant to our business in India. Certain information detailed in this chapter has been obtained from publications available in the public domain. The description of law, regulations and policies set out below are not exhaustive, and are only intended to provide general information to bidders and is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional legal advice.

In addition to what has been specified in this Letter of Offer, taxation statutes such as the Income Tax Act, 1961 and Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, various labor laws and other miscellaneous laws apply to us as they do to any other Indian company. The statements below are based on the current provisions of Indian law, and the judicial and administrative interpretations thereof, which are subject to change or modification by legislative, regulatory, administrative or judicial decisions. For details of government approvals obtained by us, please refer to the section titled 'Government and Other Approvals' beginning on page 73 of this Letter of Offer.

Depending upon the nature of the activities undertaken by our Company the following are the various regulations are applicable to our company.

APPROVALS

For the purpose of the business undertaken by our Company, our Company is required to comply with various laws, statutes, rules, regulations, executive orders, etc. that may be applicable from time to time. The details of such approvals have more particularly been described for your reference in the section titled *'Government and Other Approvals'* beginning on page 73 of this Letter of Offer.

KEY REGULATION APPLICABLE TO OUR COMPANY

The Reserve Bank of India Act, as amended (the "RBI Act") and applicable Master Directions issued by RBI

The RBI Act defines an NBFC as:

(a) a financial institution which is a company;

(b) a non-banking institution which is a company and which is in the principal business of receiving deposits, under any scheme or arrangement or in anyother manner, or lending in any manner; or

(c) such other non-banking institution or class of institutions, as the RBI may, with the previous approval of the Central Government and by notification in the Official Gazette, specify.

A company categorized as an NBFC is required to have a net owned fund of 2,00,00,000 (Two Crores) or such other amount, as the RBI may, by notification in the official gazette specify from time to time. Further, NBFCs are required to obtain a certificate of registration from the RBI prior to commencement of the business as an NBFC. Every NBFC is required to create a reserve fund and transfer thereto a sum not less than 20% of its net profit every year, as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared. No appropriation can be made from such fund by the NBFC except for the purposes specified by the RBI from time to time and every such appropriation shall be reported to the RBI within 21 days from the date of such withdrawal.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR LAWS

The Code on Wages, 2020

The Code on Wages, 2020 (The "Code") seeks to amend, consolidate and regulate the laws relating to wage and bonuspayments in all employments and matters connected therewith or incidental thereto and aims at providing equal remuneration to employees performing work of a similar nature in every industry, trade, business or manufacture. TheCode received the assent of the Lok Sabha on July 30, 2020, and of the Rajya Sabha on August 2, 2020. Subsequently, the Code received presidential assent on 8th August 2020, and was notified by the Ministry of Law and Justice, Government of India on the same date. The Code subsumes and repeals the provisions of four statutes -- the Payment of Wages Act, 1936 which ensures that payment of wages to employees are disbursed on time and no undue deductionsare made, the Minimum Wages Act, 1948 which enables fixing of minimum rates of wages in certain employments, the Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 which provides for payment of bonus to persons employed in certain establishmentson the basis of profit or productivity, and the Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 which aims to mandate equalremuneration to prevent gender discrimination in employment matters. Further, the Ministry of Labour



and Employment has also notified the Draft Code on Wages (Central) Rules, 2021 under the Code. The Code on Wages shall come into force on such date as may be prescribed by the Central Government by way of a notification of the Official Gazette. The Code in its entirety is yet to be notified; however, certain provisions pertaining to the composition and duties of the Central Advisory Board as encompassed in Section 42, Section 130 67 and Section 69 of the Code have been brought into force by the Ministry of Labour and Employment vide Notification dated December 18, 2021.

Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 (hereinafter referred to as the 'EPF Act') and the Employees Provident Fund Scheme, 1952.

The EPF Act is applicable to an establishment employing more than 20 employees and as notified by the governmentfrom time to time. All the establishments under the EPF Act are required to be registered with the appropriate Provident Fund Commissioner. Also, in accordance with the provisions of the EPF Act, the employees are required to contribute to the employees' provident fund the prescribed percentage of the basic wages, dearness allowances and remaining allowance (if any) payable to the employees. The employee shall also be required to make the equal contribution to the fund. The Central Government under Section 5 of the EPF Act Frames Employees Provident Scheme, 1952.

Note: Currently Company does not have more than 20 employees.

Employees Deposit Linked Insurance Scheme, 1976

The scheme shall be administered by the Central Board constituted under Section 5A of the EPF Act. The provisions relating to recovery of damages for default in payment of contribution with the percentage of damages are laid down under Section 8A of the act. The employer falling under the scheme shall send to the Commissioner within fifteen days of the close of each month a return in the prescribed form. The register and other records shall be produced by every employer to Commissioner or other officer so authorized shall be produced for inspection from time to time. The amount received as the employer's contribution and also Central Government's contribution to the insurance fundshall be credited to an account called as "Deposit-Linked Insurance Fund Account."

The Employees' Pension Scheme, 1995

Family pension in relation to this act means the regular monthly amount payable to a person belonging to the family of the member of the Family Pension Fund in the event of his death during the period of reckonable service. The scheme shall apply to all the employees who become a member of the EPF or PF of the factories provided that the age of the employee should not be more than 59 years in order to be eligible for membership under this act. Every employee who is member of EPF or PF has an option of the joining scheme. The employer shall prepare a Family Pension Fundcontribution card in respect of the entire employee who is member of the fund.

Employee's Compensation Act, 1923

It is common knowledge that many of the tasks for which laborers or workmen are employed involve great physical hardships, risks of loss or injury to the employees which may even result in death. This Act assures that the employeeor his dependents are to be compensated for injury or death caused to him during his employment. The Employee's Compensation (Amendment) Act, 2017 (hereinafter referred to as "the amendment") received the President's assent in12th April 2017.

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

Under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, an employee in a factory or any other establishment in which 20 or more than 20 persons are employed on any day during an accounting year who is in continuous service for a period of fiveyears notwithstanding that his service has been interrupted during that period by sickness, accident, leave, absence without leave, lay-off, strike, lock-out or cessation of work not due to the fault of the employee is eligible for gratuityupon his retirement, superannuation, death or disablement.

Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 provides for leave and right to payment of maternity benefits to women employees in case of confinement or miscarriage etc. The act is applicable to every establishment which is a factory, mine or plantation including any such establishment belonging to government and to every establishment of equestrian, acrobatic and other performances, to every shop or establishment within the meaning of any law for the time being inforce in relation to shops and establishments in a state, in which ten or more persons are employed, or were employed, on any day of the preceding twelve months; provided that the state government may, with the approval of the Central Government, after giving at least two months' notice shall apply any of the provisions of this act to establishments orclass of establishments, industrial, commercial, agricultural or otherwise.

Child Labour Prohibition and Regulation Act, 1986

The Child Labour Prohibition and Regulation Act 1986 prohibits employment of children below 14 years of age in certain occupations and processes and provides for regulation of employment of children in all other occupations and processes. Employment of Child Labour in our



industry is prohibited as per Part B (Processes) of the Schedule.

The Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

In order to curb the rise in sexual harassment of women at workplace, this act was enacted for prevention and redressalof complaints and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. The terms sexual harassment and workplace are both defined in the act. Every employer should also constitute an "Internal Complaints Committee" and every officer and member of the Company shall hold office for a period of not exceeding three years from the date of nomination. Any aggrieved woman can make a complaint in writing to the Internal Committee in relation to sexual harassment of female at workplace. Every employer has a duty to provide a safe working environment at workplace which shall include safety from the persons coming into contact at the workplace, organizing awareness programs andworkshops, display of rules relating to the sexual harassment at any conspicuous part of the workplace, provide necessary facilities to the internal or local committee for dealing with the complaint, such other procedural requirements to assess the complaints.

TAX RELATED LEGISLATIONS

Goods and Service Tax (hereinafter referred to as the 'GST')

Goods and Services Tax (GST) is levied on supply of goods or services or both jointly by the Central and State Governments. It was introduced as The Constitution (One Hundred and First Amendment) Act, 2017 and is governedby the GST Council. GST provides for imposition of tax on the supply of goods or services and will be levied by Centre on intra-state supply of goods or services and by the States including Union territories with legislature/UnionTerritories without legislature respectively. A destination-based consumption tax GST would be a dual GST with thecenter and states simultaneously levying tax with a common base. The GST law is enforced by various acts viz. CentralGoods and Services Act, 2017 (CGST), State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 (SGST), Union Territory Goods andServices Tax Act, 2017 (UTGST), Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 (IGST) and Goods and Services Tax(Compensation to States) Act, 2017 and various rules made thereunder. It replaces following indirect taxes and dutiesat the central and state levels:

Central Excise Duty, Duties of Excise (Medicinal and Toilet Preparations), additional duties on excise– goods of special importance, textiles and textile products, commonly known as CVD – special additional duty of customs, service tax, central and state surcharges and cesses relating to supply of goods and services, state VAT, Central SalesTax, Luxury Tax, Entry Tax (all forms), Entertainment and Amusement Tax (except when levied by local bodies), taxes on advertisements, purchase tax, taxes on lotteries, betting and gambling.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LEGISLATIONS

Indian Patents Act, 1970

A patent is an intellectual property right relating to inventions and is the grant of exclusive right, for limited period, provided by the Government to the patentee, in exchange of full disclosure of his invention, for excluding others frommaking, using, selling, importing the patented product or process producing that product. The term invention means anew product or process involving an inventive step capable of industrial application.

The Copyright Act, 1957

Copyright is a right given by the law to creators of literary, dramatic, musical, and artistic works and producers of cinematograph films and sound recordings. In fact, it is a bundle of rights including, interalia, and rights of reproduction, communication to the public, adaptation and translation of the work. There could be slight variations in the composition of the rights depending on the work.

Trademarks Act, 1999 (hereinafter referred to as the 'TM Act')

The Trade Marks Act, 1999 provides for the application and registration of trademarks in India for granting exclusiverights to marks such as a brand, label and heading and obtaining relief in case of infringement for commercial purposes as a trade description. The TM Act prohibits any registration of deceptively similar trademarks or chemical compounds among others. It also provides for penalties for infringement, falsifying and falsely applying for trademarks.



ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

The Environment Protection Act, 1986

The purpose of the Environment Protection Act ("Environment Protection Act") is to act as an "umbrella" legislationdesigned to provide a frame work for Central government co-ordination of the activities of various central and state authorities established under previous laws. The Environment Protection Act authorizes the central government to protect and improve environmental quality, control and reduce pollution from all sources, and prohibit or restrict the setting and /or operation of any industrial facility on environmental grounds. The Act prohibits persons carrying on business, operation or process from discharging or emitting any environmental pollutant in excess of such standards as may be prescribed. Where the discharge of any environmental pollutant in excess of the prescribed standards occursor is apprehended to occur due to any accident or other unforeseen act, the person responsible for such discharge andthe person in charge of the place at which such discharge occurs or is apprehended to occur is bound to (a) prevent ormitigate the environmental pollution caused as a result of such discharge and should intimate the fact of such occurrence or apprehension of such occurrence; and (b) be bound, if called upon, to render all assistance, to such authorities or agencies as may be prescribed.

The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991 ("Public Liability Act")

The Public Liability Act imposes liability on the owner or controller of hazardous substances for any damage arising out of an accident involving such hazardous substances. The occupier is liable for damages caused to the environmentresulting from the improper handling and disposal of hazardous waste.

FOREIGN INVESTMENT LAWS

Foreign investment in India is governed by the provisions of FEMA along with the rules, regulations and notificationsmade by RBI thereunder, and the Consolidated FDI Policy (hereinafter referred to as the 'Consolidated FDI Policy') issued by the Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government of India (hereinafter referred to as the 'DIPP') from time to time. Under the current FDI Policy (effective August 28, 2017) 100% foreign direct investment is permitted in IT/ITES sector, under the automatic route.

In terms of applicable regulations notified under FEMA and the SEBI (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2014((hereinafter referred to as the **'SEBI (FPI) Regulations'**), investments by Foreign Portfolio Investors (**"FPIs"**) in the capital of an Indian Company under the SEBI (FPI) Regulations are subject to certain limits individual holding limits of 10% of the capital of the Company per FPI and the aggregate holding limit of 24% of the capital of the company. However, the aggregate limit for FPI investment in a Company can be increased up to the applicable sectoral cap by passing a resolution of the company's board of directors, followed by a special resolution by the shareholders and prior intimation to the RBI.

OTHER LAWS

Establishments laws in various states

Under the provisions of local Shops and Establishments laws applicable in various states, establishments are required be registered. Such laws regulate the working and employment conditions of the workers employed in shops and establishments including commercial establishments and provide for fixation of working hours, rest intervals, overtime, holidays, leave, termination of service, maintenance of shops and establishments and other rights and obligations of the employers and employees.

Municipality Laws

Pursuant to the Seventy Fourth Amendment Act, 1992, the respective State Legislatures in India have the power to endow the Municipalities (as defined under Article 243Q of the Constitution of India) with the power to implement schemes and perform functions in relation to matters listed in the Twelfth Schedule to the Constitution of India whichincludes regulation of public health. The respective States of India have enacted laws empowering the Municipalities to regulate public health including the issuance of a health trade license for operating eating outlets and implementation of regulations relating to such license along with prescribing penalties for non-compliance.

Police Laws

The State Legislatures in India are empowered to enact laws in relation to public order and police under Entries 1 and 2 of the State List (List II) to the Constitution of India. Pursuant to the same the respective States of India have enacted laws regulating the same including registering eating houses and obtaining a 'no objection certificate' for operating such eating houses with the police station located in that particular area, along with prescribing penalties for non- compliance.



The Indian Contract Act, 1872

The Contract Act is the legislation which lays down the general principles relating to formation, performance and enforceability of contracts. The rights and duties of parties and the specific terms of agreement are decided by the contracting parties themselves, under the general principles set forth in the Contract Act. The Contract Act also provides for circumstances under which contracts will be considered as 'void' or 'voidable'. The Contract Act containsprovisions governing certain special contracts, including indemnity, guarantee, bailment, pledge, and agency.

Transfer of Property Act, 1882

The transfer of property is governed by the Transfer of Property Act, 1882 ("T.P. Act"). The T.P. Act establishes the general principles relating to the transfer of property including among other things identifying the categories of property that are capable of being transferred, the persons competent to transfer property, the validity of restrictions and conditions imposed on the transfer and the creation of contingent and vested interest in the property.

Registration Act, 1908

The Registration Act, 1908 (hereinafter referred to as '**Registration Act**') has been enacted with the object of providing public notice of execution of documents affecting a transfer of interest in property. Section 17 of the Registration Act identifies documents for which registration is compulsory and includes among other things, any non-testamentary instrument which purports or operates to create, declare, assign, limit or extinguish, whether in present or in future, any right, title or interest, whether vested or contingent, in immovable property of the value of one hundredrupees or more, and a lease of immovable property for any term exceeding one year or reserving a yearly rent. Section 18 of the Registration Act provides for non-compulsory registration of documents as enumerated in the provision.

GENERAL LAWS

Apart from the above list of laws – which is inclusive in nature and not exhaustive - general laws like the Indian Contract Act 1872, Specific Relief Act 1963, Negotiable Instrument Act 1881 and Consumer Protection Act 1986 arealso applicable to the company.



HISTORY AND CORPORATE STRUCTURE

BRIEF CORPORATE HISTORY OF OUR COMPANY

Our Company was incorporated on May 22, 1982, as a public limited company, in the name and style 'Indian Leasers Limited' under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, with the Registrar of Companies, Bombay, Maharashtra, India. Subsequently, the name of our Company was changed to from 'Indian Leasers Limited' to 'Indian Infotech and Software Ltd' on July 20, 1998 and a Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon the change of name was issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra. Pursuant to the order of the Honorable Bombay High Court dated May 4, 2012 approving the Scheme of Arrangement, the Nikkietal Co. Limited and Lambodar Nirmit Limited was merged with Indian Infotech and Software Limited. Pursuant to completion of said merger, the Company has issued and allotted the equity shares to the shareholders of both the transferor companies, the securities of the company are listed on the BSE Ltd. (Stock Exchange) since April 19th, 1985.Our Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) having Certificate of Registration under Section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 vide COR no. B-13.00221 granted by Reserve Bank of India to carry on the business of non-banking financial institution without accepting public deposits.

We are a non-banking finance company ("NBFC") incorporated in the year 1982 registered with the Reserve Bank of India bearing registration number B-13.0022 to carry on NBFC business activities under Section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. We are a Non-systemically important non-deposit taking company with over two decades of lending experience in rural and semi-urban geographies in India. We are primarily engaged in micro centric lending solutions to look after the needs and aspirations of customers. Our portfolio includes Vehicle Finance and Business Finance Products to small business owners. We have a long history of serving all types of markets with high growth potential and have maintained a track record of financial performance and operational efficiency through consistently high rates of customer acquisition and retention and low cost expansion into underpenetrated areas. Therefore, we strategically focus on clients in the rural and semiurban sector.

Our Company is promoted by Mahamaya Financial Consultants Private Limited, Jayanti Prime Software Advisory Private limited, Generosity Share Trading Private Limited, Dhanvarsha Advisory Services Private Limited.

CHANGES IN OUR REGISTERED OFFICE

The details of changes in the registered office of our Company in last three financial years are specified as under:

Address		Effective	Reason for	
From	То	from	change	
	Office No. 110, 1st Floor, Golden Chamber Pre Co-Op Soc. Ltd. New Link Road Andheri West Mumbai -400053		Administrative Convenience	

CHANGES IN MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

Following specified are the changes occurred in the Memorandum of Association of our Company:

Sr. No	Particulars		Type of meeting
1.	The name of the Company has been changed from Indian Leasers Limited to Indian Infotech and Software Limited by passing special resolution at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting.	2 nd July, 1998.	Extra- Ordinary General Meeting
2.	Clauses 51, 52, 53 and 54 have been added pursuant to Special Resolution passed at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Share Holders of the Company held on 30th April, 1998 and registered and certified by Registrar of Companies - Mumbai, on 5th June 1998	30 th April, 1998	Extra- Ordinary General Meeting
3.	Clause V of the MOA altered as Equity Shares of the Face Value Rs. 10/- each Subdivided into 10 Equity Shares of Face value Rs.1.00/- each vide Special Resolution in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting on 19th January.2012.	19 th January, 2012	Extra- Ordinary General Meeting
4.	Clause V of the MOA altered vide Final Order of Bombay High Court on 04 May, 2012 on the Scheme of Amalgamation of M/s Lambodar Nirmit Ltd. And M/s Niki Metal Co. Ltd. with M/s Indian Infotech and Software Limited.	4th May, 2012	Extra- Ordinary General Meeting



NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY

5.	Alteration in the Main object of the company in the Annual General Meeting of the Company for F.Y. 2019.	30th September, 2019	Annual General Meeting
6.	Adopt A New Set of Memorandum of Association (Moa) of The Company as Per the Companies Act, 2013:	4th September, 2022	Postal Ballot



OUR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As on date of this Letter of Offer, our Company currently having 6 (Six) directors on its Board including 1 (One) Managing Director, and 4 (Independent Director including 1 Women Director) Independent directors. The present composition of our Board of Directors and its committees are in accordance with the corporate governance requirements provided under the Companies Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, to the extent applicable.

The following table sets forth details regarding our Board of Directors as on the date of this Letter of Offer

Name, Father's /husband Name, Designation, DIN, PAN, DOB, Address,	Other Directorships/ Designated
Occupation, Nationality, and Term	Partners
Name: Mr. Manish Badola	M3 Consultant LLP
Designation Managing Director;	Nextgen Accounting Solutions
Address: A/201, Singhad CHS, Shivaji Nagar Nilemore, Nallasopara West, Nale Palgha	r, and Technology LLP
Mumbai – 401203	
Occupation: Business Term: June 17, 2022 till June 16, 2027	
Period of Directorship: Not Liable to retire by rotation	
Nationality: Indian	
Date of Birth: August 03, 1983	
DIN : 05016172	
Age: 39 years	
Name: Mr. Hemant Vadilal Mod	• NIL
Designation: Executive -Director	
Address: D-804 Ratnadeep towers, Nr. Arjun tower, b/h C.P Nagar Ghatlodia	
Ahmedabad city Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380061	
Occupation: Business	
Term: September 30,2022 till date	
Period of Directorship: Liable to retire by Rotation	
Nationality: Indian	
Date of Birth: July 13, 1980	
DIN: 09630204	
Age: 43 years	
Name: Ms. Aksha Bihani	Swastik City Developers
Designation: Non-Executive - Independent Director	Limited
Address: 17/1, Lal Madhab Mukherjee Lane, Kolkata-	Sasmal Infra Developers
700007 Occupation: Business	Private Limited
Term: March 19, 2019 till date	
Period of Directorship: Not Liable to retire by Rotation	
Nationality: Indian	
Date of Birth: April 11, 1990	
DIN: 08102933	
Age: 33 years	
Name: Mr. Hari Singh Rao	H.S.R. Jewels Private Limited
Designation: Non-Executive - Independent Director	- II.S.K. Jeweis I IIvate Lillited
Address: 1506- Boulevard 01, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Ghatkopar West, Opp. R-	
City Mall, Mumbai-400086	
Occupation: Business	
Term: June 08,2022 till date	
Period of Directorship: Not Liable to retire by Rotation	
Nationality: Indian	
Date of Birth: July 1, 1978	
DIN: 05132581	
Age: 45 years	



	NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY
	NIL
Name: Mr. Vinay Kumar Yadav	
Designation: Non-Executive Independent Director	
Address: G-8 C Wing Building No B Cabin Cross road near Narmada Nagar, Bhayander	
east Thane, Maharashtra- 401105	
Occupation: Business	
Term: June 08,2022 till date	
Period of Directorship: Not Liable to retire by Rotation	
Nationality: Indian	
Date of Birth: May ,02,1993	
DIN: 09630182	
Age: 30 years.	
Name: Mr. Sandeep Kumar Sahu	Prismx Global Ventures
Designation: Non-Executive Independent Director	Limited
Address: Jablapur road behind petrol pump Lugharwada seoni Madhya Pradesh 480661.	Tahmar Enterprises Limited
Occupation: Business	Panorama Studios
Term: September 09, 2022 till date	International Limited
Period of Directorship: Not Liable to retire by Rotation	Panorama Studios Private
Nationality: Indian	Limited
Date of Birth: October 20, 1984	Sanescort Lifecare Private
DIN: 06396817	Limited
Age: 38 years	

CONFIRMATIONS

- There are no arrangements or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others, pursuant to which any of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel were selected as a Director or Member of Senior Management.
- There are no service contracts entered into by the Directors with our Company providing for benefits upon termination of employment.
- As on the date of this Letter of Offer, none of our directors are on the RBI List of wilful defaulters.
- As on the date of this Letter of Offer, none of our Directors are Fugitive Economic Offender under Section 12 of the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.
- As on the date of this Letter of Offer, none of our Director is or was a director of any listed Company during the last 5 (five) years preceding the date of this Letter of Offer, whose shares have been or were suspended from being traded on the Stock Exchange(s), during the term of their directorship in such Company.
- As on the date of this Letter of Offer, none of our Director is or was a director of any listed Company which has been or was delisted from any stock exchange during the term of their directorship in such Company.
- As on the date of thisLetter of Offer, none of the Promoters, Persons forming part of our Promoter Group, Directors or persons in control of our Company, has been or is involved as a promoters, director or person in control of any other Company, which is debarred from accessing the capital market under any order or directions made by SEBI or any other regulatory authority.
- No proceedings / investigations have been initiated by SEBI against any Company, the Board of Directors of which also comprises any of the Directors of our Company

OUR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSON

Our Company is managed by our Board of Directors, assisted by qualified and experienced professionals, who are permanent employees of our Company. Following are the Key Managerial Personnel of our Company:

Name of the KMPs	Designation
Mr. Manish Kumar Badola	Managing Director
Mr. Hemant Vadilal Modi	Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Mushahid Ahmed Khan	Company Secretary and Compliance Officer



RELATIONSHIP OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WITH OUR DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND / OR OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

None of the key Managerial Personnel are related to each other or to our Promoters or to any of our Directors.



SECTION VI - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Sr.no	Particulars	Page no
1.	Audited Financial statements for the FY 2022-2023 has been attached as Annexure-A	109 - 148
2.	Un-Audited Financial Statement for the Half Year ended on 30 th September, 2023 attached as Annexure-B	149 - 155



MARKET PRICE INFORMATION

Our Company's Equity Shares are listed on BSE Limited; and the Right Shares issued pursuant to this Issue will be listed on BSE Limited, the Designated Stock Exchange. For further details, please refer to the section titled '*Terms of the Issue*' on page 80 of this Letter of Offer.

Our Company shall receive an in-principle approval for listing of the Right Shares on the BSE Limited to be issued pursuant to this Issue from BSE Limited by letter dated December 05, 2023. Our Company shall also make applications to BSE Limited to obtain trading approval for the Rights Entitlements as required under the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars.

For the purpose of this section, unless otherwise specified:

- 1. Year is a Financial Year;
- 2. Average price is the average of the daily closing prices of the Equity Shares for the year, or the month, as the case may be;
- 3. High price is the maximum of the daily high prices and low price is the minimum of the daily low prices of the Equity Shares, as the case may be, for the year, or the month, as the case may be; and
- 4. In case of two days with the same high / low / closing price, the date with higher volume has been considered.

STOCK MARKET DATA OF THE EQUITY SHARES

The high, low and average prices recorded on the BSE Limited, during the preceding 3 (Three) Financial Years and the number of the Equity Shares traded on the days of the high and low prices were recorded are as stated below:

Financial Year	Date of High	High (₹)	Volume on date of High (Number of Equity Shares)	Date of Low	Low (₹)	Volume on date of low (Number of Equity Shares)	Average price for the year (₹)
2022-2023	May 06, 2022	04.93	94,481,798	March 08, 2023	1.20	4,513,557	3.06
2021-2022	January, 13, 2022	12.88	9,651,600	May 12, 2021	0.38	4,965,270	6.63
2020-2021	February 04, 2021	0.62	47,61,490	November 13, 2020	0.15	1,643,073	0.38

Source: www.bseindia.com

The high, low and average prices recorded on the BSE Limited, during the last 6 (Six) months and the number of the Equity Shares traded on the days of the high and low prices were recorded are as stated below:

Month	Date of High	High (₹)	Volume (Number of Equity Shares)	Date of Low	Low (₹)	Volume (Number of Equity Shares)	Total number of days of trading	Average volume of Equity Shares Traded
October	October 18, 2022	2.75	4,779,701	October 13, 2022	2.34	1,659,376	19	2,224,338
November	November 14, 2022	2.47	2,086,730	November 30, 2022	2.00	8,344,746	21	3,934,101
December	December 01, 2022	2.24	5,683,599	December 26, 2022	1.71	2,939,985	22	3,717,037



Month	Date of High	High (₹)	Volume (Number of Equity Shares)	Date of Low	Low (₹)	Volume (Number of Equity Shares)	Total number of days of trading	Average volume of Equity Shares traded
January	January 02, 2023	2.06	1,882,761	January 30, 2023	1.71	26,66,772	21	1,766,306
February	February 01, 2023	1.85	2,201,998	February 28, 2023	1.33	3,809,240	20	2,179,897
March	March 13, 2023	1.8	7,046,147	March 08, 2023	1.2	4,513,557	21	4,444,255

The high, low, and average volume of shares traded on the BSE Limited, during the last 4 (Four) weeks:

Week ended on	High Price (₹)	Date of High	Low Price (₹)	Date of Low	Average volume of Equity Shares Traded
March 10, 2023	1.65	March 10, 2023	1.20	March 08, 2023	85,10,292
March 17, 2023	1.80	March 13, 2023	1.35	March 14, 2023	46,96,834
March 24, 2023	1.49	March 20, 2023	1.35	March 24, 2023	20,24,954
March 31, 2023	1.39	March 27, 2023	1.20	March 31, 2023	36,06,359

Source: <u>www.bseindia.com</u>

The Issue Price of ₹1.60/- per Equity Share has been arrived at by our Company in consultation with the Issue advisors.



SECTION VII – LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND DEFAULTS

Except as disclosed below, there are no outstanding litigations involving our Company, whose financial statements are included in the letter of offer, either separately or in a consolidated form including, suits, criminal or civil proceedings and taxation related proceedings that would have a material adverse effect on our operations, financial position, or future revenues. In this regard, please note the following:

In determining whether any outstanding litigation against our Company, other than litigation involving issues of moralturpitude, criminal liability, material violations of statutory regulations or proceedings relating to economic offences against our Company, would have a material adverse effect on our operations or financial position or impact our future revenues, we have considered all pending litigations involving our Company, other than criminal proceedings, statutory or regulatory actions, as 'material';

For determining materiality, the threshold shall be determined by the issuer as per requirements under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended,

Unless stated to the contrary, the information provided below is as of the date of this Letter of Offer.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES OF OUR COMPANY

As per the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2023, there is a NIL Contingent Liability for further details, please refer to section titled *'Financial Information'* beginning on page 68 of this Letter of Offer.

LITIGATION INVOLVING OUR COMPANY

1. <u>LITIGATION INVOLVING TAX LIABILITIES</u>

i. Direct/Indirect Tax Liabilities

Litigation involving Tax Liabilities; For F.Y. 2015-16 **Tax Amount**: 2,13,48,900 & **Penalty**: Rs. 1,13,04,670 **Total**: Rs. 3,26,53,570 The same is under protest and the company has filed appeal with commissioner

For F.Y. 2017-18 Tax Amount Rs. 1,06,890 This order passed by CPC under Section 143(3) which is also under protest

ii. Actions taken by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities:

An adjudicating Order was passed by Adjudicating Officer vide SEBI ADJUDICATION ORDER NO. Order/SM/AD/2022-23/19863-19864 dated 30th September, 2022 Against Company and its Previous Director(s) and penalty was imposed of Rs. 13,00,000 on Company and Rs. 7,00,000 was on Previous Director of the Company and further company filed an Appeal No. 950 of 2022 before THE SECURITIES APPELLATE TRIBUNAL MUMBAI in which the Appellate authority reduced the penalty on Company to Rs. 5,00,000 which was paid by the Company and the penalty was also paid by previous Director.

iii. Proceedings involving issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability on the part of our Company

As on date of this Letter of Offer, there are no other issues of moral turpitude or criminal liability on the part of our Company, except the matter given in the above point no. 1 and 2 is under appeal.

iv. Proceedings involving Material Violations of Statutory Regulations by our Company

As on date of this Letter of Offer, there are proceedings involving Material Violations of Statutory Regulations by our Company.

v. Matters involving economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our Company

As on date of this Letter of Offer, there are no matters involving economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our Company;

vi. Other proceedings involving our Company which involve an amount exceeding the Materiality Threshold or are otherwise material in terms of the Materiality Policy, and other pending matters which, if they result in an adverse outcome would materially and



adversely affect the operations or the financial position of our Company

As on date of this Letter of Offer, there are no proceedings which involve an amount exceeding the MaterialityThreshold or are otherwise material in terms of the Materiality Policy, and other pending matters which, if they result an adverse outcome would materially and adversely affect the operations or the financial position of our Company.

LITIGATION INVOLVING OUR DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND PROMOTER GROUP

As on date of offer document there is no Litigation matter is pending.

LITIGATION INVOLVING OUR SUBSIDIARY / ASSOCIATES

As on date of filing of offer document there are no Subsidiary and Associates company.

DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULTERS

Neither our Company, nor our Promoter or any of our Directors are or have been categorized as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the RBI.

DETAILS OF MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS AFTER THE DATE OF LAST BALANCE SHEET FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2023

Except as mentioned in this Letter of Offer, no material circumstances have arisen since the date of last financialstatement until the date of filing the Letter of Offer, which materially and adversely affect or are likely to affect the operations or profitability of our Company, or value of its assets, or its ability to pay its liability within next twelvemonths to our knowledge.



GOVERNMENT AND OTHER APPROVALS

Our Company has received the necessary licenses, permissions, and approvals from the Central and State Governments and other government agencies/regulatory authorities'/certification bodies required to undertake the Issue or continue our business activities. In view of the approvals listed below, we can undertake this Issue and our current business activities and no further major approvals from any governmental/regulatory authority or any other entity are required to be undertaken, in respect of the Issue or to continue our business activities. It must, however, be distinctly understood that in granting the above approvals, the Government of India and other authorities do not take any responsibility for the financial soundness of our Company or for the correctness of any of the statements or any commitments made, or opinions expressed in this behalf.

The main objects clause of the Memorandum of Association of our Company and the objects incidental, enable our Company to carry out its activities.

APPROVALS FOR THE ISSUE

The following approvals have been obtained or will be obtained in connection with the Issue:

- a) The Board of Directors have, pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, by a resolution passed at its meeting held on Thursday, August 22, 2023, authorized the Issue;
- b) Resolution of the Board of Directors dated January 15, 2023 approving and adopting the Letter of Offer;
- c) In-principle approval dated December 05, 2023 from the BSE Limited to use the name of BSE Limited for listing of the Equity Shares issued by our Company pursuant to the Issue;
- d) The ISIN of the Company is INE300B01022.

OFFICES

Our company's registered office is situated at Office No. 110, 1st Floor, Golden Chamber Pre-Co-Op Soc. Ltd. New Link Road, Andheri West Mumbai - 400053 IN.

APPROVALS PERTAINING TO INCORPORATION OF OUR COMPANY

Sr. No.	Description			Date of Certificate	Date of Expiry
	Certificate of Incorporation in the name of Indian Leasers Limited	ROC- Mumbai	27198	22.05.1982	Valid until Cancelled

Approvals/registration valid

Sr. No.	Description	Authority	Registration Number	Date of Certificate	Date of Expiry
a.		Reserve Bank of India	B-13.00221	04/03/1998	Valid until cancelled

TAX RELATED APPROVALS

Sr. No.	Description	-		Date of Certificate	Date of Expiry
a)	Permanent Account Number	Income Tax Department	AAACI0350E	NA	Valid until cancelled
b)	Tax Deduction Account Number	Income Tax Department	N.A	NA	Valid until cancelled
,	Certificate of enrolment Maharashtra State Tax on Professions, Trades, Callings and Employments Act, 1975	Professional Tax Officer	N.A	April 01, 2017	Valid until cancelled
d)	GST Registration	Government of India	N.A	July 01, 2017	Valid until cancelled



OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

AUTHORITY FOR THE ISSUE

- i. The Issue of this Right Equity Shares to the eligible shareholders in terms of this Letter of Offer has been authorized by a resolution by the Board of Directors passed at their meeting held on August 22, 2023 under Section 62 (1) of the Companies Act 2013.
- ii. The Draft Letter of Offer has been approved by our Board pursuant to its resolution dated August 22, 2023.
- iii. The Letter of Offer has been approved by our Board pursuant to its resolution dated January 15, 2024.
- iv. The Company has received In-principle approval from BSE vide their letter dated December 05, 2023 for listing of Right Equity Shares to be allotted in the Issue.
- v. The Company has been allotted the ISIN: INE300B20014 for the Rights Entitlements to be credited to the respective demat account of the Equity Shareholders of the Company. For details, see "*Terms of the Issue*" beginning on page 80 of this Letter of Offer.

Issue Size	Up to Rs. 4,183.25
Issue Price	Re 1.60/- per Right Equity Share
Issue Entitlement	13 (Thirteen) Equity Shares for every 50 (Fifty) Equity Shares held by Eligible Shareholders of our Company
Ratio	as on Record Date;
Record Date	January 29, 2024

The Issue Price shall be determined by the board of directors as per relevant law applicable to the Issue;

- a. Receipt of In-principle approval from BSE Limited in accordance with Regulation 28 (1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations for listing of the Right Shares proposed to be allotted pursuant Issue vide a letter bearing reference number LOO/RIGHT /VK/FIP /922/2023-24 from BSE Limited dated December 05, 2023. Our Company will also make application to BSE Limited to obtain their trading approvals for the Rights Entitlements as required under the ASBA Circular;
- b. Our Company has been allotted the ISIN: INE300B20014 for the Rights Entitlements to be credited to the respective demat accounts of the Eligible Shareholders of our Company;

PROHIBITION BY SEBI OR RBI OR OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES

- a. Our Company, the Promoters and members of the Promoter Group, and the Directors of our Company have not been prohibited or de barred from accessing or operating in the capital markets, or restrained from buying, selling or dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority.
- b. The companies with which our Directors or the persons in control of our Company are or were associated as promoter, directors or persons in control have not been debarred from accessing the capital market under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority.
- c. Our Company, the Promoters and members of the Promoter Group, and the Directors of our Company have not been identified as Willful Defaulters by the RBI;
- d. None of our Directors are associated with the securities market in any manner;
- e. Our Company, the Promoters and members of the Promoter Group, and the Directors of our Company have not been declared as fugitive economic offenders;
- f. None of our Directors currently holds nor have held directorship(s) in the last five years in a listed Company whose shares have been or were suspended from trading on any stock exchange or in a listed Company which has been / was delisted from any stock exchange;

ELIGIBILITY FOR THE ISSUE

Our Company is a listed company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. Our Equity Shares are presently listed on the of BSE Limited. Our Company undertakes to make an application to the Stock Exchange for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to this Issue.



COMPLIANCE WITH SEBI ICDR REGULATIONS

The present Issue being of less than 5,000 Lakhs, our Company is in compliance with first proviso to Regulation 3 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and our Company shall file the copy of the Letter of Offer prepared in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations with SEBI for information and dissemination on the website of SEBI, i.e. www.sebi.gov.in;

Our Company is in compliance with the conditions specified in Regulations 61 and 62 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, to the extent applicable. Further, in relation to compliance with Regulation 62(1)(a) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company undertakes to make an application to the Stock Exchanges for "*In-Principle Approvals*" for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to this Issue. BSE Limited is the Designated Stock Exchange for this Issue.

COMPLIANCE WITH PART B OF SCHEDULE VI OF THE SEBI ICDR REGULATIONS

Our Company is in compliance with the provisions specified in Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations as explained below:

- i. Our Company has been filing periodic reports, statements and information in compliance with the SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable for the last one year immediately preceding the date of filing of this Letter of Offer with the Designated Stock Exchange;
- ii. The reports, statements and information referred to above are available on the website of stock exchange; and
- iii. Our Company has an investor grievance handling mechanism which includes meeting of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee at frequent intervals, appropriate delegation of power by our Board as regards share transfer and clearly laid down systems and procedures for timely and satisfactory redressal of investor grievances

As our Company satisfies the conditions specified in Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR Regulations, and given that the conditions specified in Clause (3) of Part B of Schedule VI of SEBI ICDR Regulations are not applicable to our Company, the disclosures in this Letter of Offer are in terms of Clause (4) of Part B of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

This Letter of Offer has not been filed with SEBI in terms of SEBI ICDR Regulations as the size of issue is not exceeding Rs. 5,000.00 Lakh, however the final letter of offer will be filed with SEBI for information and dissemination purpose.

As required, a copy of the Letter of Offer will be submitted to SEBI.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF BSE LIMITED

As required, a copy of this Letter of Offer has been submitted to BSE. The disclaimer clause as intimated by BSE to us, post scrutiny of this Letter of Offer, shall be included in the Letter of Offer prior to filing with the SEBI and the Stock Exchanges.

DISCLAIMER FROM OUR COMPANY

Our Company accept no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Letter of Offer or in the advertisements or any other material issued by or at instance of the above-mentioned entities and that anyone placing reliance on any other source of information, including website of our Company would be doing so at his or her own risk.

Investors will be required to confirm and will be deemed to have represented to our Company and their respective directors, officers, agents, affiliates, and representatives that they are eligible under all applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire the Equity Shares and will not issue, sell, pledge, or transfer the Equity Shares to any person who is not eligible under any applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire the Equity Shares. Our Company and their respective directors, officers, agents, affiliates, and representatives accept no responsibility or liability for advising any investor on whether such investor is eligible to acquire the Equity Shares.

Our Company shall make all relevant information available to the Eligible Equity Shareholders in accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations and no selective or additional information would be available for a section of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in any manner whatsoever including at presentations, in research or sales reports etc. after filing of this Letter of Offer.

No dealer, salesperson or other person is authorised to give any information or to represent anything not contained in this Letter of Offer. You must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations. This Letter of Offer is an offer to sell only the Equity Shares and rights to purchase the Equity Shares offered hereby, but only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to do so. The information contained in this Letter of Offer is current only as of its date.



DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF JURISDICTION

This Letter of Offer has been prepared under the provisions of Indian law and the applicable rules and regulations thereunder. Any disputes arising out of the Issue will be subject to the jurisdiction of the appropriate court(s) in Mumbai, India only.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE EQUITY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT"), OR ANY U.S. STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, RESOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHIN THE UNITED STATES, EXCEPT IN A TRANSACTION EXEMPT FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT. THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND EQUITY SHARES REFERRED TO IN THE LETTER OF OFFER ARE BEING OFFERED IN INDIA, BUT NOT IN THE UNITED STATES. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THE LETTER OF OFFER RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING OF ANY EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS FOR SALE IN THE UNITED STATES OR AS A SOLICITATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SAID SECURITIES. ACCORDINGLY, THE LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO THE UNITED STATES AT ANY TIME.

Neither our Company, nor any person acting on behalf of our Company, will accept a subscription or renunciation from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who our Company, or any person acting on behalf of our Company, has reason to believe is, in the United States when the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter should not be postmarked in the United States or otherwise dispatched from the United States or any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make an offer under the Letter of Offer. Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Letter of Offer/ Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter will be dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company. Any person who acquires the Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed, by accepting the delivery of the Letter of Offer, (i) that it is not and that, at the time of subscribing for the Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be, in the United States when the buy order is made; and (ii) is authorized to acquire the Rights Entitlements and the Equity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat as invalid any Application Form which: (i) appears to our Company or its agents to have been executed in or dispatched from the United States of America; (ii) does not include the relevant certification set out in the Application Form headed "Overseas Shareholders" to the effect that the person accepting and/or renouncing the Application Form does not have a registered address (and is not otherwise located) in the United States, and such person is complying with laws of the jurisdictions applicable to such person in connection with the Issue, among others; (iii) where our Company believes acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements; or (iv) where a registered Indian address is not provided, and our Company shall not be bound to allot or issue any Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in respect of any such Application Form.

None of the Rights Entitlements or the Equity Shares have been, or will be, registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), or any state securities laws in the United States. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares are being offered and sold only outside the United States in compliance with Regulation S under the Securities Act and the applicable laws of the jurisdictions where those offers and sales are made.

NO OFFER IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA

NO OFFER OR INVITATION TO PURCHASE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IS BEING MADE IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE OF INDIA, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO AUSTRALIA, BAHRAIN, CANADA, THE EUROPEAN ECONOMIC AREA, GHANA, HONG KONG, INDONESIA, JAPAN, KENYA, KUWAIT, MALAYSIA, NEW ZEALAND, SULTANATE OF OMAN, PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA, QATAR, SINGAPORE, SOUTH AFRICA, SWITZERLAND, THAILAND, THE UNITED ARAB EMIRATES, THE UNITED KINGDOM AND THE UNITED STATES. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THE LETTER OF OFFER RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING OF ANY RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT FOR SALE IN ANY JURISDICTION OUTSIDE INDIA OR AS A SOLICIATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SAID SECURITIES. ACCORDINGLY, THE LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO ANY OTHER JURISDICTION AT ANY TIME.

For more detail, please refer "Notice to Investor" on page 9 of this Letter of Offer.

FILING

The Letter of Offer has not been filed with the SEBI for its observations as the size of the issue is up to \gtrless 5,000.00 Lakhs which does not require issuer to file Letter of Offer with SEBI. The Company has filed Letter of Offer with the BSE for obtaining in-principle approval.



LISTING

The Designated Stock Exchange for the purposes of the Right Issue will be BSE Limited. Our Company will apply to BSE for final approval for the listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares subsequent to their Allotment. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained trading in the Rights Equity Shares or the price at which the Rights Equity Shares offered under the Issue will trade after the listing thereof.

SELLING RESTRICTIONS

The Letter of Offer is solely for the use of the person who has received it from our Company or from the Registrar. The Letter of Offer is not to be reproduced or distributed to any other person. The distribution of the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter and the issue of Rights Entitlements and Equity Shares on a rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter may come are required to inform themselves about and observe such restrictions. Our Company is making this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders of our Company and will dispatch the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer and Application Form and Rights Entitlement Letter only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company.

No action has been or will be taken to permit the Issue in any jurisdiction, or the possession, circulation, or distribution of the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer or any other material relating to our Company, the Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in any jurisdiction, where action would be required for that purpose, except that the Letter of Offer has been filed with the Stock Exchanges.

Accordingly, the Rights Entitlement or Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Letter of Offer or any offering materials or advertisements in connection with the Issue or Rights Entitlement may not be distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Letter of Offer will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer.

The Letter of Offer and its accompanying documents are being supplied to you solely for your information and may not be reproduced, redistributed or passed on, directly or indirectly, to any other person or published, in whole or in part, for any purpose. If the Letter of Offer is received by any person in any jurisdiction where to do so would or might contravene local securities laws or regulation, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlement referred to in the Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to consult their legal counsel prior to applying for the Rights Entitlement and Equity Shares or accepting any provisional allotment of Equity Shares, or making any offer, sale, resale, pledge or other transfer of the Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement.

Neither the delivery of the Letter of Offer nor any sale hereunder, shall under any circumstances create any implication that there has been no change in our Company's affairs from the date hereof or the date of such information or that the information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to this date or the date of such information. Each person who exercises Rights Entitlements and subscribes for Equity Shares, or who purchases Rights Entitlements or Equity Shares shall do so in accordance with the restrictions set out below.

INVESTOR GRIEVANCES AND REDRESSAL SYSTEM

Our Company has adequate arrangements for the redressal of investor complaints. Redressal norm for response time for all correspondence including shareholder's complaints is within 15 (fifteen) days. Additionally, we have been registered with SCORES, as required by the SEBI Circular no. CIR/OIAE/2/2011 dated June 3, 2011. Letters are filed category wise after being duly attended. A well-arranged correspondence system has been developed for letters of a routine nature.

Our Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee which meets at least once a year and as and when required. Its terms of reference include considering and resolving grievances of Shareholders in relation to transfer of shares and effective exercise of voting rights. Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited is our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. All investor grievances received by us have been handled by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent in consultation with the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer.

Our Company provides easy access to information regarding our services and ensure timely disclosures of financial as well as non-financial material information. Grievances are resolved in a timely, efficient and fair manner, and processes are promptly initiated to prevent recurrence.

STOCK MARKET DATA OF EQUITY SHARES OF OUR COMPANY

For stock market data, see "Market Price Information" beginning on page 69.

GRIEVANCE REDRESSAL MECHANISM

The Company has an established mechanism for investor services and grievance handling, with RTA and the Compliance Officer of the



Company for this purpose, being important functional nodes.

Some of the key steps undertaken by the Company for handling Investor Grievances are enumerated as follows:

Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited (RTA) is entrusted with handling all share related matters.

Investors can lodge a complaint by giving details of their name, folio no., DP ID / Client ID, nature and full particulars of their complaint directly to the company.

All the investor complaints/grievance received through SEBI by online "SEBI Complaints Redress System" (SCORES) are checked regularly and replied/resolved expeditiously.

As required under Regulation 13 of the Listing Regulations, the Company files with the Stock Exchanges and places the statement of investor complaints at the Board meeting on a quarterly basis.

STATUS OF OUTSTANDING INVESTOR COMPLAINTS

As on the date of this Letter of Offer, there were no outstanding Investor complaints.

As mentioned, our Company is registered with the SCORES. Consequently, Investor grievances are tracked online by our Company. The average time taken by the Registrar to the Issue for attending to routine grievances will be within 30 (thirty) days from the date of receipt. In case of non-routine grievances where verification at other agencies is involved, it would be the endeavour of the Registrar to the Issue to attend to them as expeditiously as possible. We undertake to resolve the investor grievances in a time bound manner.

INVESTOR GRIEVANCES ARISING OUT OF THIS ISSUE

1. Mechanism for Redressal of Investor Grievances

Our Company has made adequate arrangements for redressal of investor complaints in compliance with the corporate governance requirements under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations as well as a well-arranged correspondence system developed for letters of routine nature. We have been registered with the SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) as required by the SEBI Circular bearing reference number 'CIR/OIAE/2/2011 dated June 3, 2011'. Consequently, investor grievances are also tracked online by our Company through the SCORES mechanism.

Our Company has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprising of 3 (three), members of the said committee, which meets at least once a year and as and when required. Its terms of reference include considering and resolving grievances of shareholders in relation to transfer of

shares and effective exercise of voting rights. All investor grievances received by us have been handled by the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer.

The Investor complaints received by our Company are generally disposed of within 15 (Fifteen) days from the date of receipt of the complaint.

The average time taken by the Registrar to the Issue, M/s Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd. for attending to routine grievances will be within 30 (thirty) days from the date of receipt. In case of non-routine grievances where verification at other agencies is involved, it would be the endeavor of the Registrar to the Issue to attend to them as expeditiously as possible. We undertake to resolve the investor grievances in a time bound manner.

INVESTOR GRIEVANCES ARISING OUT OF THIS ISSUE

Our Company's investor grievances arising out of the Issue will be handled by Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited, who is the Registrar to the Issue. The Registrar to the Issue will have a separate team of personnel handling only post-Issue correspondence.

The agreement between our Company and the Registrar to the Issue will provide for retention of records with the Registrar for a period of at least one year from the last date of dispatch of Allotment Advice to enable the Registrar to redress grievances of Investors.

All grievances relating to this Issue may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue giving full details such as folio no name and address, Contact Number, Email-ID of the first applicant, number and type of Equity Shares applied for, Application Form serial number, amount paid on application and the name of the bank and the branch where the application was deposited, along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement slip. In case of renunciation, the same details of the Renouncee should be furnished.

The average time taken by the Registrar to the Issue for attending to routine grievances will be seven to ten days from the date of receipt of



complaints. In case of non-routine grievances where verification at other agencies is involved, it would be the endeavor of the Registrar to the Issue to attend to them as expeditiously as possible. Our Company undertakes to resolve the Investor grievances in a time bound manner.

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company and/ or Registrar to the Issueat the below mentioned address in case of any pre-Issue/ post-Issue related problems such as non-receipt of allotmentadvice/ demat credit etc.

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company of our Company for any pre-Issue or post-Issue related matter. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSBs (in case of ASBA process), giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, contact number(s), e mail address of the sole/ first holder, folio number or demat account number, number of Right Shares applied for, amount blocked, ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSBs where the Application Form or the plain paper application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement slip. For details on the ASBA process, please refer to the section titled '*Terms of the Issue*' on PAGE 80 of this Letter of Offer.

The Contact Number of the Registrar to the Issue and the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Companyare as follows:

Company Secretary and ComplianceOfficer	Registrar to the Issue		
Mr. Mushahid Ahmed Khan	Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited.		
Address: Office No.110, 1st Floor, Golden Chamber Pre Co-op Soc	Address: Unit No. 9, Ground Floor, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate,		
Ltd, New Link Road, Andheri (West), Mumbai, Maharashtra,	J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel East, Mumbai - 400011,		
400053;	Maharashtra, India;		
Contact Number: 022-49601435	Telephone: +91 22 49614132; +91 22 497000138;		
Email-ID: indianinfotechsoftware@yahoo.com	+91 22 31998810; + 91-22-2301 2518 /6761;		
Website: www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in	E-mail ID/Investor grievance		
	e-mail:support@purvashare.com;		
	Website: https://purvashare.com		
	Contact Person: Ms. Deepali Dhuri;		
	SEBI Registration Number: INR000001112		



SECTION VIII: ISSUE RELATED INFORMATION

TERMS OF THE ISSUE

This Section applies to all Investors. ASBA Investors should note that the ASBA process involves procedures that may be different from that applicable to other Investors and should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications, in this, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter, before submitting an Application Form. Our Company is not liable for any amendments, modifications or changes in applicable law which may occur after the date of this Letter of Offer. Investors who are eligible to apply under the ASBA process, as the case may be, are advised to make their independent investigations and to ensure that the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter is correctly filled up.

Please note that in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020 ("SEBI – Rights Issue Circular"), all investors (including renouncee) shall make an application for a rights issue only through ASBA facility. However, in view of the COVID-19 pandemic and the lockdown measures undertaken by Central and State Governments, relaxation from the strict enforcement of the SEBI – Rights Issue Circular has been provided by SEBI, vide its Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78 dated May 06, 2020 and Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 24, 2020. As per the said circular, in case the physical shareholders who have not been able to open a demat account or are unable to communicate their demat details, in terms of clause 1.3.4 of the SEBI – Rights Issue Circular, to the Company or Registrar to the Issue, for credit of REs within specified time, such physical shareholders may be allowed to submit their application subject to the conditions prescribed in the SEBI Circulars dated May 06, 2020 and July 24, 2020.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the option to receive the Rights Equity Shares in physical form was available only for a period of six months from the date of coming into force of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, i.e., until May 10, 2019. Since Allotment in this Issue will occur subsequent to May 10, 2019, the entitlement of Rights Equity Shares to be Allotted to the Applicants who have applied for Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares in physical form will be kept in abeyance in electronic mode by our Company until the Applicants provide details of their demat account particulars to the Registrar. Further, In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, (a) the Eligible Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares may also apply in this Issue during the Issue Period.

The Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights basis, are subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Letter of Offer, The Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, including the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter, the MOA and AOA of our Company, the provisions of the Companies Act, the terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the FEMA, applicable guidelines and regulations issued by SEBI or other statutory authorities and bodies from time to time, the SEBI Listing Regulations, terms and conditions as stipulated in the allotment advice or security certificate and rules as may be applicable and introduced from time to time.

OVERVIEW

The Issue and the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights basis, are subject to the terms and conditions contained in this Letter of Offer, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association, the provisions of Companies Act, FEMA, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Listing Regulations and the guidelines, notifications and regulations issued by SEBI, the Government of India and other statutory and regulatory authorities from time to time, approvals, if any, from the SEBI, the RBI or other regulatory authorities, the terms of Listing Agreements entered into by our Company with the Stock Exchanges and terms and conditions as stipulated in the Allotment Advice.

Important:

1) Dispatch and availability of Issue materials:

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI circulars SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78 dated May 6, 2020, Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 24, 2020 and the MCA Circular, our Company will send, only through email, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, Application Form and other issue material to the email addresses of all the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company.

Investors can also access the Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) on the websites of:

- a) Our Company at <u>www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in</u>
- b) the Registrar to the Issue at: <u>https://purvashare.com</u>
- c) the Stock Exchanges at <u>www.bseindia.com</u>



Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar at www.purvashare.com by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form). The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e., www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in)

Further, our Company will undertake all adequate steps to reach out to the Eligible Equity Shareholders by other means if feasible in the current COVID-19 situation. However, our Company and the Registrar will not be liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue materials, including the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form.

2) Facilities for Application in this Issue:

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI circular, bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/CIR/CFD/DIL/67/2020 dated April 21, 2020, SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78 dated May 6, 2020, and SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 24, 2020 (Collectively hereafter referred to as "SEBI Rights Issue Circulars") and SEBI circular SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009, SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 dated April 29, 2011 and the SEBI circular, bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020 (Collectively hereafter referred to as "ASBA Circulars"), all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to use either the ASBA process. Original Shareholders shall mean the Resident Shareholders who are holding the Equity Shares of our Company as on the Record Date i.e. January 29, 2024 (hereinafter referred to as the "Original Shareholders"). Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before making their Application through ASBA or using optional mechanism. For details, see "*Procedure for Application through the ASBA Process*" and on page 87 of this Letter of Offer.

3) Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders:

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date i.e. February 06, 2024, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialised form; and (ii) a demat suspense escrow account (namely, "Indian Infotech and Software Limited - Rights Entitlement category Suspense Demat Account") opened by our Company, for the Eligible Equity Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares held in the account of IEPF authority; or

(c) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (d) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date where details of demat accounts are not provided by Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company or Registrar; or (e) credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (f) the ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court proceedings. Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to provide relevant details (such as copies of self-attested PAN and client master sheet of demat account etc., details/ records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership of their respective Equity Shares) to the Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their demat account at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, to enable such Eligible Equity Shareholders to make an application in this Issue, and this communication shall serve as an intimation to such Eligible Equity Shareholders in this regard. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are also requested to ensure that their demat account, details of which have been provided to the Company or the Registrar account is active to facilitate the aforementioned transfer.

4) Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form:

Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialised form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Equity Shares in this Issue are advised to furnish the details of their demat account to our Company or Registrar at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date.

In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, (a) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to our Company or Registrar at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, desirous of subscribing to Rights Shares may also apply in this Issue during the Issue Period. Application by such Eligible Equity Shareholders is subject to following conditions:

a) The Eligible Equity Shareholders are residents;

- b) The Eligible Equity Shareholders are not making payment from non-resident account;
- c) The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall not be able to renounce their Rights Entitlements; and



d) The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall receive Rights Shares, in respect of their Application, only in demat mode.

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, the Rights Entitlements of those resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, among others, who hold Equity Shares in physical form, and whose demat account details are not available with our Company or Registrar, shall be credited in a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company.

Accordingly, such resident Eligible Equity Shareholders are required to send a communication to our Company containing the name(s), Indian address, email address, contact details and the details of their demat account along with copy of self- attested PAN and self-attested client master sheet of their demat account either by post, speed post, courier, electronic mail, or hand delivery, to enable process of credit of Rights Shares in such demat account.

5) Other important links and helpline:

The Investors can visit following links for the below-mentioned purposes:

a) Frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors: support@purvashare.com

b) Updation of Indian address/ email address/ mobile number in the records maintained by the Registrar or our Company: support@purvashare.com

c) Updation of demat account details by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form: support@purvashare.com

RENOUNCES

All rights or obligations of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in relation to Applications and refunds relating to the Issue shall, unless otherwise specified, apply to the Renouncee(s) as well.

AUTHORITY FOR THE ISSUE

The Issue has been authorized by a resolution of Board of Directors of our Company passed at their meeting held on August 22, 2023 pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act.

The Board in their meeting held on August 22, 2023 have determined the Rights Entitlement Ratio as Thirteen (13) Right Equity Share for every Fifty (50) fully paid-up Equity Shares held on the Record Date which is to be decided.

The Board in their meeting held on January 15, 2024 have determined the Issue Price at ₹ 1.60 per Equity Share and the Record Date i.e. January 29, 2024.

Our Company has received In-Principle approvals from BSE Limited in accordance with Regulation 28 of the SEBI Listing Regulations for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be Allotted in the Issue pursuant to letter dated December 05, 2023.

BASIS FOR THE ISSUE

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered for subscription for cash to the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose names appear as beneficial owners as per the list to be furnished by the Depositories in respect of the Equity Shares held dematerialized form and on the register of members of our Company in respect of the Equity Shares held in physical form at the close of business hours on the Record Date i.e. January 29, 2024, decided in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, but excludes persons not eligible under the applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Rights Entitlement ("REs") (Rights Equity Shares)

Eligible Equity Shareholders whose names appear as a beneficial owner in respect of the Equity Shares held in dematerialized form or appear in the register of members as an Equity Shareholder of our Company in respect of the Equity Shares held in physical form as on the Record Date, i.e. January 29, 2024 are entitled to the number of Rights Equity Shares as set out in the Application Form.

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar to the Issue (<u>https://purvashare.com</u>) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form). The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in).

Rights Entitlements shall be credited to the respective demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders before the Issue Opening Date only in



dematerialised form. If the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date i.e. Monday, January 29, 2024, have not provided the details of their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to communicate with the Registrar to the Issue in the manner provided on their website (<u>https://purvashare.com</u>). They may also communicate with the Registrar with the help of the helpline email address <u>support@purvashare.com</u>.

Such Eligible Equity Shareholders can make an application only after the Rights Entitlements is credited to their respective demat accounts, except in case of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date i.e. Monday,29th January, 2024

Our Company is undertaking this Issue on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders and will send the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form only to email addresses of Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions.

The Letter of Offer will be provided, only through email, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case who make a request in this regard. The Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form may also be accessed on the websites of the Registrar and our Company through a link contained in the aforementioned email sent to email addresses of Eligible Equity Shareholders (provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) and on the Stock Exchange websites. The distribution of the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the issue of Rights Equity Shares on a rights basis to persons in certain jurisdictions outside India is restricted by legal requirements prevailing in those jurisdictions. No action has been, or will be, taken to permit this Issue in any jurisdiction where action would be required for that purpose, except that the Letter of Offer will be filed with SEBI and the Stock Exchanges. Accordingly, the Rights Entitlements and Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Application Form or any Issue related materials or advertisements in connection with this Issue may not be distributed, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form (including by way of electronic means) will not constitute an offer in those jurisdictions in which it would be illegal to make such an offer and, in those circumstances, the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form must be treated as sent for information only and should not be acted upon for making an Application and should not be copied or re-distributed. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form should not, in connection with the issue of the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, distribute or send the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form in or into any jurisdiction where to do so, would, or might, contravene local securities laws or regulations. If the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form is received by any person in any such jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to make an Application or acquire the Rights Entitlements referred to in the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form. Any person who acquires Rights Entitlements or makes and Application will be deemed to have declared, warranted and agreed, by accepting the delivery of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form, that it is entitled to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under the laws of any jurisdiction which apply to such person.

PRINCIPAL TERMS OF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES ISSUED UNDER THIS ISSUE

FACE VALUE

Each Rights Equity Share will have the face value of $\gtrless 1.00$.

ISSUE PRICE

Each Rights Equity Share is being offered at a price of $\gtrless 1.60$ / per Rights Equity Share (including a premium of $\gtrless 0.60$ /- per Rights Equity Share) payable in full on Application, in the Issue. The Issue Price has been arrived at by our Company prior to the determination of the Record Date.

The Issue Price and other relevant conditions are in accordance with Regulation 10(4) of the SEBI Takeover Regulations.

The Board, at its meeting held on January 15, 2024 has determined the Issue Price.

RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT RATIO

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to the Eligible Equity Shareholders in the ratio of Thirteen (13) Right Equity Share for every Fifty (50) Equity Shares held on the Record Date i.e. Monday, January 29, 2024.



The Board at its meeting held on August 22, 2023 has determined the Rights Entitlement Ratio.

RIGHTS OF INSTRUMENT HOLDER

Each Rights Equity Share shall rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares of the Company.

TERMS OF PAYMENT

Full amount of ₹1.60/- per Equity Share (including premium of ₹0.60/- per Equity Share) shall be payable on Application.

FRACTIONAL ENTITLEMENTS

The Rights Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to Eligible Equity Shareholders in the ratio of Thirteen (13) Right Equity Share for every Fifty (50) Equity Shares held on the Record Date i.e. Monday, January 29, 2024. For Rights Equity Shares being offered on a rights basis under the Issue, if the shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is less than [50] Equity Shares the fractional entitlement of such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be ignored in the computation of the Rights Entitlement. However, the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored as above will be given preferential consideration for the Allotment of one Additional Rights Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlement.

RANKING

The Rights Equity Shares to be issued and Allotted pursuant to the Issue shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association. The Rights Equity Shares to be issued and Allotted pursuant to the Issue shall rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares of our Company, in all respects including dividends.

MODE OF PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

In the event of declaration of dividend, our Company shall pay dividend to the Eligible Equity Shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act and the provisions of the Articles of Association.

LISTING AND TRADING OF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES TO BE ISSUED PURSUANT TO THE ISSUE

The existing Equity Shares of our Company are listed and traded under the ISIN:INE300B01022 on BSE Limited (Scrip Code: 509051). The Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued on a rights basis shall be listed and admitted for trading on BSE subject to necessary approvals. Our Company has received in-principle approval from BSE through letter dated December 05, 2023. Our Company will apply to BSE for final approval for the listing and trading of the Rights Equity Shares subsequent to their Allotment. No assurance can be given regarding the active or sustained trading in the Rights Equity Shares or the price at which the Rights Equity Shares offered under the Issue will trade after the listing thereof.

Upon receipt of such listing and trading approval, the Rights Equity Shares proposed to be issued pursuant to the Issue shall be debited from such temporary ISIN and credited in the existing ISIN and thereafter be available for trading under the existing ISIN as fully paid-up Equity Shares of our Company.

The Rights Equity Shares allotted pursuant to the Issue will be listed as soon as practicable and all steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading of the Rights Equity Shares shall be taken within the specified time.

If permissions to list, deal in and for an official quotation of the Rights Equity Shares are not granted by BSE, our Company will forthwith repay, without interest, all moneys received from the Applicants in pursuance of the Letter of Offer. If such money is not repaid beyond eight days after our Company becomes liable to repay it, then our Company and every Director who is an officer in default shall, on and from such expiry of eight days, be liable to repay the money, with interest as applicable.

SUBSCRIPTION TO THE ISSUE BY OUR PROMOTERS AND PROMOTER GROUP

For details of the intent and extent of the subscription by our Promoters and Promoter Group, see "Capital Structure – Intention and extent of participation in the Issue by our Promoters and Promoter Group" on page 34 of this Letter of Offer.

RIGHTS OF HOLDERS OF EQUITY SHARES

Subject to applicable laws, the Equity Shareholders shall have the following rights:

• The right to receive dividend, if declared;



- The right to vote in person, or by proxy;
- The right to receive offers for rights shares and be allotted bonus shares, if announced;
- The right to receive surplus on liquidation;
- The right of free transferability of Equity Shares;
- The right to attend general meetings and exercise voting powers in accordance with law, unless prohibited by law; and

• Such other rights as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public company under the Companies Act, the Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association

GENERAL TERMS OF THE ISSUE

JOINT HOLDERS

Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they shall be deemed to hold such Equity Share as the joint holders with the benefit of survivorship subject to the provisions contained in the Articles of Association. Application Forms would be required to be signed by all the joint holders to be considered valid.

NOMINATION

Nomination facility is available in respect of the Rights Equity Shares in accordance with the provisions of the Section 72 of the Companies Act read with Rule 19 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014. An Investor can nominate any person by filling the relevant details in the Application Form in the space provided for this purpose.

Since the Allotment of Rights Equity Shares is in dematerialized form only, there is no need to make a separate nomination for the Rights Equity Shares to be Allotted in the Issue. Nominations registered with respective Depository Participant of the Investor would prevail. Any Investor desirous of changing the existing nomination is requested to inform its respective Depository Participant.

NEW FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

There are no new financial instruments like deep discount bonds, debentures with warrants, secured premium notes etc. issued by our Company.

RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER AND TRANSMISSION OF SHARES AND ON THEIR CONSOLIDATION/SPLITTING

There are no restrictions on transfer and transmission and on their consolidation/splitting of shares issued pursuant to this Issue.

However, the Investors should note that pursuant to provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of transmission or transposition of securities, the request for transfer of securities shall not effected unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with a depository

NOTICES

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and MCA General Circular No. 21/2020, our Company will send, only through email, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, Application Form and other issue material to the email addresses of all the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions. The Letter of Offer will be provided, only through email, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case, who make a request in this regard.

Further, our Company will undertake all adequate steps to dispatch the physical copies of the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form, if feasible in the current COVID-19 situation. However, our Company and the Registrar will not be liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue materials, including the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form.

All notices to the Eligible Equity Shareholders required to be given by our Company shall be published in one English language national daily newspaper with wide circulation, one Hindi language national daily newspaper with wide circulation and one (1) Marathi language daily newspaper with wide circulation at the place where our Registered Office is situated.



In accordance with SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78 dated May 6, 2020 and SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 24, 2020, our Company will make use of advertisements in television channels, radio, internet etc., including in the form of crawlers/ tickers, to disseminate information relating to the Application process in India. The Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form shall also be submitted with the Stock Exchanges for making the same available on their websites.

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION

How to Apply

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and ASBA Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to use either the ASBA process or the optional mechanism instituted only for resident Investors in this Issue. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before making their Application through ASBA or the optional mechanism. For details of procedure for application by the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on the Record Date i.e. Monday, January 29, 2024.

Our Company, its directors, its employees, affiliates, associates and their respective directors and officers, and the Registrar shall not take any responsibility for acts, mistakes, errors, omissions and commissions etc. in relation to Applications accepted by SCSBs, Applications uploaded by SCSBs, Applications accepted but not uploaded by SCSBs or Applications accepted and uploaded without blocking funds in the ASBA Accounts.

APPLICATION FORM

The Application Form for the Rights Equity Shares offered as part of this Issue would be sent to email address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided an Indian address to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions.

The Application Form along with the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter shall be sent through email at least three days before the Issue Opening Date i.e. Tuesday, 06th February, 2024. In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Application Form along with the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter shall be sent through email-to-email address if they have provided an Indian address to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions.

Further, our Company will undertake all adequate steps to reach out the Eligible Equity Shareholders by other means if feasible in the current COVID-19 situation. However, our Company and the Registrar will not be liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue materials, including the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form.

Please note that neither our Company nor the Registrar shall be responsible for delay in the receipt of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter or the Application Form attributable to non-availability of the email addresses of Eligible Equity Shareholders or electronic transmission delays or failures, or if the Application Forms or the Rights Entitlement Letters are delayed or misplaced in the transit.

Investors can access the Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) on the websites of:

- a) Our Company at <u>www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in</u>
- b) the Registrar to the Issue at <u>www.purvashare.com</u>
- c) the Stock Exchanges at <u>www.bseindia.com</u>;

The Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar (i.e., <u>www.purvashare.com</u> by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form). The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e., <u>www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in</u>). The Application Form can be used by the Investors, Eligible Equity Shareholders as well as the Renounces, to make Applications in this Issue basis the Rights Entitlements credited in their respective demat accounts or demat suspense escrow account, as applicable. Please note that one single Application Form shall be used by the Investors to make Applications for all Rights Entitlements available in a particular demat account or entire respective portion of the Rights Entitlements in the demat suspense escrow account in case of resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form as on Record Date i.e. Monday, January 29, 2024 and applying in this Issue, as applicable.



In case of Investors who have provided details of demat account in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, such Investors will have to apply for the Rights Equity Shares from the same demat account in which they are holding the Rights Entitlements and in case of multiple demat accounts, the Investors are required to submit a separate Application Form for each demat account. Investors may accept this Issue and apply for the Rights Equity Shares submitting the Application Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts. Please note that Applications made with payment using third party bank accounts are liable to be rejected.

Investors are also advised to ensure that the Application Form is correctly filled up stating therein the ASBA Account (in case of Application through ASBA process) in which an amount equivalent to the amount payable on Application as stated in the Application Form will be blocked by the SCSB.

Additionally, in terms of Regulation 78 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Investors may choose to accept the offer to participate in this Issue by making plain paper Applications. Please note that Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application in this Issue by way of plain paper applications shall not be permitted to renounce any portion of their Rights Entitlements. For details, see "*Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process*" on page 89.

OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

Details of each Eligible Equity Shareholders RE will be sent to the Eligible Equity shareholder separately along with the Application Form and would also be available on the website of the Registrar to the Issue at <u>www.purvashare.com</u> and link of the same would also be available on the website of our Company at (<u>www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in</u>). Respective Eligible Equity Shareholder can check their entitlement by keying their requisite details therein.

The Eligible Equity Shareholders will have the option to:

- Apply for his Rights Entitlement in full;
- Apply for his Rights Entitlement in part (without renouncing the other part);
- Apply for his Rights Entitlement in full and apply for additional Rights Equity Shares;
- Apply for his Rights Entitlement in part and renounce the other part of the Rights Equity Shares; and
- Renounce his Rights Entitlement in full.

In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, (a) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares may also apply in this Issue during the Issue Period.

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION THROUGH THE ASBA PROCESS

Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue through ASBA process, may submit the Application Form to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts.

Investors should ensure that they have correctly submitted the Application Form, or have otherwise provided an authorisation to the SCSB, via the electronic mode, for blocking funds in the ASBA Account equivalent to the Application Money mentioned in the Application Form, as the case may be, at the time of submission of the Application.

SELF-CERTIFIED SYNDICATE BANKS

For the list of banks which have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process, please refer to https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34. For details on Designated Branches of SCSBs collecting the Application Form, please refer the above-mentioned link. Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012 within the periods stipulated therein, ASBA Applications may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs, in case of Applications made through ASBA facility.

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS ISSUE

Investors may accept this Issue and apply for the Rights Equity Shares submitting the Application Form to the Designated Branch of the



SCSB or online/electronic Application through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts. Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchanges.

Applications submitted to anyone other than the Designated Branches of the SCSB or using the optional mechanism are liable to be rejected.

Investors can also make Basis of Allotment mentioning all necessary details as mentioned under the section *"Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process"* on page 89.

ADDITIONAL RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES

Investors are eligible to apply for additional Rights Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements, provided that they are eligible to apply for Rights Equity Shares under applicable law and they have applied for all the Rights Equity Shares forming part of their Rights Entitlements without renouncing them in whole or in part. Applications for additional Rights Equity Shares shall be considered and allotment shall be made at the sole discretion of the Board, subject to applicable sectoral caps, and in consultation, if necessary, with the Designated Stock Exchange and in the manner prescribed under the section titled "*Terms of the Issue*" on page 80. Applications for additional Rights Equity Shares shall be considered and Allotment shall be made in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in the manner prescribed under the section "*Basis of Allotment*" on page 97.

Eligible Equity Shareholders who renounce their Rights Entitlements cannot apply for additional Rights Equity Shares.

PROCEDURE FOR RENUNCIATION OF RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS

The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts, either in full or in part (a) by using the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges; or (b) through an off - market transfer, during the Renunciation Period. The Investors should have the demat Rights Entitlements credited/lying in his/her own demat account prior to the renunciation.

Investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result of trading in the Rights Entitlements. Investors who intend to trade in the Rights Entitlements should consult their tax advisor or stock broker regarding any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expenses (including brokerage) that may be levied for trading in Rights Entitlements. Our Company accept no responsibility to bear or pay any cost, applicable taxes, charges and expenses (including brokerage), and such costs will be incurred solely by the Investors.

(a) On Market Renunciation

The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts by trading/selling them on the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges through a registered stock broker in the same manner as the existing Equity Shares of our Company.

In this regard, in terms of provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the Rights Entitlements credited to the respective demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges under ISIN INE300B20014 subject to requisite approvals. The details for trading in Rights Entitlements will be as specified by the Stock Exchanges from time to time. The Rights Entitlements are tradable in dematerialized form only. The market lot for trading of Rights Entitlements is [50] Rights Entitlement.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place only during the Renunciation Period for On Market Renunciation, i.e., February 06, 2024 to February 08, 2024 (both days inclusive). The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to sell their Rights Entitlements will have to do so through their registered stock brokers by quoting the ISIN INE300B20014 and indicating the details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to sell. The Investors can place order for sale of Rights Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements available in their demat account.

The On Market Renunciation shall take place electronically on secondary market platform of BSE under automatic order matching mechanism and on 'T+2 rolling settlement basis', where 'T' refers to the date of trading. The transactions will be settled on trade-for-trade basis. Upon execution of the order, the stock broker will issue a contract note in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges and the SEBI.

(b) Off Market Renunciation

The Investors may renounce the Rights Entitlements, credited to their respective demat accounts by way of an off-market transfer through a depository participant. The Rights Entitlements can be transferred in dematerialised form only. Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.



The Investors holding the Rights Entitlements who desire to transfer their Rights Entitlements will have to do so through their depository participant by issuing a delivery instruction slip quoting the ISIN INE300B20014, the details of the buyer and the details of the Rights Entitlements they intend to transfer. The buyer of the Rights Entitlements (unless already having given a standing receipt instruction) has to issue a receipt instruction slip to their depository participant. The Investors can transfer Rights Entitlements only to the extent of Rights Entitlements available in their demat account.

The instructions for transfer of Rights Entitlements can be issued during the working hours of the depository participants. The detailed rules for transfer of Rights Entitlements through off-market transfer shall be as specified by the NSDL and CDSL from time to time.

APPLICATIONS ON PLAIN PAPER UNDER ASBA PROCESS

An Eligible Equity Shareholder who has neither received the Application Form nor is in a position to obtain the Application Form either from our Company, Registrar to the Issue or from the website of the Registrar, can make an Application to subscribe to the Issue on plain paper through ASBA process. Eligible Equity Shareholders shall submit the plain paper application to the Designated Branch of the SCSB for authorizing such SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the amount payable on the application in the said bank account maintained with the same SCSB. Applications on plain paper will not be accepted from any address outside India.

The envelope should be super scribed "INDIAN INFOTECH & SOFTWARE LIMITED-Rights Issue" and should be postmarked in India. The application on plain paper, duly signed by the Eligible Equity Shareholders including joint holders, in the same order and as per the specimen recorded with our Company/Depositories, must reach the office of the Registrar to the Issue before the Issue Closing Date and should contain the following particulars:

Please note that the Eligible Equity Shareholders who are making the Application on plain paper shall not be entitled to renounce their Rights Entitlements and should not utilize the Application Form for any purpose including renunciation even if it is received subsequently. may make an Application to subscribe to the Issue on plain paper, along with an account payee cheque or demand draft drawn at par, net of bank and postal charges, payable at Mumbai and the Investor should send such plain paper Application by registered post directly to the Registrar to the Issue. For details of the mode of payment, see "*Modes of Payment*" on page 80.

The application on plain paper, duly signed by the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders, in the same order and as per specimen recorded with his bank, must reach the office of the Designated Branch of the SCSB before the Issue Closing Date and should contain the following particulars:

• Name of Issuer,

• Name and address of the Eligible Equity Shareholder including joint holders (in the same order and as per specimen recorded with our Company or the Depository);

- Registered Folio Number/ DP and Client ID No.;
- Number of Equity Shares held as on Record Date;
- Allotment option preferred only Demat form;
- Number of Rights Equity Shares entitled to;
- Number of Rights Equity Shares applied for;
- Number of Additional Rights Equity Shares applied for, if any;
- Total number of Rights Equity Shares applied for within the Right Entitlements;
- Total amount paid at the rate of ₹1.60 per Rights Equity Share;
- Details of the ASBA Account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the relevant SCSB;

• In case of NR Eligible Equity Shareholders making an application with an Indian address, details of the NRE/FCNR/NRO Account such as the account number, name, address and branch of the SCSB with which the account is maintained;

• Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, the residents of Sikkim and officials appointed by the courts, PAN of the Eligible Equity Shareholder and for each Eligible Equity Shareholder in case of joint names, irrespective of the total value of the Rights Equity Shares applied for pursuant to the Issue. Documentary evidence for exemption to be provided by the applicants;



- Authorisation to the Designated Branch of the SCSB to block an amount equivalent to the Application Money in the ASBA Account;
- Signature of the Eligible Equity Shareholder (in case of joint holders, to appear in the same sequence and order as they appear in the records of the SCSB);
- Additionally, all such Applicants are deemed to have accepted the following:

"I/We understand that neither the Rights Entitlement nor the Rights Equity Shares have been, and will be, registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended ("US Securities Act") or any United States state securities laws, and may not be offered, sold, resold or otherwise transferred within the United States or to the territories or possessions thereof ("United States") or to, or for the account or benefit of a United States person as defined in the Regulation S of the US Securities Act ("Regulation S"). I/ we understand the Rights Equity Shares referred to in this application are being offered in India but not in the United States. I/ we understand the offering to which this application relates is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement for sale in the United States, or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy any of the said Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement in the United States. Accordingly, I/ we understand this application should not be forwarded to or transmitted in or to the United States at any time. I/ we confirm that I/ we are not in the United States and understand that neither us, nor the Registrar or any other person acting on behalf of us will accept subscriptions from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who we, the Registrar or any other person acting on behalf of us have reason to believe is a resident of the United States "U.S. Person" (as defined in Regulation S) or is ineligible to participate in the Issue under the securities laws of their jurisdiction.

"I/We will not offer, sell or otherwise transfer any of the Equity Shares which may be acquired by us in any jurisdiction or under any circumstances in which such offer or sale is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer, sale or invitation except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws or regulations. We satisfy, and each account for which we are acting satisfies, all suitability standards for investors in investments of the type subscribed for herein imposed by the jurisdiction of our residence.

I/ We understand and agree that the Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares may not be reoffered, resold, pledged or otherwise transferred except in an offshore transaction in compliance with Regulation S, or otherwise pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act.

I/We (i) am/are, and the person, if any, for whose account I/we am/are acquiring such Rights Entitlement, and/or the Equity Shares, is/are outside the United States or a Qualified Institutional Buyer (as defined in the US Securities Act), and (ii) is/are acquiring the Rights Entitlement and/or the Equity Shares in an offshore transaction meeting the requirements of Regulation S or in a transaction exempt from, or not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act.

I/We acknowledge that the Company, their affiliates and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing representations and agreements."

In cases where multiple Application Forms are submitted for Applications pertaining to Rights Entitlements credited to the same demat account or in demat suspense escrow account, including cases where an Investor submits Application Forms along with a plain paper Application, such Applications shall be liable to be rejected.

Investors are requested to strictly adhere to these instructions. Failure to do so could result in an Application being rejected, with our Company and the Registrar not having any liability to the Investor. The plain paper Application format will be available on the website of the Registrar at www.purvashare.com. Our Company and the Registrar shall not be responsible if the Applications are not uploaded by SCSB or funds are not blocked in the Investors' ASBA Accounts on or before the Issue Closing Date.

LAST DATE FOR APPLICATION

The last date for submission of the duly filled in Application Form is the Issue Closing Date i.e., Tuesday, 13th February, 2024. Our Board or any committee thereof may extend the said date for such period as it may determine from time to time, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, and subject to the Issue Period not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date i.e. Tuesday, 06th February, 2024

If the Application together with the amount payable is either (i) not blocked with an SCSB; or (ii) not received by the Bankers to the Issue or the Registrar on or before the close of banking hours on the Issue Closing Date or such date as may be extended by our Board or any committee thereof, the invitation to offer contained in the Letter of Offer shall be deemed to have been declined and our Board or any committee thereof shall be at liberty to dispose of the Equity Shares hereby offered, as provided under "*Terms of the Issue - Basis of Allotment*" on page 97.

MODES OF PAYMENT

All payments against the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility or internet banking or UPI facility, the optional



mechanism devised. The Registrar will not accept any payments against the Application Forms, if such payments are not made through ASBA facility or internet banking or UPI facility.

MODE OF PAYMENT FOR RESIDENT INVESTORS

All payments against the Application Forms shall be made only through ASBA facility or internet banking or UPI facility if applying through the optional mechanism. The Registrar will not accept any payments against the Application Forms, if such payments are not made through ASBA facility or internet banking or UPI facility.

MODE OF PAYMENT FOR NON-RESIDENT INVESTORS

As regards Applications by Non-Resident Investors, the following conditions shall apply:

Individual non-resident Indian Applicants who are permitted to subscribe to Rights Equity Shares by applicable local securities laws can obtain Application Forms on the websites of the Registrar or our Company.

Note: In case of non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form shall be sent to their email addresses if they have provided their Indian address to our Company or if they are located in certain jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions. The Letter of Offer will be provided, only through email, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company or who are located in jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under laws of such jurisdictions and in each case, who make a request in this regard. Non-Resident Investors shall send their Right Entitlement credit request with ID proof to the Registrar to the Issue at support@purvashare.com.

- Application Forms will not be accepted from non-resident Investors in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale of the Rights Entitlements and Rights Equity Shares may be restricted by applicable securities laws.
- Payment by non-residents must be made only through ASBA facility and using permissible accounts in accordance with FEMA, FEMA Rules and requirements prescribed by the RBI.
- Eligible Non-Resident Equity Shareholders applying on a repatriation basis by using the Non-Resident Forms should authorize their SCSB to block their Non-Resident External ("NRE") accounts, or Foreign Currency Non-Resident ("FCNR") Accounts, and Eligible Non-Resident Equity Shareholders applying on a non-repatriation basis by using Resident Forms should authorize their SCSB to block their Non-Resident Ordinary ("NRO") accounts for the full amount payable, at the time of the submission of the Application Form to the SCSB. Applications received from NRIs and non-residents for allotment of the Rights Equity Shares shall be inter alia, subject to the conditions imposed from time to time by the RBI under the FEMA in the matter of refund of Application Money, allotment of Rights Equity Shares and issue of letter of allotment. If an NR or NRI Investors has specific approval from RBI, in connection with his shareholding, he should enclose a copy of such approval with the Application Form.

APPLICATION BY ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM

Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialised form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date i.e. Monday, January 29, 2024 and desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares in this Issue are advised to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company, in the manner provided on the website of the Registrar to the Issue at www.purvashare.com at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date i.e., Tuesday, 13th February, 2024. They may also communicate with the Registrar with the help of the helpline numbers +91 22 49614132; +91 22 49700138; +91 22 3199 8810 and their email address support@purvashare.com.

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, the Rights Entitlements of those resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, among others, who hold Equity Shares in physical form, and whose demat account details are not available with our Company or the Registrar, shall be credited in a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company.

In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, (a) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e. Tuesday, 13th February, 2024, desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares may also apply in this Issue during the Issue Period. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders must check the procedure for Application by and credit of Rights Equity Shares in Section Terms of the Issue- "Procedure for Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form" and "Credit and Transfer of Rights Equity Shares in case of Shareholders holding Equity Shares in Physical Form and disposal of Rights Equity Shares for non-receipt of demat account details in a timely manner" on page 80.



PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATION BY ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM

Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date i.e. Monday, January 29, 2024 and who have opened their demat accounts after the Record Date, shall adhere to following procedure for participating in this Issue:

- (a) The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall send a letter to the Registrar containing the name(s), address, email address, contact details and the details of their demat account along with copy of self-attested PAN and self-attested client master sheet of their demat account either by email, post, speed post, courier, or hand delivery so as to reach to the Registrar no later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date i.e. Tuesday, 13th February, 2024.
- (b) The Registrar shall, after verifying the details of such demat account, transfer the Rights Entitlements of such Eligible Equity Shareholders to their demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date i.e. Tuesday, 13th February, 2024;
- (c) The Eligible Equity Shareholders can access the Application Form from:

the website of the Registrar at: <u>www.purvashare.com</u>;

our Company at: www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in and

the Stock Exchanges at: www.bseindia.com

Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar (i.e., <u>www.purvashare.com</u>) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form). The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e., <u>www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in</u>);

The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall, who are, (a) Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date, and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date i.e. [Tuesday, 13th February, 2024], may also apply in this Issue during the Issue Period by filling the online Application Form and make online payment using their internet banking or UPI facility from their own bank account thereat, on or before the Issue Closing Date i.e. [Tuesday, 13th February, 2024]. Such resident Eligible Equity Shareholders may be required to submit address, email address, contact details, copy of PAN and Client Master List, for verification of their Application. Further, such resident Eligible Equity Shareholder can:

- (a) apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements;
- (b) apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the extent of part of its Rights Entitlements (without renouncing the other part); and
- (c) apply for its Rights Equity Shares to the full extent of its Rights Entitlements and apply for additional Rights Equity Shares.

PLEASE NOTE THAT NON-RESIDENT ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, WHO HOLD EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM AS ON RECORD DATE i.e. MONDAY, JANUARY 29, 2024. AND WHO HAVE NOT FURNISHED THE DETAILS OF THEIR RESPECTIVE DEMAT ACCOUNTS TO THE REGISTRAR OR OUR COMPANY AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE, SHALL NOT BE ELIGIBLE TO MAKE AN APPLICATION FOR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES AGAINST THEIR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS WITH RESPECT TO THE EQUITY SHARES HELD IN PHYSICAL FORM.

For details of credit of the Rights Equity Shares to such resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, see "Credit and Transfer of Rights Equity Shares in case of Shareholders holding Equity Shares in Physical Form and disposal of Rights Equity Shares for non-receipt of demat account details in a timely manner" on page 80.

ALLOTMENT OF THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR IN THIS ISSUE CAN BE ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IN WHICH OUR EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH INVESTOR ON THE RECORD DATE i.e. MONDAY, JANUARY 29, 2024.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR INVESTORS

a. Please read the Letter of Offer and Application Form carefully to understand the Application process and applicable settlement



process.

b. In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, (a) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date i.e. Tuesday, 13th February, 2024, desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares may also apply in this Issue during the Issue Period. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders must check the procedure for Application by and credit of Rights Equity Shares in Section Terms of the Issue-*"Procedure for Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form "* and *"Credit and Transfer of Rights Equity Shares in case of Shareholders holding Equity Shares in Physical Form and disposal of Rights Equity Shares for non-receipt of demat account details in a timely manner"* on page 80.

c. Please read the instructions on the Application Form sent to you.

d. The Application Form can be used by both the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Renouncees.

e. Application should be made only through the ASBA facility.

f. Application should be complete in all respects. The Application Form found incomplete with regard to any of the particulars required to be given therein, and/or which are not completed in conformity with the terms of the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form are liable to be rejected.

g. In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and ASBA Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to use either the ASBA process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before making their Application through ASBA.

h. An Investor, wishing to participate in this Issue through the ASBA facility, is required to have an ASBA enabled bank account with an SCSB, prior to making the Application.

Applications should be submitted to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or made online/electronic through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts. Please note that on the Issue Closing Date i.e. Tuesday, 13th February, 2024, (i) Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchanges, and (ii) the optional facility will be available until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchanges.

j. Applications should not be submitted to the Bankers to the Issue or Escrow Collection Bank (assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not an SCSB), our Company or the Registrar.

k. In case of Application through ASBA facility, Investors are required to provide necessary details, including details of the ASBA Account, authorization to the SCSB to block an amount equal to the Application Money in the ASBA Account mentioned in the Application Form.

1. All Applicants, and in the case of Application in joint names, each of the joint Applicants, should mention their PAN allotted under the Income-tax Act, irrespective of the amount of the Application. Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or the State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts, Applications without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected. With effect from August 16, 2010, the demat accounts for Investors for which PAN details have not been verified shall be "suspended for credit" and no Allotment and credit of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue shall be made into the accounts of such Investors.

m. In case of Application through ASBA facility, all payments will be made only by blocking the amount in the ASBA Account. Furthermore, in case of Applications submitted using the optional facility, payments shall be made using internet banking or UPI facility. Cash payment or payment by cheque or demand draft or pay order or NEFT or RTGS or through any other mode is not acceptable for application through ASBA process. In case payment is made in contravention of this, the Application will be deemed invalid and the Application Money will be refunded and no interest will be paid thereon.

n. For physical Applications through ASBA at Designated Branches of SCSB, signatures should be either in English or Hindi or in any other language specified in the Eighth Schedule to the Constitution of India. Signatures other than in any such language or thumb impression must be attested by a Notary Public or a Special Executive Magistrate under his/her official seal. The Investors must sign the Application as per the specimen signature recorded with the SCSB.

o. In case of joint holders and physical Applications through ASBA process, all joint holders must sign the relevant part of the Application Form in the same order and as per the specimen signature(s) recorded with the SCSB. In case of joint Applicants, reference, if any, will be made in the first Applicant's name and all communication will be addressed to the first Applicant.



p. All communication in connection with Application for the Rights Equity Shares, including any change in address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar prior to the date of Allotment in this Issue quoting the name of the first/sole Applicant, folio numbers/DP ID and Client ID and Application Form number, as applicable. In case of any change in address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Eligible Equity Shareholders should also send the intimation for such change to the respective depository participant, or to our Company or the Registrar in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form.

q. Only persons outside restricted jurisdictions and who are eligible to subscribe for Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws are eligible to participate.

r. Please note that subject to SCSBs complying with the requirements of SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/13/2012 dated September 25, 2012 within the periods stipulated therein, Applications made through ASBA facility may be submitted at the Designated Branches of the SCSBs. Application through ASBA facility in electronic mode will only be available with such SCSBs who provide such facility.

s. In terms of the SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2013 dated January 2, 2013, it is clarified that for making applications by banks on their own account using ASBA facility, SCSBs should have a separate account in own name with any other SEBI registered SCSB(s). Such account shall be used solely for the purpose of making application in public/ rights issues and clear demarcated funds should be available in such account for ASBA applications.

Do's:

(a) Ensure that the Application Form and necessary details are filled in.

(b) Except for Application submitted on behalf of the Central or the State Government, residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts, each Applicant should mention their PAN allotted under the Income-tax Act.

(c) Ensure that the demographic details such as address, PAN, DP ID, Client ID, bank account details and occupation (**"Demographic Details"**) are updated, true and correct, in all respects.

(d) Investors should provide correct DP ID and client ID/ folio number while submitting the Application. Such DP ID and Client ID/ folio number should match the demat account details in the records available with Company and/or Registrar, failing which such Application is liable to be rejected. Investor will be solely responsible for any error or inaccurate detail provided in the Application. Our Company, SCSBs or the Registrar will not be liable for any such rejections.

Don'ts:

- (a) Do not apply if you are ineligible to participate in this Issue under the securities laws applicable to your jurisdiction.
- (b) Do not submit the GIR number instead of the PAN as the application is liable to be rejected on this ground.
- (c) Avoid applying on the Issue Closing Date due to risk of delay/ restrictions in making any physical Application.
- (d) Do not pay the Application Money in cash, by money order, pay order or postal order.
- (e) Do not submit multiple Applications.

Do's for Investors applying through ASBA:

(a) Ensure that the details about your Depository Participant and beneficiary account are correct and the beneficiary account is activated as the Rights Equity Shares will be Allotted in the dematerialized form only.

(b) Ensure that the Applications are submitted with the Designated Branch of the SCSBs and details of the correct bank account have been provided in the Application.

(c) Ensure that there are sufficient funds (equal to {number of Rights Equity Shares (including additional Rights Equity Shares) applied for} X {Application Money of Rights Equity Shares}) available in ASBA Account mentioned in the Application Form before submitting the Application to the respective Designated Branch of the SCSB.

(d) Ensure that you have authorised the SCSB for blocking funds equivalent to the total amount payable on application mentioned in the Application Form, in the ASBA Account, of which details are provided in the Application and have signed the same.

(e) Ensure that you have a bank account with an SCSB providing ASBA facility in your location and the Application is made through



that SCSB providing ASBA facility in such location.

(f) Ensure that you receive an acknowledgement from the Designated Branch of the SCSB for your submission of the Application Form in physical form or plain paper Application.

(g) Ensure that the name(s) given in the Application Form is exactly the same as the name(s) in which the beneficiary account is held with the Depository Participant. In case the Application Form is submitted in joint names, ensure that the beneficiary account is also held in same joint names and such names are in the same sequence in which they appear in the Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter.

Don'ts for Investors applying through ASBA:

a) Do not submit the Application Form after you have submitted a plain paper Application to a Designated Branch of the SCSB or vice versa.

b) Do not send your physical Application to the Registrar, the Escrow Collection Bank (assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not an SCSB), a branch of the SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB or our Company; instead submit the same to a Designated Branch of the SCSB only.

c) Do not instruct the SCSBs to unblock the funds blocked under the ASBA process.

GROUNDS FOR TECHNICAL REJECTION

Applications made in this Issue are liable to be rejected on the following grounds:

(a) DP ID and Client ID mentioned in Application not matching with the DP ID and Client ID records available with the Registrar.

(b) Sending an Application to the Registrar, Escrow Collection Banks (assuming that such Escrow Collection Bank is not a SCSB), to a branch of a SCSB which is not a Designated Branch of the SCSB or our Company.

(c) Insufficient funds are available in the ASBA Account with the SCSB for blocking the Application Money.

(d) Funds in the ASBA Account whose details are mentioned in the Application Form having been frozen pursuant to regulatory orders.

(e) Account holder not signing the Application or declaration mentioned therein.

(f) Submission of more than one application Form for Rights Entitlements available in a particular demat account.

(g) Multiple Application Forms, including cases where an Investor submits Application Forms along with a plain paper Application.

(h) Submitting the GIR number instead of the PAN (except for Applications on behalf of the Central or State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts).

(i) Applications by persons not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act, 1872, except Applications by minors having valid demat accounts as per the demographic details provided by the Depositories.

(j) Applications by SCSB on own account, other than through an ASBA Account in its own name with any other SCSB.

(k) Application Forms which are not submitted by the Investors within the time periods prescribed in the Application Form and the Letter of Offer.

(l) Physical Application Forms not duly signed by the sole or joint Investors.

(m) Application Forms accompanied by stock invest, outstation cheques, post-dated cheques, money order, postal order or outstation demand drafts.

(n) If an Investor is (a) debarred by SEBI; or (b) if SEBI has revoked the order or has provided any interim relief then failure to attach a copy of such SEBI order allowing the Investor to subscribe to their Rights Entitlements.

Applications which have evidence of being executed or made in contravention of applicable securities laws.



IT IS MANDATORY FOR ALL THE INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE TO APPLY THROUGH THE ASBA PROCESS, TO RECEIVE THEIR RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM AND TO THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY THE INVESTOR AS ON THE RECORD DATE i.e. MONDAY, JANUARY 29, 2024 . ALL INVESTORS APPLYING UNDER THIS ISSUE SHOULD MENTION THEIR DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT'S NAME, DP ID AND BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER/ FOLIO NUMBER IN THE APPLICATION FORM. INVESTORS MUST ENSURE THAT THE NAME GIVEN IN THE APPLICATION FORM IS EXACTLY THE SAME AS THE NAME IN WHICH THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS HELD. IN CASE THE APPLICATION FORM IS SUBMITTED IN JOINT NAMES, IT SHOULD BE ENSURED THAT THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT IS ALSO HELD IN THE SAME JOINT NAMES AND ARE IN THE SAME SEQUENCE IN WHICH THEY APPEAR IN THE APPLICATION FORM OR PLAIN PAPER APPLICATIONS, AS THE CASE MAY BE.

Investors applying under this Issue should note that on the basis of name of the Investors, Depository Participant's name and identification number and beneficiary account number provided by them in the Application Form or the plain paper Applications, as the case may be, the Registrar will obtain Demographic Details from the Depository. Hence, Investors applying under this Issue should carefully fill in their Depository Account details in the Application.

These Demographic Details would be used for all correspondence with such Investors including mailing of the letters intimating unblocking of bank account of the respective Investor and/or refund. The Demographic Details given by the Investors in the Application Form would not be used for any other purposes by the Registrar. Hence, Investors are advised to update their Demographic Details as provided to their Depository Participants. By signing the Application Forms, the Investors would be deemed to have authorised the Depositories to provide, upon request, to the Registrar, the required Demographic Details as available on its records.

The Allotment advice and the email intimating unblocking of ASBA Account or refund (if any) would be emailed to the address of the Investor as per the email address provided to our Company or the Registrar or Demographic Details received from the Depositories. The Registrar will give instructions to the SCSBs for unblocking funds in the ASBA Account to the extent Rights Equity Shares are not Allotted to such Investor. Please note that any such delay shall be at the sole risk of the Investors and none of our Company, the SCSBs or Registrar shall be liable to compensate the Investor for any losses caused due to any such delay or be liable to pay any interest for such delay.

In case no corresponding record is available with the Depositories that match three parameters, (a) names of the Investors (including the order of names of joint holders), (b) the DP ID, and (c) the beneficiary account number, then such Application Forms s are liable to be rejected.

MULTIPLE APPLICATIONS

A separate Application can be made in respect of each scheme of a Mutual Fund registered with the SEBI and such Applications shall not be treated as multiple applications.

In cases where multiple Applications are submitted, including cases where an Investor submits Application Forms along with a plain paper Application or multiple plain paper Applications, such Applications shall be treated as multiple applications and are liable to be rejected (other than multiple applications submitted by any of the Promoters or members of the Promoter Group to meet the minimum subscription requirements applicable to the Issue as described in "*Capital Structure- Intention and extent of participation by our Promoters and Promoter Group*" on page 34).

UNDERWRITING

The Issue is not underwritten.

ISSUE SCHEDULE

Issue Opening Date	Tuesday, 6 February, 2024
Last date for on-market renunciation of rights / Date of closure of trading of Rights Entitlements	Thursday, 8 February, 2024
Issue Closing Date	Tuesday, 13 February, 2024
Finalising the basis of allotment with the Designated Stock Exchange	Thursday, 15 February, 2024
Date of Allotment (on or about)	Thursday, 15 February, 2024
Date of credit (on or about)	Monday, 19 February, 2024
Date of listing (on or about)	Monday, 26 February, 2024

*Our Board may, however, decide to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date).

**Investors are advised to ensure that the Application Forms are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Our Company and/or the Registrar to the Issue will not be liable for any loss on account of non-submission of Application Forms or on before the Issue Closing Date.

INDIAN INFOTECH & SOFTWARE LTD.

BASIS OF ALLOTMENT

Subject to the provisions contained in this Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter, the Articles of Association of our Company and the approval of the Designated Stock Exchange, our Board will proceed to allot the Rights Equity Shares in the following order of priority:

- a) Full Allotment to those Eligible Equity Shareholders who have applied for their Rights Entitlements of Rights Equity Shares either in full or in part and also to the Renouncee(s) who has or have applied for Rights Equity Shares renounced in their favour, in full or in part.
- b) Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored and Eligible Equity Shareholders with zero entitlement, would be given preference in allotment of one additional Rights Equity Share each if they apply for additional Rights Equity Shares. Allotment under this head shall be considered if there are any unsubscribed Rights Equity Shares after allotment under (a) above. If number of Rights Equity Shares required for Allotment under this head are more than the number of Rights Equity Shares available after Allotment under (a) above, the Allotment would be made on a fair and equitable basis in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange and will not be a preferential allotment.
- c) Allotment to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who having applied for all the Rights Equity Shares offered to them as part of this Issue, have also applied for additional Rights Equity Shares. The Allotment of such additional Rights Equity Shares will be made as far as possible on an equitable basis having due regard to the number of Equity Shares held by them on the Record Date, provided there are any unsubscribed Rights Equity Shares after making full Allotment in (a) and (b) above. The Allotment of such Rights Equity Shares will be at the sole discretion of our Board in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of this Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.
- d) Allotment to Renounces who having applied for all the Rights Equity Shares renounced in their favour, have applied for additional Rights Equity Shares provided there is surplus available after making full Allotment under (a), (b) and (c) above. The Allotment of such Rights Equity Shares will be made on a proportionate basis in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, as a part of this Issue and will not be a preferential allotment.
- e) Allotment to any other person, that our Board may deem fit, provided there is surplus available after making Allotment under (a), (b), (c) and (d) above, and the decision of our Board in this regard shall be final and binding.
- After taking into account Allotment to be made under (a) to (d) above, if there is any unsubscribed portion, the same shall be deemed to be 'unsubscribed'.
- Upon approval of the Basis of Allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange, the Registrar shall send to the Designated Branches, a list of the ASBA Investors who have been Allotted Rights Equity Shares in the Issue, along with:
- (a) The amount to be transferred from the ASBA Account to the separate bank account opened by our Company for the Issue, for each successful ASBA Application;
- (b) The date by which the funds referred to above, shall be transferred to the aforesaid bank account; and
- (c) The details of rejected ASBA Applications, if any, to enable the SCSBs to unblock the respective ASBA Accounts.

In the event of over subscription, Allotment shall be made within the overall size of the Issue.

ALLOTMENT ADVICES/REFUND ORDERS

Our Company will issue and dispatch Allotment advice, refund instructions (including in respect of Applications made through the optional facility) or demat credit of securities and/or letters of regret, along with crediting the Allotted Rights Equity Shares to the respective beneficiary accounts (only in dematerialised mode) or in a demat suspense account (in respect of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form on the Allottment Date) or unblocking the funds in the respective ASBA Accounts, if any, within a period of 15 days from the Issue Closing Date i.e. Tuesday, 13th February, 2024. In case of failure to do so, our Company shall pay interest at 15% p.a. and such other rate as specified under applicable law from the expiry of such 15 days' period.



Investors residing at centres where clearing houses are managed by the RBI will get refunds through National Automated Clearing House ("NACH") except where Investors have not provided the details required to send electronic refunds or where the investors are otherwise disclosed as applicable or eligible to get refunds through direct credit and real-time gross settlement ("RTGS").

In case of those investors who have opted to receive their Rights Entitlement in dematerialized form using electronic credit under the depository system, and the Allotment advice regarding their credit of the Rights Equity Shares shall be sent at the address recorded with the Depository. Investors to whom refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds will be sent a letter through ordinary post intimating them about the mode of credit of refund within 15 days of the Issue Closing Date i.e. Tuesday, 13th February, 2024.

- In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the option to receive the Rights Equity Shares in physical form was available only for a period of six months from the date of coming into force of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, i.e., until May 10, 2019. Since Allotment in this Issue will occur subsequent to May 10, 2019, the entitlement of Rights Equity Shares to be Allotted to the Applicants who have applied for Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares in physical form will be kept in abeyance in electronic mode by our Company until six months.
- The letter of allotment or refund order would be sent by registered post or speed post to the sole/ first Investor's address provided by the Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company. Such refund orders would be payable at par at all places where the Applications were originally accepted. The same would be marked 'Account Payee only' and would be drawn in favor of the sole/ first Investor. Adequate funds would be made available to the Registrar for this purpose.

Credit and Transfer of Rights Equity Shares in case of Shareholders holding Equity Shares in Physical Form and disposal of Rights Equity Shares for non-receipt of demat account details in a timely manner

- In case of Allotment to resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date i.e. Monday, January 29, 2024], have paid the Application Money and have not provided the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date i.e. Tuesday, 13th February, 2024, the following procedure shall be adhered to:
- (a) the Registrar shall send Allotment advice and credit the Rights Equity Shares to a demat suspense account opened by our Company;
- (b) within 6 (six) months from the Allotment Date, such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be required to send a communication to our Company or the Registrar containing the name(s), Indian address, email address, contact details and the details of their demat account along with copy of self-attested PAN and self-attested client master sheet of their demat account either by post, speed post, courier, electronic mail or hand delivery;
- (c) Our Company (with the assistance of the Registrar) shall, after verification of the details of such demat account by the Registrar, transfer the Rights Equity Shares from the demat suspense account to the demat accounts of such Eligible Equity Shareholders;
- (d) In case of non-receipt of details of demat account as per (b) above, our Company shall conduct a sale of such Rights Equity Shares lying in the demat suspense account on the floor of the Stock Exchanges at the prevailing market price and remit the proceeds of such sale (net of brokerage, applicable taxes and administrative and incidental charges) to the bank account mentioned by the resident Eligible Equity Shareholders in their respective Application Forms and from which the payment for Application Money was made. In case such bank accounts cannot be identified due to any reason or bounce back from such account, our Company may use payment mechanisms such as cheques, demand drafts, etc. to such Eligible Equity Shareholders to remit such proceeds. Such Rights Equity Shares may be sold over such period of time as may be required, depending on liquidity and other market conditions on the floor of the Stock Exchanges after the expiry of the period mentioned under (b) above. Therefore, such proceeds (net of brokerage, applicable taxes and administrative and incidental charges) by way of sale of such Rights Equity Shares may be higher or lower than the Application Money paid by such Eligible Equity Shareholders;
- (e) Our Company shall send reminder notices seeking the requisite details of demat account prior to expiry of time period under (b) above, in due course, to such resident Eligible Equity Shareholders who have not provided the requisite details. After expiry of time period under (b) above, our Company or the Registrar shall not accept any requests by such Eligible Equity Shareholders for updation of details of demat account under any circumstances, including in case of failure to sell such Rights Equity Shares;
- (f) After the consummation of the sale of Rights Equity Shares on the floor of the Stock Exchanges, our Company shall send an intimation to the respective Eligible Equity Shareholders, giving details of such sale, including the sale price and break-up of net brokerage, taxes and administrative and incidental charges; and
- (g) If at the time of transfer of sale proceeds for default cases, the bank account from which Application Money was received is closed or non-operational, such sale proceeds will be transferred to IEPF in accordance with practice on Equity Shares and as per applicable law.



(h) In case the details of demat account provided by the Eligible Equity Shareholders are not of his/ her own demat account, the Rights Equity Shares shall be subject to sale process specified under (d) above.

Notes:

- 1. Our Company will open a separate demat suspense account to credit the Rights Equity Shares in respect of such Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date i.e. Monday, January 29, 2024 and have not provided details of their demat accounts to our Company or the Registrar, at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e. Tuesday, 13th February, 2024. Our Company, with the assistance of the Registrar, will initiate transfer of such Rights Equity Shares from the demat suspense account to the demat account of such Eligible Equity Shareholders, upon receipt of details of demat accounts from the Eligible Equity Shareholders.
- 2. The Eligible Equity Shareholders cannot trade in such Rights Equity Shares until the receipt of demat account details and transfer to such Eligible Equity Shareholders' respective account.
- 3. There will be no voting rights against such Rights Equity Shares kept in the demat suspense account. However, the respective Eligible Equity Shareholders will be eligible to receive dividends, if declared, in respect of such Rights Equity Shares in proportion to amount paid-up on the Rights Equity Shares, as permitted under applicable laws.
- 4. Investors may be subject to adverse foreign, state or local tax or legal consequences as a result of buying or selling of Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements. The Eligible Equity Shareholders should obtain their own independent tax and legal advice and may not rely on our Company or any of their affiliates including any of their respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees, counsels, representatives, agents or affiliates when evaluating the tax consequences in relation to the Rights Equity Shares (including but not limited to any applicable short-term capital gains tax, or any other applicable taxes or charges in case of any gains made by such Eligible Equity Shareholders from the sale of such Rights Equity Shares).
- 5. Our Company, its directors, its employees, affiliates, associates and their respective directors and officers and the Registrar shall not be liable in any manner and not be responsible for acts, mistakes, errors, omissions and commissions, etc., in relation to any delay in furnishing details of demat account by such Eligible Equity Shareholders, any resultant loss to the Eligible Equity Shareholders due to sale of the Rights Equity Shares, if such details are not correct, demat account is frozen or not active or in case of non-availability of details of bank account of such Eligible Equity Shareholders, profit or loss to such Eligible Equity Shareholders due to aforesaid process, tax deductions or other costs charged by our Company, or on account of aforesaid process in any manner.

PAYMENT OF REFUND

MODE OF MAKING REFUNDS

In case of Applicants not eligible to make an application through ASBA process, the payment of refund, if any, including in the event of oversubscription or failure to list or otherwise would be done through any of the following modes:

1. **National Automated Clearing House ("NACH")** – NACH is a consolidated system of electronic clearing service. Payment of refund would be done through NACH for Applicants having an account at one of the centers specified by the RBI, where such facility has been made available. This would be subject to availability of complete bank account details including MICR code wherever applicable from the depository. The payment of refund through NACH is mandatory for Applicants having a bank account at any of the centers where NACH facility has been made available by the RBI (subject to availability of all information for crediting the refund through NACH including the MICR code as appearing on a cheque leaf, from the Depositories), except where the Applicant is otherwise disclosed as eligible to get refunds through NEFT, Direct Credit or RTGS.

2. **National Electronic Fund Transfer ("NEFT")** – Payment of refund shall be undertaken through NEFT wherever the Investors' bank has been assigned the Indian Financial System Code ("IFSC Code"), which can be linked to a MICR, allotted to that particular bank branch. IFSC Code will be obtained from the website of RBI as on a date immediately prior to the date of payment of refund, duly mapped with MICR numbers. Wherever the Investors have registered their nine-digit MICR number and their bank account number with the Registrar to our Company or with the Depository Participant while opening and operating the demat account, such MICR number and the bank account number will be duly mapped with the IFSC Code of that particular bank branch and the payment of refund will be made to the Investors through this method.

3. **Direct Credit** – Investors having bank accounts with the Bankers to the Issue shall be eligible to receive refunds through direct credit. Charges, if any, levied by the relevant bank(s) for such refund would be borne by our Company.

4. **RTGS** – If the refund amount exceeds ₹ 2 lakhs Investors have the option to receive refund through RTGS. Such eligible Investors who indicate their preference to receive refund through RTGS are required to provide the IFSC Code in the Application Form. In the event



such IFSC Code is not provided, refund shall be made through NACH or any other eligible mode. Charges, if any, levied by the refund bank(s) for such refund would be borne by our Company. Charges, if any, levied by the Investor's bank receiving the credit would be borne by the Investor.

5. For all other Investors, the refund orders will be dispatched through speed post or registered post. Such refunds will be made by cheques, pay orders or demand drafts drawn in favor of the sole/first Investor and payable at par.

6. Credit of refunds to Investors in any other electronic manner, permissible under the banking laws, which are in force, and is permitted by SEBI from time to time.

REFUND PAYMENT TO NON-RESIDENTS

The Application Money will be unblocked in the ASBA Account of the non-resident Applicants, details of which were provided in the Application Form.

PRINTING OF BANK PARTICULARS ON REFUND ORDERS

As a matter of precaution against possible fraudulent encashment of refund orders due to loss or misplacement, the particulars of the Investor's bank account are mandatorily required to be given for printing on the refund orders. Bank account particulars, where available, will be printed on the refund orders or refund warrants which can then be deposited only in the account specified. Our Company will, in no way, be responsible if any loss occurs through these instruments falling into improper hands either through forgery or fraud.

ALLOTMENT ADVICE OR DEMAT CREDIT

The demat credit of securities to the respective beneficiary accounts or the demat suspense account (pending receipt of demat account details for Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form/ with IEPF authority/ in suspense, etc.) will be credited within 15 days from the Issue Closing Date or such other timeline in accordance with applicable laws.

OPTION TO RECEIVE RIGHT EQUITY SHARES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES APPLIED FOR UNDER THIS ISSUE CAN BE ALLOTTED ONLY IN DEMATERIALIZED FORM AND TO (A) THE SAME DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT/ CORRESPONDING PAN IN WHICH THE EQUITY SHARES ARE HELD BY SUCH INVESTOR ON THE RECORD DATE, OR (B) THE DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT, DETAILS OF WHICH HAVE BEEN PROVIDED TO OUR COMPANY OR THE REGISTRAR AT LEAST TWO WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE BY THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDER HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM AS ON THE RECORD DATE, OR (C) DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT PENDING RECEIPT OF DEMAT ACCOUNT DETAILS FOR RESIDENT ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING EQUITY SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM/ WHERE THE CREDIT OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS RETURNED/REVERSED/FAILED.

Investors shall be Allotted the Rights Equity Shares in dematerialized (electronic) form.

INVESTORS MAY PLEASE NOTE THAT THE EQUITY SHARES OF OUR COMPANY CAN BE TRADED ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE ONLY IN DEMATERIALISED FORM.

The procedure for availing the facility for Allotment of Rights Equity Shares in the Issue in the electronic form is as under:

- Open a beneficiary account with any Depository Participant (*care should be taken that the beneficiary account should carry the name of the holder in the same manner as is registered in the records of our Company. In the case of joint holding, the beneficiary account should be opened carrying the names of the holders in the same order as registered in the records of our Company).* In case of Investors having various folios in our Company with different joint holders, the Investors will have to open separate accounts for each such holding. Those Investors who have already opened such beneficiary account(s) need not adhere to this step.
- It should be ensured that the depository account is in the name(s) of the Investors and the names are in the same order as in the records of our Company or the Depositories.
- The responsibility for correctness of information filled in the Application Form vis-a-vis such information with the Investor's depository participant, would rest with the Investor. Investors should ensure that the names of the Investors and the order in which they appear in Application Form should be the same as registered with the Investor's depository participant.
- If incomplete or incorrect beneficiary account details are given in the Application Form, the Investor will not get any Rights Equity Shares and the Application Form will be rejected.



- The Rights Equity Shares will be allotted to Applicants only in dematerialized form and would be directly credited to the beneficiary account as given in the Application Form after verification or demat suspense account (pending receipt of demat account details for resident Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form/ with IEPF authority/ in suspense, etc.). Allotment advice, refund order (if any) would be sent directly to the Applicant by email and, if the printing is feasible, through physical dispatch, by the Registrar but the Applicant's depository participant will provide to him the confirmation of the credit of such Rights Equity Shares to the Applicant's depository account.
- Renounces will also have to provide the necessary details about their beneficiary account for Allotment of Rights Equity Shares in the Issue. In case these details are incomplete or incorrect, the Application is liable to be rejected.
- Non-transferable allotment advice/ refund orders will be sent directly to the Investors by the Registrar to the Issue.
- Dividend or other benefits with respect to the Equity Shares held in dematerialized form would be paid to those Equity Shareholders whose names appear in the list of beneficial owners given by the Depository Participant to our Company as on the date of the book closure.

Resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares in this Issue must check the procedure for application by and credit of Rights Equity Shares to such Eligible Equity Shareholders in Section Terms of the Issue- "Procedure for Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form" and "Credit and Transfer of Rights Equity Shares in case of Shareholders holding Equity Shares in Physical Form" on pages 80, respectively.

INVESTMENT BY FPIS

In terms of the SEBI FPI Regulations, the issue of Equity Shares to a single FPI or an investor group (which means the multiple entities having common ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than 50% or common control) must be below 10% of our post- Issue Equity Share capital. Further, in terms of FEMA Rules, the total holding by each FPI shall be below 10% of the total paid-up equity share capital of a company on a fully-diluted basis and the total holdings of all FPIs put together shall not exceed 24% of the paid-up equity share capital of a company on a fully diluted basis.

Further, pursuant to the FEMA Rules the investments made by a SEBI registered FPI in a listed Indian company will be reclassified as FDI if the total shareholding of such FPI increases to more than 10% of the total paid-up equity share capital on a fully diluted basis or 10% or more of the paid-up value of each series of debentures or preference shares or warrants.

FPIs are permitted to participate in the Issue subject to compliance with conditions and restrictions which may be specified by the Government from time to time. The FPIs who wish to participate in the Issue are advised to use the ASBA Form for non-residents. Subject to compliance with all applicable Indian laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals in terms of Regulation 21 of the SEBI FPI Regulations, only Category I FPIs, may issue, subscribe to or otherwise deal in offshore derivative instruments (as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations as any instrument, by whatever name called, which is issued overseas by an FPI against securities held by it that are listed or proposed to be listed on any recognised stock exchange in India, as its underlying) directly or indirectly, only in the event (i) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only to persons eligible to be registered as Category I FPIs; and (ii) such offshore derivative instruments are issued after compliance with 'know your client' norms. An FPI may transfer offshore derivative instruments to persons compliant with the requirements of Regulation 21(1) of the SEBI FPI Regulations and subject to receipt of consent, except where pre-approval is provided.

All non-resident investors should note that refunds, dividends and other distributions, if any, will be payable in Indian Rupees only and net of bank charges and commission.

INVESTMENT BY SYSTEMICALLY IMPORTANT NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANIES (NBFC - SI)

In case of an application made by Systemically Important NBFCs registered with the RBI, (a) the certificate of registration issued by the RBI under Section 45 –IA of the RBI Act, 1934 and (b) net worth certificate from its statutory auditors or any independent chartered accountant based on the last audited financial statements is required to be attached to the application.

INVESTMENT BY AIFS, FVCIS AND VCFS

The SEBI (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996, as amended ("SEBI VCF Regulations") and the SEBI (Foreign Venture Capital Investor) Regulations, 2000, as amended ("SEBI FVCI Regulations") prescribe, among other things, the investment restrictions on VCFs and FVCIs registered with SEBI. Further, the SEBI (Alternative Investments Funds) Regulations, 2012 ("SEBI AIF Regulations") prescribe,



among other things, the investment restrictions on AIFs.

As per the SEBI VCF Regulations and SEBI FVCI Regulations, VCFs and FVCIs are not permitted to invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by VCFs or FVCIs will not be accepted in this Issue.

Venture capital funds registered as Category I AIFs, as defined in the SEBI AIF Regulations, are not permitted to invest in listed companies pursuant to rights issues. Accordingly, applications by venture capital funds registered as category I AIFs, as defined in the SEBI AIF Regulations, will not be accepted in this Issue. Other categories of AIFs are permitted to apply in this Issue subject to compliance with the SEBI AIF Regulations.

Such AIFs having bank accounts with SCSBs that are providing ASBA in cities / centres where such AIFs are located are mandatorily required to make use of the ASBA facility. Otherwise, applications of such AIFs are liable for rejection

APPLICATIONS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED FROM FPIS IN RESTRICTED JURISDICTIONS.

FPIs which are QIBs, Non-Institutional Investors or whose application amount exceeds ₹ 2 lakhs can participate in the Rights Issue only through the ASBA process. Further, FPIs which are QIB applicants and Non-Institutional Investors are mandatorily required to use ASBA, even if application amount does not exceed ₹ 2 lakhs.

INVESTMENT BY NRIS

Investments by NRIs are governed by Rule 12 of FEMA Rules. Applications will not be accepted from NRIs in Restricted Jurisdictions.

NRIs may please note that only such Applications as are accompanied by payment in free foreign exchange shall be considered for Allotment under the reserved category. The NRIs who intend to make payment through NRO accounts shall use the Application form meant for resident Indians and shall not use the Application forms meant for reserved category.

As per Rule 12 of the FEMA Rules read with Schedule III of the FEMA Rules, an NRI or OCI may purchase or sell capital instruments of a listed Indian company on repatriation basis, on a recognised stock exchange in India, subject to the conditions, inter alia, that the total holding by any individual NRI or OCI will not exceed 5% of the total paid-up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or should not exceed 5% of the paid-up value of each series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants issued by an Indian company and the total holdings of all NRIs and OCIs put together will not exceed 10% of the total paid-up equity capital on a fully diluted basis or shall not exceed 10% of the paid-up value of each series of debentures or preference shares or share warrants. The aggregate ceiling of 10% may be raised to 24%, if a special resolution to that effect is passed by the general body of the Indian company.

INVESTMENT BY MUTUAL FUNDS

Applications made by asset management companies or custodians of Mutual Funds should clearly and specifically state names of the concerned schemes for which such Applications are made.

In case of a Mutual Fund, a separate Application can be made in respect of each scheme of the Mutual Fund registered with SEBI and such Applications in respect of more than one scheme of the Mutual Fund will not be treated as multiple Applications provided that the Applications clearly indicate the scheme concerned for which the Application has been made.

No Mutual Fund scheme shall invest more than 10% of its net asset value in equity shares or equity related instruments of any single company provided that the limit of 10% shall not be applicable for investments in case of index funds or sector or industry specific schemes. No Mutual Fund under all its schemes should own more than 10% of any company's paid-up share capital carrying voting rights.

PROCEDURE FOR APPLICATIONS BY SYSTEMICALLY IMPORTANT NBFCS

In case of application made by Systemically Important NBFCs registered with the RBI, (i) the certificate of registration issued by the RBI under Section 45 –IA of the RBI Act, 1934 and (ii) networth certificate from its statutory auditors or any independent chartered accountant based on the last audited financial statements is required to be attached to the application.

PAYMENT BY STOCK INVEST

In terms of RBI Circular DBOD No. FSC BC 42/24.47.00/2003- 04 dated November 5, 2003, the stock invest Scheme has been withdrawn. Hence, payment through stock invest would not be accepted in this Issue.

IMPERSONATION



As a matter of abundant caution, attention of the Investors is specifically drawn to the provisions of Section 38 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is reproduced below:

"Any person who:

(i) makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring, or subscribing for, its securities; or

(ii) makes or abets making of multiple applications to a company in different names or in different combinations of his name or surname for acquiring or subscribing for its securities; or

(iii) otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register any transfer of, securities to him, or to any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action under Section 447."

The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act, 2013 for fraud involving an amount of at least ₹10 lakhs or 1% of the turnover of the Company, whichever is lower, includes imprisonment for a term which shall not be less than six months extending up to ten years (provided that where the fraud involves public interest, such term shall not be less than three years) and fine of an amount not less than the amount involved in the fraud, extending up to three times of such amount. Where such fraud (i) involves an amount which is less than ₹10 lakhs or 1% of the turnover of the Company, whichever is lower, and (ii) does not involve public interest, then such fraud is punishable with imprisonment for a term extending up to five years or fine of an amount extending up to ₹50 lakhs or with both.

DISPOSAL OF APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATION MONEY

No acknowledgment will be issued for the Application Money received by our Company. However, the Designated Branch of the SCSBs receiving the Application Form will acknowledge its receipt by stamping and returning the acknowledgment slip at the bottom of each Application Form. Our Board reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any Application, in whole or in part, and in either case without assigning any reason thereto.

In case an Application is rejected in full, the whole of the Application Money will be unblocked in the respective ASBA Accounts, in case of Applications through ASBA or refunded to the Investors in the registered bank account. Wherever an Application is rejected in part, the balance of Application Money, if any, after adjusting any money due on Rights Equity Shares Allotted, will be refunded / unblocked in the respective bank accounts from which Application Money was received / ASBA Accounts of the Investor within a period of 15 days from the Issue Closing Date i.e. Thursday, 08th January, 2024 In case of failure to do so, our Company shall pay interest at such rate and within such time as specified under applicable law.

For further instructions, please read the Application Form carefully.

UTILIZATION OF ISSUE PROCEEDS

Our Board of Directors declares that:

(a) All monies received out of the Issue shall be transferred to a separate bank account;

(b) Details of all monies utilized out of the Issue shall be disclosed, and shall continue to be disclosed until the time any part of the Issue Proceeds remains unutilized, under an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the purpose for which such monies have been utilized;

(c) Details of all unutilized monies out of the Issue, if any, shall be disclosed under an appropriate separate head in the balance sheet of our Company indicating the form in which such unutilized monies have been invested; and

(d) Our Company may utilize the funds collected in the Issue only after final listing and trading approvals for the Rights Equity Shares Allotted in the Issue is received.

UNDERTAKINGS BY OUR COMPANY

Our Company undertakes the following:

(i) The complaints received in respect of the Issue shall be attended to by our Company expeditiously and satisfactorily.

(ii) All steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at all Stock Exchanges where the Rights Equity Shares are to be listed will be taken within the time prescribed by the SEBI.



(iii) The funds required for making refunds to unsuccessful Applicants as per the mode(s) disclosed shall be made available to the Registrar by our Company.

(iv) Where refunds are made through electronic transfer of funds, a suitable communication shall be sent to the Investor within 15 days of the Issue Closing Date, giving details of the banks where refunds shall be credited along with amount and expected date of electronic credit of refund.

(v) Other than any Equity Shares that may be issued pursuant to exercise options under the ESOP 2016 and ESOP 2018, no further issue of securities affecting our Company's Equity Share capital shall be made until the Rights Equity Shares are listed or until the Application Money is refunded on account of non-listing, under subscription etc.

(vi) In case of unblocking of the application amount for unsuccessful Applicants or part of the application amount in case of proportionate Allotment, a suitable communication shall be sent to the Applicants.

(vii) Adequate arrangements shall be made to collect all ASBA Applications and to consider them similar to non-ASBA Applications while finalizing the Basis of Allotment.

(viii) At any given time, there shall be only one denomination for the Rights Equity Shares of our Company.

(ix) Our Company shall comply with all disclosure and accounting norms specified by the SEBI from time to time.

(x) Our Company accepts full responsibility for the accuracy of information given in this Letter of Offer and confirms that to the best of its knowledge and belief, there are no other facts the omission of which makes any statement made in this Letter of Offer misleading and further confirms that it has made all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts.

MINIMUM SUBSCRIPTION

In accordance with Regulation 86 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, if our Company does not receive the minimum subscription of at least 90.00% of the Issue our Company shall refund the entire subscription amount received within 4 (Four) days from the Issue Closing Date. If there is delay in making refunds beyond such period as prescribed by applicable laws, our Company will pay interest for the delayed period at rates prescribed under applicable laws.

WITHDRAWAL OF THE ISSUE

Subject to provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Companies Act and other applicable laws, Our Company reserves the right not to proceed with the Issue at any time before the Issue Opening Date without assigning any reason thereof.

If our Company withdraws the Issue anytime after the Issue Opening Date, a public notice within two (2) Working Days of the Issue Closing Date i.e. Tuesday, 13th February, 2024 or such other time as may be prescribed by SEBI, providing reasons for not proceeding with the Issue shall be issued by our Company. The notice of withdrawal will be issued in the same newspapers where the pre-Issue advertisement has appeared and the Stock Exchanges will also be informed promptly.

The Registrar to the Issue, will instruct the SCSBs to unblock the ASBA Accounts within one (1) working Day from the day of receipt of such instruction. Our Company shall also inform the same to the Stock Exchanges.

If our Company withdraws the Issue at any stage including after the Issue Closing Date and subsequently decides to proceed with an Issue of the Equity Shares, our Company will file a fresh offer document with the stock exchanges where the Equity Shares may be proposed to be listed.

Important

Please read this Letter of Offer carefully before taking any action. The instructions contained in the Application Form, Abridged Letter of Offer and the Rights Entitlement Letter are an integral part of the conditions of this Letter of Offer and must be carefully followed; otherwise, the Application is liable to be rejected. It is to be specifically noted that this Issue of Rights Equity Shares is subject to the risk factors mentioned in "*Risk Factors*" on page 18 of this Letter of Offer.

All enquiries in connection with the Letter of Offer or Application Form and the Rights Entitlement Letter must be addressed (quoting the Registered Folio Number or the DP and Client ID number, the Application Form number and the name of the first Eligible Equity Shareholder as mentioned on the Application Form and super scribed "Indian Infotech & Software Limited – Rights Issue" on the envelope to the Registrar at the following address:



Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd. CIN: U67120MH1993PTC074079 Address: Unit no. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt. J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E) Mumbai 400 011. Telephone: +91 22 31998810; +91 22 49700138; +91 22 4961 4132; Facsimile: +91 22 22 3570 0224; E-mail: support@purvashare.com; Website: <u>https://www.purvashare.com/</u> SEBI Registration No: INRO00001112

In accordance with SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, frequently asked questions and online/ electronic dedicated investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors will be available on the website of the Registrar (<u>www.purvashare.com</u>). Further, email ID provided by the Registrar for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties is support@purvashare.com

The Issue will remain open for a minimum period of 15 days. However, our Board will have the right to extend the Issue Period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Closing Date).



RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES

Foreign investment in Indian securities is regulated through the Industrial Policy, 1991, of the Government of India and FEMA. While the Industrial Policy, 1991, of the Government of India, prescribes the limits and the conditions subject to which foreign investment can be made in different sectors of the Indian economy, FEMA regulates the precise manner in which such investment may be made. Under the Industrial Policy, 1991, unless specifically restricted, foreign investment is freely permitted in all sectors of the Indian economy up to any extent and without any prior approvals, but the foreign investor is required to follow certain prescribed procedures for making such investment. The RBI and the concerned ministries/departments are responsible for granting approval for foreign investment.

The Government has, from time to time, made policy pronouncements on FDI through press notes and press releases. The DPIIT issued the Consolidated FDI Policy Circular of 2020 ("FDI Policy"), which, with effect from October 15, 2020, consolidated and superseded all previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI issued by the DPIIT that were in force and effect as on October 15, 2020. The Government proposes to update the consolidated circular on FDI policy once every year and therefore, FDI Policy will be valid until the DPIIT issues an updated circular. Further, the sectoral cap applicable to the sector in which our Company operates is 100% which is permitted under the automatic route.

The payment of inward remittance and reporting requirements are stipulated under the Foreign Exchange Management (Mode of Payment and Reporting of Non-Debt Instruments) Regulations, 2019 issued by RBI.

The transfer of shares between an Indian resident and a non-resident does not require the prior approval of RBI, provided that (i) the activities of the investee company falls under the automatic route as provided in the FDI Policy and FEMA and transfer does not attract the provisions of the SEBI Takeover Regulations; (ii) the non-resident shareholding is within the sectoral limits under the FDI Policy; and (iii) the pricing is in accordance with the guidelines prescribed by SEBI and RBI.

Further, in accordance with Press Note No. 3 (2020 Series), dated April 17, 2020 issued by the DPIIT and the Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Amendment Rules, 2020 which came into effect from April 22, 2020, any investment, subscription, purchase or sale of equity instruments by entities of a country which shares land border with India or where the beneficial owner of an investment into India is situated in or is a citizen of any such country ("Restricted Investors"), will require prior approval of the Government, as prescribed in the FDI Policy and the FEMA Rules. Further, in the event of transfer of ownership of any existing or future foreign direct investment in an entity in India, directly or indirectly, resulting in the beneficial ownership falling within the aforesaid restriction/ purview, such subsequent change in the beneficial ownership will also require approval of the Government. Furthermore, on April 22, 2020, the Ministry of Finance, Government of India has also made a similar amendment to the FEMA Rules. Pursuant to the Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) (Fourth Amendment) Rules, 2020, a multilateral bank or fund, of which India is a member, shall not be treated as an entity of a particular country nor shall any country be treated as the beneficial owner of the investments of such bank of fund in India.

Please also note that pursuant to Circular no. 14 dated September 16, 2003 issued by RBI, Overseas Corporate Bodies ("OCBs") have been derecognized as an eligible class of investors and RBI has subsequently issued the Foreign Exchange Management (Withdrawal of General Permission to Overseas Corporate Bodies (OCBs)) Regulations, 2003. Any Investor being an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of RBI and in order to apply for the Issue as an incorporated non-resident must do so in accordance with the FDI Policy and FEMA Rules. Further, while investing in the Issue, the Investors are deemed to have obtained the necessary approvals, as required, under applicable laws and the obligation to obtain such approvals shall be upon the Investors. Our Company shall not be under an obligation to obtain any approval under any of the applicable laws on behalf of the Investors and shall not be liable in case of failure on part of the Investors to obtain such approvals.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our Company is not liable for any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of this Letter of Offer. Investors are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for do not exceed the applicable limits under laws or regulations.



SECTION IX: OTHER INFORMATION

MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

The copies of the following contracts which have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business carried on by our Company or contracts entered into more than two years before the date of this Letter of Offer) which are or may be deemed material have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company. Copies of the documents for inspection referred to hereunder, may be inspected at the registered office of the Company between 10.00 a.m. and 5.00 p.m. on all working days from the date of the Letter of Offer until the Issue Closing Date.

Material Contracts for the Issue

- 1. Registrar Agreement dated January 13, 2023 entered into amongst our Company and the Registrar to the Issue.
- 2. Escrow Agreement dated May 04, 2023 amongst our Company, the Registrar to the Issue and the Bankers to the Issue/ Refund Bank.

Material Documents

- 1. Certified copies of the updated Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of our Company;
- 2. Fresh certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar pursuant to change of name of our Company;
- 3. Copies of annual report of our Company for the last three Financial Years ending March 31, 2023;
- 4. Copy of Un-Audited standalone financial statements for the period ended on September 30, 2023;
- 5. Resolution of our Board of Directors dated August 22 2023, have authorised this Issue pursuant to Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and approving the Draft Letter of Offer;
- 6. Resolution of our Board of Directors dated January 15, 2024, finalizing the terms of the Issue including Issue Price, Record Date.

7. Resolution of our Board of Directors dated Janurary15, 2024, approving the Letter of Offer;

8. Consents of our Directors, Bankers to our Company, Bankers to the Issue, and the Registrar to the Issue for inclusion of their names in the Letter of Offer to act in their respective capacities;

9. Report on Statement of Special Tax Benefits dated August 21, 2023, for our Company from the Statutory Auditors of our Company;

10. In-principle approval issued by BSE Limited dated 05th December, 2023.

Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in this Letter of Offer may be amended or modified at any time if so, required in the interest of our Company or if required by the other parties, without reference to the shareholder's subject to compliance of the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant statutes.



DECLARATION

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules, regulations and guidelines issued by the Government of India, or the rules, regulations or guidelines issued by the SEBI, established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have been complied with and no statement made in this Letter of Offer is contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, each as amended, or the rules, regulations or guidelines issued thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all the statements and disclosures made in this Letter of Offer are true and correct.

SIGNED BY THE DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY

Sd/-	Sd/-	Sd/-
Mr. Manish Badola (Managing Director)	Mr. Hemant Vadilal Modi (Executive Director cum Chief Financial Officer)	Ms. Aksha Bihani (Independent Director)
Sd/-	Sd/-	Sd/-
Mr. Vinay Kumar K Yadav (Independent Director)	Mr. Hari Singh Rao (Independent Director)	Mr. Sandeep Kumar Sahu (Independent Director)

Place: Mumbai Date: January 15, 2024



SECTION VI – FINANCIAL INFORMATION (ANNEXURE -A) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2023

Independent Auditors' Report

Independent auditor's report

To The Members of **Indian Infotech and Software Limited** Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Indian Infotech and Software Limited, ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended and notes to the financial statement, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit & Loss statement, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the *Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements* section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Attention is invited to following notes of the Financial Statements:

Note No. 11 to the financial statements, in respect of Interest Income (taken on accrual basis) on Loans & Advances, external confirmations of the Interest balances are not available.

Due to non-availability of confirmation of balances, we are unable to quantify the impact, if any, arising from the confirmation of balances.

Note No. 3 to the financial statements, in respect of Loans & Advances and Unsecured Loans, external confirmations of the balances are not available. Due to non-availability of confirmation of balances, we are unable to quantify the impact, if any, arising from the confirmation of balances.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters ('KAM') are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters that there are no reportable Key Audit Matter for the Period.

Other Matters



1. The Statement includes the results for the quarter ended March 31, 2023 being the balancing figure between audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the published unaudited year to date figures up to the third quarter of the current financial year which were subject to limited review by us.

2. The Company has various litigations pending before various authorities, the outcome of which are material but not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, as well as per Legal opinions obtained by the Management of the Company, it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Our report is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Director is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.



Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements



1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a.We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c.The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the **(Ind-AS)** specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e.On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "**Annexure B**".

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. Regarding payment of managerial remuneration within limits.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

- i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements.
- ii.The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.
- iii.There were no amounts which required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether



recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement

For and on behalf of ADV & Associates Chartered Accountants FRN.128045W

Sd/-

Prakash Mandhaniya Partner Membership No.: 421679 Place: Mumbai Dated: 30.05.2023 UDIN: 23421679BGYAQF6340



<u>(Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report)</u> (Referred to in our report to the member INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED <u>OF EVEN DATE)</u>,

To the best of our knowledge and information, according to the explanations provided to us by the Company, the audit procedures followed by us and examination of the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i. <u>In respect of the Company's fixed assets, according to the information and explanation given to</u> <u>us, Company does not have any Fixed Asset, Hence, Clause (i) and sub-clause (a), (b), (c), (d) and</u> <u>(e) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.</u>

ii. In respect of the Company's Inventories.

a) <u>According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is a Non-Banking</u> <u>Finance Company engaged in the Business of Financial Activities. Consequently, it does not hold</u> <u>any physical Inventory. The Company has held investments as Inventory and the same are</u> <u>maintained in Demat Form. Accounts accordingly, the provisions of the clause 3(ii) of the Order</u> <u>are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.</u>

b) <u>According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not been</u> sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

iii. In respect of Loans, Advances, Investment and Guarantee.

a) The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company and its principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans provided are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The Company has not provided any guarantee or given any security during the year.

c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, loans and advances in the nature of loans, no schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. Therefore, we cannot comment on the same;

d) According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on examination of the documents provided to us. The amount is not overdue for more than 90 days since it is repayable on Demand, hence sub-clause 3(iii) (d) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

e) According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on examination of the documents provided to us. There is no loan given falling due during the year, which has renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same party, hence sub-clause 3(iii)(e) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

f)In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, Company has granted loans and advances in nature of loans as repayable on demand.

Particular	Amount
Aggregate amount of loan granted	2,27,40,65,528/-
Aggregate amount of loan granted as repayable on demand	2,27,40,65,528/-



Percentage of loan granted as repayable on demand	100%
Aggregate amount granted to Promoters and related parties	NIL

- iv.In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 and section 186 of the Act in respect of guarantees and security.
- v.In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits from the public or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public. Hence clause 3(v) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.
- vi.The maintenance of the cost records has not been specified by central government under the sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the company, hence Reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of Statutory Dues.

a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Act, Provident fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities during the year.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable, except the following:

Name of Status	Nature of Dues	Period to which amount relates	Amount (in Rs.)	Date of
				Payment
Income tax Act, 1961	Income Tax	A.Y. 2018-19	1,06,890	Unpaid
Income tax Act, 1961	Income Tax-Accrued Interest	A.Y. 2018-19	21,360	Unpaid
Income tax Act, 1961	TDS	A.Y. 2021-22	2,00,438	Unpaid
Income tax Act, 1961	TDS	A.Y. 2022-23	2,60,211	Unpaid
Income tax Act, 1961	TDS	A.Y. 2023-24	2,05,866	Unpaid
Income Tax Act,1961	Income Tax	A.Y. 2016-17	2,13,48,900	Unpaid
Income Tax Act,1961	Income Tax-Accrued Interest	A.Y. 2016-17	29,37,256	Unpaid

c) According to information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of GST, Provident fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities during the year.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions that were not recorded



in the books of account, and which has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (Section 43 of 1961).

ix.In respect of Term Loans

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender, hence reporting under sub-clause 3(ix)(a) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority, hence reporting under sub-clause 3(ix)(b) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

c) According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on examination of the documents provided to us. The company has not borrowed any term loans during the year, hence reporting under sub-clause 3(ix)(c) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company, hence reporting under sub-clause 3(ix) (d) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

e) According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on examination of the documents provided to us. The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or joint ventures, hence sub-clause 3(ix)(e) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

f) According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on examination of the documents provided to us. The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or joint ventures. Hence reporting under sub-clause 3(ix)(f) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

- x. According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer (including debt instruments) and not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares / fully / partly / optionally convertible debentures during the year under review, hence reporting under clause 3(x) and sub-clause (a) and (b) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the Company.
- xi.According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on examination of the documents provided to us. No fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported and No whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year, hence Clause 3(xi) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of verification of records, no report under sub section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by Auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government and hence no reporting is required under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clause 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

xiii.In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, where



applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

- xiv.In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal audit system as required under section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business. We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period under audit.
- xv.In our opinion and based on our examination. The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors, hence reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

xvi.

a) According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on examination of the documents provided to us. The company is a NBFC registered under section 45-IA of the reserve bank of India Act, 1934 and eligible to do business as a NBFC.

b) The Company has conducted the non-banking financial activities with a valid Certificate of Registration ('CoR') from the RBI as per the RBI Act. The Company has not conducted any housing finance activities and is not required to obtain CoR for such activities from the RBI.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company ('CIC') and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

- xvii.On an examination of the Statement of Profit and Loss account, we are of the opinion that the Company has not incurred cash losses during the current financial year, hence reporting under clauses 3(xvii) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.
- xviii.There is no resignation of the previous statutory auditors during the year as per section 140 of company Act, 2013 Clause (3)(xviii) Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.
 - xix.On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
 - xx.According to the information and explanations given to us, although the Company fulfilled the criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however, in the absence of average net profits in the immediately three preceding years, there is no requirement for the Company to spend any amount under subsection (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.



xxi.<u>According to information & explanation given to us there is no group of companies, hence not</u> required to report in Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020.

For and on behalf of ADV & Associates Chartered Accountants FRN:- 128045W Sd/-Prakash Mandhaniya Partner Membership No. 421679 Place: Mumbai Dated: 30.05.2023 UDIN: 23421679BGYAQF6340



Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the Members of **INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED**,

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of **INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED**, ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls-over-Financial Reporting-

A company's internal financial control over financial is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,



use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For and on behalf of ADV & Associates Chartered Accountants FRN.128045W

SD/-Prakash Mandhaniya Partner Membership No.: 421679 Place: Mumbai Dated: 30.05.2023 UDIN: 23421679BGYAQF6340

INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED CIN: L45201DL1996PLC193957 Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

Particulars	Note No.	As at 31st March, 2023	(Amount in '000 As at 31st March, 2022
ASSETS	110.	2020	2022
1 Financial Assets			
) Cash and cash equivalents	2	451	24,49
Bank Balance other than (a) above	_		, .,
 Derivative financial instruments 		_	
,		-	
(I) Trade Receivables		-	
(II) Other Receivables		-	
e) Loans	3	22,74,066	21,49,49
) Investments	4	-	
g) Other Financial assets		-	
2 Non-financial Assets			
a) Inventories		2,411	1,01,78
b) Current tax assets (Net)		-	
c) Deferred tax Assets (Net)		-	
 Property, Plant and Equipment 			
		-	
		-	
) Intangible assets under development		-	
g) Other Intangible assets		-	
n) Other non-financial assets	5	32,555	26,62
Total Assets		23,09,482	23,02,38
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY			
LIABILITIES			
1 Financial Liabilities			
Derivative financial instruments			
b) Payables			
		-	
(I)Trade Payables			
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises		-	
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises		249	:
(II) Other Payables			
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises		-	
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises		-	
) Debt Securities		-	
 Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 	6	3,000	3,00
	0	5,000	5,00
) Deposits		-	
) Subordinated Liabilities		-	
) Other financial liabilities		-	
2 Non-Financial Liabilities			
) Current tax liabilities (Net)		-	
) Provisions	7	7,434	6,4
Other non-financial liabilities	8	667	40
3 EQUITY			
a) Equity Share capital	9	10,05,590	10,05,59
b) Other Equity	10	12,92,543	12,86,79
	10		
Total Liabilities and Equity		23,09,482	23,02,33
ne accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements	1-16		
per our report attached			
or ADV & Associates	For &	on behalf of the Boar	d of INDIAN
hartered Accountants		FECH AND SOFTWA	
irm Regn. No. : 128045W	I HO	LUI AND SULLWA	
нш коди. 1906 г 120043 W			
d/-	Sd/-		Sd/-
CA. Prakash Mandhaniya	Mani	sh K Badola	Mushaid A. Khan

CA. Prakash Mandhaniya Partner Membership No. : 421679 UDIN: 23421679BGYAQF6340

Place: Mumbai Date: 30th May 2023 Sd/-Manish K Badola Managing Director DIN: 05016172 Sd/-Mushaid A. Khan Company Secretary PAN: BMLPK4089F

Sd/-

Hemant Vadilal Modi Executive Director & CFO DIN: 09630204, PAN-ANPPM7578P

	INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWA CIN: L45201DL1996PLC193 Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year Endo	3957		
	Statement of Front & Loss for the Tear End	cu 315t 1	viarcii, 2023	(Amount in 1000g)
	Particulars	Note No.	For the year ended 31st March, 2023	(Amount in '000s) For the year ended 31st March, 2022
(I)	Revenue from operations Interest Income	11	07.712	08.110
(i) (ii)	Dividend Income	11	97,713	98,119
(iii)	Sale of Shares		3,72,900	4,55,793
(iv)	Others Total Revenue from operations		4,70,613	5,53,923
(II)	Other Income - Interest on Income Tax Refund		-	
(III)	Total Income (I+II)		4,70,613	5,53,923
(111)			4,70,013	3,33,74
Expen				
(i)	Finance Costs		-	5 20 400
(ii) (iii)	Purchases of Shares/Stock in Trade Changes in Inventories of finished goods, stock-intrade and work-in- progress		3,48,530 99,370	5,39,400
(iii) (iv)	Employee Benefits Expenses	12	4,590	2,230
(v)	Depreciation, amortization and impairment		-	
(vi)	Others expenses	13	10,315	8,000
(IV)	Total Expenses (IV)		4,62,804	5,49,630
(V)	Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (III - IV)		7,808	4,287
(VI) (VII)	Exceptional items Profit/(loss) before tax (V -VI)		7,808	4,287
(VIII)	Tax Expense:			
	(1) Current Tax		1,749	1,115
	(2) Deferred Tax		-	-
			1,749	1,115
(IX)	Profit / (loss) for the period (VII-VIII)		6,059	3,173
(X)	Other Comprehensive Income (A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (specify items and			
	amounts) (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss		-	-
	Subtotal (A)		-	-
	(B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (specify items and amounts)		-	-
	(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss		-	-
	Subtotal (B)		-	-
	Other Comprehensive Income (A + B)			
(XV)	Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X) (Comprising Profit (Loss) and other Comprehensive Income for the period)		6,059	3,173
(XVI)	Earnings per equity share			
. ,	Basic (Rs.) Diluted (Rs.)		0.0060 0.0060	0.003
The ac	companying notes are an integral part of financial statements	1-16		
	pur report attached			
-	V & Associates	For and	on behalf of the Board	l of INDIAN
Charte	red Accountants	INFOTE	CH AND SOFTWAR	E LIMITED
Firm R	egn. No. : 128045W			
Sd/-		Sd/-		Sd/-
CA. Pr	akash Mandhaniya	Manish	K Badola	Mushaid A. Khan
Partne	Partner		ng Director	Company Secretary
Memb	ership No. : 421679 23421679BGYAQF6340	DIN: 05	_	PAN: BMLPK4089
•				
		Sd/-		
Diagon	Mumbai		Vadilal Modi	
	Mumbai 60th May 2023		ve Director & CFO 630204, PAN-ANPPM	[7578P
	······································	241109		

	INDIAN INFOTECH AND SO CIN: L45201DL1996			
	Cash Flow Statement for the Year	Ended	l 31st March, 202.	3
				(Amount in '000s)
	Particulars		For the year ended 31st March, 2023	For the year ended 31st March, 2022
A.	CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		515t Match, 2025	515t Watch, 2022
	Net Profit before Taxes and Extra ordinary item		7,808	4,287
	Adjustments			
	Depreciation and Amortisation		-	-
	Income Tax Expenses		-1,749	
	Preliminary expense w/off		-	-
	Dividend Income		-	11
	Interest Income		97,713	98,119
	Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes		1,03,772	1,02,418
	Adjustments For			
	(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories		99,370	-
	(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non-Financial Assets		-5,935	-14,475
	(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non-Financial Liabilities		206	260
	(Increase) / Decrease in Loan & Advances (Current)		-1,24,574	25,973
	Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables & other liabilities			
	(current & non current)		833	-444
	Total (A)		73,672	1,13,731
В.	CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES			
	Interest Received		-97,713	-98,119
	Dividend Received		-	-11,200
	Total (B)		-97,713	-1,09,319
C.	CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES			
	Increase in Long Term borrowing		-	-
	Interest Paid		-	-
	Total (C)		-	-
-				
D.	NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (A+B+C	-24,041	4,412
	OPENING CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS		24,492	8,891
	CLOSING CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS		451	24,492
The	e accompanying notes are an integral part of financial stat	1-16		
Ac	per our report attached			
		For and	on behalf of the Boar	d of INDIAN
			CH AND SOFTWAR	
	m Regn. No. : 128045W			
sd/-		SD/-		SD/-
54/-				
CA			K Badola	Mushaid A. Khan
		-	ng Director	Company Secretary
	mbership No. : 421679 IN:	DIN: 05	5016172	PAN: BMLPK4089
		CD/		

SD/-Hemant Vadilal Modi Executive Director & CFO DIN:09630204 ,PAN-ANPPM7578P

Place: Mumbai

Date: 30th May 2023

INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED

CIN: L45201DL1996PLC193957

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31st March, 2023

A. Equity Share Capital (Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up) As At 31.03.2023

Particulars	beginning of the reporting period (31 03 2022)	in equity share capital during	Balance at the end of the reporting period (31.03.2023)
Equity shares of Rs. 1.00 each	10,05,590	-	10,05,590

A. Equity Share Capital (Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up) As At 31.03.2022

Particulars	the reporting period	share capital during	
Equity shares of Rs. 1.00 each	10,05,590	-	10,05,590

B. Other Equity As on 31.03.2023

		Share	Reserves and Surplus						
Particulars	component of compound financial	component of compound financial	applicati on money pending allotmen t	Special Reserve	Securitie s Premiu m Reserve	Share forfeiture Account	Statutor y Reserve Fund	Retained Earnings	Total
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period	-	-	35	14,69,39 1	477	7,744	- 1,90,851	12,86,79 5	
Current Year	-	-	-	-	-	-	6,059	6,059	
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Total Comprehensive Income for the year	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Dividends	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Transfer to RDD Statutory Reserve	-	-	-	-	-	-	-311	-311	
Transfer from retained earnings	-	-	-	-	-	1,150	-	1,150	
Transfer to Statutory Rederve Fund	-	-	-	-	-	-	- 1,150	-1,150	
Any other change	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
Balance at the end of the reporting period	-	-	35	14,69,39 1	477	8,893	- 1,86,253	12,92,54 3	
B. Other Equity As on 31.03.2022									
Particulars	Equity Share Reserves and Surplus				Total				



	component of compound financial instruments	applicati on money pending allotmen t	Special Reserve	Securitie s Premiu m Reserve	Shareforefit ure Account	Statutor y Reserve Fund	Retained Earnings	
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period	-	-	35	14,69,39 1	477	6,950	- 1,93,296	12,83,55 7
Current Year	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total Comprehensive Income for the year	-	-	-	-	-	-	3,173	3,173
Dividends	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Transfer to RDD Statutory Reserve	-	-	-	-	-	-	65	65
Transfer to retained earnings	-	-	-	-	-	793	-	793
Transfer to Statutory Reserve Fund	-	-	-	-	-	-	-793	-793
Balance at the end of the reporting period	-	-	35	14,69,39 1	477	7,744	- 1,90,851	12,86,79 5



INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED CIN: L45201DL1996PLC193957 Notes to Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

		(Amount in '000s)
Note No.	Particulars	As at 31st March, 2023	As at 31st March, 2022
2	Cash and Cash Equivalents		
2	Balances With Banks	447	24,281
	Cheques, Drafts on hand	_	-
	Cash on hand	4	211
	Others Cash and Cash Equivalents		-
	TOTAL	451	24,492
		-	
5	Other Non- Financial Assets		
	Amount Receivable from Tax Authorities	32,155	26,220
	Security Deposits	400	400
	TOTAL	32,555	26,620
7	Provisions		
	Income Tax Provision	1,749	1,115
	Provision for Standard Assets	5,685	5,374
	TOTAL	7,434	6,488
8	Other non-financial liabilities		
	Statutory Dues - TDS Payable	667	461
	TOTAL	667	461



INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED

CIN: L45201DL1996PLC193957

Notes to Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(Amount in '000s)

Note No.3: Loans Given								m 0003j
		31-03-2				31-03-2		
Particulars	Amortised cost	Through Other Compre hensive Income	At Fair Valu Through profit or loss	e Designated at fair value through profit or loss	Amortised cost	Through Other Compre	At Fair Valu Through profit or loss	e Designated at fair value through profit or loss
(A)				1055				1055
(i) Bills Purchased and Bills Discounted	-				-	-		-
(ii) Loans repayable on Demand	22,74,066		-		21,49,491	-		
(iii) Term Loans	-				-	-	· _	-
(iv) Leasing	-				-	-	-	-
(v) Factoring	-				-	-	-	-
(vi) Others (to be specified)	-				-	-	-	-
Total (A) - Gross	22,74,066		- -	- -	21,49,491	-	-	-
Less: Impairment loss allowance	-				-	-		-
Total (A) - Net	22,74,066				21,49,491	-	-	-
(B)								
(i) Secured by tangible assets	-		-		-	-		-
(ii) Secured by intangible assets	-				-	-		-
(iii) Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees	-				-	-		-
(iv) Unsecured	22,74,066				21,49,491	-		-
Total (B)- Gross Less: Impairment loss allowance	22,74,066				21,49,491	-		-
Total (B)- Net	22,74,066				- 21,49,491	-	-	-
(C)								
Net C (i) Loans in India								
(i) Public Sector	-				-	-	-	-
(ii) Private Sector	22,74,066				21,49,491	-	-	-
Total C(i) Gross Less: Impairment loss allowance	22,74,066				21,49,491 -	-	-	-
Total C(i) Net	22,74,066				21,49,491	-		-
Net C (ii) Loans Outside India Less: Impairment loss allowance	-				-	-		-
	-		_		-			
Total C(ii) Net			- <u> </u>					
Total C (i) and (ii) Net	22,74,066		- -	- -	21,49,491	-	-	-



INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED

CIN: L45201DL1996PLC193957

Notes to Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(Amount in '000s)

Note No.: 4	- Invest	tments											(Allio	ount in '000s
			31-	03-2023	1	1					31-03-2022	1	i	
		At F	air Value					Amortis ed cost		At Fair Value				
Particulars	Amort ised cost	Through Other Comprehensive	Through profit or loss	Designated at fair value through profit or loss	Sub	Others	Total			lage	Designated at fair value through profit or loss	Sub Total	Others	Total
	1	2	3	4	5=2+3+4	6	7=1+5+6	8	9	10	11	12=9+1 0+11	13	14=8+12+1 3
(A)														
Mutual funds					-		-							-
Governmen t securities					-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Other approved securities					-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Debt securities					-		-					-	-	-
Equity instruments					-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Subsidiaries					-		-					-	-	-
Associates					-		-					-	-	-
Joint Ventures					-		-					-	-	-
Other Equity Instruments not covered					-		-		-	-	-	-	-	-
above Total – Gross (A)	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(B)												1		
(i) Investments outside India					-		-	-	-	-	-			-
(ii) Investments in India					-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total (B)	-	-	-	-	-	-		-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(C)														
Less: Allowance for											-			
Impairment loss C													-	-
(D)														
Total - Net [D= (A)-(C)]								-	-	-	-	-	-	-
	s of mea	surement such as	s cost mav	be explained	d as a footi	note	-	-		•	•	•		•

		CIN: L4520	IDL1996PLC1939	957				
	Notes to	Balance Sheet Ba	lance Sheet as at 3	31st March, 2023				
								(Amount in '000s
Note No. 6: Loans Taken (Other than Debt Securities)								
		31-0	3-2023			31-0	3-2022	
Particulars		At Fair Value		Designated at fair	-	At Fair Value		Designated at fair
raruculars	Amortised cost	Comprehensive Income	Through profit or loss	value through profit or loss	Amortised cost	Through Other Comprehensive Income	Through profit or loss	value through profit or loss
(A)	I	1						
(a) : Term Loans								
(i) From Banks	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(ii) From Other Parties	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(b) : Deferred Payment Liabilities	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(c) :Loans from Related Parties	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(d) :Finance Lease obligations	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(e) : Liabity Component of Compound Financial Instruments	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(f) : Loans Repayable on Demand								
(i) From Banks	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(i) From Other Parties	3000		-	-	3000		-	-
(g) : Other Loans Total (A)	3.000		-		3.000	-	-	-
Total (A)	3,000	-	•	-	3,000	-	-	-
(B)								
Borrowings in India	3,000	-	-	-	3,000		-	-
Borrowings Outside India	5,000			-	5,000	_		
Total (B) - Net	3.000		-	-	3.000	-	-	
Total (b) - Net	5,000	-	-	-	5,000		-	-
(C)								
(i) Secured by tangible assets	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
(ii) Secured by intangible assets	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(iii) Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total Secured	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(iv) Unsecured	3,000	-	-	-	3,000	-	-	-
Total C	3,000	-	-	-	3,000	-	-	-
(D)								
Net D (i) Loans in India				1				
(i) Public Sector	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(ii) Private Sector	3,000		-	-	3,000	-	-	-
Total D(i)	3,000		-	-	3,000	-	-	-
Net D (ii) Loans Outside India				-		-	-	-
Total D (i) and (ii)	3,000	-	-	-	3,000	-	-	

	ParticularsAs at 31st March, 2023As at 31st March, 2023										
9	Equity Share capital										
		No of Shares	Amount ('000s)	No of Shares	Amount ('000s)						
	Authorised Share Capital										
	1,01,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each	1,01,00,00,000	10,10,000	1,01,00,00,000	10,10,0						
		1,01,00,00,000	10,10,000	1,01,00,00,000	10,10,0						
	Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital										
	1,00,55,89,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each	1,00,55,89,500	10,05,590	1,00,55,89,500	10,05,59						
	-,,	1,00,55,89,500	10,05,590	1,00,55,89,500	10,05,5						
		No of Shares	%	No of Shares	%						
	DHANVARSHA ADVISORY SERVICES PVT LTD.	10,05,88,000	10.00%	10,05,88,000	10002.89						
	MANASI COMMODITIES LLP	4,40,00,000	4.38%	4,40,00,000	4375.5						
		0 40 00 000	8.35%	8,40,00,000	8353.3						
	TASMSEEM COMMERCIAL LLP	8,40,00,000		, , , ,							
	TASMSEEM COMMERCIAL LLP GENEROSITY SHARE TRADING PVT LTD	3,27,68,480	3.26%	3,27,68,480	3258.6						
		, , , ,		3,27,68,480 26,13,56,480							
	GENEROSITY SHARE TRADING PVT LTD TOTAL b) Reconciliation of equity share capital	3,27,68,480	3.26% 25.99%	, , , ,	25990.37						
	GENEROSITY SHARE TRADING PVT LTD TOTAL	3,27,68,480 26,13,56,480	3.26% 25.99%	26,13,56,480	3258.6. 25990.37 rch 2022 Amount (Rs.)						
	GENEROSITY SHARE TRADING PVT LTD TOTAL b) Reconciliation of equity share capital	3,27,68,480 26,13,56,480 As at 31st Ma	3.26% 25.99%	26,13,56,480 As at 31st Ma	25990.37 rch 2022						
	GENEROSITY SHARE TRADING PVT LTD TOTAL b) Reconciliation of equity share capital Particulars At the beginning of the period Issued during the year	3,27,68,480 26,13,56,480 As at 31st Ma No. of Shares	3.26% 25.99% arch 2023 Amount (Rs.)	26,13,56,480 As at 31st Ma No. of Shares	25990.37 rch 2022 Amount (Rs.)						
	GENEROSITY SHARE TRADING PVT LTD TOTAL b) Reconciliation of equity share capital Particulars At the beginning of the period	3,27,68,480 26,13,56,480 As at 31st Ma No. of Shares	3.26% 25.99% arch 2023 Amount (Rs.) 1,00,55,89,500	26,13,56,480 As at 31st Ma No. of Shares 1005589500	25990.3 rch 2022 Amount (Rs.) 10055895						

liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the C amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. distribution of all preferential Company,



		(A	Amount in '000s)
Note No.	Particulars	As at 31st March, 2023	As at 31st March, 2022
10	Other Equity		
	a) Securities Premium Reserve	14,69,391	14,69,391
	b) Statutory Reserve	-	-
	Balance as per last financial statements	7,744	6,950
	Add: Transferred from statement of Profit and Loss	1,150	793
	Closing balance	8,893	7,744
	c) Special Reserve	35	35
	d) Share Forfeiture Account	477	477
	e) Retained Earnings		
	Balance as per last financial statements	-1,90,851	-1,93,296
	Profit/ (loss) for the year	6,059	3,173
	Add : RDD against Standard Assets	-311	65
	Less : Deferred Tax Asset Written off		-
	Less: Transfer to statutory reserve	-1,150	-793
	Closing balance	-1,86,253	-1,90,851
	Total	12,92,543	12,86,795

INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED CIN: L45201DL1996PLC193957

Notes to Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2023

			(Amount in '000s)
Note	Particulars	For the Period	For the Period
No.	Paruculars	ended 31/03/2023	ended 31/03/2022
11	Interest Income		
	Interest Income on Loans	97,713	98,119
	Interest income from Investments	-	-
	Interest on deposit with Banks	-	-
	Other interest income	-	-
	Total	97,713	98,119
12	Employee Benefit Expenses		
	Salaries and wages	4,590	2,230
	Contribution to provident and other funds	-	-
	Share Based Payments to employees	-	-
	Staff welfare expenses	-	-
	Total	4,590	2,230
13	Other Expenses		
	Rent, taxes and energy costs	853	655
	Advertisement and publicity	35	12
	Auditor's fees and expenses	236	51
	Legal and Professional charges	1,229	963
	Annual Listing Fees	194	4,120
	Bank Charges	2	1
	RTA Charges	2,220	-
	ROC Fees	2,551	-
	Courier Expenses	684	-
	Loan Settlement Fees	883	-
	Other expenditure	1,427	2,204
	Sub-Total	10,315	8,006
	Payment to the auditors includes (net of service tax		
	input credit, wherever applicable)		
	As Auditors -For Statutory Audit	118	51
	-For Tax Audit	-	-
	-For Other Services		



NOTE NO. 14: RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

(a) Introduction

As a financial institution, Company is exposed to various types of risks namely credit risk, liquidity risk, market risks, operational risk, strategic risk (including emerging & external risks) and compliance & reputation risk. We have adopted a holistic and data driven enterprise level risk management approach which includes monitoring both internal and external indicators.

We as an organization periodically adjust our strategy in cognizance with industry risk dynamics and emergence of new challenges and opportunities.

The purpose of risk management is the creation and protection of value. Company's risk management framework has been laid down with long term sustainability and value creation keeping in mind:

· Build profitable and sustainable business with conservative risk management approach.

Have risk management as an integral part of the organization's business strategy.

· Undertake businesses that are well understood and within acceptable risk appetite.

Manage the risks proactively across the organization.

· Adopt best risk management practices with resultant shareholder value creation and increased stakeholder confidence.

· Develop a strong risk culture across the organization.

The risk management practices of Company are compliant with ISO 31000: 2018 which is the international standard for risk management that lays down principles, guidelines and framework for risk management in an organisation.

(b) Company's Risk Management Approach for handling various type of risks

i) Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising out of a customer or counterparty failing to meet their repayment obligations to the Company. The Company assesses the credit quality of all financial instruments that are subject to credit risk.

Classification of financial assets under various stages

The Company classifies its financial assets in three stages having the following characteristics:

Stage 1: unimpaired and without significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition;

Stage 2: a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition on which a lifetime ECL is recognised;

Stage 3: objective evidence of impairment, and are therefore considered to be in default or otherwise credit impaired on which a lifetime ECL is recognised.

Unless identified at an earlier stage, all financial assets are deemed to have suffered a significant increase in credit risk

The Company has calculated ECL using three main components: a probability of default (PD), a loss given default (LGD) and the exposure at default (EAD) along with an adjustment considering forward macro economic conditions [for a detailed note for methodology of computation of ECL please refer to significant accounting policies note no 1(L) to the financial statements.

The table below summarises the gross carrying values and the associated allowances for expected credit loss (ECL) stage wise for loan portfolio:

Investments are reviewed for any fair valuation loss on periodically basis and necessary provision/fair valuation adjustments has been made based on the valuation carried by the management to the extent available sources, the management does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Trade Receivable, Trade Payable, Short Term Borrowings and Short Term Loans and Advances balances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation

Ageing of Loans Given that were not impaired was as follows.

Carrying amount	31-Mar-23	31-Mar-22
Neither Past due nor impaired	22,74,066	21,49,491
Past due but not impaired	-	-
Past due more than 180 days	-	-
TOTAL	22,74,066	21,49,491

ii) Market Risk

Market risk is risk due to change in market prices – e.g. interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads, but not relating to changes in the obligor's/issuer's credit standing and will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of the Company's market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable risk tolerances levels to ensure the solvency and minimum volatility while optimising the balance between profitability and managing associated risks.

Under Liquidity Risk Management (LRM) framework for the Company, ALCO sets up limits for each significant type of risk/aggregated risk with liquidity being a primary factor in determining the level of limits. The monitoring of risk limits defined as per ALM policy is done by ALCO on regular basis. The Company has Asset Liability Management (ALM) support Company prescribed by RBI which meets on regular basis to ensure internal controls and reviews the liquidity risk management of the Company.

iii) Operational Risk

Operational Risk has been defined as "The risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from external events "The risk of direct or indirect potential loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Company's processes, personnel, systems, or from external factors other than strategic and reputation risk Management of operational risk forms an integral part of Company's enterprise wide risk management systems. The organisation thrives towards incremental improvements to its operational risk management framework to address the dynamic industry landscape. Clear strategies and oversight by the Board of Directors and senior management, a strong operational risk management culture, effective internal control and reporting and contingency planning are crucial elements of Company's operational risk management framework.

iv) Regulatory and Compliance Risk

Regulatory compliances are handled by Finance team, Treasury and Business teams in consultation with Company Compliance team. Statutory compliances are handled by Company Secretarial team, Administrative and people process related compliances are handled by Administration & HR departments. Additionally, Risk team coordinates for Special Mention Accounts (SMA) and Fraud reporting in line with regulatory guidelines. As per regulatory requirements, required policies are adopted, modified and rolled from time to time. Compliance to the defined policies is strictly adhered to.

(c) Liquidity Risk management

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding to meet obligations when due. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company's treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances available to meet the working capital requirements. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position (comprising the unused cash and bank balances along with liquid investments) on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at Company level in accordance with practice and limits set by the Company. These limits vary to take into account the liquidity of the market in which the Company operates.

	As at 31 M	Iarch 2023	As at 31 March 2022		
Particulars	Less than 1 year	More than 1 year	Less than 1 year	More than 1 year	
Financial Liabilities - Current					
i. Current Borrowings *	-	30,00,000	30,00,000	-	
ii. Trade payables	51,000	-	4,95,000	-	
Total	51,000	30,00,000	34,95,000	-	

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

NOTE NO. 15: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Financial instruments by category:

				31-Mar-23				
			Carrying Value Fair Value hierard				alue hierarchy	
Particulars	FVTPL	FVTOCI	Amortised Cost	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Financial Assets								
(i) Investments	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(ii) Trade Receivable	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents	-	-	451	451	-	-	451	451
(iv) Loans	-	-	22,74,066	22,74,066	-	-	22,74,066	22,74,066
TOTAL	-	-	22,74,516	22,74,516	-	-	22,74,516	22,74,516
Financial Liabilities								
(i) Current Borrowings	-	-	3,000	3,000	-	-	3,000	3,000
(ii) Trade Payables	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
TOTAL	-	-	3,000	3,000	-	-	3,000	3,000

			3	51-Mar-22					
			Carrying Value		Fair Value hierarchy				
Particulars	FVTPL	FVTOCI	Amortised Cost	Total	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total	
Financial Assets									
(i) Investments	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
(ii) Trade Receivable	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents	-	-	24,492	24,492	-	-	24,492	24,492	
(iv) Loans	-	-	21,49,491	21,49,491	-	-	21,49,491	21,49,491	
TOTAL	-	-	21,73,983	21,73,983	-	-	21,73,983	21,73,983	
Financial Liabilities									
(i) Current Borrowings	-	-	3,000	3,000	-	-	3,000	3,000	
(ii) Trade Payables	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	
TOTAL	-	-	3,000	3,000	-	-	3,000	3,000	

Q) Capital Management

I

The company's objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Company is based on management's judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-today needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to

The accompanying notes are an integral part of fil1-16

As per our Report of Even Date For ADV & Associates Chartered Accountants Firm Regn. No. : 128045W

CA. Prakash Mandhaniya Partner Membership No. : 421679 UDIN: 23421679BGYAQF 6340

Place: Mumbai Date: 30th May 2023 For and on behalf of the Board of INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED

Manish K BadolaMushaid A. KhanManaging DirectorCompany SecretaryDIN: 05016172PAN: BMLPK4089F

Hemant Vadilal Modi Executive Director & CFO DIN:09630204 ,PAN-ANPPM7578P



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:

Note No: 1

I) Corporate Information

M/s. Indian Infotech and Software Limited ("the Company") is a Systemically Important Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Finance Company ("NBFC"), holding a Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") dated November 4, 2011. The Company is domiciled in India and incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013 and listed its equity share with BSE Limited.

II) Basis of Preparation

i) Compliance with Ind AS

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") (as amended), other relevant provisions of the Act, guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as applicable to an NBFCs and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Any application guidance/clarifications/directions issued by RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they are issued / applicable, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied except where compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Ind AS is initially adopted or a revision to an existing Ind AS required a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on May 28, 2022.

ii) Presentation of Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division III of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act'). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS.

A summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information is in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') including applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis.

III) Summary of significant accounting policies

A. Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires that the Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the



reporting period. The recognition, measurement, classification or disclosure of an item or information in the financial statements is made relying on these estimates. The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, and future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

B. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer which generally coincide with dispatch and is inclusive of Excise Duty, Sales Tax/VAT and GST, and Freight etc recovered thereon and net of discounts and sales returns.

<u>Interest</u>

Interest consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Calculation of the EIR includes all fees received that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition of a financial asset.

Interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets {i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset after adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance (ECLs)}. The Company assesses the collectability of the interest on credit impaired assets at each reporting date. Based on the outcome of such assessment, the interest income accrued on credit impaired financial assets are either accounted for as income or written off as per the write off policy of the Company.

<u>Dividend</u>

Income from dividend on investment in equity shares and preference share of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds is accounted when the Company's right to receive dividend is established and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. Dividend income on financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss is presented under Dividend income and not as a part of Net gains/(losses) on fair value changes.



C. Property, Plant and Equipment

a) PPE

PPE acquired by the Company are reported at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which its located does not arise for owned assets, for leased assets the same are borne by the lessee as per the lease agreement. The acquisition cost includes any cost attributable for bringing an asset to its working condition net of tax/duty credits availed, which comprises of purchase consideration and other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition for their intended use. PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure on PPE after its purchase is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

b) Capital work-in-progress

PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as "capital workin-progress" and carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

c) Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. Administrative and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to the acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets. Expenses on software support and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which such costs are incurred.

d) Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as "Intangible assets under development".

e) Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciable amount for tangible property, plant and equipment is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. The residual value of each asset given on Operating lease is determined at the time of recording of the lease asset. If the residual value of the Operating lease asset is higher than 5%, the Company has a justification in place for considering the same.

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment deployed for own use has been provided

on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act,

2013 except in respect of buildings, computer equipment, electrical installation and equipment and vehicles, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed based on the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, etc.

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment deployed on operating lease has been provided on the straight-line method over the primary lease period of the asset. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end with the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis. Depreciation for additions to/deductions from



owned assets is calculated pro rata to the remaining period of use. Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful life. All capital assets with individual value less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year in which they are purchased. Purchased software / licenses are amortised over the estimated useful life during which the benefits are expected to accrue, while Goodwill if any is tested for impairment at each Balance Sheet date. The method of amortisation and useful life are reviewed at the end of each accounting year with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Amortisation on impaired assets is provided by adjusting the amortisation charge in the remaining periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its remaining useful life.

Estimated useful life considered by the Company are:

Asset	Estimated Useful Life	
Leasehold Improvements	As per lease period	Ţ
Construction Equipment	2 to 13.5 years	In
Furniture and Fixtures	Owned: 10 years	
Computer Equipment	Owned: 3 to 4 years	
Office Equipment	Owned: 5 years	
Vehicles	Owned: 4 years	
Buildings	Owned: 1 to 10 years	
Plant & Machinery	25 years	
Software Licenses	Owned: 10 years	

case of leased assets, useful life is considered as per the lease period.

f) Investment property

Properties held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as Investment properties and measured and reported at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition its measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. When the use of an existing property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is reclassified as investment property at its carrying amount on the date of reclassification.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of property is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period.

g) Impairment of assets

Upon an observed trigger or at the end of each accounting reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment property and intangible asset to determine whether there is any indication that the asset have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment property and intangible assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any.

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such deficit is r ecognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed



the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss is recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

h) De-recognition of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and the carrying amount of the asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

D. Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished goods in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

In determining the cost of raw materials, packing materials, stock-in-trade, stores, spares, FIFO cost method is used. Cost of inventory comprises of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes the cost of raw materials, packing materials, an appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads, excise duty as applicable and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of production facilities.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of Completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

E. Investment:

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as non-current investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Non-current investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company has elected to measure its investments in subsidiaries at its previous GAAP carrying values which shall be the deemed cost as at the date of transition.

F. Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional currency are recorded on initial recognition using the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported at the rates prevailing at the year end. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated.

Functional currency of the Company and foreign operations has been determined based on the primary economic environment in which the Company and its foreign operations operate considering the currency in which funds are generated, spent and retained.



Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items at each Balance Sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

G. Leases

Asset given on lease:

Leases are classified as operating lease where significant portion of risks and reward of ownership of assets acquired under lease is retained by the lessor. Leases of assets under which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessee are classified as finance lease.

Assets given under finance lease are recognised as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Lease rentals are apportioned between principal and interest on the internal rate of return. The principal amount received reduces the net investment in the lease and interest is recognised as revenue.

Lease rental - under operating leases (excluding amount for services such as insurance and maintenance) are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except for increase in line with expected inflationary cost increases.

Asset taken on lease:

The Company presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately on the face of the Balance sheet. Lease payments (including interest) have been classified as financing cashflows. The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property, it is presented in investment property.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payment made. The carrying amount of lease liability is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. A change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or as appropriate, changes in the assessment of whether a purchase or extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not be exercised.

The Company has applied judgement to determine the lease term for some lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal options. The assessment of whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise such options impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the amount of lease liabilities and right of use assets recognised. The discounted rate is generally based on incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated.

H. Income Tax



Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred Income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting Income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

At each reporting date, the company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain as the case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The company writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or virtually certain as the case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain as the case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain as the case may be that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to setoff current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. i.e. the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement." The company reviews the "MAT credit entitlement" asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

I. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

(i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through



profit or loss), and those measured at amortized cost. The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(ii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifies a financial asset in accordance with the below criteria:

- i) The Company's business model for managing the Financial Asset, and
- ii) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the Financial Asset.

Based on the above criteria, there are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its Financial Assets:

Amortized cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in other expenses or other incomes, as applicable. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit and loss:

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other expenses or other incomes, as applicable in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included



in other income.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its assets carried at amortized cost or FVTOCI. The impairment methodology applied on the above assets depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and lease receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, wherein an amount equal to lifetime ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of financial assets or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when any of the following occurs:

i. The contractual rights to cash flow from the financial assets expires,

ii. The Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial assets and has substantially transferred all the risk and reward of ownership of the financial assets,

iii. The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash flow but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flow without material delay to one or more recipients under a' pass-through' arrangement (thereby substantially transferring all the risk and reward of ownership of the financial assets);

iv. The Company neither transfer nor retains substantially all risk and reward of ownership and does not retain control over the financial assets.

In case where Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the financial assets but retains control of the financial assets. The Company continues to recognize such financial assets to the extant pf its continuing involvements in the financial assets. In that case, the company also recognizes an associated liability. The Financial asset and the associated liability are measured on that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentioned in ii above for financial assets measured at FVTOCI) the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received is recognized in the statements of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

(i) Measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value, reduced by transaction costs (in case of financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss), that are directly attributable to the issue of financial liability. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash outflow (including all fees paid, transaction cost, and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. At the time of initial recognition, there is no financial liability irrevocably designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(ii) Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled



or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Derivative Financial Instrument

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain/loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and is effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the statement of profit and loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

The Company designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows associated with its floating rate borrowings arising from changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Company documents the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also documents the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are expected to offset each other.

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised in OCI and accumulated in the other equity under 'effective portion of cash flows hedges'. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative that is recognised in OCI is limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item, determined on a present value basis, from inception of the hedge. Any ineffective portion of changes in fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Company designates only the change in fair value of the spot element of forward exchange contracts as the hedging instrument in cash flow hedge relationships. The change in fair value of the forward element of the forward exchange contracts ('forward points') is separately accounted for as cost of hedging and recognised separately within equity.

If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, expires, is terminated or is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been accumulated in other equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Cash, Cash equivalents and bank balances

Cash, Cash equivalents and bank balances include fixed deposits, (with an original maturity of three



months or less from the date of placement), margin money deposits, and earmarked balances with banks are carried at amortised cost. Short term and liquid investments which are not subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value, are -included as part of cash and cash equivalents.

J. Segment Reporting

The Company's main business is financing by way of loans for retail and corporate borrowers in India. The Company's operating segments consist of one segment i.e., "Financing Activity". All other activities of the Company revolve around the main businesses. This in the context of Ind AS 108 – operating segments reporting are considered to constitute reportable segment. The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company is the Managing Director along with the Board of Directors in the operating segment. Operating segment disclosures are consistent with the information reviewed by the CODM.

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company's other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. Accordingly, all operating segment's operating results of the Company are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

K. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when The Holding Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, The Holding Company determines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

Contingent assets/liabilities

A possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of The Holding Company or; present obligation that arises from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability are disclosed as contingent liability and not provided for. Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision.

L. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the EIR on respective financial instruments measured at amortised cost, finance charges in respect of assets acquired on finance lease and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.



The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial liability.

Calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid that are incremental and directly attributable to the issue of a financial liability.

While computing the capitalisation rate for funds borrowed generally, an entity should exclude borrowing costs applicable to borrowings made specifically for obtaining a qualifying asset, only until the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs (related to specific borrowings) that remain outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for intended use or for sale would

subsequently be considered as part of the general borrowing costs of the entity.

M. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share have been computed by dividing net income attributable to ordinary equity holders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid-up equity share is included as fully paid equivalent according to the fraction paid up.

Diluted earnings per share have been computed using the weighted average number of shares and dilutive potential shares, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

N. Other comprehensive income Under Ind AS

All items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as 'other comprehensive income' includes re-measurements of defined benefit plans and fair value gains or (losses) on FVTOCI. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.

S. Employee benefits

Defined Contribution benefits include superannuation fund.

Defined Employee benefits include gratuity fund, provident fund compensated absences and long service awards.

Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution to superannuation fund is considered as defined contribution plan and is charged as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. As per Ind AS 19, the service cost and the net interest cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Past service



cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the schemes.

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:

- (a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future compensated absences; and
- (b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the year in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date less the fair value of the plan assets out of which the obligations are expected to be settled. Long term service awards are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date.

The obligation is measured on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected unit credit method and remeasurements gains/ losses are recognised in P&L in the period in which they arise.

Share based payment transaction

The stock options of the Company, granted to employees pursuant to the Company's Stock Options Schemes, are measured at the fair value of the options at the grant date as per Black and Scholes model. The fair value of the options is treated as discount and accounted as employee compensation cost, with a corresponding increase in other equity, over the vesting period on a straight-line basis. The amount recognised as expense in each year is arrived at based on the number of grants expected to vest. If a grant lapses after the vesting period, the cumulative discount recognised as expense, with a corresponding increase in other equity, in respect of such grant is transferred to the General reserve within other equity.

T. Events after reporting date

Where events occurring after the balance sheet provide evidence of condition that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date of material size or nature are only disclosed.

U. Non-Current Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is intended to be recovered principally through a sale (rather than through continuing use) when the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of such asset and the sale is highly probable and is expected to qualify for



recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The Company has a policy to make impairment provision at one third of the value of the Asset for each year upon completion of three years up to the end of five years based on the past observed pattern of recoveries. Losses on initial classification as Held for sale and subsequent gains & losses on remeasurement are recognised in Statement of Profit and loss. Once classified as Held for sale, the assets are no longer amortised or depreciated.

V. Fair Value

The Company measure financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorizes into three levels, described as follows, the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs)

Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

Level 3- Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period and discloses the same.

W. Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

- i. changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature,
- ii. non-cash items such as depreciation, Impairment, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses, and undistributed profits of associates and joint ventures; and
- iii. all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet.



X. Recent Amendments

The following amendments to standards have been issued and will be effective from April 01, 2022. The Company is evaluating the requirements of these standards, improvements and amendments and has not yet determined the impact on the financial statements.

- i. Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 Business Combinations Qualifications prescribed for recognition of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as part of applying the acquisition method should meet the definition of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS (Conceptual Framework) issued by the ICAI at the acquisition date. Modification to the exceptions to recognition principle relating to contingent liabilities and contingent assets acquired in a business combination at the acquisition date.
- ii. Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 109 Financial Instruments Modification in accounting treatment of certain costs incurred on derecognition of financial liabilities.
- iii. Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 16 Property, Plant and Equipment Modification in treatment of excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment.
- Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets – Modifications in application of recognition and measurement principles relating to onerous contracts.

Y. NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS

- 1. No contract on capital account remains to be executed.
- 2. No Contingent Liability as on 31.03.2023
- 3. The amount of Exchange difference (Net) debited to the profit & Loss Account for the Year is NIL
- 4. The balances appearing under Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors Advances to Suppliers and others are subject to confirmation.
- 5. The Loans & Advances are repayable on Demand, hence they are classified as Short-term Loans & Advances and not taken at Present Value of the Loan.
- 6. The Loans & Liabilities pertaining to the Company are Repayable on Demand, hence they are classified as Short-term Borrowing and not taken at the Present Value of the Loan.
- 7. Details of remuneration to Managing Director and Whole Time Director

Particulars	Year Ended 31/03/23	Year Ended 31/03/22
Director remuneration	Nil	Nil
Sitting Fees	Nil	Nil
Total	Nil	Nil

- 8. The company has not received information from suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 and hence the disclosures, if any, relating to amount unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable and other disclosures required to be made U/s.22 of the above Act is have not been given.
- 9. In determining Earning per share as per Ind AS 33, the Company has considered net profit after tax. The Number of Shares used for determining basic EPS is the total Number of shares issued & fully paid up as at 31st March, 2023.

Reconciliation of number of shares					
Equity share Capital	No. of Shares	Amount			
Share at the beginning of the year	1,00,55,89,500	1,00,55,89,500			
Add: Share issued during the year	-	-			
Less: Buy back of share	-	-			
Outstanding shares at the year end	1,00,55,89,500	1,00,55,89,500			
EPS Working	FY 2022-23	FY 2021-22			
Basic and diluted earnings per share in rupees (Face value - Rs. 1 per share)	0.006	0.003			
Profit after tax as per statement of profit/(loss)	6,059.27	3,172.68			
Weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the year	1,00,55,89,500	1,00,55,89,500			

- 10. The Cash Flow Statement As per Ind AS 7 is as per Annexure.
- 11. No disclosure is required under Ind AS-105 on "Discontinuing Operations" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as the company has not discontinued any line of its activity/product line during the year.
- 12. Deferred Tax Asset / Deferred Tax Liability: NIL

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

1. Related Parties particulars pursuant to "Ind Accounting Standard – 24"

a) LIST OF RELATED PARTIES:

Name of related parties	Nature of relationship	Transaction entered during the year
MANISH KUMAR BADOLA		7,30,000
HARISH SINGH RAO		No
SANDEEP KUMAR SAHU	Key	75,000
AKSHA BIHANI	Managerial	No
VINAYKUMAR K YADAV	Personnel	
HEMANT VADILAL MODI		4,80,000
MUSHAHID AHMED KHAN		3,00,000

14. Figures of the previous year have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to the current year's classification.



SECTION VI – FINANCIAL INFORMATION (ANNEXURE -B) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS THE QUARTER AND HALF YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Quarterly and Year to Date Unaudited Financial Results of the Company Pursuant to the Regulations 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended

Review Report to The Board of Directors Indian Infotech and Software Limited

- 1. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results of **Indian Infotech and Software Limited (the "Company")**, for the Quarter ended 30th September, 2023 and the year to date result for the period 01st April to 30th September 2023 ("the Statement"), attached herewith, being submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, as amended (the Listing Regulations").
- 2. This Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company's Management and approved by the Company's Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34 "Interim Financial Reporting" (Ind AS 34"), prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. Our responsibility is to issue a report on the Standalone financial statements based on our review.
- 3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity", issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of \ company personnel and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.
- 4. Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and other recognized accounting practices and policies has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material misstatement.



5. Other Matter

While conducting review, Loans and Advances are subject to confirmation and Revenue from interest income is taken on accrual basis.

For and on behalf of ADV & Associates Chartered Accountants FRN: 128045W

Sd/-Prakash Mandhaniya Partner Membership No. 421679 Date: 28.10.2022 Place: Mumbai UDIN: 23421679BGYARP9542



INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED CIN-L70100MH1982PLC027198								
CIN-L70100MH1982PLC027198 Regd. Address: Office No. 110, 1st Floor, Golden Chamber Pre Co-Op Soc Ltd, New Link Road, Andheri West, Mumbai - 400 053								
				@yahoo.com	Koau, Anui	ien west, w	iumbai - 400	055
	UNAUDITED FINANCIAL RESUL			-	D 30 SEP	TEMBER.	2023	
			Quarter End			r Ended		Ended
Sr.	PARTICULARS	30.09.2023	30.06.2023	30.09.2022	30.09.2023	30.09.2022	31.03.2023	31.03.202
No.		Unaudited	Unaudited	Unaudited	Unaudited	Unaudited	Audited	Audited
		-					_	(In Lakhs
1	Income							
	Revenue from operations							
	Interest Income	490.00	490.00	230.00	980.00	460.00	977.13	981.1
	Dividend Income Rental Income	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00		0.4
	Fees and commission Income	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00		0.0
	Net gain on fair value changes	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00		0.0
	Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments							
	under amortised cost category	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.0
(vii)		115.28	0.00	0.00	115.28	0.00		4557.9
	Sale of services	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.
(ix) 1								
1		0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.0
	Total other revenue from operations Total Revenue From Operations	605.28	490.00	230.00	1095.28	460.00		5539.2
	Other income	005.20	490.00	230.00	1035.20	400.00	4700.13	3333.
	Total income	605.28	490.00	230.00	1095.28	460.00	4706.13	5539.2
2	Expenses	555.20		200.00	. 333.20	100.00		
	Cost of materials consumed							
	Purchases of Shares	0.12	0.00	0.00	0.12	0.00	3485.30	5394.
				0.00	24.11	0.00	993.70	0.
	Changes in inventories - Shares	24.11	0.00					
	Employee benefit expense	13.45	13.20	8.72	26.65	12.62	45.90	22.
	Finance costs	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.
	Depreciation, depletion and amortisation expense Fees and commission expense	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.
	Net loss on fair value changes	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.
	Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments	0.00	0.00					0.
	under amortised cost category	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00		0.
	Impairment on financial instruments	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.
	Other expenses							
	Bad Debts	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00		0.
2		50.50 50.50	30.27 30.27	27.02 27.02	80.77 80.77	51.77 51.77	103.15 103.15	80. 80.
	Total other expenses Total expenses	88.18	43.47	35.74	131.66	64.39		5496.
3		517.10	446.53	194.26	963.62	395.61	4028.05	42.
	Exceptional items	517.10	440.00	134.20	505.02	000.01	70.00	
	Total profit before tax	517.10	446.53	194.26	963.62	395.61	78.08	42.
7		0			000.02			
8	Current tax	130.45	112.00	0.00	242.45	0.00	17.49	11.
9	Deferred tax	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.
	Tax of earlier years	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00		0.
10		130.45	112.00	0.00	242.45	0.00	17.49	11.
	Net movement in regulatory deferral account balances related to profit or loss and the related							
11	deferred tax movement	-	-	-			-	-
	Net Profit Loss for the period from continuing	200.05	224 52	404.20	704 47	205.64	60.50	24
14	operations	386.65	334.53	194.26	721.17	395.61	60.59	31.
	Profit (loss) from discontinued operations before tax							
16	Tax expense of discontinued operations							
17	Net profit (loss) from discontinued operation after tax							
	Share of profit (loss) of associates and joint ventures							
	accounted for using equity method	200.05	224 52	404.00	704.47	205.64	CO 50	24
21	Total profit (loss) for period Other comprehensive income net of taxes	386.65	334.53	194.26	721.17	395.61	60.59	31.
22		386.65	334.53	194.26	721.17	395.61	60.59	31.
23	· · ·			.54.20	/		30.09	U 1.
	Profit or loss, attributable to owners of parent							
	Total profit or loss, attributable to non-controlling inter	ests						
	Total Comprehensive income for the period							
25								
	Comprehensive income for the period attributable to o	wners of par	ent					
	Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to owners of parent non-controlling							
	interests							
26	Details of equity share capital							
	Paid-up equity share capital	10055.90	10055.90	10055.90	10055.90	10055.90		10055.
	Face value of equity share capital	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.
27	Earnings per share							
	Earnings per equity share for continuing		I T					
i	operations	0.000 -	0.0000	0.0100	0.071-	0.0000	0.0000	0.00
	Basic earnings per share from continuing operations	0.0384	0.0333	0.0193	0.0717	0.0393	0.0060	0.00
	operations Farnings per equity share for discontinued	0.0384	0.0333	0.0193	0.0717	0.0393	0.0060	0.00
	Earnings per equity share for discontinued operations							
0	Basic earnings per share from discontinued						İ	
	operations							
	Diluted earnings per share from discontinued							
	operations							
ii		0.0384	0.0333	0.0193	0.0747	0.0393	0.0060	0.00
			0.0333	0.0193	0.0717	0.0393	0.0060	0.00
	Basic earnings per share Diluted earnings per share	0.0384	0.0333	0.0193	0.0717	0.0393		0.00



Notes

- 1 The above Financial Results were reviewed and recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 28/10/2023.
- 2 Results for the half year ended September 30, 2023 are in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) in terms of SEBI's circular bearing no CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2015 dated July 5, 2016.
- 3 The Company operate in single reportable segment only in accordance with Accounting Standard 'Segment Reporting' as prescribed under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006
- 4 A substanital number of Companies and entities have not yet provided loan confirmations as well as confirmation of ledgers and interest. Therefore, interest income is taken on accrual basis only. Additionally, a substanital number of Companies and entities have not yet deposited TDS in favour of the Company and therefore, the Company has not considered such TDS in the statement of account.
- 5 This Result and Annual Report is available on BSE website www.bseindia.com
- 6 Investor Complaint for the year Ended 30/09/2023. Opening 0, Received -0, Resolved -0, Closing 0.
- 7 wherever necessary.

FOR INDIAN INFOTECH & SOFTWARE LIMITED SD/-

	MANISH KUMAR BADOLA
MUMBAI	DIRECTOR
28-10-2023	DIN:05016172



INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED CIN-L70100MH1982PLC027198 Regd. Address: Office No. 110, 1st Floor, Golden Chamber Pre Co-Op Soc Ltd, New Link Road, Andheri West, Mumbai - 400 053 Email ID. indianinfotechsoftware@yahoo.com Statement of Assests and Liabilities as at September 2023 **Rs. In Lakhs** As at 30th As at 30th Sr. As at 31st As at 31st Particulars No. Sep 2023 Sep 2022 March 2023 March, 2022 ASSETS 1 **Financial Assets** Cash and cash equivalents 101.77 2.26 4.52 244.93 (a) Bank Balances other than above (a) (b) Derivative Financial Instruments 1.017.81 24.11 1.017.81 (c) Receivables (d) (i) Trade Receivables (ii) Other Receivables Loans 23,628.76 22,133.18 22,740.65 (e) 21.494.91 (f) Investments Other Financial Assets 325.55 266.20 325.55 266.20 (g) Non Financial Assets (a) Current Tax Assets (Net) (b) Deffered Tax Assets (Net) (c) Investment Property (d) Property, Plant & Equipments (e) Intangible Assets Under Development Goodwill (f) Other Intangiable Assets (g) (h) Right of Use Asset Other Non Financial Asset (i) TOTAL ASSETS 24,056.09 23,419.46 23,094.83 23.023.85 **Financial Liabilities** 1 (a) Trade Payables (i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro & Small Enterprises (ii) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than (i) (b) Other Payables (i) Total Outstanding Dues of Micro & Small Enterprises (ii) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than (i) 0.13 0.51 2.49 0.51 (c) Debt Securities (d) Browwings (Other than Debt Securities) 30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00 (e) Subordinated Liabilities ----Lease Liability (f) (g) Other Financial Liabilities 6.67 4.61 6.67 4.61 2 Non Financial Liabilities (a) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) (b) Provisions 316.79 64.88 74.34 64.88 (c) Deffered Tax Liability (net) (d) Other Non Financial Liabilities _ Equity 3 10,055.90 10,055.90 10,055.90 Share Capital 10,055.90 (a) (b) Other equity (Reserve & Surplus) 13,646.60 13,263.56 12,925.43 12,867.95 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 24,056.09 23,419.46 23,094.83 23,023.85

FOR INDIAN INFOTECH & SOFTWARE LIMITED

SD/-

MANISH KUMAR BADOLA DIRECTOR DIN:05016172



INDIAN INFOTECH & SOFTWARE LIMITED Cash Flow Statement as on 30/09/2023

Cash Flow Statement as on 30/09/2023 Rs. In La				
Particulars	For half year ended 30-09-2023	For the year ended 30-09-2022		
Cash Flow from Operating Activities				
Profit Before Tax	963.62	395.61		
Adjustment For:				
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment	-	-		
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & equipments				
Fair Value Loss on Loan Asset				
Net Fair Loss/(gain) on Financial Instruments	-	-		
Impairment on Financial Instruments	-	-		
Gain on Sale of Investment	-	-		
Share Bases Payment to Employees	-	-		
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes	963.62	395.61		
Changes in Working Capital				
Decrease in Financial and Non Financial Assets	21.74	-		
Increase in Financial and Non Financial Assets	-	-		
Cash generated from Operations				
Direct Taxes Paid	-	-		
Loan Disbursed (Net of Repayments)	(888.11)	(638.28		
Net Cash Flow generated from Operating Activities A	97.25	(242.67		
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities				
Add: Inflow from Investing Activities				
Proceed from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment	-	<u>-</u>		
Redemption in other bank balances in investing activities	-	<u>-</u>		
Proceed from Sale of Investment (Net)	-	<u> </u>		
Less: Outflow from Investing Activities				
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment	-	-		
Investment in other bank balances in investing activities	-	<u>-</u>		
Purchase of Investment (Net)	-	<u> </u>		
Net Cash Flow generated from Investing Activities B	-	<u> </u>		
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities				
Add: Inflow from Financing Activities				
Proceed from issue of Share Capital including Share Premium	-	-		
Proceed from issue of Preference Share Capital	-	-		
Proceed from Borrowings	-	-		
Less: Outflow from Financing Activities				
Share Issue Expenses	-	-		
Divident Paid	-	-		
Repayment of Borrowings	-	-		
Redemption of Prefrence Shares	-	-		
Net Cash Flow generated from Financial Activities C		-		
Net Increase/ Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)	97.25	(242.67		
Cash and Cash Equivalents-Opening Balance	4.52	244.93		
Cash and Cash Equivalents-Closing Balance	101.77	2.26		

FOR INDIAN INFOTECH & SOFTWARE LIMITED

SD/-

MANISH KUMAR BADOLA DIRECTOR DIN:05016172

MUMBAI 28-10-2023



Sr.	Ratios	Values
a)	Debt Service Coverage Ratio	-
b)	Interest Service Coverage Ratio	-
c)	Debt Equity Ratio	0.13%
d)	Current Ratio	26.90
e)	Long term debt to working capital	-
f)	Bad debts to Account receivable ratio	-
g)	Current liability ratio	36.80%
h)	Total debts to total assets	0.13%
i)	Debtors turnover	-
j)	Inventory turnover	-
k)	Operating margin (%)	87.98%
I)	Net profit margin (%)	65.84%

ABRIDGED LETTER OF OFFER CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE LETTER OF OFFER FOR THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY ONLY

This is an Abridged Letter of Offer containing salient features of the Letter of Offer dated January 15, 2024 ("Letter of Offer") which is available on the websites of the Registrar, our Company, and the stock exchange where the Equity Shares of our Company are listed, i.e., BSE Limited ("BSE") ("Stock Exchange"). You are encouraged to read greater details available in the Letter of Offer. Capitalized terms not specifically defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Letter of Offer.

THIS ABRIDGED LETTER OF OFFER CONTAINS 8 PAGES. PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE RECEIVED ALL THE PAGES

Our Company has made available on the Registrar's website at <u>https://purvashare.com</u> and the Company's website, Abridged Letter of Offer along with the Rights Entitlement Letter and Application Form to the Eligible Equity Shareholder who have provided an Indian address to our Company. You may also download the Letter of Offer from the websites of the Company, the Stock Exchange, and the Registrar, *i.e.*, at <u>https://indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in/, www.bseindia.com</u>, and <u>www.purvashare.com</u>, respectively. The Application Form is available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange, our Company and the Registrar to the Issue.



INDIAN INFOTECH & SOFTWARE LTD. NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY

INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED

Registered Office: : Office No. 110, 1st Floor, Golden Chamber Pre Co-Op Soc Ltd. New Link Road Andheri West Mumbai-400053, India Contact Person: Manish Kumar Badola, Managing Director ; Telephone: 022-49601435

E-mail: indianinfotechsoftware@yahoo.com Website: www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in;

Corporate Identity Number: L70100MH1982PLC027198.

PROMOTERS OF OUR COMPANY: MAHAMAYA FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS PRIVATE LIMITED, JAYANTI PRIME SOFTWARE ADVISORY PRIVATE LIMITED, GENEROSITY SHARE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED, DHANVARSHA ADVISORY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

FOR PRIVATE CIRCULATION TO THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED ("OUR COMPANY" OR "THE ISSUER") ONLY

ISSUE DETAILS, LISTING AND PROCEDURE

RIGHT ISSUE OF UPTO 26,14,53,270 EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF ₹1.00 EACH ("EQUITY SHARES" OR "RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES) OF OUR COMPANY FOR CASH AT A PRICE OF ₹ 1.60 PER RIGHTS EQUITY SHARE INCLUDING A SHARE PREMIUM OF 0.60 PAISE PER RIGHTS EQUITY SHARE (THE "ISSUE PRICE") AGGREGATING UP TO ₹ 4,183.25* LAKH ("THE ISSUE") ON A RIGHTS BASIS TO THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR COMPANY IN THE RATIO OF THIRTEEN (13) RIGHT EQUITY SHARE FOR EVERY FIFTY (50) FULLY PAID-UP EQUITY SHARES HELD BY THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR COMPANY ON THE RECORD DATE, THAT IS JANUARY 29, 2024 (THE "ISSUE"). FOR FURTHER DETAILS, SEE "*TERMS OF THE ISSUE*" BEGINNING ON PAGE 82 OF LETTER OF OFFER. *Assuming full subscription

The existing Equity Shares of our Company are listed on BSE Limited. Our Company has received "in-principle" approval from BSE Limited and for listing the Rights Equity Shares through their letters dated December 05, 2023. For the purposes of the Issue, the Designated Stock Exchange is BSE Limited. Our Company will also make application to the Stock Exchange to obtain the trading approval for the Rights Entitlements as required under the SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020.

Procedure: If you wish to know about processes and procedures applicable to rights issue, you may refer to the section titled "*Terms of the Issue*" on page 80 of the Letter of Offer. You may download a copy of the Letter of Offer from the websites of the Company, SEBI, BSE, Registrar as stated above. You can also request the Registrar or our Company to provide a hard copy of Letter of Offer.

ELIGIBILITY FOR THE ISSUE

Our Company is a listed company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. Our Equity Shares are presently listed on the BSE Limited. Our Company undertakes to make an application to the Stock Exchange for listing of the Rights Equity Shares to be issued pursuant to this Issue.

INDICATIVE TIMETABLE*						
Last Date for credit of Rights Entitlements	Thursday, 1 February, 2024	Finalization of Basis of Allotment (on or about)	Thursday, 15 February, 2024			
Issue Opening Date	Tuesday, 6 February, 2024	Date of Allotment (on or about)	Thursday, 15 February, 2024			
Last date for On Market Renunciation of Rights Entitlements [#]	Thursday, 8 February, 2024	Date of credit (on or about)	Monday, 19 February, 2024			
Issue Closing Date*	Tuesday, 13th February, 2024	Date of listing (on or about)	Monday, 26 February, 2024			

* Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee(s) on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

Our Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from time to time, provided that the Issue will not remain open in excess of 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE EQUITY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "US SECURITIES ACT"), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, RESOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHIN THE UNITED STATES, EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE US SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. ACCORDINGLY, THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS (INCLUDING THEIR CREDIT) AND THE EQUITY SHARES ARE ONLY BEING OFFERED AND SOLD OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN OFFSHORE TRANSACTIONS IN RELIANCE ON REGULATION S UNDER THE US SECURITIES ACT ("REGULATION S") AND THE APPLICABLE LAWS OF THE JURISDICTION WHERE THOSE OFFERS AND SALES OCCUR. THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE EQUITY SHARES MAY NOT BE RE-OFFERED, RE-SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH REGULATION S, OR OTHERWISE IN A TRANSACTION EXEMPT FROM, OR NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE US SECURITIES ACT. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THE LETTER OF OFFER RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING OF ANY EQUITY SHARES OR THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT FOR SALE IN THE UNITED STATES OR AS A SOLICITATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY OR TRANSFER ANY OF THE EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT. THERE IS NO INTENTION TO REGISTER ANY PORTION OF THE ISSUE OF ANY OF THE SECURITIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IN THE UNITED STATES OR TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC OFFERING OF SECURITIES IN THE UNITED STATES. ACCORDINGLY, THE ISSUE DOCUMENTS AND THE APPLICATION FORM SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO THE UNITED STATES AT ANY TIME.

NO ACTION HAS BEEN TAKEN OR WILL BE TAKEN THAT WOULD PERMIT A PUBLIC OFFERING OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR EQUITY SHARES TO OCCUR IN ANY JURISDICTION OTHER THAN INDIA, OR THE POSSESSION, CIRCULATION OR DISTRIBUTION OF THE LETTER OF OFFER OR ANY OTHER MATERIAL RELATING TO OUR COMPANY, THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR THE EQUITY SHARES IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE ACTION FOR SUCH PURPOSE IS REQUIRED. ACCORDINGLY, THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR EQUITY SHARES MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, AND NEITHER THE LETTER OF OFFER NOR ANY OFFERING MATERIALS OR ADVERTISEMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR EQUITY SHARES MAY BE DISTRIBUTED OR PUBLISHED IN OR FROM ANY COUNTRY OR JURISDICTION EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE IN SUCH COUNTRY OR JURISDICTION. THE ISSUE WILL BE MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE SEBI REGULATIONS.

GENERAL RISKS

Investment in equity and equity related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in the Issue unless they can afford to take the risk with such investment. Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking an investment decision in relation to the Issue. For taking an investment decision, investors shall rely on their own examination of the Company and the Issue including the risks involved. The Rights Equity Shares have not been recommended or approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of the Letter of Offer. Specific attention of investors is invited to the statement of "*Risk Factors*" beginning on page 18 of the Letter of Offer and "*Internal Risk Factors*" on page 5 of this Abridged Letter of Offer before making an investment in the Issue.

Name of Registrar to the Issue and contact details	Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Ltd Unit no. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt. J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E) Mumbai 400 011. Telephone: +91 22 3199 8810; +91 22 4970 0138 +91 22 4961 4132; Facsimile: +91 22 22 3570 0224; E-mail: support@purvashare.com ; Website: https://purvashare.com ; Contact person: Deepali Dhuri, Compliance Officer
	Investor grievance: support@purvashare.com; SEBI Registration No: INRO00001112 Validity of Registration: Permanent
Name of Statutory Auditors	M/s. Adv and Associates (FRN: 128045W)
Banker to the Issue	Axis Bank Limited Ground Floor, Jeevan Prakash Building, Sir PM Road, Fort, Mumbai, Maharashtra, 400001 Telephone No.: 8879556155 Email: vijay.koyale@axisbank.com Website: https://www.axisbank.com/ Contact Person: Vijay Koyale

1. SUMMARY OF BUSINESS

We are a non-banking finance company ("NBFC") incorporated in the year 1982 registered with the Reserve Bank of India bearing registration number B-13.0022 to carry on NBFC business activities under Section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. We are a Non-systemically important non-deposit taking company with over two decades of lending experience in rural and semi-urban geographies in India. We are primarily engaged in micro centric lending solutions to look after the needs and aspirations of customers. Our portfolio includes Vehicle Finance and Business Finance Products to small business owners. We have a long history of serving all types of markets with high growth potential and have maintained a track record of financial performance and operational efficiency through consistently high rates of customer acquisition and retention and low cost expansion into underpenetrated areas.

2. SUMMARY OF OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE AND MEANS OF FINANCE

The details of the proceeds of the Issue are summarised in the table below:

	(₹ in Lakhs)
Particulars	Amount in Rupees (in Lakh)
Working Capital Requirement*	3,500.00
General Corporate Purposes**	653.25
Net Proceeds from the Issue	4,153.25

*Assuming full subscription and Allotment of the Rights Entitlement.

** The amount to be utilized for general corporate purposes will not exceed 25% of the Gross Proceeds.

Particulars	Amount in Rupees (in Lakh)
Working Capital Requirement*	3,500.00
General Corporate Purposes**	653.25
Net Proceeds from the Issue	4,153.25
Particulars	Amount in Rupees (in Lakh)
Working Capital Requirement*	3,500.00
General Corporate Purposes**	653.25
Net Proceeds from the Issue	4,153.25
Particulars	Amount in Rupees (in Lakh)
Working Capital Requirement*	3,500.00
General Corporate Purposes**	653.25
Net Proceeds from the Issue	4,153.25

Schedule of Implementation, Requirement of Funds and Utilization of Net Proceeds

The Net Fresh Issue Proceeds are proposed to be utilized and are currently expected to be deployed in the manner set out in the following table:

Sr. No	Particulars	Total Estimated Expenditure	Amount to be financed from Internal Accruals	Amount to be Financed from Net Proceeds	Estimated deployment of Net Proceeds by the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024
1	Working Capital Requirement*	26,513.61	22,983.61	3,500.00	3,500.00
2	General Corporate Purposes*	653.25	Nil	653.25	653.25

(Fin labbe)

* Amount utilized for general corporate purposes shall not exceed 25% of the gross proceeds of the issue.

Means of Finance

Accordingly, we are in compliance with the requirements prescribed under Paragraph 9(C)(1) of Part B of Schedule VI and Regulation 230 (1)(e) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations which require firm arrangements of finance to be made through verifiable means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised through the Issue and existing identifiable internal accruals. In case of a shortfall in the Net Proceeds or any increase in the actual utilisation of funds earmarked for the Objects, our Company may explore a range of options including utilizing our internal accruals.

3. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

- (i) The shareholding pattern of our Company at the quarter ended September 30, 2023, can be accessed on the website of the BSE at https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/indian-infotech--software-ltd/indinfo/509051/shareholding-pattern/
- (ii) The statement showing holding of Equity Shares of persons belonging to the category "Promoter and Promoter Group" including the details of lock-in, pledge of and encumbrance thereon, as at the quarter ended September 30, 2023, can be accessed on the website of the BSE at <u>https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/indian-infotech--software-ltd/indinfo/509051/shareholding-pattern/</u>
- (iii) The statement showing holding of securities (including Equity Shares, warrants, convertible securities) of persons belonging to the category "Public" including Equity Shareholders holding more than 1% of the total number of Equity Shares as at the quarter ended September 30, 2023, as well as details of shares which remain unclaimed for public can be accessed on the website of the BSE at <u>https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/indian-infotech--software-Itd/indinfo/509051/shareholding-pattern/</u>

4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Details of Directors	Other Directorships in Companies
Name: Mr. Manish Badola	- M3 Consultant LLP
Designation Managing Director;	- Nextgen Accounting Solutions and
Address: A/201, Singhad CHS, Shivaji Nagar Nilemore, Nallasopara West, Nale Palghar,	Technology LLP
Mumbai – 401203	
Occupation: Business	
Term: June 17, 2022 till June 16, 2027	
Period of Directorship : Not Liable to retire by rotation	
Nationality: Indian	
Date of Birth: August 03, 1983	
DIN : 05016172	
Age: 39 years	NII
Name: Mr. Hemant Vadilal Mod	NIL
Designation: Executive -Director	
Address: D-804 Ratnadeep towers, Nr. Arjun tower, b/h C.P Nagar Ghatlodia Ahmedabad	
city Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380061	
Occupation: Business	
Term: September 30,2022 till date	
Period of Directorship: Liable to retire by Rotation	
Nationality: Indian	
Date of Birth: July 13, 1980	
DIN: 09630204	
Age: 43 years	
Name: Ms. Aksha Bihani Desimation: New Encenting - Indexed batt Director	• Swastik City Developers
Designation: Non-Executive - Independent Director	Limited
Address: 17/1, Lal Madhab Mukherjee Lane, Kolkata- 700007 Occupation: Business	•
Term: March 19, 2019 till date	Sasmal Infra Developers Private Limited
Period of Directorship: Not Liable to retire by Rotation	
Nationality: Indian Date of Birth: April 11, 1990	
DIN: 08102933	
Age: 33 years	
Name: Mr. Hari Singh Rao	H.S.R. Jewels Private Limited
Designation: Non-Executive - Independent Director	
Address: 1506- Boulevard 01, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Ghatkopar West, Opp. R-City	
Mall, Mumbai-400086	
Occupation: Business	
Term: June 08,2022 till date	
Period of Directorship: Not Liable to retire by Rotation	
Nationality: Indian	
Date of Birth: July 1, 1978	
DIN: 05132581	
Age: 45 years	
Name: Mr. Vinay Kumar Yadav	NIL
Designation: Non-Executive Independent Director	
Address: G-8 C Wing Building No B Cabin Cross road near Narmada Nagar, Bhayander east	
Thane, Maharashtra- 401105	
Occupation: Business	
Term: June 08,2022 till date	
Period of Directorship: Not Liable to retire by Rotation	
Nationality: Indian	
Date of Birth: May ,02,1993	
DIN: 09630182	
Age: 30 years.	

Details of Directors	Other Directorships in Companies
Name: Mr. Sandeep Kumar Sahu Designation: Non-Executive Independent Director Address: Jablapur road behind petrol pump Lugharwada seoni Madhya Pradesh 480661. Occupation: Business Term: September 09, 2022 till date Period of Directorship: Not Liable to retire by Rotation Nationality: Indian Date of Birth: October 20, 1984 DIN: 06396817 Age: 38 years	 Prismx Global Ventures Limited Tahmar Enterprises Limited Panorama Studios International Limited Panorama Studios Private Limited Sanescort Lifecare Private Limited

5. DETAILS OF THE ISSUER OR ANY OF ITS PROMOTERS OR DIRECTORS BEING A WILFUL DEFAULTER

Neither our Company nor our Promoter or our Directors have been or are identified as Wilful Defaulters.

6. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A summary of the Financial Information for the for the period ended on September 30, 2023 and the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, are as follows:

			(₹ in Lakh)
Particulars	For the period ended on	For the year ended March	For the year ended March
	September 30, 2023	2023	2022
Equity Share Capital	10,055.89	10,055.89	10,055.89
Net Worth	23,702.50	22,981.33	22,923.84
Total Income	1,095.28	4,706.13	5,539.23
Profit / (loss) after tax	721.17	60.59	31.72
Basic EPS	0.07	0.00	0.00
Diluted EPS	0.07	0.00	0.00
Net asset value per Equity Share	2.36	2.29	2.28
Total borrowings	30.00	30.00	30.00

7. INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

The below mentioned risks are the top 5 risk factors as per the Letter of Offer:

- 1. There are outstanding legal proceedings involving our Company, Promoters and Directors Any adverse decision in such proceeding may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
- 2. We provide unsecured loans to our borrowers. If our customers default in their repayment obligations, our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows may be adversely affected.
- 3. We operate in a highly competitive industry.
- 4. Our business is vulnerable to interest rate risk and volatility in interest rates which could adversely affect our income from our operations and adversely affect our financial performance and profitability.
- 5. Our Company has reported negative cash flow in the past. Any negative cash flows in the future would adversely affect our cash flow requirements, which may adversely affect our ability to operate our business and implement our growth plans, thereby affecting our financial condition.

For further details, see the section "Risk Factors" on page 18 of the Letter of Offer.

8. SUMMARY TABLE OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

The Summary of legal proceedings involving our Company and Subsidiaries as on date of the Letter of Offer are set out below:

Nature of cases	Number of cases	Amount involved
Litigations involving our Company		
Litigation Involving Actions by	Nil	Nil
Statutory/Regulatory Authorities;		
Litigation involving Tax Liabilities;		
1. For F.Y. 2015-16		
Tax Amount 2,13,48,900 & Penalty Rs.		
1,13,04,670 Total Rs. 3,26,53,570	2	3,27,60,460
The same is under protest and the		
company has filed appeal with		
commissioner		
2. For F.Y. 2017-18		
Tax Amount Rs. 1,06,890		
This order passed by CPC under Section		
143(3) which is also under protest		
Proceedings involving issues of moral	Nil	Nil
turpitude or criminal liability on the part		
of our		
Company;		
Proceedings involving Material Violations	Nil	Nil
of Statutory Regulations by our Company;		

Matters involving economic offences where proceedings have been initiated against our	Nil	Nil
Company;		
Other proceedings involving our Company which involve an amount exceeding the Materiality Threshold or are otherwise material in terms of the Materiality Policy, and other pending matters which, if they result in an adverse outcome	Nil	Nil
would materially and adversely affect the operations or the financial position of our Company;		
Litigation involving our Directors, Promoters and Promoter Group;	Nil	Nil
Litigation involving our Group Companies;	Nil	Nil

For further details, see "Outstanding Litigation and Defaults" on page 71 of the Letter of Offer.

9. TERMS OF THE ISSUE

Process of Making an Application in the Issue.

1) Dispatch and availability of Issue materials:

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI circulars SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/78 dated May 6, 2020, Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 24, 2020 and the MCA Circular, our Company will send, only through email, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter, Application Form and other issue material to the email addresses of all the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their Indian addresses to our Company. The Letter of Offer will be provided, only through email, by the Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided their addresses to our Company and in case the Eligible Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Issue Materials will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the India addresses provided by them.

Investors can also access the Draft Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) on the websites of:

- a) Our Company at <u>www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in</u>
- b) the Registrar to the Issue at <u>https://purvashare.com</u>
- c) the Stock Exchanges at <u>www.bseindia.com</u>

Eligible Equity Shareholders can obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar at <u>https://purvashare.com</u> by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form). The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e., www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in).

The Registrar will not be liable for non-dispatch of physical copies of Issue materials, including the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form.

2) Facilities for Application in this Issue:

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, SEBI circular, bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/CIR/CFD/DIL/67/2020 dated April 21, 2020, SEBI circular bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/136 dated July 24, 2020 (Collectively hereafter referred to as "SEBI Rights Issue Circulars") and SEBI circular SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12 dated December 30, 2009, SEBI circular CIR/CFD/DIL1/2011 dated April 29, 2011 and the SEBI circular, bearing reference number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020 (Collectively hereafter referred to as "ASBA Circulars"), all Investors desiring to make an Application in this Issue are mandatorily required to use either the ASBA process. Original Shareholders shall mean the Resident Shareholders who are holding the Equity Shares of our Company as on the Record Date i.e. January 29, 2024 (hereinafter referred to as the "Original Shareholders"). Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before making their Application through ASBA or using optional mechanism. For details, see "*Procedure for Application through the ASBA Process*" and on page 87 of the Letter of Offer.

3) Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders:

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circular, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date i.e. Tuesday, 06th February, 2024, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialised

form; and (ii) a Right Entitlement Demat Suspense Account (namely, "INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED- Right Entitlement Demat Suspense Account") opened by our Company, for the Eligible Equity Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares held in the account of IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (d) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date where details of demat accounts are not provided by Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company or Registrar; or (e) credit of the Rights Entitlements returned / reversed / failed; or (f) the ownership of the Equity Shares currently under dispute, including any court proceedings. Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to provide relevant details (such as copies of self-attested PAN and client master sheet of demat account etc., details / records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership of their respective Equity Shares) to the Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their demat account at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, to enable such Eligible Equity Shareholders to make an application in this Issue, and this communication shall serve as an intimation to such Eligible Equity Shareholders in this regard. Such Eligible Equity Shareholders are also requested to ensure that their demat account, details of which have been provided to the Company or the Registrar account is active to facilitate the aforementioned transfer.

4) Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form:

Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialised form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Equity Shares in this Issue are advised to furnish the details of their demat account to our Company or Registrar at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date.

In accordance with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, (a) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to our Company or Registrar at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, desirous of subscribing to Rights Shares may also apply in this Issue during the Issue Period. Application by such Eligible Equity Shareholders is subject to following conditions:

- a) The Eligible Equity Shareholders are residents;
- b) The Eligible Equity Shareholders are not making payment from non-resident account;
- c) The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall not be able to renounce their Rights Entitlements; and
- d) The Eligible Equity Shareholders shall receive Rights Shares, in respect of their Application, only in demat mode.

Prior to the Issue Opening Date, the Rights Entitlements of those resident Eligible Equity Shareholders, among others, who hold Equity Shares in physical form, and whose demat account details are not available with our Company or Registrar, shall be credited in a demat suspense escrow account opened by our Company.

Accordingly, such resident Eligible Equity Shareholders are required to send a communication to our Company containing the name(s), Indian address, email address, contact details and the details of their demat account along with copy of self- attested PAN and self-attested client master sheet of their demat account either by post, speed post, courier, electronic mail, or hand delivery, to enable process of credit of Rights Shares in such demat account.

5) Other important links and helpline:

The Investors can visit following links for the below-mentioned purposes:

- a) Frequently asked questions and online / electronic dedicated investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors: <u>https://purvashare.com</u>
- b) Updation of Indian address / email address / mobile number in the records maintained by the Registrar or our Company: https://purvashare.com
- c) Updation of demat account details by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form: <u>https://purvashare.com</u>

Renouncees

All rights or obligations of the Eligible Equity Shareholders in relation to Applications and refunds relating to the Issue shall, unless otherwise specified, apply to the Renouncee(s) as well.

DECLARATION BY OUR COMPANY

We hereby certify that no statement made in this Abridged Letter of Offer contravenes any of the provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder. We further certify that all the legal requirements connected with the Issue as also the regulations, guidelines, instructions, etc., issued by SEBI, the Government of India and any other competent authority in this behalf, have been duly complied with. We further certify that all disclosures made in this Abridged Letter of Offer are true and correct.

SIGNED BY ALL THE DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY

NAME AND DESIGNATION	SIGNATURE
Mr. Manish Badola (Managing Director) DIN: 05016172	Sd/-
Mr. Hemant Vadilal Modi (Executive Director cum Chief Financial Officer) DIN: 09630204	Sd/-
Ms. Aksha Bihani (Independent Director) DIN: 08102933	
Mr. Vinay Kumar K Yadav (Independent Director) DIN: 09630182	Sd/-
Mr. Hari Singh Rao (Independent Director) DIN: 05132581	Sd/-
Mr. Sandeep Kumar Sahu (Independent Director) DIN: 06396817	Sd/-

SIGNED BY THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND THE COMPANY SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER OF OUR COMPANY

Sd/-MR. Hemant Vadilal Modi Chief Financial Officer PAN: ANPPM7578P

Place: Mumbai Date: January 15, 2024 Sd/-MR. Mushahid Khan Company Secretary and Compliance Officer PAN: BMLPK4089F



INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED

Registered Office: Office No. 110, 1st Floor, Golden Chamber Pre Co-Op Soc Ltd. New Link Road Andheri West Mumbai-400053, India Contact Person: Manish Kumar Badola, Managing Director, Tel. No.: 022-49601435 E-mail: indianinfotechsoftware@yahoo.com; Website: www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in Corporate Identification Number: L70100MH1982PLC027198

ENTITLEMENT LETTER FOR THE RIGHTS ISSUE

Dear Shareholder,

SUB.: RIGHT ISSUE OF UPTO 26,14,53,270 EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF ₹1.00 EACH ("EQUITY SHARES" OR "RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES) OF OUR COMPANY FOR CASH AT A PRICE OF ₹ 1.60 PER RIGHTS EQUITY SHARE INCLUDING A SHARE PREMIUM OF 0.60 PAISE PER RIGHTS EQUITY SHARE (THE "ISSUE PRICE") AGGREGATING UP TO ₹ 4,183.25* LAKH ("THE ISSUE") ON A RIGHTS BASIS TO THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR COMPANY IN THE RATIO OF THIRTEEN (13) RIGHT EQUITY SHARE FOR EVERY FIFTY (50) FULLY PAID-UP EQUITY SHARES HELD BY THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR COMPANY ON THE RECORD DATE, THAT IS JANUARY 29, 2024 (THE "ISSUE"). FOR FURTHER DETAILS, SEE "TERMS OF THE ISSUE" BEGINNING ON PAGE 80 OF LETTER OF OFFER. *Assuming full subscription

With reference to above, please find below for your information the details of Equity Shares held by you as on the Record Date i.e. **Monday, January** 29, 2024 along with your Rights Entitlements:

Folio Number/ DP or Client ID	No. of Equity Shares held by you on the RecordDate - Monday, January 29, 2024	No. of Rights Entitlements

Abridged Letter of Offer & Application Form are enclosed

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar i.e., <u>support@purvashare.com</u> by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form) and PAN. The link for the same shall also be available on the website of the Company i.e. www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in

This is to inform you that the captioned Issue opens for subscription on Tuesday, 06th February, 2024 and closes[#] for subscription on Tuesday, 13th February, 2024.

Our Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from time to time but not exceeding 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date.

Fractional Entitlements

The Equity Shares are being offered on a rights basis to existing Eligible Equity Shareholders in the ratio of Thirteen (13) Right Equity Share for Every Fifty (50) Fully Paid-Up Equity Shares held as on the Record Date. As per SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the fractional entitlements are to be ignored. Accordingly, if the shareholding of any of the Eligible Equity Shareholders is less than 50 Equity Shares or is not in the multiple of 50 Equity Shares, the fractional entitlements of such Eligible Equity Shareholders shall be ignored by rounding down of their Rights Entitlements. However, the Eligible Equity Shareholders whose fractional entitlements are being ignored, will be given preferential consideration for the Allotment of one additional Equity Share if they apply for additional Equity Shares over and above their Rights Entitlements, if any, subject to availability of Equity Shares in the Issue post allocation towards Rights Entitlements applied for. For further details, see "*Terms of the Issue*" beginning on page 80 of the Letter of Offer.

Traded in Demat

The Rights Entitlements are tradable in dematerialized form only.

Procedure for Application in the Issue

In accordance with Regulation 76 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the ASBA Circulars, all Investors desiring to make an Application in the Issue are mandatorily required to use the ASBA process. Investors should carefully read the provisions applicable to such Applications before making their Application through ASBA. For details, see "*Terms of the Issue - Procedure for Application through the ASBA Process*" on page 87 of the Letter of Offer.

Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders

Pursuant to provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and in terms of the Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlements of the Eligible Equity Shareholders have been credited in their respective demat account under the ISIN - INE300B20014. For details of credit of the Rights Entitlements, see "*Terms of the Issue - Credit of Rights Entitlements in demat accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders*" on pages 81 of the Letter of Offer.

In accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialized form only. Prior to the Issue Opening Date, our Company shall credit the Rights Entitlements to (i) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding the Equity Shares in dematerialised form; and (ii) a demat suspense

account (namely, "INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED – RIGHT ENTITLEMENT" category suspense Demat ccount) opened by our Company, for the Eligible Equity Shareholders which would comprise Rights Entitlements relating to (a) Equity Shares held in a demat suspense account pursuant to Regulation 39 of the SEBI Listing Regulations; or (b) Equity Shares held in the account of IEPF authority; or (c) the demat accounts of the Eligible Equity Shareholder which are frozen or suspended for debit/credit or details of which are unavailable with our Company or with the Registrar on the Record Date; or (d) Equity Shares held by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date where details of demat accounts are not provided by Eligible Equity Shareholders to our Company or Registrar; or (e) instances where credit of the Rights Entitlements returned/reversed/failed; or (f) Equity Shares, the ownership of which is currently under dispute, including in any court proceedings.

Renunciation of Rights Entitlements

The Issue includes a right exercisable by Eligible Equity Shareholders to renounce the Rights Entitlements credited to their respective demat account either in full or in part. The renunciation from non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholder(s) to resident Indian(s) and vice versa shall be subject to provisions of FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the Ministry of Finance from time to time. However, the facility of renunciation shall not be available to or operate in favour of an Eligible Equity Shareholders being an erstwhile OCB unless the same is in compliance with the FEMA Rules and other circular, directions, or guidelines issued by RBI or the Ministry of Finance from time to time.

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements credited in your demat account can be made either by sale of such Rights Entitlements, using the secondary market platform of the Stock Exchanges or through an off-market transfer. For details, see "*Terms of the Issue - Procedure for Renunciation of Rights Entitlements*" on page 88 of the Letter of Offer.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS WHICH ARE NEITHER RENOUNCED NOR SUBSCRIBED BY THE INVESTORS ON OR BEFORETHE ISSUE CLOSING DATE SHALL LAPSE AND SHALL BE EXTINGUISHED AFTER THE ISSUE CLOSING DATE.

ISSUE SCHEDULE

You are requested to take note of the following schedule of the Issue:

I DIA NU ADILI	FI 1 1 F 1 2021		E1 1 15 E 1 2024
Last Date for credit of Rights	Thursday, 1 February, 2024	Finalization of Basis of Allotment	Thursday, 15 February, 2024
Entitlements		(on or about)	
Issue Opening Date	Tuesday, 6 February, 2024	Date of Allotment (on or about)	Thursday, 15 February, 2024
Last date for On Market	Thursday, 8 February, 2024	Date of credit (on or about)	Monday, 19 February, 2024
Renunciation of Rights			
Entitlement*			
Issue Closing Date [#]	Tuesday, 13th February, 2024	Date of listing (on or about)	Monday, 26 February, 2024

*Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation through off-market transfer is completed in such a manner that the Rights Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee(s) on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.

Our Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may determine from time to time, provided that the Issue will not remain open in excess of 30 (thirty) days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date). Further, no withdrawal of Application shall be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date.

ATTENTION FOR PHYSICAL SHAREHOLDERS

The Eligible Equity Shareholders will be required to send a letter to the Registrar containing the name(s), address, e-mail address, contact details and the details of their active demat account along with copy of self-attested PAN and self-attested client master sheet of their demat account either by email, post, speed post, courier, or hand delivery so as to reach to the Registrar no later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date.

In accordance with SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/13 dated January 22, 2020, credit of Rights Entitlement and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialised form only. The Physical Shareholders are requested to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their demat account to the Registrar day before the Issue Closing Date. The Rights Entitlements of the Physical Shareholders who do not furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall lapse.

Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotmentof Rights Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialised form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares in this Issue are advised to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Daysprior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date. However, if demat account details are not provided by the Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form to the Registrar or our Company by the date mentioned above, such shareholders will not be allotted any Rights Equity Shares nor such Rights Equity Shares be kept in suspense account on behalf of such shareholder.

Investors can access the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) from the websites of the Company at <u>www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in</u> or at SEBI at <u>www.sebi.gov.in</u> or the Registrar as detailed below or the Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com

Our Company, reserves the right to treat as invalid any Application Form which: (i) appears to our Company or its agents to have been executed in, electronically transmitted from or dispatched from the United States or other jurisdictions where the offer and sale of the Equity Shares is not permitted under laws of such jurisdictions; (ii) does not include the relevant certifications set out in the Application Form, including to the effect that the person submitting and/or renouncing the Application Form is outside the United States and such person is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under applicable securities laws and is complying with laws of jurisdictions applicable to such person in connection with this Issue; or (iii) where either a registered Indian address is not provided or where our Company believes acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements. Our Company shall not be bound to issue or allot any Equity Shares in respect of any such Application Form.

THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE EOUITY SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "US SECURITIES ACT"), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, RESOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED WITHIN THE UNITED STATES, EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE US SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. ACCORDINGLY, THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS (INCLUDING THEIR CREDIT) AND THE EQUITY SHARES ARE ONLY BEING OFFERED AND SOLD OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN OFFSHORE TRANSACTIONS IN RELIANCE ON REGULATION S UNDER THE US SECURITIES ACT ("REGULATION S") AND THE APPLICABLE LAWS OF THE JURISDICTION WHERE THOSE OFFERS AND SALES OCCUR. THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS AND THE EQUITY SHARES MAY NOT BE RE-OFFERED, RE-SOLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH REGULATION S, OR OTHERWISE IN A TRANSACTION EXEMPT FROM, OR NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE US SECURITIES ACT. THE OFFERING TO WHICH THIS LETTER OF OFFER RELATES IS NOT, AND UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES IS TO BE CONSTRUED AS, AN OFFERING OF ANY EQUITY SHARES OR THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT FOR SALE IN THE UNITED STATES OR AS A SOLICITATION THEREIN OF AN OFFER TO BUY OR TRANSFER ANY OF THE EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENT. THERE IS NO INTENTION TO REGISTER ANY PORTION OF THE ISSUE OF ANY OF THE SECURITIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IN THE UNITED STATES OR TO CONDUCT A PUBLIC OFFERING OF SECURITIES IN THE UNITED STATES. ACCORDINGLY, THE ISSUE DOCUMENTS AND THE APPLICATION FORM SHOULD NOT BE FORWARDED TO OR TRANSMITTED IN OR INTO THE UNITED STATES AT ANY TIME.

NO ACTION HAS BEEN TAKEN OR WILL BE TAKEN THAT WOULD PERMIT A PUBLIC OFFERING OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR EQUITY SHARES TO OCCUR IN ANY JURISDICTION OTHER THAN INDIA, OR THE POSSESSION, CIRCULATION OR DISTRIBUTION OF THE LETTER OF OFFER OR ANY OTHER MATERIAL RELATING TO OUR COMPANY, THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR THE EQUITY SHARES IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE ACTION FOR SUCH PURPOSE IS REQUIRED. ACCORDINGLY, THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR EQUITY SHARES MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, AND NEITHER THE LETTER OF OFFER NOR ANY OFFERING MATERIALS OR ADVERTISEMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR EQUITY SHARES MAY BE DISTRIBUTED OR PUBLISHED IN OR FROM ANY COUNTRY OR JURISDICTION EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE IN SUCH COUNTRY OR JURISDICTION. THE ISSUE WILL BE MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE SEBI REGULATIONS. EACH PURCHASER OF THE RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS OR THE EQUITY SHARES IN THE ISSUE WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE MADE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND AGREEMENTS AS DESCRIBED UNDER "RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES" ON PAGE 106 OF THE LETTER OF OFFER.

In case of any queries, you may contact the Company at indianinfotechsoftware@yahoo.com or the Registrar as per the details mentioned herein:

REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE



Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Ltd. CIN: U67120MH1993PTC074079 Unit no. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt. J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E) Mumbai 400 011. Telephone: +91 22 3199 8810; +91 22 4970 0138 +91 22 4961 4132; Facsimile: +91 22 22 3570 0224; E-mail: support@purvashare.com; Website: https://purvashare.com; Contact person: Deepali Dhuri, Compliance Officer Investor grievance: support@purvashare.com; SEBI Registration No: INRO00001112 Validity of Registration: Permanent

Note: All capitalized terms, unless defined herein, shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Letter of Offer.

FOR INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED

Sd/-MANISH BADOLA MANAGING DIRECTOR DIN: 05016172

Date: January 15, 2024

APPLICATION FORM FOR		NOT INTENDED FOR ELIGI	BLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS					
ELIGIBLE EQUITY		IN THE UNITED STATES (OT	THER THAN U.S. QIBs INVITED					
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE	(IISL	DIRECTLY BY THE COMPAN	NY (AS DEFINED HEREIN)					
COMPANY AND	INDIAN INFOTECH & COLTWARE ITS	ISSUE OPENS ON	Tuesday, 06th February, 2024					
RENOUNCEES ONLY USING	WINDIAN INFOTECH & SOFTWARE LTD.	LAST DATE FOR ON	Thursday 08th February, 2024					
ASBA FACILITY	NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY	MARKET						
		RENOUNCIATION*						
		ISSUE CLOSES ON#	Tuesday, 13th February, 2024					
		*Eligible Equity Shareholders	are requested to ensure that					
		renunciation through off-market tr	ansfer is completed in such a manner					
	EQUITY F THE AND USING IN THE UNITED STATES (OTHER THAN U.S. QIBS I DIRECTLY BY THE COMPANY (AS DEFINED HERE ISSUE OPENS ON Tuesday, 06th February NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED Registered Office: : Office No. 110, 1st Floor, Golden Chamber Pre Co-OS Soc Ltd. New Link Road Andheri West Mumbai-400053, India Contact Person: Manish Kumar Badola, Managing Director; Telephone: 022-49601435 IN THE UNITED STATES (OTHER THAN U.S. QIBS I DIRECTLY BY THE COMPANY (AS DEFINED HERE ISSUE OPENS ON Tuesday, 06th February MARKET RESOUNCIATION* Seal IN THE UNITED STATES (OTHER THAN U.S. QIBS I DIRECTLY BY THE COMPANY (AS DEFINED HERE ISSUE OPENS ON Tuesday, 06th February MARKET RENOUNCIATION* Seal IN THE UNITED STATES (OTHER THAN U.S. QIBS I DIRECTLY BY THE COMPANY (AS DEFINED HERE ISSUE OPENS ON Tuesday, 06th February MARKET RENOUNCIATION* Seal IN THE UNITED STATES (OTHER THAN U.S. QIBS I DIRECTLY BY THE COMPANY (AS DEFINED HERE ISSUE OPENS ON Tuesday, 06th February MARKET RENOUNCIATION* Seal IN THE UNITED STATES (OTHER THAN U.S. QIBS I DIRECTLY BY THE COMPANY (AS DEFINED HERE ISSUE OPENS ON Tuesday, 06th February MARKET RENOUNCIATION* Seal E-mail: indianinfotechsoftware@yahoo.com Website: www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in ; Corporate Identity Number: L70100MH1982PLC027198.							
		Renouncee(s) on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.						
Collecting SCSB's Sign & Seal		# Our Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right						
		to extend the Issue period as it ma	y determine from time to time but not					
	L/0100MH1982PLC02/198.	exceeding 30 (Thirty) days from i	the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of					
		NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY NON BANKING FINANCE COMPANY NDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED Office:: Office No. 110, 1st Floor, Golden Chamber Pre Co-Op Add Marker Terson: Manish Kumar Badola, Managing Director; Telephone: 022-49601435 smail: indianinfotechsoftware@yahoo.com Website: aninfotechandsoftwareltd.in; Corporate Identity Number: L70100MH1982PLC027198. #Our Board or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue opening Date; 124 ("Letter of Offer" or "LOF"), the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and instructions on the reverse of this t defined herein shall carry the same meaning as ascribed to them in the Letter of Offer. DO NOT TEAR OR DETACH ANY PART OF I IS NOT NEGOTIABLE. SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF ₹1.00 EACH ("EQUITY SHARES" OR "RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES) OF OUR COMPANY HTS EQUITY SHARE INCLUDING A SHARE PREMIUM OF 0.60 PAISE PER RIGHTS EQUITY SHARES) OF OUR COMPANY HTS EQUITY SHARE (THE "ISSUE AKH ("THE ISSUE") ON A RIGHTS BASIS TO THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHARES OF OUR COMPANY IN THE HARE FOR EVERY FIFTY (50) FULLY PAID-UP EQUITY SHARES HELD BY THE ELIGIBLE EQUITY SHAREA (THE "ISSUE Company").						
		be permitted by any Applicant after the Issue Closing Date						
Please read the letter of offer dated Ja	nuary 15, 2024 ("Letter of Offer" or "LOF"), the Abridged Letter of Offe	r, the Rights Entitlement Letter an	id instructions on the reverse of this					
Application Form carefully. All capitali	ised terms not defined herein shall carry the same meaning as ascribed to them	in the Letter of Offer. DO NOT TE	AR OR DETACH ANY PART OF					
THIS APPLICATION FORM THIS	DOCUMENT IS NOT NEGOTIABLE.							
RIGHT ISSUE OF UPTO 26,14,53,2	70 EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF ₹1.00 EACH ("EQUITY S	HARES" OR "RIGHTS EQUITY	Y SHARES) OF OUR COMPANY					
FOR CASH AT A PRICE OF ₹ 1.6	0 PER RIGHTS EQUITY SHARE INCLUDING A SHARE PREMIUM	4 OF 0.60 PAISE PER RIGHTS	EQUITY SHARE (THE "ISSUE					
PRICE") AGGREGATING UP TO ₹	₹ 4,183.25* LAKH ("THE ISSUE") ON A RIGHTS BASIS TO THE ELIC	GIBLE EQUITY SHAREHOLDE	RS OF OUR COMPANY IN THE					
OF OUR COMPANY ON THE REC	ORD DATE, THAT IS JANUARY 29, 2024 (THE "ISSUE"). FOR FURT	HER DETAILS, SEE "TERMS O	OF THE ISSUE" BEGINNING ON					
PACE 80 OF LETTER OF OFFFR								

*Assuming full subscription

To,

The Board of Directors, INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED Dear Sirs,

• I / We hereby accept and apply for Allotment of the Rights Equity Shares (including additional Rights Equity Shares, if applicable) mentioned in Block I of Point 5 below in response to the Abridged Letter of Offer / Letter of Offer offering the Equity Shares to me / us on rights basis.

Date:

- I / We agree to pay the amount specified in Block II of Point 5 below at the rate of ₹ 1.60/- per Rights Equity Share payable on Application on the total number of Rights Equity Shares specified in Block I of Point 5 below.
- 1/We agree to accept the Rights Equity Shares Allotted to me / us and to hold such Rights Equity Shares upon the terms and conditions of the Abridged Letter of Offer, Letter of Offer, this Application Form, Rights Entitlement Letter and subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI ICDR Regulations, as applicable and the rules made thereunder and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company.
- I / We undertake that I / we will sign all such other documents and do all other such acts, if any, necessary on my / our part to enable me / us to be registered as the holder(s) of the Equity Shares in respect of which this application may be accepted.
- I / We also agree to accept the Rights Equity Shares subject to laws, as applicable, guidelines, circulars, rules, notifications and regulations relating to the issue of capital and listing of securities issued from time to time by SEBI / Government of India / RBI and / or other authorities.
- I / We hereby solemnly declare that I am / we are not applying for the Rights Equity Shares in contravention of section 269SS of the Income-tax Act.
- I / We authorize you to place my / our name(s) on the Register of Shareholders / Register of Beneficial of the Company.
- I / we hereby accept and confirm the following: I / We understand that neither the Rights Entitlements nor the Rights Equity Shares have been, or will be, registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "US Securities Act"), or any United States state securities laws, and may not be offered, sold, resold or otherwise transferred within the United States, its territories or possessions, any State of the United States and the District of Columbia (the "United States"), except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act.
- I / we understand that the Rights Equity Shares are being offered and sold only in "offshore transactions" as defined in, and in reliance on, Regulation S under the US Securities Act ("Regulation S") to existing shareholders located in jurisdictions where such offer and sale of the Rights Equity Shares is permitted under applicable laws of such jurisdictions. I / we understand that the Issue is not, and under no circumstances is to be construed as, an offering of any Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements for sale in the United States, or as a solicitation therein of an offer to buy any of the said Rights Equity Shares or Rights Entitlements in the United States.
- I / we confirm that I am / we are (a) not in the United States and eligible to subscribe for the Rights Equity Shares under applicable securities laws, (b) complying with laws of jurisdictions applicable to such person in connection with the Issue and (c) understand that neither the Company nor the Registrar or any other person acting on their behalf will accept subscriptions from any person, or the agent of any person, who appears to be, or who the Company and the Registrar or any other person acting on their behalf have reason to believe is in the United States or is outside of India and ineligible to participate in the Issue under the securities laws of their jurisdiction.
- For Resident Applicants: I am / we are not applying for the Rights Equity Shares as nominee(s) of any Person who is / are resident outside India or foreign national(s) or a foreign company or a foreign controlled company. I / We hereby make the representations, warranties, acknowledgments and agreements set forth in the section "Notice to Investors" and "Other Regulatory and Statutory Disclosures Selling Restrictions" as mentioned in of the Letter of Offer. (if I am / we are outside the United States).
- For Non-Resident Applicants I am / we are non-resident Investors and who have made payments by way of a valid bank account in compliance with relevant FEMA regulations / circulars, rules and other applicable laws. I / We hereby make the representations, warranties, acknowledgments and agreements set forth in the section of the Letter of Offer titled "Restrictions on Purchases and Resales" under the sub-heading "NOTICE TO INVESTORS OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES". I / We acknowledge that the Lead Managers are not participating or otherwise involved in any offer or sale of the Rights Entitlements and / or Rights Equity Shares with respect to the Issue in the United States.
- I / We will not offer, sell or otherwise transfer any of the Rights Equity Shares which may be acquired by us in any jurisdiction or under any circumstances in which such offer or sale is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer, sale or invitation. I / We satisfy, and each account for which I am / we are acting satisfies, all suitability standards for investors in investments of the type subscribed for herein imposed by the jurisdiction of residence and are eligible to subscribe and are subscribing for the Rights Equity Shares and Rights Entitlements in compliance with applicable securities and other laws of our jurisdiction of residence.
- I / We understand and agree that the Rights Entitlements and Rights Equity Shares may not be reoffered, resold, pledged or otherwise transferred except in an offshore transaction in compliance with Regulation S, or otherwise pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the US Securities Act.
- I / We acknowledge that the Company, their affiliates and others will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing representations and agreements.

1. NAME AND CONTACT DETAILS OF APPLICANT

	Name of Sole / First	Applic	ant		Г																												
	Name of Second App	olicant			Γ																												
	Name of Third Appl	icant			Γ																												
	Indian Address:																																
																												-					_
	Email:			L																													
	Telephone / Mobile	No.																															
2.	PERMANENT ACCO)UNT I	NUM	BER	(PA	N)																											
	Sole / First Applican	t																															
	Second Applicant																																
	Third Applicant																																
3.	TYPE OF APPLICAN	VTS (P	lease	tick	3):			R	leside	ent] N	on-R	eside	nt																		
	Note: Non-resident App	licants	appl	ying o	on n	on-re	epatr	riatio	n bas	sis sk	ioul	d sei	lect '	Resid	ent".																		
4.	DEPOSITORYACCO)UNT]	DET	AILS	: ple	ease p	provi	ide y	our L	P II) an	nd Cl	lient	ID (P	lease	tick f	or N	SDL	or (CDSI	.):						N	SDL	· [CDS	L	
	For NSDL enter 8-digit	DP ID) follo	wed i	by 8	-digit	t Cli	ent L	D/F	or C	DSL	L ent	er 16	-digit	Clier	t ID.																	
	Note: Allotment of Rig	hts Equ	uity S	hares	sha	ll be	made	e in o	lemat	terial	lizeo	d for	m on	ly.																			
5.	APPLICATION DET	AILS																															
	Rights Equity Shares	(Incluc	ء ding	additi	iona	ıl Rig	ghts]	Equi	ity Sł	ares	s) aj	pplie	ed fo	r [I]																			
								Т	otal	amo	unt	pay	able	on ap	plica	tion a	t 1.6	i0 pe	r Ri	ghts l	Equi	ty Sh	are[II]									
		(in Fi	igure	s)																				(` i	n W	ords	5)					
6.	PAYMENT DETAILS	[IN C	APIT	'AL L	ET.	TER	S]																										
	Amount blocked (` in	ı figur	es) :									(` in v	vords)																		
	ASBA BANK Accou	nt No.																															
	Name of ASBA Bank		ıt Hol	ider :	:																												
	SCSB Name and Add	ess:	_																														
	I / We authorise the SC my / our bank account																																
	I / We understand that of																					nat ti	10 7 11	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	1 1 1 0 0	Jouin	. 13 1		ii iiiy	/ 00		i nan	ne.
	SIGNATURE OF ASI	BA BA	NK A	VCC0	JUN	VT H	OLI	DER																									
	Sole / Firs Note: Signature(s) as po specimen recorded with	er the s	pecin			ded w	vith t	the S	CSB.	In c						t Hold , all tl		int sł	nareh	older	s mu	st sig	n in					coun ce as		lder			
7.	SIGNATURE OF API	PLICA	.NT(§	5)																													
	I / We hereby confirm the offer. I / we hereby constant of the set	nfirm tl	hat I /	/ we 1	have	e read	l the	Inst	ructio	ons fo	or fi	illing	g up t	his A	pplica	ation 1	Form	give	en ov	verlea	f. I /	Weı	inder	rstar	nd th	at in	case	e of A					
								_													_												
	Sole / I	-									_			l Join														App					
	Note: Signature(s) as per per specimen recorded					ded w	vith t	the D	eposi	itory	. In	case	e of jo	oint sh	areho	olders,	all tl	he jo	int sl	hareh	olde	's mu	st sig	gn ir	1 the	sam	e sec	quenc	ce as				
				000110	ny.																												
					-							?	Tear	Here-																			
					-			AN I	NFO)TE(СН	ANI	D SO	FTW	ARE	LIM	ITEI) – I	RIGI	ITS													
Doc					-			AN I	NFO)TE(СН	ANI	D SO	FTW	ARE		ITEI) – I	RIGI	ITS													
PA	eived from				-			AN I	NFO)TE(СН	ANI	D SO	FTW	ARE	LIM	ITEI) – I	RIGI	ITS						A	PPL	JCA	TIO	N F	ORM Sign	NO	

 PAN
 Open Section
 Collecting SCSB's Sign & Seal

 DP ID and Client ID
 Bank & Branch
 Collecting SCSB's Sign & Seal

 Amount blocked (' in figures)
 Bank & Branch
 Date

 ASBA Account No.
 Date
 Date

 Tel. / Mobile No.
 Email Id:
 Date

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

- a) Please read the instructions carefully before filling this Application Form.
- b) Please read the Letter of Offer carefully to understand the Application process and applicable settlement process. All references in this Application Form to the "*Abridged Letter of Offer*" are to the Abridged Letter of Offer read together with the Letter of Offer. For accessing the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form, please refer below links provided on page 4 of this Application Form.
- c) The Application Form can be used by both the Eligible Equity Shareholders and the Renouncees.
- d) Applications should be (i) submitted to the Designated Branch of the SCSB or made online / electronic through the website of the SCSBs (if made available by such SCSB) for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money payable on the Application in their respective ASBA Accounts. Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, (i) Applications through ASBA process will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchanges. Only Eligible Equity Shareholders who are eligible to subscribe for Rights Entitlement and Rights Equity Shares in their respective jurisdictions under applicable securities laws are eligible to participate
- e) Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to provide relevant details (such as copies of self-attested PAN and client master sheet of demat account etc., details / records confirming the legal and beneficial ownership of their respective Equity Shares) to the Company or the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, i.e. Tuesday, 13th February, 2024 to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements by way of transfer from the demat suspense escrow account to their demat account at least one day before the Issue Closing Date, to enable such Eligible Equity Shareholders to make an application in this Issue, and this communication shall serve as an intimation to such Eligible Equity Shareholders in this regard.

The Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and who have not furnished the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, will not be able to renounce their Rights Entitlements. Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form can update the details of their respective demat accounts on the website of the Registrar (i.e., https://purvashare.com). In accordance with the ASBA Circulars, (a) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (b) the Eligible Equity Shareholders, who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date; or (c) the Registrar or our Company at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares **may also apply** in this Issue during the Issue Period subject to certain conditions. Such resident Eligible Equity Shareholders must check the procedure for Application by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form" and "Terms of the Issue - Credit of Rights Entitlements in Demat Accounts of Eligible Equity Shareholders" as mentioned in the Letter of Offer.

- f) An Investor, wishing to participate in this Issue, is required to have an ASBA enabled bank account with an SCSB, prior to making the Application. Please note that only those Investors who have a demat account can apply through ASBA facility.
- g) The Application should be complete in all respects. The Application Form found incomplete with regard to any of the particulars required to be given therein, and / or which are not completed in conformity with the terms of the Letter of Offer, Abridged Letter of Offer, the Rights Entitlement Letter and the Application Form are liable to be rejected. The Application Form must be filled in English only.
- h) In case of non-receipt of Application Form, Application can be made on plain paper mentioning all necessary details as mentioned under the section "Terms of the Issue Application on Plain Paper under ASBA process" on page 89 of the Letter of Offer. An Eligible Equity Shareholder shall submit the plain paper Application to the Designated Branch of the SCSB for authorising such SCSB to block Application Money in the said bank account maintained with the same SCSB. Applications on plain paper will not be accepted from any address outside India.
- i) Applications should not to be submitted to the Bankers to the Issue (assuming that such Bank is not an SCSB), our Company or the Registrar or the Lead Managers.
- j) Investors are required to provide necessary details, including details of the ASBA Account, authorization to the SCSB to block an amount equal to the Application Money in the ASBA Account mentioned in the Application Form.
- k) All Applicants, and in the case of Application in joint names, each of the joint Applicants, should mention their PAN allotted under the Income-tax Act, irrespective of the amount of the Application. Except for Applications on behalf of the Central or the State Government, the residents of Sikkim and the officials appointed by the courts, Applications without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected. With effect from August 16, 2010, the demat accounts for Investors for which PAN details have not been verified shall be "suspended for credit" and no Allotment and credit of Rights Equity Shares pursuant to this Issue shall be made into the accounts of such Investors
- All payments will be made only by blocking the amount in the ASBA Account. Cash payment or payment by cheque or demand draft or pay order or NEFT or RTGS or through any
 other mode is not acceptable for application. In case payment is made in contravention of this, the Application will be deemed invalid and the Application Money will be refunded
 and no interest will be paid thereon.
- m) For physical Applications through ASBA at Designated Branches of SCSB, signatures should be either in English or Hindi or in any other language specified in the Eighth Schedule to the Constitution of India. Signatures other than in any such language or thumb impression must be attested by a Notary Public or a Special Executive Magistrate under his / her official seal. The Investors must sign the Application as per the specimen signature recorded with the SCSB.
- n) In case of joint holders and physical Applications through ASBA process, all joint holders must sign the relevant part of the Application Form in the same order and as per the specimen signature(s) recorded with the SCSB. In case of joint Applicants, reference, if any, will be made in the first Applicant's name and all communication will be addressed to the first Applicant
- o) Please note that Applications through ASBA may be submitted at all designated branches of the SCSBs available on the SEBI website at <u>https://www.sebi.gov.in/</u><u>sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34</u>, updated from time to time, or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.
 p) Applicants are required to ensure that the number of Rights Equity Shares applied for by them do not exceed the prescribed limits under the applicable law.
- (a) The Applicants shall submit only one Application Form for the Rights Entitlements available in a particular demat account. In case of Investors who have provided details of demat account in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, such Investors will have to apply for the Rights Equity Shares from the same demat account in which they are holding the Rights Entitlements and in case of multiple demat accounts, the Investors are required to submit a separate Application Form for each demat account. Please note that in accordance with Regulation 77A of the SEBI ICDR Regulations read with the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the credit of Rights Entitlements and Allotment of Equity Shares shall be made in dematerialised form only. Accordingly, Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date and desirous of subscribing to Rights Equity Shares in this Issue are advised to furnish the details of their demat account to the Registrar or our Company by, Monday, January 29, 2024 i.e., at least two Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, to enable the credit of their Rights Entitlements in their respective demat accounts at least one day before the Issue Closing Date.
- For further details, see "*Terms of the Issue Procedure for Application*" beginning on page 87 of the Letter of Offer. r) Please note that Applications without depository account details shall be treated as incomplete and shall be rejected, except in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders who
- hold Equity Shares in physical form and are applying in this Issue in accordance with the ASBA Circulars.
 s) Any Investor being an OCB is required not to be under the adverse notice of the RBI and to obtain prior approval from RBI for applying in this Issue and such approval should be submitted to Registrar to the Issue so that the same is received on or prior to the Issue Closing Date.
- t) The Rights Entitlements are tradable in dematerialized form only.
- u) Our Company reserves the right to treat as invalid any Application Form which: (i) appears to our Company or its agents to have been executed in, electronically transmitted from or dispatched from the United States; (ii) does not include the relevant certifications set out in the Application Form, including to the effect that the person submitting and / or renouncing the Application Form does not have a registered address (and is not otherwise located) in the United States and such person is complying with laws of jurisdictions applicable to such person in connection with this Issue; or (iii) where either a registered Indian address is not provided or our Company believes acceptance of such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirements. Our Company shall not be bound to issue or allot any Rights Equity Shares in respect of any such Application Form.

All communication in connection with Applications for the Rights Equity Shares, including any change in address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders should be addressed to the Registrar prior to the date of Allotment in the Issue quoting the name of the first / sole Applicant and folio numbers / DP Id and Client Id and Application Form number, as applicable. In case of any change in address of the Eligible Equity Shareholders, the Eligible Equity Shareholders should also send the intimation for such change to the respective depository participant or to our Company or the Registrar, in case of Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shares in physical form.

Investors must ensure that their PAN is linked with Aadhaar and are in compliance with the notification dated February 13, 2020 issued by Central Board of Direct Taxes and press release dated June 25, 2021.

Please note that the Rights Entitlements which are neither renounced nor subscribed by the Investors on or before the Issue Closing Date shall lapse and shall be extinguished after the Issue Closing Date.

LAST DATE FOR APPLICATION

The last date for submission of the duly filled in the Application Form or a plain paper Application is, February 13, 2024, i.e., Issue Closing Date. Our Board or any committee thereof may extend the said date for such period as it may determine from time to time, subject to the Issue Period not exceeding 30 days from the Issue Opening Date (inclusive of the Issue Opening Date).

If the Application Form is not submitted with an SCSB, uploaded with the Stock Exchanges and the Application Money is not blocked with the SCSB, on or before the Issue Closing Date or such date as may be extended by our Board or any committee thereof, the invitation to offer contained in the Letter of Offer shall be deemed to have been declined and our Board or any committee thereof shall be at liberty to dispose of the Equity Shares hereby offered, as set out in *"Terms of the Issue - Basis of Allotment"* on page 97 of the Letter of Offer.

Please note that on the Issue Closing Date, Applications will be uploaded until 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) or such extended time as permitted by the Stock Exchanges.

WITHDRAWAL OF APPLICATION

An Investor who has applied in this Issue may withdraw its Application at any time during Issue Period by approaching the SCSB where application is submitted. However, no Investor, may withdraw their Application post the Issue Closing Date

LIST OF SELF CERTIFIED SYNDICATE BANKS (SCSBs)

of banks who have registered with SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA Process https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=34. For this Issue, following banks would be acting as SCSB: 1. AU Small Finance Bank 2. Axis Bank Ltd 3. Bandhan Bank 4. Bank of Baroda 5. Bank of India 6. Bank of Maharashtra 7. Barclays Bank PLC 8. BNP Paribas 9. Canara Bank 10. Catholic Syrian Bank Limited 11. Central Bank of India 12. CITI Bank 13. City Union Bank Ltd 14. DBS Bank Ltd 15. Deutsche Bank 16. Dhanlaxmi Bank Limited 17. GP Parsik Sahakari Bank Limited 18. HDFC Bank Ltd 19. HSBC Ltd 20. ICICI Bank Ltd 21. IDBI Bank Ltd 22. IDFC First Bank 23. Indian Bank 24. Indian Overseas Bank 25. IndusInd Bank 26. J P Morgan Chase Bank 27. Janata Sahakari Bank Ltd 28. Karnataka Bank Ltd 29. Karur Vysya Bank Ltd 30. Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd 31. Mehsana Urban Co-operative Bank Limited 32. Nutan Nagarik Sahakari Bank Ltd 33. Punjab & Sind Bank 34. Punjab National Bank 35. Rajkot Nagarik Sahakari Bank Ltd 36. RBL Bank Limited 37. South Indian Bank 38. Standard Chartered Bank 39. State Bank of India 40. SVC Co-operative Bank Ltd 41. Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Ltd 42. The Ahmedabad Mercantile Co-Op Bank Ltd 43. The Federal Bank 44. The Jammu & Kashmir Bank Limited 45. The Kalupur Commercial Cooperative Bank Ltd 46. The Lakshmi Vilas Bank Ltd 47. The Saraswat Co-Opearative Bank Ltd 48. The Surat Peoples Co-op Bank Ltd 49. TJSB Sahakari Bank Ltd 50. UCO Bank 51. Union Bank of India 52. YES Bank Ltd.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent / dispatched only to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid email address, the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Abridged Letter of Offer, the Application Form, the Rights Entitlement Letter and other Issue material will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Further, the Letter of Offer will be sent / dispatched to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have provided Indian address and who have made a request in this regard. In case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have provided their valid e-mail address, the Letter of Offer will be sent only to their valid e-mail address and in case such Eligible Equity Shareholders have not provided their e-mail address, then the Letter of Offer will be dispatched, on a reasonable effort basis, to the Indian addresses provided by them.

Investors can access the Letter of Offer, the Abridged Letter of Offer and the Application Form (provided that the Eligible Equity Shareholder is eligible to subscribe for the Equity Shares under applicable securities laws) on the websites of:

- (i) our Company at www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in
- (ii) the Registrar to the Issue at https://purvashare.com
- (iii) the Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com; and
- (iv) the SEBI at www.sebi.gov.in.

Shareholders who have not received the Application Form may apply, along with the requisite Application Money, by using the Application Forms available on the websites above, or on plain paper, with the same details as per the Application Form available online.

Eligible Equity Shareholders can also obtain the details of their respective Rights Entitlements from the website of the Registrar (i.e., <u>https://purvashare.com</u>) by entering their DP ID and Client ID or Folio Number (for Eligible Equity Shareholders who hold Equity Shares in physical form as on Record Date) and PAN. The link for the same shall also be available on the website of our Company (i.e., www.indianinfotechandsoftwareltd.in).

The Investors can visit following links for the below-mentioned purposes:

- Frequently asked questions and online / electronic dedicated investor helpdesk for guidance on the Application process and resolution of difficulties faced by the Investors: https://purvashare.com;
- Updation of Indian address / email address / mobile number in the records maintained by the Registrar or our Company: https://purvashare.com;
- Updation of demat account details by Eligible Equity Shareholders holding shares in physical form: https://purvashare.com; and
- Submission of self-attested PAN, client master sheet and demat account details by non-resident Eligible Equity Shareholders by email to support@purvashare.com.

Investors may contact the Registrar to the Issue or our Company Secretary or our Compliance Officer for any pre-Issue or post- Issue related matters. All grievances relating to the ASBA process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, with a copy to the SCSB, giving full details such as name, address of the Applicant, contact number(s), e-mail address of the sole / first holder, folio number or demat account, number of Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked, ASBA Account number and the Designated Branch of the SCSB where the Application Forms, or the plain paper application, as the case may be, was submitted by the Investors along with a photocopy of the acknowledgement slip. For details on the ASBA process, see "*Terms of the Issue*" on page 80 of the Letter of Offer.

